
215 SOUTH MONROE STREET 
SUITE 81 5 

TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA 32301 

(850) 412-2005 
F A X  (850) 41 2~1305 

MICHAEL.COOKE@RU DEN.COM 

January 7,201 1 

Ann Cole, Commission Clerk 
Division of Commission Clerk 

and Administrative Services 
Florida Public Service Commission 
2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard 
Tallahassee, FL 32399-0850 

Re: 
Application for Original Water Certificate 

3 . .  Docket No. I! w-3 '3 -N , Equity Lifestyle Properties, Inc., Hacienda Village 

Dear Ms. Cole; 

Enclosed please find for filing an original and six (6)  copies of the Application and 
attached exhibits; one copy of each territory and system map; and an original and two (2) copies 
of the proposed tariff of Equity Lifestyle Properties, Inc., Hacienda Village, Original Water 
Certificate in Pasco County. Also enclosed is check number 1040692 in the amount of 
$1,500.00 submitted as the application fee for the water utility. 

If you have any questions or comments, please do not hesitate to contact me. 

Very truly yours, 

LLL..( ..7. i , a C <  

Michael G. Cooke 

MGC/mbf 
CXlM -closures 

y \ w / e n c . ) :  Jordan Ruben 

CCL 



FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR COMPLETING 

APPLICATION FOR ORIGINAL CERTIFICATE 
FOR A PROPOSED OR EXISTING SYSTEM REQUESTING 

INITIAL RATES AND CHARGES 

(Section 367.045, Florida Statutes) 

General Information 

The attached form has been prepared by the Florida Public Service Commission to aid 
utilities under its jurisdiction to file information required by Chapter 367, Florida Statutes, and 
Chapter 25-30, Florida Administrative Code. Any questions regarding this form should be 
directed to the Division of Economic Regulation, Bureau of Certification, Economics and Tariffs 
(850) 413- 6900. 

Instructions 

1. 

2. 

Fill out the attached application form completely and accurately. 

Complete all the items that apply to your utility. If an item is not applicable, mark it "NA.' 
Do not leave any items blank. 

Notarize the completed application form 3. 

4. Remit the proper filing fee pursuant to Rule 25-30.020, Florida Administrative Code, with 
the application. 

The original and five copies of the completed application and attached exhibits; one 
copy of each territory and system map; the original and two copies of the proposed 
tariff(s); and the proper filing fee should be mailed to: 

5. 

Office of Commission Clerk 
Florida Public Service Commission 

2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0850 



To: 

APPLICATION FOR ORIGINAL CERTIFICATE 
FOR A PROPOSED OR EXISTING SYSTEM REQUESTING 

INITIAL RATES AND CHARGES 
(Pursuant to Section 367.045, Florida Statutes) 

Office of Commission Clerk 
Florida Public Service Commission 
2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0850 

The undersigned hereby makes application for original certificate(s) to operate a water 
and/or wastewater x utility in Pasco County, Florida, and submits the 

following information: (Please note: ELS, Inc., currently intends to place this utility into a 
wholly-owned subsidiary to own and operate the utility and intends to file a supplement to this 
application with relevant information in that regard.) 

PART I APPLICANT INFORMATION 

A) The full name (as it appears on the certificate), address and telephone number of the 
applicant: 

Eauitv Lifestvle Properties. Inc. C‘ELS”) Hacienda Villaae 
Name of utility 

[ 813 ) 282-6754 ( 813 1 289-7628 
Phone No. Fax No. 

5100 W. Lemon Street, Ste. 308 
Office street address 

TamDa FL 33609 
City State Zip Code 

Mailing address if different from street address 

Internet address if applicable 

B) The name, address and telephone number of the person to contact concerning this 
application: 

Name Phone No. 
Jordan Ruben ( 81 3 ) 282-6754 

Office street address 

TamDa FL 33609 
City State Zip Code 



Indicate the organizational character of the applicant: (circle one) 

Corporation x Partnership Sole Proprietorship 

Other (Specify) 

If the applicant is a corporation, indicate whether it has made an election under Internal 
Revenue Code Section 1362 to be an S Corporation: 

Yes - No X 

If the applicant is a corporation, list names, titles and addresses of corporate officers, 
directors, partners, or any other person(s) or entities owning an interest in the applicant's 
business organization. (Use additional sheet if necessary). 

See attached 2009 Annual 10K ReDort. Daqe 61. and Florida 2010 Annual ReDort 
included in Exhibit I. 

If the applicant 
owning an interest in the organization. (Use additional sheet if necessary.) 

a corporation, list names and addresses of all persons or entities 

PART II NEED FOR SERVICE 

A) Exhibit A - A statement regarding the need for service in the proposed territory, 
such as anticipated (or actual) development in the area. Identify any other utilities within 
the area proposed to be served which could potentially provide such service in the area 
and the steps the applicant took to ascertain whether such other service is available. 

Exhibit 6 - A statement that to the best of the applicant's knowledge, the provision 
of service will be consistent with the water and wastewater sections of the local 
comprehensive plan, as approved by the Department of Community Affairs at the time 
the application is filed. If the provision of service is inconsistent with such plan, provide a 
statement demonstrating why granting the certificate would be in the public interest. 

B) 

PART 111 SYSTEM INFORMATION 

A) WATER 

(1) 

(2) 

Exhibit C - A statement describing the proposed type(s) of water service to be 
provided (Le., potable, non-potable or both). 

Exhibit 1 - The number of equivalent residential connections (ERCs) proposed 
to be served, by meter size and customer class. If development will be in phases, 
separate this information by phase. In addition, if the utility is in operation, 
provide the current number of ERCs by meter size and customer class. 
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(3) Description of the types of customers anticipated (i.e., single family, mobile 
homes, clubhouse, commercial, etc.): 

Mobile homes. clubhouse and related amenities. 

(4) In the case of an existing utility, provide the permit number and the date of 
approval of facilities by the Department of Environmental Protection (DEP) or the 
agency designated by DEP to issue permits: 

PWS6510709 

Indicate the design capacity of the treatment plant in terms of equivalent 
residential connections (ERCs) and gallons per day (gpd). If development will be 
in phases, separate this information by phase. 

1071.43 (ERCs) 375.000 (GPD) 

Indicate the type of treatment: chlorination 

Indicate the design capacity of the transmission and distribution lines in terms of 
ERCs and GPD. If development will be in phases, separate this information by 
phase. 

The svstem is built out. 

Provide the date the applicant began or plans to begin serving customers: 
Existina exempt svstem DrOVidins service since apDroximatelv 1973. 

Exhibit E - Evidence, in the form of a warranty deed, that the utility owns the 
land where the water facilities are or will be located. If the utility does not own the 
land, a copy of the agreement which provides for the Tong term continuous use 
of the land, such as a 99-year lease. The Commission may consider a written 
easement or other cost-effective alternative. 

The applicant may submit a contract for the purchase and sale of land with an 
unexecuted copy of the warranty deed provided the applicant files an executed 
and recorded copy of the deed, or executed copy of the lease, within thirty days 
after the order granting the certificate. 

8 )  WASTEWATER 

(1) Exhibit N/A - The number of equivalent residential connections (ERCs) 
proposed to be served, by meter size and customer class. If development will be 
in phases, separate this information by phase. In addition, if the utility is in 
operation, provide the current number of ERCs by meter size and customer 
class. 
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(2) Description of the types of customers anticipated (i.e., single family, mobile 
homes, clubhouse, commercial, etc.): 

(3) In the case of an existing utility, provide the permit number and the date of 
approval of facilities by the Department of Environmental Protection (DEP) or the 
agency designated by DEP to issue permits: 

NIA 

Indicate separately the design capacity of the treatment plant and effluent 
disposal system in terms of equivalent residential connections (ERCs) and 
gallons per day (GPD). If development will be in phases, separate this 
information by phase. 

(4) 

NIA 

(5) Indicate the method of treatment and disposal (percolation pond, spray field, 
etc.): 

(6)  Exhibit - If the applicant does not propose to use reuse as a means of 
effluent disposal, provide a statement that describes, with particularity, the 
reasons for not using reuse. 

NIA 

(7) Indicate the design capacity of the collection lines in terms of ERCs and GDP. If 
development will be in phases, separate this information by phase. 

NIA 

(8)  Provide the date the applicant began or plans to begin serving customers: 

NIA 

(9) Exhibit NIA - Evidence, in the form of a warranty deed, that the utility owns 
the land where the utility treatment facilities are or will be located. If the utility 
does not own the land, a copy of the agreement which provides for the long term 
continuous use of the land, such as a 99-year lease. 

The Commission may consider a written easement or other cost-effective 
alternative. The applicant may submit a contract for the purchase and sale of 
land with an unexecuted copy of the warranty deed, provided the applicant files 
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an executed and recorded copy of the deed, or executed copy of the lease, 
within thirty days after the order granting the certificate. 

FINANCIAL AND TECHNICAL INFORMATION PART IV 

Exhibit - A  statement regarding the financial and technical ability of the applicant 
to provide reasonably sufficient and efficient service. 

Exhibit G - A detailed financial statement (balance sheet and income statement), 
certified if available, of the financial condition of the applicant, showing all assets and 
liabilities of every kind and character. The income statement shall be for the preceding 
calendar or fiscal year. If an applicant has not operated for a full year, then the income 
statement shall be for the lesser period. The financial statement shall be prepared in 
accordance with Rule 25-30.1 15, Florida Administrative Code. If available, a statement 
of the source and application of funds shall also be provided. 

Exhibit A- A list of all entities, including affiliates, upon which the applicant is relying 
to provide funding to the utility , and an explanation of the manner and amount of such 
funding, which shall include their financial statements and any financial agreements with 
the utility. This requirement shall not apply to any person or entity holding less than 10 
percent ownership interest in the utility. 

Exhibit A- A schedule showing the projected cost of the proposed system (or actual 
cost of the existing system) by uniform system of accounts (USOA) account numbers 
pursuant to Rule 25-30.1 15, F.A.C. In addition, provide the capacity of each component 
of the system in ERCs and gallons per day. If the utility will be built in phases, this 
schedule shall apply to the design capacity of the first phase only. Provide a separate 
exhibit for the water and wastewater systems. 

Exhibit H - A schedule showing the projected operating expenses of the proposed 
system by USOA account numbers when 80 percent of the designed capacity of the 
system is being utilized. If the utility will be built in phases, this schedule shall apply to 
the design capacity of the first phase only. In addition, if the utility has been in existence 
for at least one year, provide actual operating expenses for the most recent twelve 
months. Provide a separate exhibit for the water and wastewater systems. 

E x h i b i t H -  A schedule showing the projected capital structure, including the methods 
of financing the construction and operation of the utility until the utility reaches 80 
percent of the designed capacity of the system(s). 

Exhibit H- A cost study, including customer growth projections, which supports the 
proposed rates, miscellaneous service charges, customer deposits and service 
availability charges. A sample cost study is enclosed with the application package. 
Provide a separate cost study for the water and wastewater systems. 

Exhibit N/A - If the base facility and usage rate structure (as defined in Rule 25- 
30.437(6), F.A.C.) is not utilized for metered service, provide an alternative rate structure 
and a statement supporting why the alternative is appropriate. 

Exhibit N/A - If a different return on common equity other than the current equity 
leverage formula established by order of the Public Service Commission pursuant to 

F 
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Section 367.081(4), ES. is utilized, provide competent substantial evidence supporting 
the use of a different return on common equity. Information on the current equity 
leverage formula may be obtained by contacting the accounting section at the listed 
number. 

PART V ALLOWANCE FOR FUNDS USED DURING CONSTRUCTION (AFUDC) 

Please note the following: 

Utilities obtaining initial certificates pursuant to Rule 25-30.033, F.A.C., are authorized to 
accrue AFUDC for projects found eligible pursuant to Rule 25-30.1 16(1), F.A.C. 

A discounted monthly AFUDC rate calculated in accordance with Rule 25-30.1 16(3), 
F.A.C., shall be used to insure that the annual AFUOC charged does not exceed 
authorized levels. 

J) 

K) 

L) The date the utility shall begin to charge the AFUDC rate shall be the date the certificate 
of authorization is issued to the utility so that such rate can apply to initial construction of 
the utility facilities. 

PART VI TERRITORY DESCRIPTION AND MAPS 

TERRITORY DESCRIPTION 

Exhibit 1- An accurate description, using township, range and section references as 
specified in Rule 25-30.030(2), Florida Administrative Code. If the water and wastewater 
service territories are different, provide separate descriptions. 

TERRITORY MAPS 

Exhibit J- One copy of an official county tax assessment map or other map showing 
township, range and section with a scale such as 1=200 or 1=400 on which the 
proposed territory is plotted by use of metes and bounds or quarter sections and with a 
defined reference point of beginning. If the water and wastewater service territories are 
different, provide separate maps. 

SYSTEM MAPS 

Exhibit K- One copy of detailed map(s) showing proposed lines, facilities and the 
territory proposed. Additionally, identify any existing lines and facilities. Map(s) 
should be of sufficient scale and detail to enable correlation with a description of the 
territory to be served. Provide separate maps for water and wastewater systems. 

PART VI1 NOTICE OF ACTUAL APPLICATION -To be filed as late filed exhibit 

P) Exhibit - An affidavit that the notice of actual application was given in 
accordance with Section 367.045(1)(a), Florida Statutes, and Rule 25-30.030, Florida 
Administrative Code, by regular mail to the following: 

(1) the governing body of the municipality, county, or counties in which the system or 
the territory proposed to be served is located; 
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(2) the privately owned water and wastewater utilities that hold a certificate granted 
by the Public Service Commission and that are located within the county in which 
the utility or the territory proposed to be served is located; 

if any portion of the proposed territory is within one mile of a county boundary, 
the utility shall notice the privately owned utilities located in the bordering 
counties and holding a certificate granted by the Commission; 

(3) 

(4) the regional planning council; 

(5) the Office of Public Counsel; 

(6) the Public Service Commission’s Director of the Division of the Commission 
Clerk and Administrative Services; 

(7) the appropriate regional office of the Department of Environmental Protection; 
and 

( 8 )  the appropriate water management district. 

Copies of the Notice and a list of entities noticed shall accompany the affidavit. THlS 
MAY BE A LATE-FILED EXHIBIT. 

Q) Exhibit - An affidavit that the notice of actual application was given in 
accordance with Rule 25-30.030, Florida Administrative Code, by regular mail or 
personal delivery to each customer of the system. A copy of the notice shall accompany 
the affidavit. THIS MAY BE A LATE-FILED EXHIBIT. 

- Immediately upon completion of publication, an affidavit that the notice 
of actual application was published once in a newspaper of general circulation in the 
territory in accordance with Rule 25-30.030, Florida Administrative Code. A copy of the 
proof of publication shall accompany the affidavit. THIS MAY BE A LATE-FILED 
EXHIBIT. 

R) Exhibit 

PART Vlll FILING FEE 

Indicate the filing fee enclosed with the application: 
$1,500.00 (for water) and $N/A (for wastewater). 

Note: Pursuant to Rule 25-30.020, Florida Administrative Code, the amount of the filing 
fee as follows: 

(1) For applications in which the utility has the capacity to serve up to 500 ERCs, the 
filing fee shall be $750. 

For applications in which the utility has the capacity to serve from 501 to 2,000 
ERCs the filing fee shall be $1,500. 

For applications in which the utility has the capacity to serve from 2,001 to 4,000 
ERCs the filing fee shall be $2,250. 

(2) 

(3) 
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(4) For applications in which the utility has the capacity to serve more than 4,000 
ERCs the filing fee shall be $3,000. 

PART IX TARIFF 

Exhibit L- The original and two copies of water andlor wastewater tariff(s) containing 
all rates, classifications, charges, rules and regulations. Sample tariffs are enclosed with 
the application package. 

PART X AFFIDAVIT 

I (applicant) do solemnly swear 
or affirm that the facts stated in the foregoing application and all exhibits attached thereto are 
true and correct and that said statements of 
matter to which it relates. 

itutes a complete s 

I m i b n t ' s  Signature 

L 
Applicant's Title * 

/' day of T&flicfLry month in the 
k n 3 j  ... to me 

- 

Type of Identification Produced 

ary Public's Signature 
/ A- 

.7&7 /C& &/cc,,e 
Print, Type or Stamp Commissioned 
Name of Notary Public 

* If applicant is a corporation, the affidavit must be made by the president or other officer 
authorized by the by-laws of the corporation to act for it. If applicant is a partnership or 
association, a member of the organization authorized to make such affidavit shall execute 
same. 

RM:7762003:2 
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Hacienda Village 

EXHIBIT A 

Water and wastewater services have been provided to the service area for many years. 
To date, water service has been provided to tenants without specific compensation. 
Upon approval, the rates that are established for water services will be offset by 
appropriate decreases in current lot rental fees. 



Hacienda Village 

EXHIBIT B 

The water system, to the best of applicant's knowledge, is consistent with the water 
section of the local comprehensive plan, as approved by the Department of Community 
Affairs at the time this application is filed. 



Hacienda Village 

EXHIBIT C 

Currently, potable water service is provided. 



Hacienda Village 

EXHIBIT D 

There are 505 residential lot connections. Individual meters have not been installed. In 
addition, there are three common area buildings (two clubhouses and one office) and 
one pool. The system is built out. 



Hacienda Village 

EXHIBIT E 

Warranty Deed 



THIS WARRANTY DEED made as ofthe &'day of December, 2002, by HACIENDA 
VILLAGE MANUFAiXURED HOME COMMUNITIES, LTD., a Florida limited prtncnhip. 
having an address at do Diversified Investments Services. LLC. 3005 Douglas Boulevard, Suilc 
!SO. Ro~villc.Califomia95~1 (hereinaRercalled"Grantor") to MHC HACIENDAVILLAGE, 
L.L.C., a Delaware limited liability company .having an address at Two North Rivmide Plaza, 
Suite 800. Chicago, Illinois 60606 (hereinallcr called '%rantee"). 

(Whneusedhminche terms"Gnntor"and'Gnntce"includc all particstothis instrument 
md their mpMive  legal rrprercntatives. successors and assigns). 

That Ihc Grantor. far and in considemtion of the sum of Ten and NdI00s Dollars (510.00) 
and other good and valuable considerations. the rcccipt and sufficiency of which are hereby 
icknowledgd. by these presents docs hereby grant, bargain. sell. alien. remise. release. convey and 
eonfirm unto the Grantee all that cenain land situate and being in Pasco County. Florida, as more 
pariicularly deMibed in Exhibit "A" attnched hereto and incorporated herein (the "Property"). 
subject to those matters set fonh on Exhibit " B  a:taehcd hereto and incorporatrd herein. 

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the same in fee simple fore& 

TOGETHER wilh all the tenements. hereditaments and appurtenances thereto belonging or 
in anyWirc appmaining. 

AND the Grantor docs hereby fully vanant the title to the Pwpeny. nnd will dcfend the 
same against the lawful c!aims and demands of 111 persons whomsoever. 



01 5185 m 1916 
I .I 0 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, theGrantor hasuusedthereprcscnts tobe executed theday and 
year A n t  above mitten. 

HACIENDA VILLAGE MANUFACTURED HOME 
COMMUNITIES, LTD., a Florida limited partnership 

By: Diversified lnvcstmenta - Hacienda, L.C., a Florida 
limit- c o m ~ ~  its M General Parmer 

/.. 

l'hc f a p i n g  instrument WM acknowledged befnn me this fi dry of December, 2002 by 
BvryL.Huse.uMnsgcrof Divmifiedlnvatments-HEeienda, L.C.,aFloridalimitedliability 
company, u GaKnl P.nncr of HACIENDA VILLAGE MANUFACTURED HOME 
COMMUNITIES, LTD.. Florida limited partnership. on behallofthe limited pamership. Such 
pcnonispenorully LMmLomeorhaspmduceda Floridadrivets license identification anddid 
not takc an mlh. .* .Q< i! 

NOTARY P U B W '  \I',<, ~ *, 
RinlcdNm o l N o u y :  .,"' ' . ; r\ 
Cmmiruon NO.: 
Camirrion Expiruion: 

. .  

+Sbn t...,Oc 1 

(NOTARIAL SEAL) 



HACIENDA VILLAGE MANUFACTURED HOME COMMUNITIES. LTD. 

PARCELI: 
. .  . 

T~lr38,39.40,59. and60ofPORT.RICHEY LAND COMPANY SUBDIVISION ofSection 3, 
Township 26 South, Ranp 16 East. as shown on the Plat recorded in Plat Bwk 1. Page 61. of the 
public Records of Para County. Floridn. lesi and except a pan ofTractS9 being more particularly 
described as follows: 

Commence at the Nonhwst corner or the Southe~st 114 of Section 3. Township 26 South. Rangc 
16 East.andgoSouth00'31'10" West. 1650.YO fcetalongthc Westboundaryof~idSoutheast 114: 
thence South 8938'54" East. 664.77 feci to a p i n t  on the Nonh boundary of wid Tract 59; thence 
South 00'26'03" West 30.00 feet. to the Point of Bcginning; thence South 89 38'5.4"East. 190 feet. 
along a line 30.00 feet South of and parallel to the Nonh boundary of said Tract 59 ;!hence South 
00.2603" West 320 feet along a line 30.00 feet West and parallel to the East boundary ofTract 59; 
thence North 89038'54" West. 19b feet. thence Nonh 0026'03" Enst. 320 feet to the Point of 
Beginning. 

PARCELt: 

The NoflhSY4.00 fed of Tracts 43 and 44, lying East of Rowan Road. PORT RICHEY LAND 
COMPANY SUBDIVISION o f  Section 3,,Township 26 South. Rangc 16 East. P a w  County, 
Florids.said Pon Richcy Land Company Subdkisionbeingrecordcd in Plat Bwk I ,  Page 61. Public 
Records of Pa&o County. Florida, less and except that propeny described in that cenain Order of 
Taking as recorded in Official Rccords Book 1204. Page 747, Public Records of Paxo County. 
Florida 

Less h c  Westerly 20.00 feet o f  the Nonh 5W.00 leet of Tracts 43 and 44, lying East o f  Roivan 
Road. PORTRICHEY LANDCOMPANY SUBDIVISION ofSation 3. Towiship 26 South. Range 
I6 East. as shown on Plat recorded in Plat Book I. Page 61. Public Records of Pax0 County. 
Florida. being more particularly described as follows: 

Commrnce at the Nonhcast corner of said Tract 43 for a Point of Rcfercncc; thcncc run North 
8932'37" West. 560. I 3  feet along the North boundary linc ofwid Tracts 43 and 44. tu thc Poini pf 
Beginning: hence South 27 1630" East 356.20 feel; thence 126.52 fect dong the arc of a curvc 
concave lo thc right having a radius of 850.00 feet. a chord of 126.40 feet bearing South 23 00'39" 
East; thence South 18'44'48" East 172.36 fwt: thence North MY 32'37" \Vest. 2 I .  I8 fect to a point 
on the Easterly right-of-way line of Rowan Rwd as nwv crlablisherl: thence h'ur~h I X 44'48" West. 
165.39 feet along said Easterly right-of-way line; thence 123.54 feet along the arc o f  a curve 
ConCavCtO Ihc len along said Easterly right-of-way line, having a radius O f  830.00 feet. a chord of 
123.43 feet bearing lvonh 2300'39'.' Wnt:  thence Nonh 2716'30" West. 366.71 feet along said 
Easterly right-of-way line; thence South 8932'37" East. 22.60 fect along said Nonh boundary line 
to the Point o f  Beginning. 



Less and except Parcel I34A: A poaiun of the Nonh 594 00 feet of Tracts 43 and 44 of the WRT 
RlCHEY LAND COMPANY SUBDIVISION, ofSection 3, Towship 26 South. Range 16 East. 
u shown on h e  Plat rccordcd in Plat Book I ,  Pages 60 and 61. Public Records of Paro  County. 
Florid- k ing  funher described as follows! 

Commence at thc Southwest comer of said kction 3. thcncc along thc Wcst linc of said Scccton 3. 
Nonh 00'22'25' East. a distance of 399.34 fcct to chc South line of the Nonh 594.00 feet of said 
Tracls 43 ud 44. thence along said South line, South 8935'38" East. a distance of 6 10.78 feet to 
chc Easterly right-of-way line of Rowan Road. thence along said Easterly right-of.way line the 
following courses and dismccs: Nonh 18'47'47" West. 175.37 feet; 128.02 feet along the arc of 
aeuweIoihcleRfora PointofBeginning.saidcurvchariiipa radiusof859.31 fcct,acentnlangle 
of 08'32'09' and a chord of 127.90 feet which bcars h'onh 23 03'51" Wnt; thence along said 
E.lt~lyngbt-af-wayline.Nonh 271956" Wcst.adtst~ce0f351.46fccltothc North lineof said 
Tract 44. lhma along said Nonh line South  8935'38' Fast. a distann of 5 65 fnl. thence South 
27'1956" !&I, a distance oT9.17 feet: thcncc a distance of 339.71 feet along the arc of a curve to 
Ihe right to the Point of Beginning; said curve having I radius of I 1524. I6 fcct. a central angle of  
01'41'20'. and a chord of 339.69 fffl which bean South 26'29'19" East. 

Also lcrr and cxcspt Parcel 1146: A ponion of the Nonh 594.00 fcct of Tract 41 of the PORT 
RlCHEY LAND COMPANY SUBDIVISION. of Section 3. Township 26 South, Range 16 Eust. 
as shown on the Plat rccordcd in Plat Book I .  Pagcs 60 and 61. Public Records of Pasco County. 
Florida, king funher descnbed as follows: 

Commence at the Southwest comer of said Scction 3. thcncc along the Wcst line of said Section 3. 
North 001225" E s t .  a distance of 399.34 feet Io the South line of the North 5YJ.00 feet of said 
Tracts 43 and 44; thence along said South line. South 8935'38" East. a distance of 610.78 feet to 
che Eaoterly right-of-way line of Rowan Road for a Point of Beginning. thcncc along said Eastcrly 
right-of-wayltnethefollowingcoursnanddinanvcr: Nonh IS 47'47" Wcst. 175.37fcet. 73.06fcct 
along the M of a curve to the len to the proposed ripht-of-nay line. said cune havine h u m &  a 
radius of 859 3 I feet. a central angle of 04 52'16" and a chord of 73.03 fcct n hich bears Nunh 
21'13'u" We64 lhence along the proposed ri&hl-of-way line a distanccof257.93 fret alon& thcarc 
ora curve la the right to the South line ofthe Nonh 594.00 feet ofsaid Tract 43. said curve hating 
andiusof I I524,lb fed.. central angleof01~16S7" anda chord of257.92 feet nhich bears South 
2443'44' Em; chcnce along said South line. Nonh BY 35'38 Wuut. a drstance of 24.94 fuel to the 
Point of Beginning. 

l u s . E U  

Tnct 42. PORT RICHLY LAND COMPANY SUBDIVISION of Sbxtion 3. Township 26 South. 
Range 16Eas1,Pa~oCounty.Flonda.assho\r.nonihcPlatn?cordcd in Plat Book l.Page6l.oflhc 
Public Records of Parco County. Florida, less and except the South 25 fcct thereof. 

Y H P o p m , I I I M  -Q*."ltaA nm- "dhW .* 



1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

5 .  

6. 

7. 

8. 

Erhihira 
HACIENDA VILLAGE MANUFACTURED HOME COMMUNITIES, LTD.. - 
The lien of the taxa and assessments for the year 2003 and al l  subscqucnt yews. which ark 
not ye1 due and payable. 

Easement for Slate Road right-of-way 200 feel in width. lying equally on each side of L e  
center linc ofony Stale Road cairtingon July 20. 1942, rcscwed unto the Sate of Florida. 
pursuant lo Truslecsorlhc lnlcmal Impmvcmcnls Fund D c d  as rcconled in Dccd Book 109. 
Page 574. Parco County Public Rccords (As to Parccl 2). 

Easement fmmm Robcn Huhnand Evelyn Huhn,and Alfred P?rsonkn and Anna Parsonson. 
IO Florida Powcr Corporalion by inslrumenl rccordd in C.R. Book 749. Page 427. Pasco 
&nty Public Rccords. (As to Parccl I )  

Easement grantcdw Florida Powcr Corporation by Instrument recorded in0.R.  Book 1692. 
Page 824, Pascu Cuunly Public Records. (As Io Parcel 3) 

Eascmcnt in favor of Pasco County in Instrument rcconled in O.R. Book I 123. I’agcr 1483 
snd 1484. P?moCwnly Public Rccords. (AS to Psrccls I & 3) 

Eascmcnt gnntcd to Florida Powcr Corporalion by Instrument recorded in O.R. Book 1493. 
Page 100. Pasco Counly Public Records. (As 10 Parcel 2) 

Perpetual IO-fool csSemcnt for mad righl-of-bay reeonled in O.R. Book 1579. Page 1756. 
Paxo County Public Records. (As to Parkel 2) 

Guarantced Lifetime Rent to Gene & Marion Bactzhuld. from Hacienda Village Mobile 
HomcCommuniry.datcdMarch 7. 1978.rccordcdMmrchY. IYY2inO.R.Bouk3001.Pa~c 
603; as afkctcd by: Order for Distribution of Personal Propcny Without Administration. 
rccordcd March 9. 1992 in O.R. Book 3001. Pagc XOX; and Guanntced Lifetime Rent. 
rccordcd May 9, 1992 in.0.R. Bouk 3001. Page 612; end Guaranteed Lifctimc Rent, 
rccordcdkarch9.1992inO.R. Book3001.Pagc614:and WarrnntyDeed.bct~~eenCharl~ 
A. Rcdcck and Edrie M. Rcdcck. husband and wifc. and Ed\vard V. S\vcct and Catherine M. 
S\(.ecl, dalcd March 4. IY92. rcconlcd March Y. 1992 in O.R. Pugc 3001. Page Y06; and 
Cuarantecd Lifetime Rent. mordcd M a c h  9. I992 in O.R. BoDk 3001. Page 984; and 
Guaranteed Lifctimc Rent. rccordcd March 9. I992 in O.R. Book 3001. Page 985; and 
lnstrumcntmordcd in0.R. Book3001,Page 1.140; andGuaranlcc-d Lifc.timeKent.r~co~d~ 
March 13. 1992 in O.R. Book 3003. Page 144; and Guamnlccd Lifetime Rcnt. mordcd 
March 1 I .  1992 in O..R. Book 3002. Pagc 707; and Guaranteed Lifctimc Rent. recorded 
April 27. 1992 in O.R. Book 3019. Page 437; and lnstrumcnt rcforded in O.R. Book.834. 
Page 1723; and Guannlml Lifctimc Rent. recorded Oclobcr 9. 1992 in O.R.  Book 3074. 
Page I85 I ; and Guaraniced Lifctimc Rcnt,recordc&Nuvcmber 13.1992 in0.R. Bouk 3W6, 
Page 1063; ind Confirmation oFRcvocation of Power If Attorney. rvcurdcd in O.R. Book 
3092, Pagc 673, Pasco County Public Records. 



9. 

IO. 

I I .  

12. 

13. 

14. 

IS. 

16. 

17. 

Tuna md m n d i t h s  of thc Right of ~nnovrl Agrccmmt by Hacienda Village Moblle 
HomePulcdaledOctokr29.1993.rccordedNovemkr 16.1993inO.R. Book3221,Pngc 
1470. Puoo Counly Public Records. (As to All Parcels) 

Subject lo E.prment to Prsco County. Flonda in Warranty Decd by Hacienda Village 
Mobile Home Park. lnc., rccordcd Octobcr 10. 1997 in O.R. Book 3818. Page 487. P a m  
County Public Records. (As to Parcel 2 )  

T m  and conditions of the Pcrpctual. Non-Exclusive Access Easement Agrccmcnl by and 
ktwssn Hacienda Village Mrnufscturd Home Communities. Ltd., a Florida lirniicd 
putnet-ship. and Hacienda Utilities. Lld.. a Florida limited partnership, dated Octolwr 8. 
1998.~aded0*obcr8.1998inO.R.Book4020.Page320.PascoCountyPublic Records. 

Subjccllor 30-foot -ent for public right-of-u ry along the Southerly boundary running 
E.n and West 96 sei lonh on the Plat of Pon Richcy Land Company Subdivision of Scction 
3. Township 26 South, Range 16 East. recorded in Plat Book I .  Page 61,Pasco County 
Publii Records. (As IO Pucela 18 3) 

Rights of tenants in posmsion. as tenants only, under unrccordcd learn. 

ConcraC urll on the Westerly side of Parccl2 encroaches inlo right ofnay for Kowan Road 
and 6 foot ch in  link fence into drainage cascmcnt on thc Easlerly srdc ofthc pmpsr(y line 
of P e l  I ,  IS shown on that certain survey dated June I2.2002, last revised December 6. 
2002. as pcpMd by Germrinc Surveying. Inc., bcaring Job No. 297-02-3. 

Mortgage and Security Agrement in the amouni of 59.98O.OOO 00. by Hacrcnda Village 
M.nuf.ctumd lfome Communities. LTD , a Florida limited ptncrship. to Fino\a Realty 
Capital Of Gmter Florida. Inc.. a Delawrrc corporation. dated 8s of October 6. 1998. 
recorded Oclokr 8. 1998 in O.R. Book 4020. Page 329. Pasco County Public Records (Ute 
"Ma(g18C'). 

Assignment of Lmscs and Rents by Hacienda Village Manufactured Home Communities. 
Ltd..; Florida limited putnership. to Finova Realty Capital of Grcatcr Florida. Inc,, a 
Dela~wrpontion.&IedarbfOctobn6.l998,r~cordedOctober8,1998 in0.R. Book 
4020. Page 373, Rsco County Public Records (the "Assignment of Leases"). 

Financing Sfatanent given by Hacienda Village Manufactured Home Communities. Ltd, 
to Finovn Rcalty Capital of Greater Florida, Inc.. rcconled October 8. lY9R in O.R. Bmk 
4020. Page 386. Pava County Public Records (the "Financing Watcmcnt"). 



Hacienda Village 

EXHIBIT F 

The applicant has the financial and technical ability to provide service and has been 
doing so for many years. The applicant is a company that, as of the end of 2009, owned 
or had an ownership interest in a portfolio of 304 properties located throughout the 
United States and Canada, consisting of 110,575 residential sites. (Please see pages 
19 to 21 of Exhibit G for a list of Florida properties.) Properties owned and operated in 
Florida include water and wastewater utilities currently regulated by the Florida Public 
Service Commission, such as the HV Utility Systems, LLC, located in this community 
(Hacienda Village) and the CC Utility Systems, LLC d/b/a Coral Cay Water & Sewer 
Company, located at the Coral Cay Plantations community in Margate Florida. Applicant 
intends to form a wholly-owned subsidiary to own and operate the water utility in this 
community and will provide funding as needed. 
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EXHIBIT G 

Florida 2010 Annual Report 
and 
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2010 FOR PROFIT CORPORATION ANNUAL REPORT 
DOCUMENT# F04000006654 Secretary of State 

FILED 
Jan 08,2010 

Entity Name: EQUITY LIFESTYLE PROPERTIES, INC. 

Current Principal Place of Business: 

TWO NORTH RIVERSIDE PLAZA 
SUITE 800 
CHICAGO, IL 60606 

Current Mailing Address: 

New Principal Place of Business: 

New Mailing Address: 

TWO NORTH RIVERSIDE PLAZA 
SUITE 800 
CHICAGO, IL 60606 

FEI Number: 36-3857664 

Name and Address of Current Registered Agent: 

CORPORATION SERVICE COMPANY 
1201 HAYS STREET 
TALLAHASSEE, FL 323012525 US 

FEI Nunbar Appfisd For ( ) FEI Number Not Applicable ( ) CeRhi~ale of status Dosired ( ) 

Name and Address of New Registered Agent: 

The above named entity submits this statement for the purpose of changing its registered office or registered agent, or both, 
in the State of Florida. 

SIGNATURE: 
Electronic Signature of Registered Agent Date 

Oectlon Campaign Fwraclng Trust Fund Comribution ( ). 

OFFICERS AND DIRECTORS: 

Title: 
Name: 
Address: 
ci,ty-st-zi p: 

Title: 
Name: 
Address: 
clty-st-zip: 

Ilk: 
Name: 
Address: 
city-st-zip: 

I l k  
Name: 
Address: 
city-st-zip: 

T l t k  
Name: 
Address: 
city-st-zip: 

m e :  
Name: 
Address: 
City-si-Zlp: 

CD 
ZELL, SAMUEL 
TWO NORTH RIVERSIDE PLAZA 
CHICAW. IL BDBOB 

N P  
MAYNARD, ROGER 
TWO N RIVERSIDE PLAZA. If 800 
CHICAGO. IL 60606 

PD 
HENEGHN4. THOMAS P 
TWO NORTH RIVERSIDE PLAZA, WOO 
CHICAW. IL BOK36 

SVP 
KROOT. KENNETH A 
TWO NORTH RIVERSIDE PLAZA, WOO 
CHICAW. IL 80806 

N P S  - 
KELLEHER. ELLEN 
TWO NORTH RIVERSIDE PLAZA. WOO 
CHICAGO. IL 60606 

N P  
BERMAN. MICHAEL 
TWO NORTH RIVERSIDE PLAZA, W O O  
CHICAW, IL 60606 

I hereby certify that the information indicated on this report or supplemental report is true and accurate and that my electronic 
signature shall have the same legal effect as if made under oath; that I am an officer or director of the corporation or the receiver 
or trustee empowered to execute this report as required by Chapter 607, Florida Statutes; and that my name appears above, or 
on an attachment with all other like empowered. 

SIGNATURE: KEN KROOT SVP 01 /08/2010 
Electronic Signature of Signing Officer or Director Date 
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UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION 
Washington, D.C. 20549 

Form 10-K 
El ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) 

OF THESEGURITIES EXCHANGEACT OF 1934 
For the Fiscal Year Ended  December  31,2009 

TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) 
OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 

or 
0 

For the transition period from to 
Commission File Number: 1-11718 

EOUITY LIFESTYLE PROPERTIES. INC. - , 
(Esmt nnnw ofregisrrrrst 07 vpecfed in its chnner) 

Maryland 36-3857664 
istote or Otherjrrrisdiction of (J.R.S. Employer 
Incovpmnlion or Orgmiwtion) Ident$cnrion No.) 

Two NoiZh Riverside Plaza, Suite 800, GO606 

(Addverr of Principal Erenrtiw Ofices) 
Chicago, Illinois f Z i p  Code) 

(Registrant’s telephone number, including area code) 
(312) 279-1400 

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(h) of the Act: 
(Title of Class) 

Corninon Stock, $.01 Par Value 

(Name of Exhangr on Which Resistered) 

New York Stock Exchange 
Securities registered pursuant to Section IZ(g) of t h e  Act: 

None 
Indicate by check mark if the Regstrant is a well-knnwn seasoned issuer, a s  defined in Rule 405 of the Securities 

Act. YES W No 0 
Indicatc by check mark if the Registrant is not required to filc rrpnrts pursuant to Section 13 or Section I5(d) of the 

Act. Yes 0 Nu 0 
Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant i l )  has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the 

Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the Registrant was required to file 
such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing reqnirements for the past 90 days. 

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Wehsite, if any, every 
Interactive Data File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulstion S-T ($  232.405 of this chapter) during 
the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and post such 
files). Yes 0 Nu 0 

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K ( 4  229.405) is not contained 
herein, and will not he contained, to the best of the Registrant’s knowledge, in definitive pr0.y or information statements 
incorporated by reference in Rut 111 of this Form 10-K or any arnentlment to this Form 10-K. 

Indicate hy check mark whether the registrant is B large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a nun-accelerated filer, or a smaller 
reporting company. See the definitions of”large accelerated filer,” “accelerated filer” and “smaller reporting company”in Rule 12b-2 
of the Exchange Act. (Check one): 

Smaller reporting company 0 Large accelerated filer 0 Accelerated filer 

Indicate hy check mark whether the Registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12h-2 of the Exchange 
Act). Yes 0 No a 

The aggregate marketvalueofvoting stock held hynon-armiates was appmximately$1,019.6 million as ofJune 30,2009 based upon the 
dosing price of M7.18 on such date using beneficial ownership of stock rules adopted pursuant to Section 13 of the Securities Exchange Act 
of 1934 to exclude voting stock owned by Directors and Officers, some of whom may not be held to be affiliates upon judicial determination. 

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE: 

Yes No 0 

0 

Non-accelerated filer 0 
(Do not check if a smaller reporting company) 

At February 23,2010, 30,349,089 shares of the Registranti common stock were outstanding. 

Past 111 incorporates by reference portions ofthe Registrant’s Proxy Statement relating to the Annual Meeting of Stockholders to 
he held on May 11, 2010. 
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Item 1. Business 

Equity Lifestyle Properties, Inc. 

General 

Equity Lifestyle Properties, Inc., a Malyland corporation, tngether with MHC Operating Limited Part- 
nership (the “Operating Partnership”) and other consolidated subsidiaries (“Subsidiaries”). are referred to 
herein as the “Company,” “ELS,’’ “we,” “US,” and ‘‘our.’’ ELS has elected to be taxed as a real estate investment 
trust (“REIT’), for U.S. federal incorne tax purposes commencing with its t;wdble year ended December 31, 
1993. 

The Company is a fully integrated owner and operator of lifestyle-oriented properties (“Properties”). The 
Company leases individual developed areas (“sites”) with access to utilities for placement of factoly built homes, 
cottages, cabins or recreational vehicles ( “ W s ” ) .  Customers may lease individual sites or enter into 1-ight-to-use 
contracts providing the customer access to specific Properties for limited stays. The Company was formed in 
December 1992 to continue the property operations, business nbjectives and acquisition strategies of an entity 
that had owned and operated Properties since 1969. As of December 31, 2009, we owned or bad an ownership 
interest in a portfolio of 304 Properties located throughout the United States and Canada consisting of 110,SiS 
residential sites. These Properties are located in 27 states and Bi-itish Columbia (with the number of Properties 
in each state or province shown parenthetically) as follows: Florida (86). Califnmia (48), Arizona (35). Texas (15), 
Pennsylvania (12),\Vashington i14), Colorado (10). Oregon (9). North Carolina (8) ,  Delaware ( i) ,  New York (6), 
Nevada (G),Virgmia (6), Indiana ( S ) ,  Maine ( S ) ,  Wisconsin ( 5 ) .  Illi ~ C I I U S C ~ ~ S  (3) ,  Michigan (3 ) ,  New 
Jersey ( 3 ) ,  South Camlina (3).  New Hampshire (Z), Ohio (2), Tenn h(2),Alabamd(l), Keritocb(l) ,  
and Rritisli Colomhia (1). 

Properties are designed and improved for several home optinns of vxious sizes and designs that are 
plodoced off-site, installed and set on designated site5 (‘Sit<- Set”) within the I’ropertirs. These I ~ x n e s  ciin range 
fi-oin 400 to over 2,000 square feet. The smallest of these are referred to as ‘‘Resort Cottages.” Properties may 
also have sites that can accommodate a variety of RVs. Pmperties generally contain centralized entrances, 
internal road systems and designated sites. I n  addition, Properties often provide a clubhouse for social activities 
and recreation and other amenities, which may include restaurants. swimming pools, golf courses, lawn bowling, 
shuffleboard courts, tennis courts, lanndly facilities and cable television senice. In some cases, utilities are 
provided or arranged for by us; otherwise, the customer contracts for the utility directly. Some Pmperties 
provide water and sewer service through municipal or regulated utilities, while nthers pmvide these sewices to 
customers from on-site facilities. Properties generally are designed to attract retirees, empty-nesters, vacationers 
and second home owners; however, certain of our Properties focns mi affordable housing for families. We focus 
on owning properties in or near large metmpolitan mal-kets and retirement and vacation destinations. 

Emplnyees and Organizational Structure 

W‘e have approximately 3,200 full-time, part-time and se;lsonal employees dedicated to carlying out our 
operating philosophy and strategies of value enhancement and sewice to our custoniers. The operations of each 
Property are coordinated by an on-sits team of employees that typically includes a manager, clerical staff and 
maintenance workers, each of whom works to provide maintenance and care of the Properties. Direct 
supelvision of on-site management is the responsibility of our regional vice presidents and regional and district 
managers. These individuals have significant experience in addressing the needs of customers and in finding or 
creating innovative approaches to maximize value and increase cash flow from property operations. Comple- 
menting this field management staff are approximately 138 full-time corporate employees who assist on-site and 
regional management in all property functions. 
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Formation of tlie Company 

The operations ofthe Company :ire conducted primarily through the Operating Partnership. The Company 
contributed the proceeds from its initial public offering in 1993 and subsequent offerings to the Operating 
Partnership for a general partnership interest. In 2004, the general partnership interest was contributed to MHC 
Trust, a private REITsuhsidiary owned by the Company. The financial results of the Operating Partnership and 
the Subsidiaries are consolidated in the Company’s consohdatcd financial statements. In addition, since certain 
activities, if performed by the Company, may not be qualifying REITactivities under the Internal Revenue Code 
of 1986, as amended (the “Code”), tlie Company has formed taxable REITsubsidiaries. as defined in the Code, 
to engage in such activities. 

Realty Systems. Inc. (“RSl”) is a wholly owned taxable REITsubsidiaialy of the Company that is enpged  in 
the business of purchasing and selling or leasing Site Set homes that are located in Properties owned and 
inanaged by the Company. RSI also provides brokerage services to residents at such Propelties for those 
residents who move from a Property but do not relocate their homes. RSI may provide brokerage services, in 
competition with other local brokers, by seeking buyers for the Site Set homes. Subsidiaries of RSI also operate 
ancillary activities at ccrtain Properties consisting of operations such as golf courses, pro shops, stores and 
restaurants. Several Properties are also wholly owned by taxable REIT subsidiaries of the Company. 

Business Objectives and Operating Strategies 

Our stratehy seeks to maximize both current income and long-term growth in income. We focus on 
properties that have strong cash flow and w e  expect to hold such properties for long-term investment and capital 
appreciation. In determining cash flow potential, we evaluate our ability to attract and retain high quality 
customers in our Propertics who taki :  pride i n  the Property and in their home. Tbese business ohjactives and 
their impleinentation iiie cletem~inrd by our Board of Directors and may be changed at any time. Our 
investmcnt, opcrating a id  financing oppro;ich includes: 

Providing consistmtly high le\vls of sewices and amenitics in attractive surroundings to foster a strong 
s e i i s ~  of coniimmity and pridc of home ownership; 

* Efficiently managirig the I’roperties to increase operating margins by controlling expeiises, increasing 
occupancy and maintaining competitive market 1-ents; 

Increasing income and property values by continuing the strategic expansion and, where appropriate, 
renovation of the Properties: 

Utilizing management information systems to evaluate potential acquisitions, identify and track com- 
peting properties and monitor customer satisfaction: 

Selectively acquiring properties that have potential for long-term cash flow growth and to create property 
concentrations in and around major metropolitan areas and retirement or vacation destinations to 
capitalize on operating synergies and incremental efficiencies; and 

* Managing our debt balances sucli that we maintain financial flexibility, minimize exposure to interest rate 
fluctuations, and maintain an appropriate degree of leverage to maximize return on capital. 

Our strategy is to own and operati: the highest quality properties in sought-after locations near urban areas, 
retirement and vacation destinations across the United States. We focus on creating an attractive residential 
environment by providing a well-maintained, comfortable Property with a variety of recreational and social 
activities and superior amenities a.. well as offering a multitude of lifestyle housing choices. In addition, we 
regularly conduct evaluations of the cost of housing in the marketplaces in which our Properties are located and 
survey rental rates of competing properties. From time to time we also conduct satisfaction suiveys of our 
customers to determine the factors they consider most important in choosing a property. We improve site 
utilization and efficiency by tracking types of customers and usage patterns and marketing to those specific 
customer gi-oups. 
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Acquisitions and Dispositions 

Over the last decade our portfolio of Properties has grown significantly from owning or having an interest in 
157 Properties with over 53,000 sites to owning or having an interest in 304 Properties with over 110,000 sites. 
We continually review the Properties in our portfolio to ensure that they fit our business objectives. Over the last 
five years we sold 16 Properties, and we redeployed capital to markets we believe have greater long-term 
potcntial. In that same time period we acquired 46 Properties located in high glm-nwth areas such as Florida, 
Arizona and California. 

We believe that opportunities for property acquisitions arc still available. Increasing acceptability of and 
demand for a lifestyle that includes Site Set homes and KVs as urell as continued constraints on development of 
new properties continue to add to their attractiveness i s  an investment. W e  believe we have a competitive 
advantage in the acquisition of additional properties due to our experienced managcment, significant presence 
in major real estate markets and substantial capital resources. W’e are actively seekng to acquire additional 
properties and are engaged in various stages of negotiations relating to the pnssihle acquisition of a number of 
propeities. 

We anticipate that new acquisitions will generally be located in the United States, although we may consider 
other geogsaphic locatious provided they meet our acquisition criteria. We utili7.e market information systems to 
identify and evaluate acquisition opportunities, including a market database to review the primary economic 
indicators of the various locations in which we expect to expand our operations. Acquisitions will be financed 
fi-om the most appropriatc sources of capital, which may include undistrihuted funds fiom operations, issuance 
of additional equity securities, sales ofinvestments, collateralized and unco1l;rteralizetl borrowings and issuance 
of debt securities. In addition, the Company may acquire properties in transactions that include the issuance of 
limited partnership interests in the Operating Partnership (“Units”) as consideration for the acquired properties. 
We believe that an ownership structure that includes the Operating Partnership will pwmit 11s to acquire 
additional properties in transzictinns that may defer ;dl nr a portion nf tliu scllel-s’ tax crrnsequences. 

When evaluating potential acquisitions, we consider such factors as: 

* The replacement cost of the property including land values, eiititlements :mil zoning; 

* Tlic: grograpliic area and type of the property; 

The locatirin, construction quality, condition and &sign of the property; 

* The current and projected cash flow of the property and the ability to increase cash flow: 

* The potential for capital appreciation of the property; 

The terms of tenant leases or usage rights, including the potential for rent increases; 

the property is located; 
* The potential for economic growth and the tax and regulatory environment of the community in which 

* The potential for expansinn of the physical I:iyout of the property and the number of sites: 

The occupancy and demand by customers for properties of a similar type in the vicinity and the 
customers’ profile; 

The prospects for liquidity through sale, financing or refinancing of the property; and 

The competition from existing proprrties and the potential for the cxmstructinn of new properties in the area. 

When evaluating potential dispositions, we consider such factors as: 

* The ability to sell the Property at a price that we believe will provide an appropriate return for our 

* Our desire to exit certain non-core markets and recycle the capital into core markets: and - Whether the Property meets our current investment Critend 

stockholders; 
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When investing capital we consider all potential uses of the capital including returning capital to our 
stockholders. Our Board of Directors continues to review the conditions under which we will repurchase our 
stock. These conditions include, but are not limited to, market price, balance sheet flehibility, otheroppommities 
and capital requirements. 

Property Expansions 

Several of our Properties have available land for expanding the number of sites available to be utilized by 
our customers. Development of these sites (“Expansion Sites”) is evaluated based on the following: local market 
conditions; ability tu subdivide; accessibility through the Property or externally; infrastructure needs including 
utility needs and access as well as additional common area amenities; zoning and entitlement; costs; topography; 
and ability to market new sites. M’hen justified, development of Expansion Sites allows us to leverage existing 
Cacilities and amenities to increase the income generated from the Propeities. Where appropriate, facilities and 
amenities may he upgraded or added to certain Properties to make those Properties more attractive in their 
mal-kets. Our acquisition philosophy has iiicluded the desire to own Properties with potential Expansion Site 
development. Approximately 83 of our Properties have expansion potential, with approximately 5,600 acres 
available for expansion. 

Leases or Usage Rights 

At our Properties, a typical lease entcred into hetwcen the owner of a home and the Company for the rental 
ofa site is for a month-to-month or yi:ar-to-year term, renewable upon tlie consent of both parties or, in some 
instances, as provided by statute. These leases are cancelable, depending on applicable law, for non-paymcnt of 
rent, violation of Property rules and regulations or other specified defaults. Non-cancelable long-term leases, 
with remaining t e r m  ranging up to ten years, are in effect at certain sites within 31 of thc Propciiies. Snme of 
these leases are siihject to rental rate increases based on the Consumer Price Index (“CPI”), i n  some instances 
taking into considoration ccrtain floars and ceilings and allowing for pass-throughs of certain itoms such as real 
cstate twes, utility expenses and capital expenditures. Generally, market rate adjustments are made on an annual 
basis. At Properties mnod fnr RV LISC, long-term customers typicnlly enter into rental agreements and many 
typically prepay foi- their stay. Many resort customers will also leavc deposits to resene a site for the following 
year. Cenenill) tliesr customel-s cannot live full time on tlic Property. At resort Properties desigiraterl for use hy 
custnmers who have purchased B light-to-use or membership contract, the contract generally grants tho 
ciistonier access to designsited Properties on a continuous basis of up to 14 days. The cust~tner typically nrakes a 
nonrefundable upfront payment and iannual dues payments are required to renew the contract. The contracts 
provide for an annual dues increase generally based on increases in the CPI. Approximately 31% of the current 
customers are not subject to annual dues increases because their dues were frozen in accordance with the terms 
of their contract, genrrally because the customer is over 61 years old or disabled. 

Regulations and Insurance 

General. Our Properties are siihject to various laws, ordinances and regulations, including regulations 
relating tu recreationd facilities such as swimming pools, clubhouses and other common areas, regulations 
relating to providing utility selvices, such as electricity, to our customers, and regulations relating to operating 
water and wastewater treatment facilities at celtain of our Properties. We believe that each Property has all 
material permits and approvals necessary to operate. 

At certain of our Properties, state and local rent control laws, principally i n  
California, limit our ability to increase rents and to recover increases in operating expenses and the costs of 
capital improvements. Enactment of such laws has been considered from time to time in otherjulisdictions. w e  
pi-esently expect to continue to maintain Properties, and inay purchase additional properties, in markets that are 
either subject to rent contl-ol or in which rent-limiting legislation exists or may be enacted. For example, Florida 
has enacted a law that generally provides that rental increases must he  reasonable. Also, certain jurisdictions in 
California in which we own Properties limit rent increases to changes in the CPI or some percentage thereof, As 
part of our effort to realize the value ofour Properties subject to restrictive regulation, we have initiated lawsuits 
against several municipalities imposing such regulation in an attempt to balance the interests ofour stockholders 
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with the interests of our customers (see Item 3. “Legal Proceedings”). Fuither, at certain of our Properties 
primzuily used as membership campgrounds, some state statutes limit our ability to close the Property unless we 
make a reasonable substitute property available for the members’ use. Many states also have consumer 
protection laws regulating right-to-use or campground membership sales and the financing of such sales. Some 
states have laws requiring the Company to register with a state agency and obtain a permit to market (see 
Item 1A. “Risk Factors”). 

The Properties are covered against fire, flood, property damage, earthquake, windstorm and 
business interruption by insurance policies containing various deductible requirements and coverage limits. 
Recoverable costs are classified in other assets as incurred. Insurance proceeds are applied against the asset 
when received. Recoverable costs relating tu capital items :ire treated in accordance with the Company’s 
capitalization policy. The bookvalue ofthe onginal capital item is written offonce the value ofthe impaired asset 
luis been determined. Insurance proceeds relating to capital costs ai-e recorded as income in the peiiod they are 
received. 

Our current property and casualty insurance policies, which we plan to renew, expire on March 31, 2010. 
We have a $100 million loss limit with respect to our all-risk propeity insurance program including Named 
Windstorm and a 625 million loss limit for California Earthquake. Policy deductihles primarily range from 
$100,000 to 5% of insurable values specifically for Named Windstorm, Named Storm Flood and California 
Earthquake. Losses in a 100-year Flood zone are subject to varying deductibles with a maximum exposore of 
5500,000. A deductible indicates E L S  maximum exposure, subject to policy sub-limits, in the event of a loss. 

Insumnce. 

INDUSTRY 

\Ve believe that modern properties similar to ours pt-nvidc an rrppoit~mity frx incrr 
apprrciation in value. These may be achieved through increiiscs in wcupancy rates and rmts, cis well as expense 
cnntrols, cnparision of existing Prnporties and npportunistic acquisitimrs. frii- the following reilsons: 

Bamerr to E n t r y  We believe that tlie supply of new p p e t i e s  in locations targeted by tlie Company 
will he constrained due to barriers to rntiy. Thc most significant harlier Ira.: been tlic difficulty of 
securing znning from h d l  authorities. This has hecri the result of (i) the public’s histwically poor 
percrption of manufactnred liousing, and (ii) the fact that propwtics generate less tm ~’i~vcnue because 
the homes are treated as personal property (a benefit t o  tlie liomeowner) d v x  than real property. 
Another factor that creates substantial harriers to cntly is thc lcngth of time bctween investment in a 
property’s development and the attainment of stabilized occupancy and the generation of revenues. The 
initial development of the infrastructure may take up to two or three years. Once a property is ready fur 
occupancy, it may be difficult to attract customers to an empty property. Substantial occupancy levels may 
take several years to zichieve. 

According to valious industry repolis, there are approximately 50,000 man- 
ufactured home properties and approximately 8,500 RV properties (excluding government owned 
properties) in North America. Most of these properties are not operated by large ownedoperators 
and of the RV propeities approximately 1,200 contain 200 sites or more. Wi> believe that this relatively 
high degree of fragmentation provides us, as a natinnal nrganization with experienced management and 
substantial financial resources, the opportunity to purchase additional propeities. 

We believe that propelties tend to achieve and maintain a stable rate of occupancy d m  
to the following factors: (i) customers typically own their own homes, (ii) propelties tend to foster a sense 
of community as a result of amenities such as clubhouses and recreational and social activities, (iii) since 
movinga Site Set home from one property to another involves substantial cost and effort, customers often 
sell their home in-place (similar to site-built residential housing) with no interruption of rental payments 

According to the Recreational Vehicle Industry Association, nearly 1 in 10 US. vehi- 
cle-owning households owns an RVand there are eight million current RVowners. The 78 million people 
boin from 1946 to 1964 or “baby boomers” make up the fastest growing segment of this market. EveLy 

* Industy Consulidation: 

Cu.stomer Base: 

to us. 

* Lifestyle Choice: 
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day 11,000 Americans turn 50 according to US. Census figures. We believe that this population segment, 
seeking an active lifestyle, will provide opportunities for future cash flow growth for the Company. 
Current R\7 owners, once finished with the more active RV lifestyle, will often seek more permanent 
retirement or vacation establishments. The Site Set housing choice has become an increasingly popular 
housing alternative for retirement, second-home, and "empty-nest" living. According to U.S. Census 
figures, the baby-boom generation will constitute ahnost 16% of the US. populatiori within the next 
20 ye;m Among those individuals who are nearing retirement (age 46 to 64), approximately 33% plan on 
moving upon retirement. 

\Ve believe that the housing choices in our Properties are especially attractive to such individuals 
througliout this lifestyle cycle. Our Properties offer an appealing amenity package, close proximity to 
local sewices, social activities, low maintenance and a secure environment. In fact, many of our 
Properties allow for this cycle to occur within a single Property. - Constniction Qtlnlity: Since 1976, all factory built housing has been required to meet stringent federal 
standards, resulting in significant increases in quality. The Department of Housing and Urban Devel- 
opment? ("HUD") standards for Sitc Set housing construction quality are the only federally regulated 
standards governing housing quality of any type in the United States. Site Set homes produced since 1976 
have received a "red and silver" government seal certifying that they were built in compliance with the 
federal cnde. The code regulates Site Set home design and construction, strength and durability, fire 
resistance and mer&? efficiency, and the installation and performance of heating, plumbing, air coli- 
ditioning, thermal and electrical systems. In newer homes, top grade lumber and dry wall materials are 
common. Also, rnariufacturers are required to follow the same fire codes as builders of site-built 
structures. In addition, although Hesort Cottages do not come under the same regulation, many of the 
mannfxtnrers of Site Set homes dso produce Resort Cottages with many of the same quality standards. 

The Site SPt housing industry lias experienced a twnd towards 
multi-section homes. Many modern Site Set homes are longer (up to 80 feet, compared tn 50 feet in the 
1960:s) and wider tlian rarliei madels. Many such liomes have nine-foot ceilings or vaulted ceilings, 
fireplaces and as many as four l~rdnxims, and closely resemble singlc-Family ranch stylc sitc-hililt hoimos. 

Sccntlrl H o m e  Delnogr,,phiw According to 2009 National Association nf Rraltors ("NAH") reports, 
sales nf sccond homes i n  2008 accoimted for 30% of residential transactions, oi- 1.63 million second-home 
sales in 2008. There were approxiniately 8.1 million vacation homes in 2008. The Wical vacation-homc 
buyer is 46 years old and earned 597,200 in 2008. According to 2008 NAR reports, appmximately 57% of 
vacation home-owners prefer to be near an ocean, river or lake; 38% close to boating activities; 32% close 
to hunting or fishing activities; and 17% close to winter recreations. In looking ahead, NAR believes that 
baby boomers are still in thcir peak earning years, and the leading edge of their generation is approaching 
retirement. As they continue to have the financial wherewithal to purchase second homes as a vacation 
property, investment opportnnity, or perhaps as a retirement retreat, those hahy boomers will continue to 
drive the market for second-homes. We believe it is likely that over the next decade we will continue to 
see historically high levels of second home sales and resort homes and cottages in otir Properties will also 
continue to provide a viahle swond home alternative to site-built homes. 

. Co~q)ar&ilit!j to Sitc-Riiilt Hoines: 

Notwithstanding our belief that the industry information highlighted above provides the Company with 
significant long-term growth opportunities, our short-term growth opportunities could be disivpted by the following: 

* Shipments -According to  statistics compiled by the U.S. Census Bureau, shipments of new manw 
factured homes have been declining since 200.5. Shipments of new manufactured liomes for the first 
eleven months in 2009 decreased over 40% to 46,200 units as compared to shipments of new manu- 
factured homes for the first eleven months in 2008 of 77,500 units. The decline for 2008 as compared to 
2007 was almost 15%. According to the Recreational Vehicle Industry Association ("RVIA), wholesale 
shipments of RVs declined 30.1% in 2009 to 165,700 units as compared to 2008, hut experienced an 
increase ofalmost 25% in the last six months of2009 as cornpared to the last six months of 2008. Industly 
experts have predicted that 2010 RV shipments will increase almost 30%, as compared to 2009, to 
215,900. 
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Manufactured Housing and Recreation Vehicle 
Annual Shipments 2000-2009 (MH 2009 YTD: through November) 

( I )  Source: Institute for Ruilding Technology and Safety 
(2) Source: RVIA 

S Q h  ~ Retail sales of RVs declined almost 2.5% to 161,100 for the first 11 months of 2009, as compared 
to 214,400 the first I1  months of 2008. A total of 232,000 RVs were sold during the year ended 
December 31, 2008, representing a decline of almost 25% over the prior year. RVlA has indicated that 
the RVindustry is seeing signs of improvement and the recovely is expected to strengthen slowly as credit 
availability, job security, and consumer confidence improve. Gains are expected in 2010 as negative 
financial factors give way to improvd markct conditions. 

* Acriilnhilittj vfflnnirciiig -The current credit crisis has made it difficult for manuf.ictured Iioinc and HV 
manufacturers to obtain floor plan financing and for potential custoinrrs to obtain lwans for manut"ac- 
tured home or KV pui-chases. XVIA states that the federal economic credit and stimulus packages 
designed to stimulate KV lending and which provide tm deductions to buycrs uf RVs may help pi-omcite 
sales of WS. I-lowever, there is \my little availability in terms dfin:incin,q for nunufiictured liome buyers. 
As cornpard to financing av;iil;ible to owners ;rnd purcliasers ofsite-built single fmriily lioines, financing 
of a manufactured home involves higher down payments, higher FlCO scores. liiglieler interest rates and 
shorter maturity. Additionally, certain government stimulus packages have resulted in government 
guarantees of site-built single family home loans, thereby increasing the supply of financing for that 
mdrket. 

Please see our risk factors, financial statements and related notes contained in this Form 10-K for more 
information. 

9 



Available Infoimation 

We file reports electronically with the Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC"). The public may read 
and copy any materials we file with the SEC at the SEC's Public Reference Room at 100 F Street, NE, 
Washington, DC 20549. The public may obtain information on the operation of the Public Reference Room by 
calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. The SEC maintains an Internet site that contains reports, proxy information 
and statements, and other infmnmation regarding issuers that file r-lectronically with the SEC at 
l r t t p : N ~ l ; i c i ~ . s e c . ~ o ~ .  We maintain an Internet site with information about the Company and hyperlinks t n  .~ . .  .. 
our filings with the SEC at http://Z"'"'".ei,luitylifesti,le.com, free of charge. Requests for copies of our filings with 
the SEC and other investor inquiries should be directed to: 

Investor Relations Department 
Equity Lifestyle Properties, Inc. 
Two North Riverside Plaza 
Chicago, Illinois 60606 
Phone: 1-SOO-247-5279 
e-mail: investi,r~relations@eqnitylifestyle.com 

Item 1A. Risk Factors 

O u r  Performance and  Common Stock Value Are Subject to Risks Associated With the  Real Estate 
Industry. 

Acltierse Economic Cunditbins nnd Other Factom Could Adtiersely Affict the Value of Our Properties and 
Several factors may adversely affect the economic performance and value of our Properties. Our Cmh Floto. 

Tliese factni-s incli ide: 

changes in the national. rcgimal and local ecnnomic climate; 

local conditions such iis an owrsupply of lifestyle-oiientcd pmpertics or a reduction i n  dcmand fni- 
lifestyle-[,ricnted prnpcrties i n  the a r m ,  tlic attractiveness of mii- Properties to  c\istr,mers. competitior 
Srorrr I narnifactnred 11omi: mmmmitir: and ritlrer lifrstylc-orientcd prnpcrties and alterriative fnl-Ins nf 
h i s i n g  (such :is ;ip.irtincnt buildings and sitc-huilt single Family homes); 

the ability of manufacturd Iionie and RV manufacturers to adapt to changes ill thc cconomic climate and 
the availability of units froin these manufacturers: 

the ability of our potential custoniers to sell their existing site-built residence in order to purchae a resoii 
Irome or cottage in our Properties and heightened price sensiti\ity for seasonal and second homebuyers: 

the ability ofour potential customers to obtain financing on the purchase of a resort home, resort cottage 
or RV: 

government stimulus intended to  piimarily bendit purchasers of site-built housing; 

* availability and price of gasoline, especially for OUT transient customers; 

* our ability to collect rent, annual payments and piincipal and interest from customers and pay or control 
maintenancc, insurance and othm operating costs (including real estate taxes), which could increase owl-  
time; 

the failure d o u r  assets to generate income sufficient to pay our expenses, sewice our deht and maintain 
our Properties, which may adversely affect our ability to make expected distributions to our stockholders: 

our inability to meet mortgage payments on any Property that is mortgaged, in which case the lender 
could foreclose on the mortgage and take the Propeity; 

interest rate levels and the availability of financing, which may adversely affect our financial condition; 
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- changes in laws and governmt:ntal regulations (including rent control laws ;md regulations governing 
usage, zoning and taxes), which may adversely affect our financial condition; 

poor weather, especially on holiday weekends in the summer, could reduce the economic performance of 
our Northem resort Properties; and 

our ability to sell new or upgraded light-to-use contl-arts and to retain customers who have previously 
purchased a right-to-use contract. 

Neto Acquisitions M a y  Fail to Pefom ( IS Expected and Competition for Acquisitions M a y  Renrlt in 
lncremed Prices for Properties. We intend to continne to acquire properties. Newly acquired Properties may 
fail to perform as expected. We may underestimate the casts necessary to bring an acquired property up to 
standards established for its intended market position. Difficulties in integrating acquisitions may prove costly or 
time-consuming and could divert management attention. Additionally, we expect that other real estate investors 
with significant capital will compete with us frir attractive investment opportunities. These competitors include 
publicly traded HEITs, private RElTs and other types of investors. Snch competition increases prices for 
properties. We expect to acquire propelties with cash from secured or unsecured financings, proceeds from 
offerings of equity or debt, undistributed funds from operations and sales of investments. We may not he in a 
position or have the opportunity in the future to  make suitable property acquisitions on favorable terms. 

Because Real Estate Investments Are Illi~juirl, We May Not he Able to Sell Properties When Appropriate. 
Real estate investments generally cannot he sold quickly We may not he dile to vaiy our portfolio promptly in 
response to economic or other conditions, forcing us to accept lower than market value. This inability to  respond 
promptly to changes in the performance of our investments could adversely affect o w  financial condition and 
ability to service debt and make distributions to our stockholders. 

Some Potentid Losse,p Are Not Cocei-cd hi, l,,srrmiice. \Vu can) crm,prehensive insuriince coverage for 
rcsulting from property damagc, liability claims ancl hosinms intcrropti<m 011 all of our Propertics. In 

on we c a r 7  liability coverage for other activities not specifically related to property operations. These 
coveragos include, hut are not limited to, Dircctors & Officer liability, Employer Practices liability and 
Fiduciary liahility. We believe that the policy specifications and cweragc limits of these policies should be 
iidcqiiato and appropriate. Thrw arc, how , certain t y p  r i f  Iosscs, si~cli as I D ~ I S C  and other contract cltiims 
that generally are not insured. Should :an uninsured loss o r a  loss in excess ofcoverage limits occur, we could lose 
all o r  a portion oftlre capital we have invested in a Property or the anticipated future revenue from i i  Property. In 
such an event, we might nevertheless remain obligated for airy mortgage debt or other financial obligations 
related to the Property. 

Our current property and casualty insurance policies, which we plan to renew, expire on March 31, 2010. 
We have a $100 million loss limit with respect to our all-risk property insurance program including Named 
Windstorm and a $25 million loss limit for California Earthquake. Policy deductiblrs primarily range from 
$100,000 to 5% of insurable values specifically for Named Windstorm, Named Storm Flood and California 
Earthquake. Losses in a 100-year Flood zone are subject to v q < n g  deductihles with a maximum exposure of 
$500,000. A deductible indicates ELS’ maximum exposur?, siihject to policv Sub-lilTlitS, in event of a loss. 

There can be no assurance that the actions cfthe U. S .  gocernment, Fedeta1 Reserce and other gouernmental 
and regirlatonJ bodies for the purpose of stabilizing thefinrmcinl markets, or market msponse to those actions, 
rr;ill achietie the intended eflect, and our business may not benefit from and m a y  he adtiersely inxpacted hy these 
octivns und firrther government or market detielopments could nrltiersely impact us. Since mid-2007, and 
particularly during the second half of 2008, the financial services industly and the securities markets generally 
were materially and adversely affected hy significant declines in the values of nearly all asset classes and by a 
seiious lack of liquidity. This w a  initially triggered by declines in the values of suhprime mortgages, hut spread 
to all mortgage and real estate asset classes, to leveraged hank loans and to nearly all asset classes, including 
equities. The global markets have been characterized by substantially increased volatility and short-selling and 
an overall loss of investor confidence, initially in financial institutions, but more recently in companies in a 
number of other industries and in the broader markets. The decline in asset values has caused increases in 
margin calls for investors, requirements that derivatives counterparties post additional collateral and 
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redemptions by mutual and hedge fund investors, all of which have increased the downward pressure on asset 
values and outflows ofclient funds across the financial services industry In addition, the increased redemptions 
and unavailahility of credit have required hedge funds and others to rapidly reduce leverage, which has 
increased volatility and further contributed to the decline in asset values. 

In response to the recent unprecedented financial issues affecting the banking system and financial markets 
and going concern threats to investment hanks and other financial institutions, the Emergcncy Economic 
Stabiliration Act of 2008 (the "EESA"), was signed into law on October 3, 2008. The EESA provides tlie 
U.S. Seci-etary ofTreasuv with the authority to establish a Troubled Asset Relief Program ("TARP), to pui-chase 
from financial institutions up to $700 billion of residential or commercial mortgages and any secuiities, 
obligations, or ntlier iristruments that are hased on, or related to, such moitgages, that in each case was 
originated or issued on or before March 14,2008. EESA also provides for a program that would allow companies 
to insure their troubled assets. On Febroaiy 17, 2009, President Obama signed the Ameiican Recoveiy and 
Reinvestment Act of 2009 ("AHRA"), a $787 billion stimulus bill for the purpose of stabilizing the economy hy 
creating jobs, ;miong other things. As of Fehruaiy 2.5, 2010, the U.S. Treasury is managing or overseeing the 
following programs under TARP: the Capital Purchase Program ("CPP), tlie Systemically Significant Failing 
Institutions Program ("SSFIP), the Auto Industry Financing Program ("AIFP), the Legacy Secuiities Puhlic- 
Private Investrnrmt Program ("S-PPIP) and the Homeowner Affordability and Stability Plan ("HASP) which is 
partially financed by TAHP. HASP, also known as "The Making Home Affordable Program", offers the following 
options for homeowners: (1) refinancing mortgage loans through the Home Affordable Refinance Program 
("HARP"). (2) modifymg first and second mortgage loans tlirougli the Home Affordable h4odific:;dion Program 
("HAMI'") and the Second Licn Modification Program ("2ILIP") and ( 3 )  offering other alternatives to foreclosnre 
through the Home Affordable Foreclosure Alternatives Program (HAFA). According to a U S .  Treasury press 
releases, HASP, along with other financial stability programs haw improved credit conditions as evidenced by 
statistics such as: 1) near historic lows o n  residential mortgage rates and 2) stahilization of home prices. 

~ a i i  bi: nc iissura~icc that Ilia EESA, TARP or othcr programs will havc a bcncficial impact on the 
arkets 01- the economy. i n  addition, the U S  Government, Federal Reserve and other governmental 

and rt@atoi? h d c s  liavc taken 01- are considering taking other actions to address tlie financial cr 
predict whether or when such actinns may occur or what impact, if any, such actions could have on our business, 
i.csdts of upel-ations :md f i i i a n d  conditiun. I n  fzct, sucli actions ~nayhave a significant negative inipact u n  nur 
customers to  thr rntent they benefit only owners of site-built single family housing and not to purt:hasers of Site 
Set homrs who le;w the ondcrlying land and RVs. 

Adverse changes in general economic conditions may adversely affected o u r  business. 

Our success is dependent upon economic conditions in the U.S. generally, and in the geographic areas in 
which B substantial numher of onr Properties are located. Adverse changes in national economic conditions and 
in the economic conditions of the regions in which we conduct substantial business may have an adverse effect 
on the real estate values of our Pniperties and our financial perfomance ;md tlie market piice of nur coininon 
stock. 

In a recession 01- uridrr ntlrer sdverse econnmic conditions, non-earning assets m d  write-duwns are likely to 
increase as debtors fail to meet their payment obligations. Although we maintain resenes for credit losses and an 
allowance for doubtful accounts in amounts that we believe should be sufficient to provide adequate protection 
against potential write-downs in our  portfolio, these amounts could prove to be insufficient. 

Campground Membership Properties Laws and  Regulations Could Adversely Affect the  Value of 
Certain Properties a n d  O u r  Cash Flow. 

Many of the states in which the Company does business have laws regulating right-to-use or campground 
membership sales. These laws generally require comprehensive disclosure to prospective purchasers, and give 
purchasers the right to rescind their purchax generally between three-to-five days after the datc of sale. Some 
states have laws requiiing the Company to register with a state agency and obtain a permit to market. The 
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Company is subject to changes, from time to time, in the application or interpretation of such laws that can affect 
its business or the rights of its members. 

In some states, including California, Oregon and Washington, laws place limitations on the ability of the 
owner of a campground property to close the property nnless the customers at the property receive access to a 
comparable property. The impact of the lights of customel-s under these laws is uncertain and could adversely 
affect the availability or timing of sale opportunities or the ability of the Company to  realize recovelies from 
Property sales. 

The government authorities regulating the Company's activities hwe broad discretionaiy power to enforce 
and interpret the statutes and regulations that they administer, including the power to enjoin ol- suspend sales 
activities, require or restrict construction of additional facilities and revoke licenses and permits relating to 
business activities. The Company monitors its sales and marketing programs and debt collection activities to 
control practices that might violate consumer protection laws and regulations or give r ise to consumer 
cnmplaints. 

Certain consunier rights and defenses that vaiy from jurisdiction to jurisdiction may affect the Company's 
portfolio of contracts receivable. Examples of such laws include state and federal consumer credit and 
truth-in-lending laws requiring the disclosure of finance cliargcs, and usuiy and rctail installment sales laws 
regulating permissible finance charges. 

In certain states, as a result of government regulations and provisinns in certain of the right-to-use or 
c:tmpgruund rnenihership agreements. the Compmy is prohibitcd fi-orn spllirig more than ten meniberships per 
site. At the present time, these restrictions do not preclude the Company from selling rnemherships in any state. 
However, these restrictions may limit the Company's ability to utilize Properties for public usage and/or the 
Company's ability to convert sites to more profitable or predictable uses, such as annual rentals. 

Debt  Financing, Financial Covenants and Degree  of Leverage Could Adversely Affect Our Eco- 
nomic Performance. 

Scherlderl Debt Paynientc Could Arli ly @ect Our Finmiciol Cotiditzon Oiir business is suhject to 
risks nnrmally ;usnciated with deht finmcing. The total piiriciptl ainouiit of oui- outstanding indebtednrss was 
appmximatdy $1.5 hillinn as nf Decernhor 31, 20011. Oiu siihstantial inrlrhtcxlrri:ss iind tlio cash flow associatad 
with serving our indebtedness could have important consequences, including the risks that: - our rash flow could he insufficient to pay distributions at expected Icvels and meet required payments of 

- we will be required to use a substantial portion of our cash flow from operations to pay our indebtedness, 
thereby reducing the availability of our cash flow to fund the implementation of our business strategy, 
acquisitions, capital expenditures and other general corporate purposes; 

principal and interest; 

* our deht service obligations c d d  limit our flexibility in planning for, or reacting to, changes in our 
business and the industry in which we operate; 

we may not he able to refinance existing inclehtedness (which i n  virtually all cases requires substantial 
principal piyments at maturity11 and, ifwe can, the terms of such refinancing might not be as favorable as 
the terms of existing indebtedness: 

if principal payments due at maturity cannot be refinanced, extciidcd or paid with proceeds of other 
capital transactions, such as new equity capital, nul- cash flow will not he sufficient in all years to repay all 
maturing debt; and 

if prevailing interest rates or other factors at the time of refinancing (such as the possible reluctance of 
lenders to make commercial real estate loans) result in higher interest rates, increased interest expense 
would adversely affect cash flow and our ability to service deht and make distributions to stockholders. 

Ability to obtain mortgagefinancing or to refinance maturing mortgages may adversely nffecf orrrfinancial 
Duiing 2CQ9, we have received financing proceeds from Fannie Mae secured by mortgages on condition. 

13 



individual manufactured home Properties. The terms of the Fannie Mae financings have been relatively 
attractive as compared to other potential lenders. If financing proceeds are no longer available from Faiinie Mae 
for any reason or if Fannie Mae terms are no longer attractive, it may adversely affect cash flow and our ability to 
seivice deht and make distiihutions to stockholders. 

Finmncinl Coceiinnts Could Adcerseky Affect Our Financial Condition. If a Pi-opeiiy is mortgaged to 
secure payment of indchtedness and we arc unable to meet mortgage payments, the mortgagee could foreclosc 
nn the Property, resulting in loss of income and asset value. The mortgages on our Properties contain customaiy 
negative cnvenants, which among other things, limit our ability, without the prior consent of the lendei-, to 
further mortgage the Property and to discontinue insurance coverage. In addition, our credit facilities contain 
certain customaiy restrictions, requirements and other limitatinns on our ability to incur indehtedness, including 
total debt to assets ratios, deht service coverage ratios and minimum ratios ofunencumhered assets to unsecured 
deht. Foreclosure on mortg;iged Properties or an inability to refinance existing indebtedness would likely haw a 
negative impact n n  nut- financial condition and results of nperations. 

Our Degree of Letinrage C m l d  Limit Our Ability to Obtain Additional Financing. Our debt to market 
capitalization ratio (total debt as a percentage nf total debt plus the market value of the outstanding common 
stock and Units held by parties other than the Company) was approximately 47% as of December 31, 2009. The 
degree of leverage could have important consequences to stockholders, including an adverse effect on our ability 
to oh t tn  additional financing in the futin-e for working capital, capital expenditures, acquisitions, development 
or other general corporate purposes, and makes us more vulnerable to a downturn in business nr the economy 
genel-ally. 

We Depend on Our Subsidiaries’ Dividends a n d  Distributions. 

Suhstaiitially all u f o i i r  asxts arc indirectly held through the Operating Partncrsliip. As ii ixsiilt. \\‘I: ha \~c  n o  
source uf npwating cash flow other tlian f w n i  distributions from the Operating Partnership. OUL ability tu p ~ y  
dividcnds to holders of comnion stock depends on the Operating Partnership’s ahility first to satisfy its 
obligations to its ci-editors and mxkr distiihutions payable to third part)’ holders of its preferred linits  and 
thm tn m a k e  ilistrihutiniis tn MllC Trust arid common Unit liolders. Similarly, MHC Tmst must satisfy its 
obligations to its cwditors and preferi-ed stockholders hefme making conmion stock distributions t o  us. 

Stockholders’ Ability to Effect Changes of Control of the Company is Limited. 

Pruvisions c$ Our Chrrrter und Bylntus Could Inhibit Clinnges uf Cuntrul. Certain provisions of our 
charter and bylaws may delay or prevent a change of control of the Company or other transactions that could 
provide our stockholdr-rs with a premium over the then-prevailing market price of their common stock or which 
might otherwise he in the best interest of our stockholders. These include the Ownership Limit desciihed below. 
Also, any futnrr series nfpreferred stock may have certain votingprovisions that could delay or prevent a change 
ofcontrol or other transaction that might involve a premium price or otherwise be beneficial to our stnckholdrrs. 

Certain provisions of Mayland law 
prohibit “husiness combinations” (including ceitain issuances of equity secuiities) with any person who 
beneficially owns lO%or more of the voting power of outstanding common stock, or with an affiliate of the 
Company who, at any time within the two-year period prior to the date in question, \vas the owner of 10% or 
more of the voting power of thr outstanding voting stock (an ‘Interested Stockholder”), or with an affiliate of an 
Interested Stockhnlder. These prohibitions last for five years after the most recent date on which the Interested 
Stockholder became an Interested Stockholder. After the five-year period. a business combination with an 
Interested Stockholder must be approved by two super-majority stockholder votes unless, among other 
conditions, our common stockholders receive a minimum piice for their shares and the consideration is 
received in cash or in the same form as previously paid by the Interested Stockholder for its shares of common 
stock. The Board of Directors has exempted from these provisions under the Maryland law any business 
combination with Samuel Zell, who is the Chairman of  the Board of the Company, certain holders of Units who 
received them at the time of our initiiil public offering, the General Motors Hourly Rate Employees Pension 
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Trust and the General Motors Salaried Employees Pension Trust, and our officers who acquired common stock 
at the time we were formed and each and every affiliate of theirs. 

We Hace a Stock Ownership LimitfurREIT Tux P~~rposes. To remain qualified as a REIT for U.S. federal 
income tax pulposes, not more than :io% in value of our outstanding shares of capital stock may he owned, 
directly or indirectly, by five or fewer individuals (as defined in the federal income tax laws applicable to REITs) 
at any time during the last half of any taxable year To facilitate inaintenance of our HEIT qualification, OUT 

charter, suhject tn certain exceptions, prohibits Bencficial Ownership (as defined in UUI charter) by any single 
stockholder of more than 5% (io valuc: or number of shares, whichever is more restrictive) of our outstanding 
capital stock. We refer to this as the “Ownership Liinit.” Within certain limits, our charter permits the Board of 
Directors to increase the Ownership Limit with respect to any class or series of stock. The Board of Directors, 
upon receipt of a ruling from the IRS, opinion of counsel, o r  nther evidcnce satisfactaiy to the Board of Directors 
and upon 15 days piior wiitten notice of a proposed transfer which, if consummatcd, would re,sult in the 
transferee owning shares in excess of the Ownership Limit, and upori huch other conditions i ls the Board of 
Directors may direct, may exempt a stockholder from the Ownership Limit. Absent any such exemption, capital 
stock acquired or held in violation ofthe Ownership Limit will be transferred by operation of law to us as tnistee 
for the benefit of the person to whom such capital stock is ultimately transferred, and the stockholder’s lights to 
distiibutions and to vote would terminate. Such stockholder would be entitled to receive, from the proceeds of 
any subsequent sale of the capital stock transferred to us as trustee, the lesser of (i) the price paid for the capital 
stock 01-, if the owner did not yay for the capital stock (for example, in tlip case of a gift, devise of other such 
transaction), the market pricc of the capital stock on thc date of thc event causing the capital stock to tie 
transferred to us as trustee or (ii) the amount realized from such sale. A transfer of capital stock tn;iy he void ifit 
causes a person to violate the Ownership Limit. The Ownership Limit coulrl delay or prevent a change in control 
of the COmpdlly and, therefore, could adversely affect our stockholders’ ability to realize a premiuin over the 
tlieri-prevailing market price h r  their coninion stock. 

Conflicts of Interest Could Influence the Company’s Decisions. 

Certnin Stockhulrler,~ Could Ererciso lnfluence in n Mnnner Inconsi.stent With thc Stncliholrlers’ Best 
htere.5t.s As of Deccmber :31, 2009, Mn S a m i ~ e l  Ze11 and c<..it;lin affiliated holders hancficially owned 
appnximately 11.9% of our outstanding cnmmnn stock ( in  eacl~ casr including cnnimnn stock issuahle upon 
the exercise of stock options and the exchange of Units). Mr. Zell is the chainnan of the Cornpany’s Bonrd of 
Directors. Accordingly, Mr. Zell Ius significant influence on our management and operation. Such influence 
could be exercised in a manner that is inconsistent with the interests of other stockholders. 

M r  2 1 1  und His Aflliates Continue to be Inuoltied in Other 1ntie.stnrent Acticities. MI. Zell and his 
affiliates have a broad and varied range ofinvestment interests, including interests in other rcal estate investment 
companies involved in other forms of housing, including multifjmily housing, Mr. Zell and his affiliates may 
acquire interests in other companies. Mr. Zell may not he able to control whether m y  such company competes 
with the Conrpany. Consequently, Mr. Zelli continued involvement i n  other investment acthities could result in 
competition to the Company as well as management decisions, which )night nut reflect the interests of our 
stockholders. 

Members of Munagernent ‘May Have a Conflict <$Interest Ocer Whether To Enforce T e r n  of Aft: McA- 
danrsk Employment and Noncompetition Agreement. Mr. McAdams is our President and has entered into an 
employment and noncompetition agreement L ~ t l r  us. For the nnst part these 1-estiictions apply to him both 
during his employment and for two years thereafter. Mr. McAdams is also prohibited from otheiwise disrupting 
or interfeiing with OUT business through the solicitation ofour employees or clients or othewise. To the extent 
that we choose to enforce our rights under any of these agreements, we may determine to pursue available 
remedies, such as actions for damages or injunctive relief, less vigorously than we othenvise might because of our 
desire to maintain our ongoing relationship with Mr. McAdams. Additionally, the non-competition provisions of 
his agreement, despite being limited in scope and duration, could be difficult to enforce, or may he subject to 
limited enforcement, should litigation arise over it in the future. See Note 13 in the Notes to Consolidated 
Financial Statements contained in this Form 10-K. 
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Risk of Eminent Domain and Tenant Litigation. 

\Ve own Properties in certain area!; of the county where real estate values have increased caster than rental 
rates in our Properties either because of locally imposed rent control or long term leases. In such areas, we have 
learned that certain local government entities have investigated the possibility of seeking to take ow Pi-opeiiies 
by eminent domain at values below the value of the undei-lying land. While no such eminent domain proceeding 
has been commenced, and we would exercise all ofour rights in connection with any such proceeding, successful 
condemnation procei:dings by municipalities could adversely affect our financial condition. Moreover, certain of 
oiir Properties located in California are subject to rent control ordinances, some of which not only severely 
restrict ongoing rent increases hot also prohibit us from increasing rents upon turnovcr. Such regulation allows 
customers to sell their homes for it premium representing the value of the future discounted rent-controlled 
rents. As part ofour effnrt to realize the value ofour Propeities suhject to rent control, we have initiated lawsuits 
against several municipalities in California. In  response to our efforts, tenant groups have filed lawsuits against us 
sreking not only to limit rent increases, but to be awartlerl large damage awards. If we are unsuccessful in DUI 

efforts to challenge rent control ordinances, it is likely that we will not be able to charge rents that reflect the 
intrinsic value of the affected Properties. Finally, tenant Si-oups in non-rent controlled markets have also 
attempted to use litigation as B means of protecting themselves fi-om rent increases reflecting the rental d u e  of 
the affected Properties. An mdavorable outconie in  the tenant group lawsuits could have an adverse impact on 
our financial condition. 

Environmental and  Utility-Related Problems Are Possible a n d  Can  be Costly 

Federal, state and local laws and regulations relating to the protection nf the environment may require a 
current or previous owner or operator of real estate to investigate and clean up hazardous or tonic suhstances or 
petloleuin ploduct reIc.:~ses ;it such piipcrty. The mwner or operator may have to pay a g~ivernmental entity or 
third prties fnr  p rnpr t s  dainage and fu r  investigation and clearr-up costs incurred hy such parties in crrnnection 
with the cont,iminatii,ri. Such  la^ typically impose clean-up responsibility and liability without regard to 
whether the owner or opcratoi- k w w  of or caused the preserrcl: of the contaminants. Even if more than one 
pcrsnn may havc hcsn 1-esponsihle fin the contamination. each person covered hy the environmental laws m a y  
he helcl resporisihle for  all ofthe clr;m-op casts incurred. In addition, third parties may sue the owner or npcrator 
nf a citC for damagc~ ;md costs resulting from crivironmental contamination emanating from that sitc. 

Environmental laws also gnvern the presence, maintenance and remnval of asbestos. Siich laws require that 
owners or operators ofproperty containing asbestos properly manage and maintain the asbestos, that they notify 
and train those who may come into coiitact with asbestos and that they undertake Special precautions, including 
removal or other abatement, if asbestos wodd be disturbed during renovation or demolition of a building. Such 
laws may impose fines and penalties on real property owners 01 operators who fail to comply with these 
requii-ements and may allow third parties to seek recovely from owners or operators for persorial injuiy 
associated with exposure to asbestos libers. 

Utility-related laws and regulations also govern the provision of utility sewices and operations of water and 
wastcwatcl- tieatmcnt facilitirrs. Such laws rcgulato, for example, 11nw and to what extent owners or operators of 
property can charge rentel-s for provision of, for eaample, electricity, and whcther and to what extent such utility 
seMces can he chargrcl separately from the base rent. Such laws also regulate the operations and performance of 
water treatment fiacilities and wastewater treatment fac es. St& laws may inipose fines and penalties on real 
property owners or operators who fail to comply with these requirements. 

We Have a Significant Concentration of Properties in Florida a n d  California, a n d  Natural Disas- 
ters or Other  Catastrophic Events in These or Other  States Could Adversely Affect the  Value of 
OUT Properties a n d  O u r  Cash Flow. 

As of December 31,2009, we owned or had an ownership interest in 304 Properties located in 27 states and 
British Columbia, including 86 Properties located in Florida and 48 Properties located in California. The 
occurrence of a natural disaster or other catastrophic event in any of these area? may cause a sudden decrease in 
the value of our Properties. While we have obtained insurance policies pi-oviding certain coverage against 
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damage from fire, flood, property damage, earthquake, wind storm and business interruption, these insurance 
policies contain coverage limits, limits on covered property and various deductible amounts that the Company 
must pay before insurance proceeds are available. Such insurance may therefore be insufficient to restore our 
economic position with respect to damage or destruction to our Properties caused by such occurrences. 
Moreover, each of these coverages must be renewed evely year and there is the possibility that all or some ofthe 
coverages may not be available at a reasonable cost. In addition, in the event of such natural disaster o r  other 
catastrophic event, the process of obtaining reimbursement fix covered losses, including the lag between 
expenditures incurred by us and reimbursements receivccl fruin the insurance providers, could adversely affect 
our economic performance. 

Market Interest  Rates Play Have a n  Effect o n  the  Value of Our Common Stock. 

One of the factors that investoi-s wnsiiler inipoi?;int in deciding whether to buy or sell shares of a REIT is 
the distribution nites with respect to s r d i  shares (as a percentage of the p i c e  of such shares) relative to market 
interest rates. If market interest rates go up, prospective purclrasers of REIT shares iway expect a higher 
distribution rate. Higher interest rates would not, however, result in inore funds for us to distribute and, in fact, 
would likely increase our borrowing costs and potentially decrease funds available fix distribution. Thus, higher 
market interest rates could cause the market price of our piiblicly traded secuiities to go down. 

We Are Dependent on External Sources of Capital. 

To qualify as a REIT, we must distribute to our stockholders each year at least 90% of nu1 REIT taxable 
income (determined without regard to the deduction for dividends paid and excluding any net capital gain). In 
addition, we intend to distribute all nr substantially all of our net income so that we will generally not be subject 
t o  U.S.  fcderal income tax on o w  earnings. Rrc;~nse nf these distiil,ntinn I-eqiiirernents. it is not likely that we will 
he able t o  fund all future capital needs, including for acquisitions, from inconir firm operations. \Ve therefnre 
will havc tn roly on third-party sources <of debt and q u i t y  capital filimcing, which may or  ,may not bo availablc on 
favorable terms or at all. Our access to third-party sources of capital depends on a number of things, including 
conditions in the capital markets generally and the markct's pel-ccptiou of OUI- growth potential anti ciur current 
and pntential future earnings. As a result of thc current credit c1 it may be difficult fnr us to meet one or more 
of the requirements for qu;ilification as a HEIT, iircluding but not limitrd t o  OLK distl-ihutimi requirement. 
Moreover, additional equity offerings may result in substantial dilution ofstockholdcrs' interests, and additional 
debt financing may substantially increase nur leverage. 

O u r  Qualification as a REIT is Dependent o n  Compliance With US. Federal Income Tay 
Requirements. 

We believe we have been organized and operated in a niilnner so a s  to qudify for taxation as a REIT, and we 
intend to continue to operate so as to qualify as a REIT for U.S. fcderal income tax purposes. Qualification as a 
REIT for US. federd income tax purposes, however, is governed by highly techniad and complex provisions of 
the Code for which there are only limited judicial or adniinistrative intetqxctations. In conncctinn with certain 
transactbns, we have received, and relied, o n  advice of counsel its to the impact of such transactions on our 
qualification as a REIT. Our qwalification as a REITrcquires analysis ofvaiious facts and circumstances that may 
not be entirely within our control, and we cannot provide any assurance that the Internal Revenue Sewice (the 
"IRS") will agree with our analysis or thc analysis of our tax counsel. In particular, the proper federal income tax 
treatment of righ-to-use membership contracts is unceitain and tlrero is no assiir i inc~ that the IRS will agree 
with the Company's trcatment ofsuch contracts. Ifthc IHS were to disagrec with nur analysis 01- OUT tax counsel's 
analysis of facts and circumstances, our ahility to qualify as a HEIT may be adversely affected. These matters can 
affect our qualification as a REIT, In addition, legislation, new regulations, administrative interpretations or 
court decisions might significantly change the tax laws with respect to the requirements for qualification as a 
REIT or the US. federal income tax consequences of qualification as a REIT. 

If, with respect to any taxable year, we fail to maintain our qualification as a REIT (and specified relief 
provisions under the Code were not applicable to such disqualification), we could not deduct distributions to 
stockholders in computing ournet taxable income and we would be subject to US. federal income tax on our net 
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taxable income at regular Corporate rates. Any U.S. federal income tax payible could include applicable 
alteinative minimum tax Ifwe had to pay U.S. federal income tau, the amount of money available to distribute to 
stockholders and p ~ y  indebtedness would be reduced for the year or years involved, and we would no longer be 
required to distribute money to stockholders. In addition, we would also he disqualified from treatment as a 
REIT for the four taxable years following the year during which qualification was lost, unless we were entitled to 
relief under the relevant statutoiy provisions. Although we currently intend to operate in a mannel- designed to 
allow us to qualify as a HEIT, future economic, market, legal, tax or other considerations may came 11s to I-wake 
the REIT election. 

Interpretation of and Changes to Accounting Policies and Standards Could Adversely Affect Our 
Reported Financial Results. 

Our .4caiunting Policies n~u l  Methods Are the Buyis tJ7I Which We Report O u r  Financinl Conrlition nnd 
Results ifOl~crutions, nnd They May Rcyuire iVanagement to Make Estimntes Abmt  Mat ten  that Are Inherently 
Uncertain. Our accounting policies and methods are fundamental to the manner in which we record and 
report our financial condition and results of operations. Management must exercise judgment in selecting and 
applying many of these accounting policies and methods in order to ensure that they comply with geiier;illy 
accepted accounting principles and reflect management? judgment as to the most appropriate manner in which 
to record and report our financial condition and results of operations. In some cases, management must select 
the accvunting pvlicy or method to apply from tu’o or more alternatives, any ofwhich might he reasonable under 
the circunistimces yet might result i n  reporting mutelially different amounts than woold Iiave heen repnl-trd 
under a different alternative. 

C1~mge.s in Accounting Stonrlnrrlr Could Aduenely 4ffect Our Reported Finnncial Renrlts. Tlir bodies 
that wt eccoonting standards for public companies, including the Financial Accounting Standards Bnud 
(“FASB”), t l i r  SEC and nthers, 1x1-iodically change vr revisc existing interpretatinns of thr accvunting .ml  
reporting standards that govern the way that we repoit onr financial condition and results of operations. These 
changcs can ha difficiilt to prrdict and can materially impact our reported financial i-csiilts. 121 sorno cases, wc 
could he requiied to .cpply a new or revised ;scounting standard, or ii revised interpretation nf an accorinting 
standal-d, retroactivcl?. which cnrild ha\.r a nopative impact on repnrtetl results or result in t h e  rest;itom~!nt vf vur 
fin;mciiil stateruunts fvr pi-inr perirrds. 

The EASE sets generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAAP”) that we follow to ensure we consistently 
report our financial condition, results of operations and cash flows. Rcferences to GAAP issued by the FASB in 
this Form 10-K are to the FASB Accounting Standards Codification (the “Codification”). The FASB finalized the 
Codification effective for periods ending on or after September 15,2009. The Codification does not change how 
the Company accounts for its transactions or the nature of the related disckisures made. 

Our Accounting Policies f.r the Sale of Right-To-Use Contracts Will Result in a Substantial Deferrril of 
Revenue in our Finmdinl Resu1t.s. Beginning August 14, 2008, the Company began selling iight-ti)-use 
contracts. Customers who purchase right-to-use contracts are generally required to make an upfrvnt nvnrc- 
hndahle p;iynieiit to tlie Company. The Company incurs significant selling and marketing expenses t n  originate 
the right-to-use contracts, and the majority of expenses must be expensed in the p e r i d  incurred, while the 
related sales revennes are generally deferred and recognized nver tlie expected life of the contract which is 
estimated based upon historical attrition rates. The expected life ofa light-to-use contract is currently estimated 
t v  be between one and :31 years. As a result, the Company may incur a loss from the sale ofright-to-use cnntr;icts, 
build up a substantial deferred sales revenue liability balance, and recognize substantial non-cash revenue in 
years subsequent to the original sale. This accounting may make it difficult for investors to interpret the financial 
results from the sale of right-to-use cnntracts. The Compnny submitted correspondence to the Office of the 
Chief Accountant at the SEC describing the right-to-use contracts and subsequently discussed the revenue 
recognition policy with respect to the contracts with the SEC. The SEC does not object to the Company’s 
application of the Codification Topic “Revenue Recognition” (“FASB ASC 605) (prior authoritative guidance: 
Staff Accounting Bulletin 104, “Revenue Recognition in Consolidated Financial Statements, Corrected”) with 
respect to the deferral of the upfront nonrefundable payments received from the sale of right-to-use contracts. 
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See Note 2 (n) in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements contained in this Form 10-K for the 
Company's revenue recognition policy. 

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments 

On December 23,2009, the SEC sent us a letter with comments on our Proxy Statement and Form 10-K for 
the year ended Drcember 31,2008. Thr cnmmcnts relate to income statcrnent presentation, segment reporting, 
the transfer of inventoiy homes to fixed assets, revenue recognition policies related to light-to-use contracts, 
footnote disclosure of the Privileged Access acquisition, footnote disclosure of joint venture investments and 
disclosure of senior management bonus kdrgets. We responded to the SECs letter on January 25,2010 and as of 
February 24, 2010 we have not received a response from tlle SEC. 

Item 2. Properties 

General 

Our Properties provide attractive amenities and common facilities that create a comfortable and attractive 
home for our customers, with most offering a clubhouse, a swimming pool, laundry facilities and cable television 
sewice. Many also offer additional amenities such as saundwhirlpool spas, golf courses, tennis, shuffleboard and 
basketball courts, exercise roonis and various social acti\ities such as concerts. Since most of our customers 
generally rent our sites on a long-term basis, it is their responsihility to maintain their homes and the surrounding 
area. It is our role to ensure that customers comply witli our Property policies :md to pmvide Iiiaintenance of the 

es and amcnities. We hold periodic meetings with our Pn,pt:rty management personnel for 
training and implementation of our strategies. The Properties histniically have I d ,  and we believe they will 
continue to have, low turnover and high occupancy rates. 

Property Portfolio 

throughout the Unitcd States and British Columbia containing 110,575 residential sites. 
As of Ilecember 31, 2009, we owned 01- had :in ownership inter& in a portfblio of 304 Properties located 

The distribution or our Propelties throughout the United States rrflects our belief that geographic 
diversification lielps insulate the partfoliu from regional economic infliwnces. \\'e intend to  target new 
acquisitions in or near markets wherc 0111 PI-opertirs arc loc;ited and will also wnsidei- acquisitions of Pi-opeities 
outside such markets. Refer to Note 2 ( c )  of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements contained in this 
Form 10-K. 

Bay Indies located in Venice, Florida and Viewpoint located in Mesa, Arizona, our two largest pi-operties as 
determined by property operating revenues, accounted for approximately 2.0% and 1.9%. respectively, of our 
total property operating revenues for the year ended December 31, 2009. 

The following table sets forth certain information relating to the Properties we owned as of December 31, 
2009, categorized by our major markets (excluding Pmprrties owned through joint ventures). 

Fluridn 
East Coast: 

K~~ . 31itini oIrrrear iiiT ulgpilic K ~ ,  FI. i3ii.u IW i? NV 5s iwo5c iwi i i .  s Y.IX s111.418 

Crniigu C u c .  . . . . . FWE Cdrnngu Cmc U,ylu>ii U m d I  FL . 3 1 l i ! I  h l i l  59 418 418 !J,).IR '11.6% s5,w3s5..572 
\\'as 

crosnng or 
Ccxpicia Crossing. . . . 4536 Cwpinr Elktm FL 31033 MI1 316 36 1.1.5 ,563 563 Y?.8% 81.18 S5.458S5.LY3 

Bulow Plrnlrlion . . . 3165 Old Kingr R o d  Flaglei Derrh FI. 32116 M H  313 181 722 176 Pi6 %WE 8~76% S 5,7,% S 5.316 
South 

South 
Bulaw RV . . . . . . . . 3245 Old Kings R o d  Flagler Acach FI. 31136 R V  10 352 79 im.n% 100.0s t 5,iw s 4,949 

Cndrrr C m e .  , . . . . 3173 N.W. 37th SI Ft. Ltiud,:rdde F L  -09 h111 2U IM IW 83.3% N.38  S6,470S6,328 

Prrk City Weit . . . . . Iffi5U W Sratc lluad Ft. Laudcrdale FL 13394 hll l  60 363 3G? 89.5% 893% S 5,R92 9 5,734 
84 
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46 
61 
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80 
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48 
58 

42 
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28 

27 
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8Li 

74 
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m 
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32 

75 

184 91 

2w 54 
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151 

86 
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6i 

!JY 

I W  
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44 
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375 375 9 6 8 %  95 i U  8 6926 S 6923 
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1 , s  I 
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13 

8911UhlH 13 
h911W h l H  39 
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89147 MH 37 

X Y I ~   hi^ a 

3 s  3% 643% 63.5% s tim s 6,as 
2YY 199 tiU.9% 77.3% s 6,567 $ 6,599 

163 163 9. i .R I  983% I 6,848 S 6,566 
256 Pi8 %.9% =.ti% S 7,%% ti 7.216 
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UT 84404 MI 16 314 314 Y3.3% $14.32 8 4.539 S 4.293 
UT "116 MH I9 MI 121 h1.32 iil..5'b S i.3'11 S 5,321 
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R\J 
HY 
R\' 

R\' 
I lY 

M b I  

M H 

hlll 

R\' 
R\' 
I IV 

RV 
RV 
R\' 

I IV 

IT\' 
I,\ 

R \  

In\' 
I,\ 

HV 

15 

289 1U0 1'1.5 

105 
57 
80 
3Y 

115 30 202 
21 
93 

21 

31 
: I ~ I  200 6ixi 
3u9 R i  

63 
106 5 
?ill, 50 

ii 2 

3611 119 

I6 
I4 

17 
6" 
90 

436 
I56 
183 

137 

246 
251 
360 

1 in  
31'1 
I66 

1.16 

520 

S4 
I l i  

1 1  
214 

443 23,; 
218 51 

901 79 

30 
6U 

84 

111 74 
905 ii 
1Y 

480 I /  

135  40 
40 

37 

403 158 

293 
132 

301 

301 
563 

l.ll27 
531 
3x7 

4% 

mi, 

1.435 
1113 

390 
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(a) Represents a former joint venture Property acquired in 2009. 
(h) Property is primarily designated fix us<: by custoinci-s with righ-to-nsc contracts. Annual sitcs, if any, as of 

1U:31/2008 have been omitted from the table, iis the information would not pro\ide meaningful 
compaiisons. 

(c) Acres are approximate. Acreage for some recent xipis i t inns was estimated based upon 10 sites per acre. 
(d) Acres are approximate. The.re can be no assurance that developable acres will he developed. Development 

is contingent on many factors including, but not limited to, cost, ability to snbdivide, accessibility, 
infrastructure needs, zoning, entitlement and topography. 
Expansion sites are approximate and only represent sites that could he developed and is further dependent 
upon necessary approvals. Certain Properties with expansion sites noted may have vacancy and therefore, 
expansion sites may not be added 
Acres for this RV park are included in the acres for the adjacent manufactured home conrnrunity listed 
directly above this Property. 
Property not operated by the Company during all of 2009. Property is leased to a third party operator or w a  
closed for all or a portion of 2009 

( e )  

(0 

(g) 

Itan 3. Legal Proceedings 

The legal proceedings d i s c h i m  is incorporated liprein by referenco fxnm Note 18 in the Notes to 
Consolidated Financial Statements in this FIWII  IO-K. 

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote oJ Security Zlolclerv 

None. 



PART I1 

Item 5. Market f o r  Registrant's Common Equity,  Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Ptir- 
chases of Equity Securities. 

Our conimoii stock is traded on the New York Stock Exchange ("NYSE") under the symbol ELS. On 
Fr4,riiaiy 23, 2010, the rcported closing price per share of ELS common stock on the NYSE was $48.86 and 
there were approximately 10,060 beneficial holders of record. The high and low sales prices and closing sales 
prices on the NYSE and distributions for our common stock during 2009 and 2008 are set forth in thc table 
below: 

2009 
1st Qnarter . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

2ndQiiarter . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
3rd (>u;n-ter. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

4th Quarter. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

1st Quarter . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
2 n d  Quarter. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

4th Quarter . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

2008 

:3rd QWdrter.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Dislributions 
~ Cluse * Declared 

$38.10 
37.18 
42.79 
50.47 

$49.37 

53.03 
38.36 

4 m o  

$42.44 
46.28 
47.47 
51.18 

$52.26 
53.64 
56.00 
52.90 

$28.34 
'33.56 

40.57 
34.09 

$39.77 
'43 62 
40.93 
22.64 

Issuer Puruh;tses of Equity Securities 
Total Number of Shares Mnximum Number of 

Total Number Avvera e Price Purehnsed as Part of Shares tho1 May Yet 
or P A  per Publicly Announced be Purehaserl Ullder 

Period P"rchsscd(;l) Share(*) Plans or  Pmgclmr the Plans or Programs 

lO/l/~l~l- 10/3 1/09 ~ ~ Nonc Nonr 
1 l/l/O9- 11/30/0'3 277 $47.66 Nunc .\'on? 

12/1/09- 12/:31/O9 2 1,116 $50.22 None None 

____ 

50.2130 
0.250 
0.300 
0.300 

$ o . m  
0.200 
0.200 
0.200 

(a) Of the common stock repurchased from October 1, 2009 through December 31, 2009, 21,393 shares were 
repurchased at the open market piice and represent common stock surrendered to the Company to satisfy 
income tax withholding obligations doe as a result of the vesting of Restricted Share Grants. Certain 
executive officers of the Company may fi-om time to time adopt non-discretionay, written trading plans that 
comply with Commission Rule 10151, or "thenvise monetize their equity-hased compensation. Commis- 
sion Rule 10h5-1 provides executives with a method to monetize their equity-hued compensation in an 
aiitrmatic and non-discretionary manner ~ e r  time. 
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Item 6. Selected Financial Datu 

The following table sets forth selected financial and operating information on a histoiicnl basis. The 
lristoiicd operating data has been derived from the historical financial statements of the Company. The following 
information should be read in conjunction w i t h  all of the financial statements and notes thereto included 
elsewhere in this Form 10-K. 

E:quity Lifestyle Properties, Inc. 

Consolidated Historical Financial Information 

(])Years Ended December 31, 
2UO8 2W8 2w7 2006 2005 

(Amounts in thourmrls, except for per share and property data) 

$ 253.379 
124.s22 
50,765 
21,526 

- _ _ _ _ _ _ - ~  

Property Operations: 
Coinmunit). h u e  r e d  income. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Resort base rental income. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Right~to-use annual piqments(2) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Right-to-use contracts current PI, ~ $ 2 ) .  . . . . . . . . . .  
Right-to-use contracts, deferre , net o prior penod 

nmartizatiant2). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Utility and other income. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

6 245,833 
111,876 
19,667 
10,951 

d 225,815 
89,925 

F 213,280 
74,371 

d 236,933 
102,372 

(18,882) 
47.685 

479,295 
180,670 
31,674 
13,536 

~ 

i,j.i% 
:33,:3H:3 

(10,611) 
41,633 

419,349 
152,363 
29,457 
7,116 

(3,644) 
25,451 

210,743 
206,606 

__ 

~ 

36,849 
376,154 
127,342 
27,429 

___ 30,643 
346,383 
116,179 
26,246 

~ 

27,367 
315,018 
103,832 
24,671 

~ 

- 
~ 

17,079 

- 
- 

15,919 18,385 Pn1perty ",anag?pmriit . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Pl" PI ty operati,,.. expenses /e.(cILIsI\L: of drprc""tioli 

s g .  OW" separate . ' f y 1El"W) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

lnciime from property operations. . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Home Sales Operations: 

Glass reVe"UEs from home sales 7,l:X 
Cost ofhome sdes. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  (7,471) 

Brokered resde revenues, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
llome selling expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Ancillav sewices revenues, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . .  
~ 

Cmss (lOS\i profit fV",,, 1,<,,,>e LillrS . . . . . . .  1 3 3 )  

Income (loss) from home sales operations and other. . . .  
Other Income and Expenses: 

Interest income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Income from otlier investments, 4 3 ) .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
General and administrative . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Rent control initiatives . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Interest and related amortization . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Loss on early deht retirement(4) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Ilepreciation on co orate assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Depreciation on rezestate and other cosl i .  . . . . . . . . . . .  

Equity in income of unconsolidated joint ventures. . . . . .  
Consolidated income From continting cmperntions . . . . . .  

Discontinued operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Depreciation on discontinued operations . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Gain (loss) from discontinued raal estate . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Income from discontinued operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Consolidated net income. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Common OP Units . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Net income (loss) available for Common Shares . . 

Total other expenses, net . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Discontinued Operations: 

(Income) loss allocated to non-controlling interests: 

Perpetual Preferred or Units(5) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

253,734 
215,561 

~ 

173,156 
202,998 

__. 
159,504 
186,879 
- 144,422 

170,596 

6fi,014 
(57.471) 

8.543 

__ 

__ 
21,645 

12.4:069! 
(2,221) 
1,093 

(5,776) 
1,197 

(4709) 

~ 

~ 

33,333 
(30,71:31 

2.620 
1,528 

(7,555) 
2,436 
(971) 

~ 

- 

61,247 

6,749 
(54,498) 

2,129 
(9,336) 
3,027 
2,069 

___ 

__ 

i.58 
12,383) 
2,745 

785 
~ 

2;714 
(8,838) 
2,227 
4,646 

__ 

5,119 
8,168 

(22,279) 
(456) 

(98,311) 

3,095 
17.006 

(20.617) 
(1.555) 

(98,406) 
(24) 

(390) 
(66,193) 

(168,084) 
3,753 

38,556 

~ 

~ 

~ 

1,732 
22,476 

(15,591) 
(2,657) 

1103,070) 

1,975 
20,102 

(12,760) 
( 1.157) 

(103,161) 

1,406 
16,609 

(13,624) 
(1,081) 

(100,712) 
(20,630) 

(804) 
(55,603) 

(174,444) 
6,508 
7,306 

__ 

__ 
__ 

- 
(1,039) 

(69,049) 
(177,847) 

2,896 
51,395 

~ 

~ 

~ 

- 
(437) 

(63,554) 
(161,101) 

2,696 
43,622 

~ 

~ 

~ 

257 
~ 

289 
- 

520 
(84) 

(192) 
244 

37,088 

- 
___ 

1,927 
(410) 

2,279 
3,796 

11,102 

- 
__ 

4,685 
4.866 

56,261 

(6,113) 
(16,143) 

d 34,WS 

~ 

~ 

~ 

- 
~ 

(79) 
178 

38,744 

(4,297) 
(16,144) 

$ 18,303 

- 

~ 

- - 

12,036 
12,325 
55,947 

~ 

___ 

17,705) 

$ 32,102 
(16,140) 

~ 

- - 

(4,318) 
(16,138) 

$ 16,632 
~ 

- - 

539 
(13,974) 

~ 

$(2,333) - 
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Equity Lifestyle Properties, Inc. 

Consolidated Historical Financial Information (continued) 

Earnings er Common Share - Basic: 
income fioss) ~rom continuing operations. . . . . . . . .  
Income from discontinued o elations . . . . . . . . . . .  
Net income (lass) available &Common :Shares . . . .  

Income fioss) froin continuing operations. . . . . . . . .  
Income from discontinued o eratiom . . . . . . . . . . .  
Net income (loss) awilnble Z r  Cainmon !Shires . . . .  
Distiihutiow ducliired per Cuminon Shiirc 

Weiqhted average Common Shares outstanding - 
basic . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Weighted  wage Common OP Units outrtmnding . . 
Wrivhtcd ;ivefi~g~ Commun S h e s  uutstending - 
SJI~ diluterl . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Earnings er Common Share -Fully Diluted: 

ootstanding . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Balance Sheet Datn: 
H d  estate. Lcfurc accumulated deprecinlion(6) . . . .  
T d  assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Trrtal mortgages and l n i m  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Noir~controlling interests . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Total equityf7i . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Funds from apenitinns(8i . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Total Properties (at end oS;p!), . : : . . . . . . . . .  

Other Data: 

Totd bites fdt  eiid oS peiiix . . . . . . . . .  

(1)As of December 31, 
2w9 2008 2007 2006 2M1.5 

(Amounts in thousads, except Cor per share and property dntn) 

$ 1.08 P 0.i4 $ 0.92 $ 0 . i 0  9 (0.23) 

P 1.23 $ 0.75 $ 1.33 P 0.71 $ 10.10) 

$ 1.07 $ 0.74 $ 0.80 9 0.68 $ (0.23) 
P 0.15 $ 0.01 $ 0.41 $ 0.01 $ 0.13 
‘g 1.22 $ 0.7s $ 1.31 9 0.69 9 (0.10) 

B 1.10 $ 0.80 $ 0.60 9 0.30 9 0.10 

27,582 24,466 24,089 23,444 23,081 
5,075 5,674 5,870 6,165 6.285 

32,944 30,498 30,414 30,241 29,366 

@,538,215 $2,491,021 $2,396,115 $2,337,460 $2,152,567 
2,166,319 2,091,647 2,033,695 2,055,831 1,948,874 
1,547,901 1,662,403 1,659,392 1,717,212 1.6:38.281 

P 0.15 $ 0.01 $ 0.41 9 0.01 $ 0.13 

200,ooo 2oo,ono 200,000 2o0,ono 2oo.000 
254,427 96,234 88,717 59,912 41,895 

$ 118,082 $ 97,615 $ 92,752 $ 82,36i 5 52,827 
301 309 311 i l  1 2x5 

110.S75 112,211 112,779 I l2,Yi6 1 I ) ~ ~ J 3 i  

(1) See the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company contained in this Form 10-E;. Certain revr:nnc 
miounts reported in previously issued statements of operations have been reclassified in  the attached 
statcrncnts of opclations chic to the Company’s expansion of the rolated revcniie activity. 

P~-opel-ty uper;itions, l ioinc sale operxtions, and other incoine and enpe~isi~s air i l iscussed iii ltcwri 7 
contained in this Form 10-E;. 

(2) New actixity starting <in August 14, 2008 duc to the acquisition of the operations of Piivilegcd Acocss, LP 
(“Privileged Access”). 

(3) Between November 10, 2004 and A u p t  13, 2008, Income from other investments, net included rental 
income from the lease of membership Properties to Thousand Trails (“’IT”) or its subsequent owier, 
Privileged Access. On August 14, 2008, the Company acquired substantially all of the assets and certain 
liabilities of Privileged Access, which inchided the operations of TT The lease of membership Properties to 
1T was terminated upon closing. As a result of the lease termination, beginning Aups t  14, 2008, Income 
from other investments, net no longer iricluded rental income fi-om the lease of membership Propel-tics. Scz 
Note 2 ( j )  in the Notes to Cnnsolidated Financial Statements contained in this Form 10-K. 

(4) On Decrw~ber 2, 2005, we refinanced approximately $293 million of secured debt maturing i n  2007 with an 
effective interest rate of 6.S% per (annum. This refinanced debt was secured by two cross-collateralized loan 
pools consisting of 35 Properties. The transaction generated approximately $337 million in pmceods from 
loans sccured by individual mortgages on 20 Properties. The blended interest rate on  the refinancing w a s  
approximately 5.3% per annum, and the loans mature in 2015. Transaction costs 1-eesolting from early dcbt 
retirement were approximately $:!0.0 million. 

(5) During 2005, we issued $25 million of 8.0625% Series D and $50 million of 7.95% Series F Cumulative 
Redeemable Perpetual Preference: Units toinstitutional investors. Proceeds were used to pay down amounts 
outstanding under the Company’>; lines of credit. 

( 6 )  We believe that the book value of ithe Properties, which reflects the historical costs ofsuch rcal cstatc assets 
less accumulated depreciation, is less than the current market value of the Properties. 
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(7) On June 29, 2009, we issued 4.6 million shares of common stock in ;in equity offwing for proceeds of 

(8) Refer to Item 7 contained in this Form 10-K for information regarding why we present funds from 
approximately $146.4 million, net of offering costs. 

operations and for a reconciliation of this non-GAAP financial lnieasure to net income. 

Item 7. iManagement's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations 

The following discussion should he read in conjunction with 'Selected Financial Data" and the histoiicd 
Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes thereto appearing elsewhere i n  this Fonn 10-K. 

2009 Accomplishments 

* Issued 4.6 million sharcs of coininon stock in an equity offeiing for proceeds of approximately 
$146.4 million, nct of offefing costs. 

* Raised annual dividend to $1.1.0 per share in 2009, up from $0.80 per share in 2008. 

Paid nff 20 maturing mortgages totaling approximately $106.7 millirin, funded with approximately 
'8107.5 million of new and refinanced debt on six properties. 

Overview a n d  Outlook 

Occupancy in our Properties 11s well as our ability to iiicmise rental rates directly affects revenues. Our 
revenue streams are predominantly dizrived froin customers renting our sites on a long-term basis. 

We have approaimetely 65,000 annual sitrs, appmriinsti~ly 8,900 seasonal sites, which are leased to 
customers generally for three tr, six months,  and appr~ixiniz~tely 9,30(1 transient sitcs, occupied by ~ustiniiers 
who lease sites on ii short-term basis. Tlw revenue from sc'asnnal and transient sites is generally higher during the 
first and third quarters. We expect to sewice OYIY 100,000 cnstomers at our transient sites and we consider this 
revenue stream to he our most wlatile. It is subject to weather conditions, gar piices, and other factors affecting 
the marginal nv customcr's vacation arid ti-avcl plofc~r(:nccs. Finally, we lrave approimatcly 24,300 sites 
designated as right-to-use sites which w e  primal-ily utilized to semice the apprr~aim;~tely 112,000 customers who 
own right-to-use contracts. We also have interests in Properttes containing approximately 3,100 sites for which 
revenlie is classified as Equity in income fi-om unconsolid:ited joint ventures i n  the Consolidated Statements of 
Operations. 

Total Sites as of 
Dec. 31,2009 

(Rounded to 0 0 0 s )  

Community sites(1). . . . . .  44,400 

Annual . . . . . . . . . . . .  . .  . . . . . . . . . .  20,600 
Seasonal . . . . . . . . .  . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  8,900 
Transient . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  9,300 

Right-to-use(2) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  24,300 
Joint Ventures(3) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  3,100 

Resort sites: 

~ 

~ 110,600 
~ 

(1) Includes 165 sites from discontinued operations. 

( 2 )  Includes approximately 2,500 site:; rented on an annual basis. 
(3) Joint Venture income is included in Equity in income of unconsolidated joint ventures. 

A significant portion of our rental agreements on community sites ore directly or indirectly tied to published 
CPI statistics that are issued during June through September each year. We currently expect our 2010 
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conininnity base rental income to increase approximately 2% as compared to 2009. 'we have already notified 
approximately 65% of our community site customers with rent increases reflecting this revenue growth. 

Our home sales volumes and gross profits have been declining since 2005. \Ve believe that the disruption in 
the site-built housing market may be contiihuting to the decline in our home sales operations as potential 
customers are not able to sell their existing site-built homes as well as increased price semitibtty for seasonal and 
secnnd hornehuyers. We believe that our potential customers are ;ilso having difficulty obtaining financing on 
resort homes, resort cottages and HV purchases. There are few options for potential customers who seek to 
obtain manufactured home financing The options that are available currently require at least a 5% down 
payment and interest rates ranging from approximately 8% to 13%. This is in contrast to purchasers of site-built 
hunies, who o w n  the underlying 1;md and tliat may benefit from vmious goverinment stimulus packages designed 
to keep interest rates and down payments low. The continued decline in homes sales activity resulted in our 
decision to significantly reduce our new homes sales operation during the last couplc of months of 2008 and until 
s,icli timc as iicw homc sales markots improve. We hclieve that renting ourviicant ncw homes may repmscnt an 
attractive source of occupancy and potentially convert to a new homebuyer in the fntnre. We are also focusing on 
smaller; more energy efficient and more affordable homes in our manufactured home Properties. We also 
believe that some customers that are capable of purchasing are opting instead to rent due to the current 
economic cnvinmmcnt. 

Our rental nperations have been increasing since 2007. For the year ended December :31,2009, occupied 
manufactured homP rentals increased to 1,753, or 93.370, from 907 for the year ended Deceliiber :3 I, 2007. Net 
operating inconw increased to approximately $11.2 million in 2009 from approximately $5.9 million in 2007. \Ve 
helieve tliat unlike the home sales business, at this time we compete effectively with other types of rentals (i.e. 
apartments). We are currently evaluating whether we want to continue to invest in additional rentd units. 

I n  ~ I I -  wsrrrt Pnipci-ties. we cmitiiiuu to wnrk on extending custnmer stays. \Ve liavc, I d  success cunvutirig 
tl;iiisi<wc custwiiers to seasorial crrstrrmers and s e ~ s o n a l  customers to  annual  customers. \'T'r d s n  hwe mil 
continue t n  intmduce Inw-cost products that focus on the installed base of almost eight million HVownei-s. Such 
pl-odiicts may includp right-to-usc (contracts that entitle the purchasers to usc ccxtain propcl-tics (the 
"gl-l:erne,its"). 

Scveral rliffcrcnt .4gn'r:ments i l ~ o  cnrrcntly nffered to IIDW customen Tliese frnnt-line Aprcenirnt.; iiro 
generally distinguishable fiom each other by the number of Properties a customer can iiccess. The Agreements 
gmerally grant the customer the contr;rctual right-to-use designated space within tho Properties nn a continuous 
basis for up tn 14 ilays. The Agreements generally require nonrefundable upfront payments as well as annual 
payments. 

Existing customers may be offered an upgrade Agreement from time-to-time. The upgrade Agreement is 
currently clistinguishahle from a new Agreement that a customer would enter into by (1) increased length of 
consecutive stay by 50% L e .  up to 21 days); (2) ability to make earlier advance resewations: (3) discounts on 
rental units ;ind (4) ~ccess  to additional properties, which may include discounts at non-membership RV 
Propeities. Each upgrade requires an additional nonrefundable upfront payment. The Company ,nay finance 
the upfront nnnrefiindahle payment under any Agreement. 

Gooernment Stimulus 

I n  response t o  recent markct disruptions, legislators and financial regulators implemented a numher of 
mechanisms designed to add stahility to the financial markets, including the provision of direct and indirect 
assistance to distressed financial institutions, assistance by the banking authoiities in arranging ncquisitinns of 
weakened banks and hrokei--dealers, implementation ofprograms by the Federal Reselve to providc liquidity to 
the commercial paper markets and temporary prohibitions on short sales of ceitain financial institution 
securities. Numerous actions have been taken by the Federal Reserve, Congress, U S  Treasuly, the SEC 
and others to address the current liquidity and credit crisis that has followed the sub-prime crisis that 
commenced in 2007. These meaSui-es include, hut are not limited to various legislative and regulatoly effolts, 
homeowner relief that encourages loan restructuring and modification; the establishment of significant liquidity 
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and credit facilities for financial institutions and investment banks; the loweling of the federal funds rate, 
including two 50 basis point decreases in October of 2008: emergency action against short selling practices; a 
temporary guaranty program for money market funds; the establishment of a commei-cia1 paper funding facility 
to provide back-stop liquidity to conimercial paper issurrs: and coordinated international efforts to add,-ess 
illiquidity and other weaknesses in the banking sector. It is not clear at this time what impact these liquidity and 
funding initiatives of the Federal Keseive and other agencies that have been previously imnounced, and any 
additional programs that may he initiated in the future will have on thr financial markets, including thr extreme 
levels ofvolatility and limited credit availability currently beingexperienced, or on the U.S. banking and financial 
industries and the broader U.S. and global economies. The Company believes that programs intended to provide 
relief to current or potential site-built single fiiinily homeowners negatively impacts its business. 

Further, the overall effects of the lcgislative arid regulatoiy effniis on tlie financial markets is uncertain, and 
they may not have the intended stabilimtinn effects. Shoold these legislative or regulatoiy initiatives fail to stabilize 
and add liquidity to the financial markets, our busiriess, financial condition, results of operations and prospects 
could be materially and adversely affected. Even if legislative or rebWlatoly initiatives 01- other effoits successfully 
stabilize and add liquidity to the financial markets, we may need to modify our strategies, businesses or operations, 
and we may incur increaed capital requirements and constraints or additional costs in order to satisfy new 
regulatoiy requirenients or to compete in a changed business environment. It is unceiiain what effects recently 
enacted or future legislation or regulatoiy initiatives will have on us. Given the volatile nature of the current market 
disruption and the iiricertainties undarlying effnrts to mitigate ni- 1-evrrse the disruption, we may not timely 
anticipate or manage existing. new or additional iisks, contingencies or developments, including regulatov 
developments and trends in new pinducts and sewices, in the current or future environment. Our failure to do so 
could materially and adversely affect o'ur business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects. 

Insurance 

Approximately 70 Florida Properties suffered clamage from the f i w  hurricanes that struck the state during 
August and September 2004. As of'Januaiy 27, 2010, the Company estimiites its total claim to he appi-noaimately 
$21 .0 million. The Company has made clainrs fill- full iecovery of these amounts, subject tcl deductibles. Through 
December 31, 2009, the Cnmpany has mnde tntal expenditures of :ippioxim;itely $1S.0 million. The Coinpiiny 
has reserved approximately $2.0 million related t n  these expenditures (30.7 mil l ion i n  200.5 and $1.3 nrillion in 
2004). Approximately $6.9 million oftliese expenditures hiivc< bcwn c;rpitalizcd per th? Compm~y's capitalizatiorl 
policy through December 31, 2009. 

The Company has received proceeds from insurance carriers of approximately $10.7 million thmugh 
December31,2009. For the y e a  ended December 31.2009, approxirnately $1.6 million has been recognized as 
a gain on insurance recovery, which is net of approximately $0.3 million of legal fees and included in income from 
other investments, net. On June 22, 2007, the Company filed a lawsuit rrlated to some of the unpaid claims 
against certain insurance carriers and its insurance broker. See Note 18 in the Notes to Consolidated Financial 
Statements contained in this Form 10-K For further discussion of this lawsuit. 

Supplemental Property Diuclosui-e 

We provide the following disclosurcs with I-espcct to certain assets: - Tropical Pdms - On July 15, 2008, Tropical Palms, a 541-site resort Property located in Kissimmec, 
F loda ,  was leased to a new operator fix 12 years. The lease providrs for an initial fixed annual lease 
payment nf $1.6 million, which escalates at the greater of CPI or 3%. Percentage rent payments are 
provided for beginning in 2010, subject to gross revenue floors. The Company will match the lessee's 
capital investment in new rental units at the Property up to a nraxiinum of$1.5 million. The lessee will pay 
the Company additional rent q u a l  to 8% per year on the Company's capital investment. The lease 
income recognized duling the years ended December 31,2009 and 2008 was approximately $1.9 million 
and $0.9 million, respectively, and is included in income from other investments, net. During the years 
ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, the Company spent approximately $0.6 million and zero, respec- 
tively, to match the lessee's investment in new rental units at tlie Property. 
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Property Acquisitions, Joint Ventures and Dispositions 

The following chart lists the Properties or portfolios acquired, invested in, or sold since January 1, 2008. 

Total Sites as of January 1,2008 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Property or Portfolio (#  of Properties in parentheses): 

Grand? Creek(1). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Lake George Schroon Valley Resort(1) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Expnnsion Site Development and  other: 
Sites added (reconfigured) in 2008 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Sites added (reconfigtired) in 2009. . . . .  

Morgan Portfolio JV(5) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Round Tnp JV( 1) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Pine Haven JV( I ) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Caledonia( 1) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Casa Village(1) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Total Sites as of December 31, 2009. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Dispositions: 

Transaction Date Sites 

. . . . . .  112,779 

. . . . . . . . .  January 14,2008 l i 9  

. . . . . . . . .  Janwary 23, 2008 151 

. . . . . .  282 
(1) 

. . . . . . . . .  2008 (1,134) 

. . . . . . . . .  Februaiy 13, 2009 (319) 

. . . . . . . . .  February 13, 2009 (625) 

. . . . . . . . .  Apiil 17, 2009 (247) 

. . . . . . . . .  July 20, 2009 (490) 

. . . . . . . . .  110,575 
- 
~ 

~ 

Since Deceniher 31,2007, the gross investment in real estate increased from $2,396 million to $2,538 mil- 
lion as of Drcemher 31, 2009. due piirnady tn the ;iforementioned acyuisitinns and dispositions of Propelties 
during t l i ~  pc>rind. 

Markets 

Number of 
Properties 

Florida . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  81 
Arizona . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  32 
California. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  31 
Teras . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  8 
Colorado . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  i n  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  55 Otllrr. 

Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  217 
- 
- - 

Total Sites 

35,277 
12,377 
7,360 
5,143 
3,454 

19,619 

83,230 
- 
~ 

~ 

Peicenl of Total 
Percent of Pru erty oprra1ing 

42.4% 42.8% 

Total Sites Revmues(l) 

14.9% 13.0% 
8.8% 17.2% 
6.2% 2.2% 
'4.1% 4.8% 
- 23,670 - 20.0% 

- inn.no/o - ioo.no/u 
~ - 

(1) Pmpwts opcrating I'DVCIIIICIS fix this calculation excludes appmximiitely $75.3 million of Ixqwrty operating 
revenuc from our  light-to-use Properties. 

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates 

Our consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP, urhich require us 
to make estimates and judgments that ;affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses, 
and the related disclosures. We believe, that the following ciitical accounting policies, among others, affect our 
more significant judgments and estimates used in the preparation of our consolidated financial statements. 
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The FASB finalized the codification of CAAP effective for periods ending on or after September 1.5.2000. 
References to CAAP issued by the FASB are to the Codification. The Codification does not change how the 
Company accounts for its transactions or the nature of the related disclosures made. 

L o n g - L i d  Assets 

In accordance with the Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No.  141, "Business Comhinations" 
("SFAS No. 141'7, we allocated the purchase price of Properties we acquired on or piior to December 31, ZOOS 
to net tangible and identified intangible assets acquired based on their fair values. In making estimates of fair 
values for purposes of allocating purchase piice, we utilize a number of sources, including independent 
appraisals that nray be ;ivail;ible in connection with the ;wquisition or financing of the respective Property and 
other market data. We also consider information obtained about each Property a s  a result of OUT due diligence, 
marketing and leasing activities in estimating the fair value of the tangible and intangible assets acquired. 

For business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after January 1,2009, the purchase piice 
of Properties will be in accordance with the Codification Topic "Business Combinations" ("FASB ASC 805") 
(prior authoritative guidance: Statement of Financial Accounting Standad No. 141R, "Business Combina- 
tions"). FASR ASC 805 replaces SFAS No. 141 but rctains the fundamcntal requirements sct forth in 
SFAS No. 141 that the acquisition method of accounting (also known as the purchase method) be used for 
all business combinations and for iin acquirer to be identified for each business combination. FASB ASC SO5 
replaces, with limited exceptions as specified in the statement, the cost allocation process in SFAS No. 141 with a 
fair value based &cation process. 

We periodically evaluate our longlived assets, including our investments in redl estate, for impairment 
indicators. Our judgments regarding the existcncc of impairment indicators are based on factors such as 
operational perfmnrance, market crinditions rind Iq i I  factors Future events w u l d  occur which would cause us 
to  conclude that impairmcnt indicators mist and i in  inipil-incnt loss is warranted 

Red estate is recorded at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is computed on the straight-line 
basis over the estimated useful lives ofthe I '30-year cstimated lifc for buildings acqnired 
and structural and land imprtwemrnis ( ent), a ten-year estimated life for building 
upgl-adcs and a five-ycar cstimat.ted lit?: for fbrnitux:, fixtiirus and cquipinw~t. Ncw rental units arc generally 
deprcciated using a 20-year estimated life from each modrl year clown to a Sdvdge value of 40% of the orignal 
costs. Used rental units are generally depreciated b;ised on the estimated life uf the unit with no estimated 
salvage value. 

The values of above-and below-ninrkct leases are amortized and recorded as either an increase (in the case 
of below-market leases) or a decrease (:in the case of above-market leases) to rental income over the remaining 
term of the associated lease. The value associated with in-placc leases is amortized over the expected term, which 
includes an estimated probability of  lease renewal. Expenditures for ordinary maintenance and repairs are 
expensed to operations as incurred and significant renovations and improvcincnts that improve the asset and 
extend the useful life of the asset are capitalized over their estimatcd useful life. 

Recenue Recognition 

The Company accounts for leascs with its customers a s  operating leases. Rental income is recognized over 
the term of the respective lease or the length of a customer's stay, the majority of which are for a term of not 
g ra t e r  than one year. We will reserve for reccivables whcn we helieue the ultimate collection is less than 
probable. Our provision for uncollectible rents receivable was approximately $2.2 million and $1.5 million as of 
December 31, ZOO9 and December 31, 2005, respectively. 

The Company accounts for the s:rles of right-to-use contracts in accordance with the Codification Topic 
"Revenue Recognition" ("FASB ASC: 605)  (prior authoritative guidance: Staff Accounting Bulletin 104, 
"Revenue Recognition in Consolidated Financial Statements, Cori-ected). A right-to-use contract gives the 
customer the right to a set schedule of usage at a spccified group of properties. Customers may choose to 
upgrade their contracts to increase their usage and the number of properties they may access. A contract 
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requires the customer to make an upfront nonrefundable payment and annual payments duiing the term nf the 
contract. The stated term of a right-to-use contract is generally three years and the customer may renew his 
contract by continuing tu make the annual payments. The Company will recognize the upfront non-refundable 
payments over the estimated customer life which, hased on historical attrition rates, the Company has estimated 
to be from one to 31 years. For example, we have currently estimated that 7.9% ofcustoniers who purchase a new 
right-to-use contract will terminate their contract after five years. Therefore, the upfront nonrefundable 
payments from 7.9% of tlie contracts isold in any particular period are amortized nn  a straight-line h:uis over 
a peiiiid of five years as the estimated customer life for 7.9% of our customers who pu~-cl~;tse a contract is five 
years. The historical attrition rates for upgrade contracts are lower than for new contacts, and therefore, the 
nunrefuntlable upfront p;ryments for upgrade contracts are amortized at a different rate than for new contracts. 
The decision to recognize this revenue i n  accordance with FASB ASC 605 was inade after corresponding with 
the Office of the Chief Accountant at the SEC during Septemher and October of 2008. 

Right-to-use annual payments paid by customers under the terms of the right-to-use cmtracts are deferred 
and recognized ratably over the one-year period in which the sewices are provided. 

Income from home sales is recognized when the earnings process is complete. The earnings process is 
complete wlicn the home has been delivered, the poi-chaser has accepted the hnme and title has transferred. 

Allowoncc f u r  Drmbtfril Accounts 

nue from mir tenants is our principal source of revenue and is recognized nvci- the term of the 
respective lease 01- tlie length ofa  cust,Dmer's stay, the majority of which are for a term of not gi-eater than one 
year. We monitor the collectibility of accounts receivable from our tenants on an ongoing basis. We will resewe 
for receivables when we believe the ultimate collection is less than probable and maintain an nllowance for 
douhtf~il iiccomts. An allowance fur diiubtful accounts is recorded during each period and the associated had 
drht rvpriisc is iiiclridrtl in our  property opemting ;md m;rintenance expense in  our Crriisriliclated Stii tr inrnts of 
0per:itions. Tlie nllowance for doubtful accounts is netted against rent and other customer receivahlcs, net on 
our consolidated balance shoets. Our provision for uncollectible rents receivable was approximately $2.2 million 
and $1.5 millio3i as of Doccmhcr 31, i!009 and Deccniber 31, 2008, rcspectivoly. 

\Ve niay i r l so  finance t l i r  s;ik of homes to our  customers throiigh h n s  (referred to  i n  "CI1:ittcl Irlans"). Tllc 
valuation nf an allowance for douhtful iiccounts fnr the Chattel Loans is calculated hased mi delinqueiicy trends 
and a comp;irison of the outstanding principal balance of e :d i  note compared to the N.A.II.A. (National 
Automohile Deelers Association) value and the current market d u e  of the underlying manuf;ictur-ed home 
collateral. A had deht expense is recorded in home selling expense in our Consolidated Statements of 
Operations. The allowance for doubtful accounts is netted against the notes receivables on our consolidated 
balance sheets. The allowance for these Chattel Loans as of December 31,2009 and December 31.2008 was 
$0.3 inillion and $0.2 million, respectively. 

The Company may also finmce the nonrefundable upfront payments on sales of riglit-to-use contracts 
("Contracts Receivable"). Based upon historical collection rates and current economic trends, when a sale is 
fin;inced a reseive is cstahlislied for a portion of the Contracts Receiviihle halance estimated tu bc, uncollectible. 
The allowance and the rate at which the Company provides fnr losses on its Contracts Heceivahle could be 
increuad or decreased in tlir future based on the Company's actual collection experience. The allowance for 
tlrcse Contract Receivables as of December 31,2009 and December 31,2008 w3s $1.2 million and $0.3 million, 
wspectively. 

Variable Interest Entities 

In  June 2009, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 167, "Amendments to 
FASB Interpretation No. 46(R)," the current authoritative guidance of which is the Codification Topic 
"Consolidation" ("FASB ASC 8 1 0 ) .  FASB ASC 810 seeks to improve financial reporting by enterprises involved 
with variable interest entities. The Statement addresses the effects on ceitain provisions of FASB ASC 810-10- 
15, Variable Interest Entities, as a result of the elimination of the qualifflng special-purpose entity concept in 
FASB Statement No. 166, Accounting for Transfers of Financial Assets. It also discusses the application of 

36 



certain key pro~sions of FASB ASC 810-10-15, including those in which the accounting and disclosures under 
FASB ASC 810-10-15 do not always provide timely and useful information about an enterprise’s involvement in a 
variable interest entity This Statement is effective as of the beginning of each repoliing entity’s first annual 
reporting period that begins after November 15, 2009, for interim periods within that first annual reporting 
period, and for interim and annual reporting periods thereafter. 

The Company will re-evahiatc arid apply tlie provisions of FASB ASC 810-10-15 to existing entities ifcertain 
events occur which warrant re-evaluatinn (if such entities. In addition, the Company will apply the provisions of 
FASB ASC 810-10-15 to all new entities in the future. The Company also consolidates entities in which it has a 
controlling direct or indirect voting interest. The equity method of accounting is applied to entities in which the 
Company does not have a controlling direct or indirect voting interest, hut can exercise influcncc over the entity 
with respect to its operations and major decisinns. The cost method is applied when (i) the investnient is minimal 
(typically less than S%) and (ii) the Company’s investment is passive. 

Valuation of Financial In,stncmmts 

The valuation of financial instruments under the Codification Tnpic “Financial Instruments” (“FASB ASC 
825”) (prior authoritative guidance: Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 107, “Disclosures About 
Fair Value of Financial Instruments”) iind the Codification Topic “Derivatives and Fledgng” (“FASB ASC 8 1 5 )  
(prior authoritative guidance: Statcmenit of Fiiiancial Accounting Standards No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative 
Instruments and Hedging Activities”) requires us to make estimates and judgments that affect the fair value of 
the instruments. Where possible, we b,ue tlie fjirvalues of our finaiici;il instruments on listed market prices and 
third party quotes. Where these are not available, we base our estimates on other factors relevant to the finmicia1 
instrument. 

The Company currently does no t  hrlv11 any finmciiil instrunients that require the application of FASB ASC 
825 or FASH ASC 815. 

Stock-Rmed Conipensotion 

The Company adopted thc fiir-.due-basc.d tnethnd of :rcc:ounting frir sbare-based payments effective 
J;inuar). I, 2003 iising thr modified prt~spective Inetlirrtl ~l~:scril~cd in FASR StatPment N n  148, “Accounting for 
Stock-Based Compensation-.~~aiisiti(ii-, and Disclosure“. The Company adopted the Codification Topic “Stock 
Compensation’’ (“FASB ASC 718) (prior aiit1iorit;itive guidance: Statement of Financial Accounting Standards 
No. 123(R), “Share Based Payment”) o n  July 1, 2005, which did not have a matel-ial impact on the Company’s 
results of operations or its financial po:iition. The Company uses the Black-Scholes-Merton formula to estimate 
the value of stock options granted to employees, consultants and directors. 

Non-controlling Interests 

In December 2007, the FASB issued the Codification Topic “Crinsnlidation” (“FASA ASC 810”) (prior 
authoritative guidance: Statement nf Financial Accounting St:inda>-ds N o  160, “Non-controlling Interests in 
Consolidatcd Fimncial Statemrnts”), ,in ;tmt!ndrnent of Accnuiiting Research Bulletin Nu. S I .  FASB ASC 810 
seeks to improve uniformity and transparency in reporting of the net income attlibutable to non-controlling 
interests in the consolidated financial rtatements of tlre reporting entity The statement rrquires, among other 
provisions, the disclosure, clear labeling and prescntation of non-controlling interests in the Consolidated 
Halancc Sheets and Consolidated Statcments nf Operatinns. Per FASH ASC 810, a non-cnntrolling interest is the 
portion of equity (net assets) in a suhsidiaiy not attributable, directly nr indirectly, to a parent. The ownership 
interests in the subsidiary that are held by owners other than the parent are non-controlling interests. Under 
FASR A X  810, such non-contr-olling interests are reported on the consolidated balance sheets within equity, 
separately from the Company’s equity However, secuiities that are redeemable for cash or other assets at the 
nption of the holder, not solely within the control of the issuer, must be classified outside of permanent equity. 
This would result in ceiiain outside ownership interests being included as redeemable non-controlling interests 
outside of permanent equity in the consolidated balance sheets. The Company makes this determination based 
on terms in applicable agreements, specifically in relation to redemption provisions. Additionally, with respect to 
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non-controlling interests for which the Company has a choice to settle the contract by deliveiy ofits own shares, 
the Company considered the guidance in the Codification Topic "Derivatives and Hedging - Contracts in 
Entity's Own Equity'' ("FASB ASC 815-40) (piior authoritative guidance: EITF 00.19 "Accounting for 
Derivative Financial Instruments Indsaed to, and Potentially Settled in, a Company's Owm Stock) to evaluate 
whether the Company controls the actions or events necessary to issue the maximum number of shares that 
could be required to be ilelivererl nnder share settlement of the contract. 

In accordance with FASB ASC 810, effective Januaiy 1, 2009, the Company, for all periods presented, has 
reclassified the non-controlling interast for Common OP Units from the mezzanine sixtion under Total 
Liabilities to the Equity section of the consolidated balance sheets. The caption Common OP Units on the 
consolidated balance sheets also includes 50.5 million of private REIT Siibsidianes prcferred stock. Rased on 
the Company's analysis, Perpetnal Preferred OP Units will remain in the mezzanine section. The presentation of 
income allocated to Coninion OP  Units and Perpetual Preferred OF Units on the consolidated statements of 
operations has been moved to  the hottom of the statement prior to Net income availahlc to  Common Shares. 

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements 

We do not have any off-balance sbcet arrangements with any miconsolidated invcstments or joint vonturcs 
that we believe have or are reasonably likely to have a material effect on our financial condition, results of 
operations, liqiiidity or capital rcsources. 

R e c m t  Accounting Pronouncements 

I n  May 2009, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 165, "Subsequent 
Events," the current authoritative guidance ofwhich is the Codification Sub-Topic "Subsequent Events" ("FASR 
ASC 8S5-10). FASR ASC: R55-I0 seek:; to establish general standards of accounting for and disclostire of events 
that occur aftcx thc I,alanc<: s h w t  date, but hefore financial statements arc issocd or arc ;w&l,li. to IT issiir:d 
The Statement sets forth the pmiwl m d  circumstances after the halance sheet date (litring wliidi maii;igenient of 
ii reporting cntity should evalnate events or transactions that may occur for potontial rccngnition or disclosure in 
the financial st:itements. The Statement introduces the concept of financial statenicnts hcing mailable to be 
issued I t  q i u r e s  the disclosure of the date through which an entity has evaluated subsctprint rvents and the 
hacis for that date, that is, wlietlier that date represents the date t l v  financial stiitcments wcw issusd or were 
availiihle to h r  issued. T t r  Statemcrit applies to interim or annual fin;mcial peiiods < d i n g  aftw June  15, 2009. 
The adoption of FASB ASC 855-10 has had no material effect on the Company's financial statements. Our  
inanagement evaluated for subsequent events through the time of our filing on February 25, 2010. 
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Results of Operations 

Comparison of Year Ended December 31,2009 to Year Ended December 31, 2008 

The following table summarizes #certain financial and statisticd data for the Property Operations for all 
Propelties owned and operated for the same period in hoth years ("Core Portfolio") and the Total Portfolio for 
th? years ended December 31 ,  2009 and 2008 (amounts i n  thousands). The Cnre Portfolio may change fi-om 
time-to-time depending on acquisition:;, dispositions and significant transactions or unique situations. The Core 
Portfolio in this comparison of the year ended December 31,2009 to December 31,2008 includes all Properties 
acquired on or prior to December 31, 2007 and which \vcre owned and opt:rated by the Company duiing the 
year ended December 31, 2009. 

core PUri fDl i"  Total Portfolio 

Community base rental 

Hesort base rental 

Right-to-use annual 

Right-to-use contracts 

Right-to-use contracts, 

income . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

income . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

payments. . . . . . . . . . . .  

current peiiod, gross , , , 

deferred. net of prior 
perind amortization . . . .  

Utility ;mil othm iricirrnc . . 

Property opeiating 

Property operxting and 
revenues . . . . . . . . . .  

maintenaiice . . . . . . . .  
Real estate taxes . . . . . . . .  
Sales and marketing, 

gross . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Sales and marketing. 

deferred commissions, 
net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Property management . . . .  

expenses . . . . . . . . . .  

operations . . . . . . . . . . .  

Property operating 

Income from propeity 

5253,379 $245,833 

105,601 104,304 

_. - 

~ ~ 

41.422 38.92 I 
~~ 

400,402 389,058 

130.4i3 131,R21 
28,012 2T.963 

- - 

20,095 20,999 -- 

178,580 180,783 
~~ 

S 7,546 

1.297 

- 

~ 

2.50 I 

11.344 

(1.347) 
19 

~ 

- 

(904) - 

(2,203) 

s13.547 

~ 

___ 
~ 

3.1% $253,379 S245,833 $ 7,546 

12% 124,822 111,876 12,946 

~ 50,765 19,667 31,098 

~ 21,526 10,951 10,575 

- (IH,HR2) (10,611) 8,271 
6.4% 47.685 41,633 6.052 - _ _ _ _ _ _ _  

2.9% 479,295 419,349 59,946 

i l . O ) %  IR0.870 152,363 28.507 
0.2% 3l.Gi4 29,457 2.217 

13,536 7,116 6,420 

- (5,729) (3,644) (2,085) 
(4.31% 33,383 25,451 7,932 

j 1 . m  253,734 210.743 42.9~1 - - - _ _ _  

6.5% $225,561 S208.606 $16,955 

3.1% 

11.G% 

158.1% 

96.6% 

77.9% 
14.5% - 

14.3% 

18.7% 
i . S %  

90.2% 

(57.2%) 
31.2% - 

20.4% - 

8.1% - - 

Property Operating Reaenues 

The 2.9% increase in thc Core I'oitfolio property operating revenues reflects (i) a 3.3% increase in rates for 
our community base rental income offset by a 0.2% decrease in occupancy, (ii) a 1.2% increase in revenues for 
our core resort base income comprised! of an increase of 5.5% in annual revenues, offset by a 8.4% decrease in 
seasonal resort revenue and a 2.7% decrease in transient revenue, and (iii) an increase of 6.4% in core utility and 
other income primarily due to increased pass-throughs at certain Properties. The Total Portfolio property 
operating revenues increase of 14.34, is primarily due to the consolidation of the right-to-use Properties 
beginning August 14, 2008 as a resrilt of the PA Ti-ansaction. The right-to-use annual payments represent the 
annual payments earned on right-to-use contracts acquired in the PA Transaction or sold since the PA 
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Transaction on August 14, 2008. The riglit-to-use contracts current peiiod, gross represents all right-to-use 
contract sales during the year. The right-to-use contracts, deferred represents the deferral of current period sales 
into future periods, offset by the amortization ofrevenue deferred in priorperiods. See Note 2 (11) in the Notes to 
Consolidated Financial Statements contained in this Form 10-K. 

Property Operating Expenses 

The 1.2% decrease in property (operating expenses in the Core Portfbliu reflects ii 1.0% decrease in 
propcxty operating and maintenance expenses and a 4.3% decrease in property management expenses. Our 
Total Portfolio property operating and maintenance expenses and real estate tmes increased due to the 
consolidation of the right-tu-use Properties beginning August 14, 2008 as a result of the PA Ti-ansaction. Total 
l'ortfdio sales and marketing expense ;ire all related to the costs incurred for the sale of light-to-use contracts. 
Sales and niiirketing, deferred commis!,ions, net represents commissions on riglit-to-use contract SIIIPS drferred 
until future periods to match the deferral of the riglit-to-use contract sales, offset by the nmorti7iition of prior 
period commission. Total Portfolio propel-ty management expenses primarily incrrased doe to the PA 
Transaction 

Home Sales Operations 

The following table summarizes certain financial and statistical d;it;i for the Homr S d r s  Operations for the 
years ended December 31, 2009 and :a008 (amounts in thousands, except sales volumes). 

2009 20011 Variance % Change _ _ ~ _ _ _  
Gmss revenues from new home sales $ 3,397 $ 19,013 5(15,616) (82.1)% 
Cost of new lierne sales . . . . . . . . . . . . .  (4,681) (21,219) 16,538 '77.9% 

C i m s  I o s c  from ncw home sales.  . . . . . . . . . . . . .  (1,284) (2,206) 922. 41.8% 
nues from used horrie sales . . . . . . . . .  3,739 2,832 907 :32.0% 

Cost of rised home salrs. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  (2,790) (2,850) 60 2.1% 

~ ~ 

~~ 

6 1 - r ) ~ ~  p i i f i t  (loss) from used home sales . . . . . . .  949 (18) 967 5,372.2% 
Hrokel-c>d res:iIe revenues, net . . . . . .  758 1.094 (3:3F) [:XI. 7) '% 
l lome selling expenses. . . . . .  (2,383) (5,7i6) 3,393 58.7% 

2,745 I, 197 1,548 129.3% _ _ ~ _ _ _ _  Ancillary services revenues, net 

Income (loss) from home sales operations and 
other . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 785 $ (5,709) '6 6,494 113.8% _ _ ~ _ _ _ _ _  _ _ ~ - _ _ _  

Home snles volumes: 
New home sales(1). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  113 :378 (265) (70.1)% 

Brokered home resales. 612 786 (174) (22.1%) 
Used home sales(2) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  747 407 340 K3.5% 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

(1) Inclorles third party home sales of 28 and 71 for the years ended Decernher 31,2009 and 2008, rcspectively. 
(2) Includes third party home sales of seven and one for the years ended Decernher 31, 2009 and 2008, 

xspectively. 

Income &om home sales operations increased primarily as a result of 1mve1 home selling expw~scs and 
increased ancillaiy services revenues, net. Gross loss from new home sales was offset by profit from used home 
sales and resales. Gross loss from new home sales includes an increase in inventoly rescive of approximately 
$0.9 million. The increase in used home sales profit and volumes is primalily due to sales of resoi-t cottages at the 
right-to-use Properties. Home selling expenses for 2009 have decreased comparcd to 2008 as a result of lower 
new home sales volumes and decresse,d advertising costs. Ancillary services revenues, net, increased primarily 
due to the inclusion of the ancillaiy acl.i\ities of the right-to-use Pi-operties consolidated by the Company as of 
August 14, 2008. 
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Rental Operations 

The following table summarizes certain financial and statistical data for manufactured home Rental 
Operations for the ycars ended December 31, 2009 and 2008 (dollars in thousands). Except as othewise 
noted, the amounts below are included in Ancillar). seivices revenue, net, in the Home Sales Operations table in 
previous section. 

2009 2WX Variance ?a Change ~ _ _ _ _ _ _  
Manufactured homes: 
New Home . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 6,570 $ 3,870 $2,700 69.8% 
Used Home. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  9,187 7,100 2,087 29.4% 

Rental operations revenue(1). . . .  15,757 10,970 4,787 43.6% 
Pmperty operating and maintenmce . . . . . . . . . . . . .  2,036 2,022 14 0.7% 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  I76 127 49 - 38.6% 

Rental operations expenses. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  2,212 2,149 63 2.9% 
Income from rental operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  13,545 8,821 4,724 53.6% 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  (2,361) (1,222) (1,139) (93.2)% 

depreciation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  S11,IH.l $ 7,599 $ 3,585 47.2% 

Number of occupied rentals ~ new, end of period . . 595 433 162 37.4% 
Number of occupied rentals -used, end of period. . 1,158 799 359 44.9% 

~ ~ _ _ _ _  - 

~~- Real estate taxes 

~~~ 

Depreciation 

Income from rental operations, net of 
~~~ - 
~~~ - 

(I) Apprnxiinately S l l .9  mi l l i on  and W4 million a s  uf Dwxinber 3 1 ,  2009 aird 2008, rr:spectivcl>, art! inchrt1r:d 
in Community base rental income in the l’ropei-ty Operations t;rble. 

The increase in income from rrntiil operations aind depreciation expense is primarily due to thc increase in 
the number of occupied rentals. 

Other Income and Expenses 

The following table summarizes <:Nther income and expenses f m  tbe yeas  ended December 31, 2009 and 
2008 (amounts in thousands). 

2009 2008 - Variance % Change 

Interest income. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 5,119 8: 3,095 $2,024 65.4% 
Income from other investments, inet . . . . . . . . . .  8.168 17,006 (8,838) (sz.o)% 
General and administrative . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  (22,279) (20,617) (1,662) @.I)% 
Rent mntrul initiatives. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  (456) 70.7% 
Interest and related amortization . . . . . . . . . . . . .  (98,311) (99.430) 1,119 1.1% 
Depreciation on corporate assets . . . . . . . . . . . . .  (1.039) (390) (649) (166.4)% 
Depreciation on real estate and other costs . . . . .  (69,049) (66,193) (2,856) (4.3)% 

Total other expenses, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $(177,847) 8:(168,084) $(‘3,7fi3) (5.8)% 
~ 

~ 

Interest income is higher primarily due to interest incomr on Contracts Receivable purchased on August 14, 
2008 in the PA Transaction or originated after the PA Trdnsaction. Incorne from other investments, net, 
decreased primalily due to lower Privileged Access lease income of $14.9 million received during 2008 offset by 
the following incremental increases in 2009: $1.1 million of insurance proceeds, $1.1 million in Tropical Palms 
lease piyments, Caledonia sale and Caledonia lease income of $1.0 million, and net RPI and TTMSI income of 
51.9 million. General and administrative expense increased primalily due to higher payroll, professional fees, 
and rent and utilities. General and administrative in 2009 includes approximately $0.4 million of costs related to 
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transactions required to be expensed. in accordance with FASB ASC 805. Prior to 2009, such costs were 
capitalized in accordance with SFAS IN". 141. 

The Company has determined that certain depreciable assets acquired during years prior to 2009 were 
inadvertently omitted from prior year depreciation expense calculations. Since the total ammints involved were 
immateiial to the Company's financial position and results of operations, the Compmy has decided to record 
additinnal depreciation expense in 2009 to reflect this adjiistnient. As a result, the year ended December 31, 
2009 includes approximately $1.8 million of prior period depreciation expense. 

Equity  in Income of Unconsolidated jo in t  Veittures 

For the year ended December 31, 2009, equity in income nf unconsolidated joint ventures decreased 
$0.9 niillion primalily due to a $1.1 million gain in 2009 on the sale of our 25% interest i n  huo Diversified 
Portfnlio joint ventures, offset by a $0.6 million gain in 2008 on the payoff of our share of seller financing in 
excess of hasis on one Lakeshore investment, and a gain of $1.6 million in 2008 nn  tlie salc of our interest in four 
Murgan joint venture Properties in 2008. 

Compurison of Year Ended December 31,2008 to Year Ended December 31, 2007 

The followirig table sunrmariws (certain financial and statistical data for the Property Operations fur all 
Properties owned and operated for the! same period in both years ("Core Portfolio") and the Total Portfolio for 
the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 (amounts in thousands). The Core l'ortfolio ,nay change from 
time-to-timc dqxnding on acquisitiiinn, dispositiniis and significant transactions or oniquc situations. The C h r e  
Portfnlin in this cornpiirison nf thc year cntled December 31, 2008 to 11 nibcr 31, 200T inclurlcs all Pi-npei-tics 
acquired n n  n r  prior to December 31, 2006 and which were owned and operated by thc Crimpany doring thc 
 yea^ ended December 31, 2008. 

Core Purtfolio Told P,,.tf"liO 
herensel 0 

2005 2001 (Deerenre) Change 2008 ZOO7 (Dserciw) Change -- ~ - 
Commrn~ity base rcntd inciime . . . S245.833 S236,933 $ 8,900 3.8% S245,833 5236,933 S 8,900 3.8% 
Resort base rental income 98,884 95,895 2,989 3.1% 111,576 102,372 9,504 9.3% 
Right-to-use annual payments . . . . __ - - - 39,667 - 19,667 100.0% 
Right-to-use contracts current 

10,951 100.0% 
Right-to-use contracts, deferred, 

~ period, gmss . . . . . . - - - 10,951 - 

net of prior p e d  
amortization . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . - - ~ ~ (10,611j - (10,611) (100.0)% 

Utility and other income. . . . . . . . 3f1.389 36,350 2,009 5.5% 41,633 36,849 4,784 13.0% 

l'rtiperty oprrating revenues . . . 383,106 369,208 13,898 3.8% 419.349 376,154 43.195 11.5% 
Property npcrating and 

inaintenance. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 128,738 123.656 5,082 4.1% 152,363 12i.342 25,021 19.15% 
Real estate taxes. . . . . . . . . . . . . . 27,434 27,046 388 1.4% 29.157 27,429 2,028 7.4% 

Sales and marketing, deferred 
commissions. net. . . . . , . . . . . . - - - - (3,644) - (3,644) (100.01% 

Property management. . . . . . . . . . 20,293 18,147 2,146 11.8% 25,451 18,385 7,066 38.4% 

Property operating expenses . . . 176,465 168,849 7,616 4.5% 210,743 173,156 37,587 21.7% 

Income from property operations. . $206,641 S200,359 S 6,282 &% $208,606 S202,998 $ 5,608 2.8% 

Sales and marketing. gross . . . . . , ~ - - - 7,116 - 7,116 100.0% 

- ~~ ~ ~ 

__ ~~ __ - 
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Property Operating Revenues 

The 3.8% increase in the Core Portfolio pmpeity operating revenues reflects (i) a 3.7% increase in rates for 
our community base rental income combined with a 0.1% increase in occupancy, (ii) a 3.1% increase in revenues 
for our resort base income comprised ofan increase of F.9% in annual and 2.8% in seasonal resort revenue, offset 
by a decrease of 8.5% in transient reveriue, and (iii) an increase of 5.5% in utility and other income primarily due 
to increased pass-throughs at certain Properties. The Total Portfolio Imperty operating revenues increase of 
11.5% was piimarily due to the consolidation of the Iiglit-ti>-use Properties beginning August 14, 2008 as a result 
of the PATransaction. The light-to-use nriiiual payments represent the annual payments earned on right-to-use 
contracts acquired in the PATransaction or sold since the PATransaction on August 14,2008. The right-to-use 
contracts current period, gross repressrnts all riglit-to-use contract sales since the PA Transaction. The right- 
to-use contracts, deferred represents t:he deferral of current period sales into future peiiods. See Note 2 (n) in 
the Notes to Consolidated Financial S,tatements contained in this Form 10-K. 

Property Operating Expemeu 

The 4.5% increase in proprity operating expenses in the Core Portfolio roflects a 4.1% increase in propel-ty 
operating and maintenance expenses and a 11.8% increase in property iiianagement expenses. The Core 
property operating and maintenance expense increase is piimarily due to payroll and utility expenses. Our Total 
Portfolio property operating and maintenance expenses increased by 21.7% due to the consolidation of the right- 
to-use Properties beginning August 14,2008 as a result ofthe PATransaction. Total Portfolio sales and marketing 
expense, including commissions, are all related to the costs incurred for the sale of light-to-use contracts since 
the PATransaction on August 14,2008 Totd Portfolio property rnaiiagement expenses primalily increased due 
to the PA Transaction and the increase in computer software costs. The sales and marketing, deferred 
commissions, net represents commissioiis 011 right-to-use contract sales deferred until future periods to match 
the deferral of the riglit-to-use contract iales. 

Home Sales Operations 

The following table summarizes certain finxncial and statistical dxta foi- the Home Sales Operations for the 
ywrs ended Ikcrmhrr  :31, 2008 i i i i d  !I007 (:tinmints i n  tImis:mA, except s;ilc-s volumes). 

20011 2007 \%lri;mce % Change _ _ _ _ _ ~  
Gross revenues from new homo sales. . . . . . . . .  $ 19,013 $ 31,116 $(12,103) (38.91% 
Cost of new home sales . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  (21,219) (28,067) 6,848 (24.4)% 

Gross (loss) profit from new home sales. . . . . . .  (2,206) 3,049 (5,255) (172.41% 
--- ~ 

Gross revenues from used borne sales . . . . . . . .  2,832 2,217 615 27.7% 
Cost of used home sales. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  (2,646) (2,850) (204) - (7.71% 

Gross loss from used home saks (18) (429) 411 95.8% 
Rrokered resale revenues, net . , , 1,094 1,528 (434) (28.4j% 
Home selling expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  (5,776) (7, 23.5% 
Ancillaly semices revenues, net . . . .  2,436 (1,239) (50.9)% 

~~ ~ 

Loss from home sales operatioms and other . . . .  5 (5,709) S (971) S (4,738) (48X.0)% ~~- ~ ~ _ _  __ 
Home sales volumes: 

New home sales(1) '378 ,440 (62) (14.11% 

Arokered home res 786 967 (181) (18.7%) 
Used home sales(2) . . . . .  407 296 111 37.5% 

(1) Includes third party home sales of 71 and 45 for the years ended December 31,2008 and 2007, respectively. 
(2) Includes third party home sales (of one and nine for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007, 

respectively. 
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Loss from hoke  sales operations increased as a result of lower new and brokered resale volumes, lower 
gmss profits per home sold and the wnte-off of inventory home rebate receivable. The decrease in home selling 
expenses is primarily due to lower sdes volumes and deci-eased advertising costs. During the year ended 
Deceniber31,2008, the Company reclassified all ofits new and used manufactured home inventoly to Buildings 
and other depreciable property. The homes were reclassified as the Company expects to rent the homes due to 
tlie decline in home sales. Ancillaiy seivice revenues, net decreased by 50.9% priniaiily due to $1.2 niillion of 
dcpreciation on new and used rental homes. 

Rental Operations 

Duiiiig the year ended December 31, 2008, $57.8 million of manufactured hame inventoiy, including 
reseives of approximately $0.8 million, was reclassified to Buildings and other depreciable propeiiy 011 our 
Consolidated Balance Sheets. Thr iiiventoly moved included all new and used manufactured home iwentoiy. 
which the Company is primdli~y rentin,g The following table summarizes cei-taiii financial and statistical data for 
nianufactured home Rental Operations for the years ended December 31,2008 and 2007 (dollars i n  thousands). 
Except as othenvise noted. the amounts below are included in Ancillalv services revenue. net in the Home Sales 
Operations table in previous section. 

2008 
~ 

Marinfactored homes: 
New Home Revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 3,870 
Usad Hnnie Rcvenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  7,100 

~ 

Rental operations revenue(1) . . . .  
I'ropeity operating and maintenancr 
n c i  (:StcltP tgXes . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

~ 

K r n t a l  iiperations expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  2,149 
Incnine froni rental operations. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  8,821 

Depreciiitinn . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  (1.222) 

Income fioni rcntal opcrations, iict of 
- 

depreciation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  9; 7,599 

433 
799 

~ 

~ 

Numher of occupied rentals -new, end of period 
Number of occupied rentals ~ used, end of period. . .  

2007 
~ 

$1,596 
~ 5,446 

7,042 
1,ms 

67 

1,172 
3,8iO 

~ 

- 
~ 

__ $5,870 

191 
716 

~ 

Vnriilnee ~ 

$ 2,274 

3,928 
917 
60 

~ 1,654 

~ 

977 
2,Y.jl 

~ (1,222) 

__ $ 1,729 

242 
83 

~ 

142.5% 
~ ,'30.4% 

55.8% 
83.0% 

~ %.6% 

8:3.4% 
50.3% 

~ (ioo.n)% 

~ 29.5% 

126.7% 
11.6% 

~ 

(1) Approximately $8.4 million and $5.4 million as ofDecember 31,2008 and 2007, respectively, are included in 
Community base rental income in the Property Operations table. 

The increase in rental operations revenue and expenses is primaiily due to the incrcase in the number of 
occupied rentals. The increase in depri:ciation is due to the depreciation of the rental units staiiing during 2008 
after being reclassified to Buildings and other depreciable property. 
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Other Income and Epenses  

The following table summarizes nther income and expenses for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 
2007 (amounts in thousands). 

2008 e007 varim,ce 90 Cl,ange 

9; 3,095 5 1,732 $ 1,363 78.7% 
investments, net . . . . . . . . . .  17,006 22,476 (5,470) (24.3)% 

General and administrative . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  (20,617) (15,591) (5,026) (32.2)% 
Rent control initiatives. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  (2,657) 1,102 41.5% 
lnterest and related amoitiz;ition . . . . . . . . . . . . .  (99,430) (103,070) 3,640 3.5% 
Depreciation on corporate assets . . . . . . . . . . . . .  (390) (437) 47 10.8% 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Depreciation on real estate :isseti . . . . . . . . . . . .  (66,193) (63,554) (2,639) - (4.2)% 

Total other expenses, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $(168,084) $(161,101) $(G,983) - (4.3)% __ 
Interest income is higher primalily due to interest income on Contracts Receivable purchascd in the PA 

Transaction. Income from other inver,tments, net decreased due to the reduction in Piivileged Access lease 
payments of $4.6 million and a 50.9 million write off of a Privileged Access restatement bonus. General and 
administrative expense increased due to higher compensation cost increases, including the Long-term Inventive 
Plan, of 53.8 inillion and increiiscd proibssional fees nf 50.8 million. Rent control initiatives decreased as a result 
of the refunding of $0.4 million in legal fees from 21st Mortgage Corporation suit in 2008 as well as a decrease in 
trial activity compared to 2007 (see Note 18 i n  the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements cont;lined in this 
Form 10-K). Interest and related amortization decreased due to lower interest rates and amounts outstanding. 
Depreciation on real estate assets includes $0.8 million of unamwtized  le;^ costs exprnsed related to the 
termination of the l'rivileged Accc.ss I P ~ S C S .  

Equity in Income of Unconsolidnted Joint Ventures 

For the ycar cndcd Dc,ccmbm 31, 2008, uquity in incomo of ,incnnsolid;itcd joint venturcs increased 
$1.1 millinn piimarily due to a $0.6 million gain nri  tlic p y f f  nf on,- s11at-e of seller financing in excess nf nur basis 
on one Lakcshrrrc investment, arid a g'liii nf $1.6 niillinn mi the salv nf m1r interest in four Morgan joint venture 
Properties. The increase was offset by distiibutions rcceivrd in 2007 from three joint venttires relating to debt 
financings hy the joint ventures. These distributions cxceedcd the Company's basis and were included in income 
from unconsolidated joint ventures in 2007. In addition, 2007 included activity at nine former joint ventures, 
which have been purchased by the Company. 

Liquidity a n d  Capital Resources 

Liquidity 

As of December 31,200'3, the Company liad $145.1 millinn in cash and cash equivalents primalily held in 
tre;rsuly resewe accounts, and $370.0 million availd~le 011 its l in rs  rrf  crrdit. The increase in tlie cash b;ilance 
during the year ended December 31,28009 is primaiily due to $146.4 million of net proceeds generated from the 
sale of 4.6 million shares of our common stock in a public offering that closed on June 29, 2009. The Company 
cxpects to nieet its short-term liquidity requirements, including its distributions, gene~-ally through its working 
capital, net cash provided by operstting actiuities, proceeds frwn the sale of Properties and availability under the 
existing lines of credit. The Company expects t n  meet certain long-term liquidity requirements such as 
scheduled debt maturities, property acquisitions and capital improvements by use of its current cash balance, 
long-term collateralized and uncollateralized borro\vings including borrowings under its existing lines of credit 
and the issuance of debt securities o.r additional equity securities in the Company, in addition to net cash 
provided by operating activities. During 2009 and 2008, we received financing proceeds from Fannie Mae 
secured by mortgages on individual manufactured home Properties. The terms of the Fannie Mae financings 
were relatively attractive as compw-ed to other potential lenders. If financing proceeds are no longer available 
from Fannie Mae for any reason or if Fannie Mae terms are no longer attractive, it may adversely affect cash flow 
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and our ability to seMce debt and make distributions to stockholders. The Company has approximately 
$183 million of scheduled debt maturhes in 2010 (excluding scheduled principal payments on debt matuiing in 
2011 and beyond). The Company expects to satisfy its 2010 matuiities with its existing cash balance and 
approximately 564.2 million of new financing proceeds we expect to receive in 2010. 

Thr tahlr below summaiizes cash, flow activity for the years ended I>ecember 31, 2009, 200s and 2007 
(amounts in thousands). 

For the Twelve hlontlis Ended 
December 31, 

2009 2008 2007 _ _ ~ ~  
Net cash pi-iivided by operating activities. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Net cash used in investing activities. . , . . , . , . , . . . . . . . . . . . 
Net cash used in financing activities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

$150.389 
(34,756) 
(15,817) 

$113,890 %122,TYl 
(33,104) (25,604) 
(41,259) (93,007) _ _ _ _  

Net irici-ease in cash and cash equivalents . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 99,816 $ 39,527 $ 4,180 
~~ 

~~ 

Operating Activities 

Net cash provlded by operating activities increased $36.5 million fvr the year ended December 31, 2009 
from $1 13.9 million for the yea ended December 31,2008. The increase in 2009 is primarily due to incwasrs in 
inconir from property opcrations, income from liome sales operations and increases in our deferred revenue 
frnm the sale of right-to-use contracts. Net cash provided by operating activities decreased 58.9 million frir the 
year ended December 31, 2008 from $122.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2007. This decrease 
reflects increases in property operating income and interest income, vffset by sin increase in depreciation 
y m i s e ,  dccrcases i n  incnmc: fmm nt t ie r  investments, ni-t, and liome sales. 

Investing Activities 

Net cash used in investing activities reflects the impact of tlie following investiiig activities: 

Acquisitions 

2009 Acquisitions 

On Februar). 13, 2009, the Cnmpmy acquired the remaining 75% interests in three Diversified Portfolio 
joint ventures known as (i) Robin Hill, a 270-site property in Lenhartsville, Pennsylvania, (ii) Sun Valley, a 
265-site property in Brownsville, Pennsylvania, and (iii) Plymouth Rock, a 609-site property in Elkhart Lake, 
IVisconsin. The gross purchase price was appIOlimdtely 519.2 million, and we assunrcd mortgage loans of 
appi-nximately $12.9 million with a value of approximately $11.9 million and a weighted average intcrest rate of 
6% per annum 

O n  August 31, 2009, the Compan:y acquired an intenlet and mediu based advertising business located in 
Orlando, Florida for approximately $3,7 million. 

2009 Acqui.sitions 

Iloring tlie year ended Decemhrr 31, 2008, we acquired two Pioperties (see Note 5 in tlie Notes to 
Consolidated Financial Statements contained in this Form 10-K). The combined investment in red estate for the 
acquisitions and investments was approximately 53.9 million and was funded with withdrawals of 52.1 million 
from OUT tax-deferred exchange account and borrowings from OUT lines of credit. The Company also acquired 
substantially all of the assets and certain liabilities of Privileged Access for an unsecured note payable of 
$2.0 million. Prior tn the purchase, Plivileged Access had a 12-year lease with the Company for 82 Properties 
that terminated upon closing. The $2.0 million unsecured note payable accrued interest at 10% per annum and 
was paid off December 17, 2009. 
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2007 ~ ~ ~ ~ i ~ i t i ~ ~  

During the year ended December 31,2007, we acquired three Properties and acquired the remaining 75% 
interest in two joint ventures (see Note 5 in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements contained in this 
Form 10-K). The combined irrvestmeint in real estate for the acquisitions and investments was approximately 
$36.1 million and was funded with new financing of $8.7 million, withdrawals of $18.1 million from our t3x- 
deferred exchange account, and borro~ings from oiii lines of credit. 

Pispositions 

O n  Febnvaly 13,2009, the Coinp;my sold its 25% interest in t w r i  Diversified Portfolio joint ventures known 
as (i) Pine Haven, a 625-site property in Ocean Vieiv, New Jersey and (ii) Hound Top, a 319-site property in 
Gettysburg, Pennsylvania. A gain on sale of approximately $1.1 inillion was recognized during the quarter ended 
March 31, 2009 and is included in Equity in income of unconsolidated joint ventures. 

On April 17, 2009, we sold Cakdonia, a 247-site Property i n  Caledonia, Wisconsin, for proceeds of 
approximately $2.2 million. Thc Company rccognizcd a gain on sale of approximately $0.8 million which is 
included in Income from other investments, net. In addition, we received apprnximately $0.3 million of deferred 
rent due fmm the previous tenant. 

On July 20, 2009, we sold Casa Villago, a 490-site Property in Billings, Montana for a stated purchase price 
of approximately $12.4 million. The huye umed $10.6 million of mortgage debt that had a stated interest rate 
of 6.02% and was schedule to mature in 2013. The Company recognized a gain on the sale of approximately 
$5.1 million. Cash prnceeds from the sale, net of closing costs were approximately $1.1 million. 

Duiing thc year ended Ikc:c~nbei 3 1 ,  2008, t l i r  Cmiipxny sold its 25% interest i n  the f[,llawingpn)pertics, 
Newpoint in New Point, Virginia, \‘irginia Park i n  Old Odyarrl Be;ich, Maine. Club Naples in Naples, Florida, 
and GwynnS Island in G\*ynn, Virginia, fool proprrties h14d in the Morgali Portfolio, for approximately 
$2.1 million. A gain nn sal15 (if approxiniiitcly $1.6 million was rccognizd The Company also rcccived 
appmrimately $0.3 million of c~scl-mwd funds I-el;ited t o  t l r  purchae nf fiwr MorSun Properties i n  200.5. 

During ycar ended l>ec:omber 31, 200T, we soli! three l’rnperties for ;lpprOXimately $23.7 nrillion. The 
Company recognized a gain of approximately $12.1 million. In order to partially defer the taxable gain on the 
sales, the sales proceeds, net of an eligihle distribution of $2.4 million, were deposited in il tax-deferred exchange 
account. The proceeds from the sales ‘were subsequently used in the like-!and acquisitions of four Properties. 

We currently have one all-age Property, known as Creekside, held for disposition On December 29,2009, a 
deed-in-lieu of foreclosure agreement, signed by the Company was sent to the loan semicer regarding our 
nonrecourse mortgage loan of approximately $3.6 million secured by Creekside. See Note 18 in the Notes to 
Consolidated Financial Statomcnts contained i n  this Form 10-K. 

The operating results nf all propertics sold nr held for dispositiorr Iimc been reflected in the ~liscontinued 
operations of the Consolidated Statements nf Ope,-ations conlained in this Form 10-K. 

Notes Receivable Activity 

The notes receivable activity dunng the year ended December 31 ,  2009 of 50.4 million in cash inflow 
reflects net repayments of $0.5 million from our Chattel Loans, net repayments of $1.6 million from our 
Contract Receivables and a net outflow of $1.7 million 011 other notes receivable. 

The notes receivable activity during the year ended December 31, 2008 of $1.3 million in cash outflow 
reflects net lending of $2.8 million from our Chattel I.oans and no net impact from our Contract Receivables. 
Contracts Receivable purchased in the PA Transaction contrihuted a net $19.6 million increase in non-cash 
inflow. 

47 



Investments in and distn'butions from unconsolidated joint oentures 

During the year ended December 31, 2009, the Company received apprnximately $2.9 million in distri- 
butions from our joint ventures. Approximately $2.9 million of these distributions were classified as a return on 
capital and were included in operating activities. Of these distributions, appi-oxinlately $1.1 million relates to the 
gain on sale of the Company's 25% iriterest in two Diversified joint ventures. 

During the year ended December 31, 2008, the Company invested apprnximately 65 . i  million in its jnint 
ventures to increase the Company's ownership interest in Voyager RV Resort to 50% from 25%. The Company 
also received approxiinately $0.4 million held for the initial investment in one of the Morgan Properties. 

Duiing the year ended December 31, 2008, the Company received approximately $4.2 million in clistri- 
hotions from our joint ventures. Approximately $3.7 million of these distiihutions were classified as return on 
c:ipital and were included in operating activities. The remaining distributions of approximately $0.5 million were 
classified as a return of capital and were included in investing activities. 

During the year ended December 31, 2007, the Company invested approximately $2.7 million in devel- 
oping one ofthe Bar Harbor joint venture Properties, which resulted in an increase of the Company's ownership 
interest per the joint venture agreement. As of December 31, 2007, the Bar Harbnr joint venture was 
consolidated with the operatiiins of the Company a the Company detei-mined that as of December 31, 
200i we were the primary beneficiary by applying the standards of FIN 46R. This consolidation had decreased 
the Company's investment in joint venture appmaimately $11 . I  million, with an offsettingincrease i n  investment 
in real estate. 

During the yCdI ended December 31, 2007, the Company received approximately $5.2 million in distii- 
butions from our joint ventures. $5.1 rnillion of these distributions were classified as return on capital and were 
included in operating activities. The rmemaining distributions of approximately $0. I million ~ v e ~  classified as :L 
wtwn nf capital and wcie inclodod in investing activities and wcrc d a t e d  t n  I-rfinancings at th rw of our  joint 
venture Properties. Applorimately $2.!5 million ofthe distributions received exceedcd the Cnmpany's basis in its 
joint wmtiirc and as such were recorcled in income froni unconsolidated joint ventures. 

In  addition, the Company recnrded approximately $2.9 million, $3.8 million and  82.7 million of nct incnme 
f i o r i r  juint ventwes. net of $1.3 niilhnn, $1.8 million and $1.4 million (if dc~pwci;itinn. in  tlic p a r s  ~ d c x l  
Ileccmbcr 31,  200SJ. 2008 and 2007, respectively. 

Due to the Company's inability to control the joint ventures, the Company accoiints for its investment i n  the 
joint ventures using the equity mcthod of accounting. 

Capital improvements 

The table below summarizes capital improvements activity for the yeas  ended December 31, 2009, 2008, 
and 2007(amounts in thousands). 

For the Year Ended December 31, 
2008 2008 2007 

Heciirring Cap Ex( l ) .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  Sli,415 $15,319 $14,458 
_ _ ~ _ _  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  New construction ~ expansion 818 850 2,059 
New construction ~ upgrades(2) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  2,874 4,869 3,316 
Home site develnpmcnt(3) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  8,185 5,414 7,421 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  66 1,512 Hurricane related 

Total Property. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . .  29,292 26,518 28,766 
1,584 198 618 

Total Capital improvements . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $30,876 $26,716 $29,384 

~ ~ ~ _ _  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  ~ - -  ColpOrate(4) 

--- ~~- 

( I )  Recurring capital expenditures ("Recurring CapEx") are primarily comprised of common area improve- 
ments, furniture, and mechanical improvements. 
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(2) New construction -upgrades piirnarily represents costs t n  improve and upgrade Property infiastructure or 

(3 )  Home site development include:i acquisitions of or improvements to rental units for the year ended 
December 31,2009. Acquisitions (of or improvements to rental units in the years ended December 31,2008 
and 2007 were included in Inventory changes on our Consolidated Statements of Cash Flow 

(4) Includes appi-oorimately $1.2 milliim spent to I-enovate the corporate headqu;rrters, of which approximately 
$0.9 million was reimbursed hy the landlord as a tenant allowance. 

amenities. 

Financing Activities 

Net cash used in financing activities reflects the impact of the following: 

Mortgages and Credit Futilities 

Financing, Refinancing and Early Debt  Retirement 

2009 Adii i ty  

Uuiing the year endcd Decernher 31, 2009, the Company closed on approximately $107.5 million of new 
financing, on six manufactured home pi-operties, with i i  weighted average interest rate of 6.32% that mature in 
10 years. We used the proceeds from tkie financing to pay-off approximately $106.7 million on 20 Properties, with 
a weighted ;werage intrrest rate of 7.:3fi%. 

On February 13,20013, in connection with the acquisition of the remaining 75% interests in the Diversified 
Portfolio joint venture, we assumed mortgages of approximately $11.9 million with a weighted average interest 
rate of 5.95% and wrighted average Inatnlity of five yoars. 

O n  December IT. 200'3. the Cirmpan)~ paid offtlic $2 nrilliim u n s r ~ u r ~ d  note payable to 1'fdeged Access. 

2008 Activity 

During the year ended December 3 1, 2008. tlic C r m p n y  closed nn  approximately $231.0 millinn of new 
financing o n  15 manuf.icturr:cl Iiri ino I'riipcrti~~s, with a wc~ightcil iivcxigc: interrst rate of 6.01% that lnatul-e in 
10 years. We used the proceeds fiom the financing to  pq-off appronimatcly $245.8 million on 28 Properties, with 
a weighted average intermt rate of 5.!54%. 

2007 Actiuity 

During the year ended Decemhor 31, 2007, the Company completed the following transactions: 

* Paid off approximately $19.0 million of mortgage debt on four manufactured home l'roperties. 

In connection with the acquisition of Mesa Verde, during the first quarter of2007, the Company 
$3.5 million in mortgage debt bearing interest at 4.94% per annum and was repaid in May 2008. - In conncction with the acquisition of \Vinter Gal-deli, during the second quarter of 2007, the Company 
assumed $4.0 million in mortgage deht bearing interest at 4.3% per annum and was r e p i d  in August 

In September 2007, we mended  o w  existing unsecured Lines of Credit ("LOC") to expand our 
borrowing capacity from $275 million to $370 million The lines of credit continue to accrue interest at 
LlBOR plus a maximum of 1.20% per annum, have B 0.15% fkility fee, mature on June 30,2010, and 
have a one-year extension option. We incurred commitment and arrangement fees of approximately 
$0.3 million to increase our borrowing capacity. 

200s. 

Secured Property Debt  

As of December 31, 2009, our secured long-term debt halance was approximately $1.6 billion, with a 
weighted average interest rate in 2009 of approximately 6.1% per annum. The debt hears interest at rates 
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between 5.0% and 10.0% per annum and matures on various dates pi-iniarily ranging from 2010 to 2019. 
Excluding scheduled priucipel amortization, we have approximately $184 million of long-term debt matuiing in 
2010 and approximately $56 million maturing in 2011. The weighted average term to lndturity for the long-term 
deht is approximately 5.5 years. 

During the first half of 2010, the Company expects to close oil approximately $64.3 million of financing on 
three manufactured home Properties at a weighted average interest rate of G.92% per :innurn, inaturing in 
10 years. We have locked rate with Fannie Mae on these loans. There can hc no assurance such financings will 
occur or as to the timing and terms of such anticipated financing. 

The Company expects to satisfy it,s secured debt maturities of approximately $184 Inillion occurring prior to 
December 31,2010 with the proceed:; from the finaiicings of the three mortgages noted above and its existing 
cash balance, which is approximately $145 million as of December 31,2009. The expected timing and amounts of 
the most significant payoffs are as folhws: i) approximately $100 million in April of 2010 and ii) approximately 
$75 inillion in August of 2010. 

Unsecured D e h t  

We havc two unsecured Lines of Credit ( “ L o r )  with a maximum borrowing capacity of $350 million and 
$20 million, respectively, which bear interest at a per annum rate of LIBOR plus a maximum of 1.20% per 
annum, liave a 0.15% facility fee, msiture on June 30, 2010, and have a onr-ye;ir extension option The weighted 
average interest rate for the year ended December 31, 2009 for our unsecured deht was apprnxim;itely 1.7% per 
iimium. Throughout the year ended December 31, 2009, we horrowetl $50.9 million and paid down 
$143.9 million on the lines of credit for a net pay down of 993.0 million. As of December 31, 2009, there 
were no amounts outstanding on the lines of credit. 

Other  Loans 

During 2007, we borrowed $4.3 million to finance nul- insurance premium paymcnts. As of Decemher 31, 
2007, this loan had been paid off. 

I h i n g  Uecembcr 2009, we borrowed approximately $1.5 iirillion wd,ich IS sccurecl by individual Inian- 
ufktured 11omes. This financing provided by the dealer requires rriuntlily pqments. IKXI-S iritmcst at 8.5% m d  
!natures on the earlier of. 1) the date the home is sold, or 2) November 20. 2016. 

Certain of the Company’s mortgages and credit agreements contain covenants and restrictions including 
restrictions as to the ratio of secured or unsecured debt versus encumbered or unencumbered assets, the ratio of 
fved charges-to-earnings before intei-est, taxes, depreciation arid amortization C‘EBITDA”), limitations on 
certain holdings and other restrictions. 

Contractual Obligations 

As of December 31,2009, we were subject to certain contractual payment obligations as described in the 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 Thereiheter 

tahlc halow (dollars in thousands): 
Contractual Obligations 

Lorig Term Burrowings(1) . . $1,548,692 $203,663 $75,719 $21,806 $121,685 $200,829 $533,392 $391.598 
Total - ~ __ ~ ~ __ 

Weighted werage interest 
rdtes . . . . . . . , . . , . . . 6.12% 5.919% 5.82% 5.78% 5.78% 5791,  5.825% 15.14% 

(1) Balance excludes net premiums and discounts of $0.8 million. Balances include debt maturing and 

The Company does not include Preferred OP Unit distributions, interest expense, insurance, p r o p t y  taxes 

scheduled periodic principal payments. 

and cancelable contracts in the contractual obligations table above. 

The Company leases land under non-cancelable operating leases at certain of the Properties expiring in 
various years from 2013 to 2054, with terms which require hvelve equal payments per year plus additional rents 
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calculated as a percentage of gross t-eveiiires. For tlie years ended December 31,2009,2008, and 2007, ground 
lease rent was approximately $1.9 million, $1.8 million, and $1.6 million, respectively. Minimum future rental 
payments under the ground leases are approximately $1.9 million for each of the next five years and approx- 
imately $18.7 million thereafter. 

With respect to maturing debt, the Company has staggei-ed the maturities of its long-term mortgage debt 
over an average of approximately six years, with no more than $533 inillion (which is due in 2015) in principal 
maturities coming due in any single year. The Company believes that it will he able to refinance its maturing debt 
obligations on a securcd or unsecured basis: liowcver, to the extent the Company is unable to refinance its debt as 
it matures, it believes that it w i l l  he able to repay such maturing debt from operating cash flow, asset sales a r d o r  
the proceeds fi-orn cquity issoancas. With respect to  any refinancing of matuiing debt, the Company’s future cash 
flow requirements could be impacted by significant changes in interest rates or other debt terms, including 
required amortization paymcnts. 

Equity Transactions 

In order to qualify as a REIT for fcderal income tah- purposes, thc Company must distribute 90% or niorc of 
its taxable income (excluding capital gains) to its stockholders. The following regular quarterly distributions have 
been declared and paid to common stockliolders and non-controlling interests since Janualy 1, 2007. 

For the Quarter Stockholder IleeonI 
Distribution Amount Per Share E,,ding Date Pdyment Dale 

$0.1500 . . . .  March 31, 2007 March 30,2007 April 13, 2007 
$ o . i m  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  J u n r  30. 2007 June 29, 2007 July 13, 2007 
$0.1500 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  Septembw 30, 2007 September 28, 2007 October 12. 2007 
$0.1500 . . . . . . . .  . . . . . .  Dccembcr 31, 2007 Deccmhcr 28, 2007 [anrialy 11, 2008 

$0.2000 . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  March 31,  2008 March 28, 2008 April 11, 2008 
$0.2000 . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  June i30, 2008 Junc 27, 2008 July 11, 2008 

$0.2000 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  December 31, 2008 December 26, 2008 Tanuar/ 9, 2009 
$0.2000 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  Soptonihcr :30, 2008 Scptcinhcr 26, 2008 October 10, 2008 

$0.2500 . . . . . . . . . .  Vlarch 31, 2009 March 27, 2009 April 10, 2009 
$0.2500 . . , . June 30, 2009 June 26, 2009 July 10, 2009 

$0.3000 . . , , . . , . Decenher 31, 2009 December 24, 2009 January 8,2010 
$0.3000 . . . .  . . . . . .  September 30,2009 September 2.5, 2009 October 9, 2009 

2009 Actitiity 

On Novernher 10, 2009, the Cornpany annoiinced that in 2010 tlie annnal distribution per common slrare 
will he $1 2 0  per share up from $1.10 per share in 2009 and $0.80 per share in 2008. This decision recognizes the 
Company’s investment opportunities and the importance of its dividend to its stockholders. 

On June 29, 2009, tlrc Company issued 4.6 million shares of common stock in an equity offering for 
approximately $146.4 niillian in proceeds, net of offering costs. 

On December 31,2009, Septembrr 30,2009, June 30,2009 and March 31,2009, the Operating Partnership 
paid distributions of 8.0625% per annum on the $150 million Series D 8% Units and 7.95% per annum on the 
$50 million of Series F 7.95% Units. 

During the year ended December 31,2009, we received approximately $4.9 million in proceeds from the 
issuance of shares of common stock, through stock option exercises and tlie Company5 Employee Stock 
Purchase Plan (“ESPP). 
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2008 Acticity 

On December 31,2008, September 30,2008, June 30,2008 and March '31,2008, the Operating Partnership 
paid distributions of 8.0625% per annium on the $150 million Serics D 8% Units and 7.95% per annum on the 
$50 million of Series F 7.95% Units. 

During the year ended December 31, 2008, we received appmximately $4.7 million in procceds from the 
issuance of shares of common stock through stock option cxercises and the CompanyS ESPP. 

2007 Actti tq 

On Deceniber28.2007, September 28,2007, June 29,2007 and Iv1;irch 3O,200T, the Operating Partnership 
paid distiihutioos of 8.0625% per annum on the $150 million Series D 8% Units and 7.95% pel- iirinnm on the 
$50 million of Series F 7.95% Units. 

During the year ended December 31, 2007, we received approximately $3.7 million in pmceeds from the 
issuance of shares of common stock through stock option exercises and tlie Company's ESPP. 

Inflation 

Substantially d l  of the leases at the Properties allow for monthly or anniial rent increases which provide us 
with the opportunity to achieve increases, where justified by the market, as each lease matures. Sucli t p e s  of 
leases generally minimize the risks of inflation to the Company. In addition, our resort Propertics are not 
generally subject to leases and rents are established for these sites on an annual basis. Our right-to-use contrxts 
generally provide for an annual dues in'crease, but dues may be frozen under the terms of certain contracts if the 
costmnei is over 61 years old. 

Funds From Operations 

Funds frnm Operations ('FFO") is a non-GAAP financial mcilsurc. Wc bolieve FFO, as defincd by thc 
Board of Governors of the National Asociation of Real Estate Investment TI-usts ("NARE:IT"), is generally an 
iippropriatr. meiisiirr of performance fin an equity REIT. \Yhilr FFO is a rt:levant anrl widely iisi:d ~ n i c a s ~ ~ r ~ :  nf 
operating performince for equity REITs, it does na t  reprcscnt ctish flow f i r ~ i l  npel-ations or iiet income as 
dofined by GAAP, and it should not he considered as an altcrnative to thcsc indicators in evaluating liquidity or 
nperating performance. 

We define FFO as net income, coinputed in accordance with GAAP, excluding gains or actual or estimated 
losses from sales of properties, plus real estate related depreciation and amortization, and after adjustments for 
unconsolidated partnerships and joint ventures. Adjustments for unconsolidated partnerships and joint ventures 
are calculated to reflect FFO on the same hais. We receive up-front non-refundahle payments frorn the sale of 
I-iglit-to-use contracts. In accordance with GAAP, the upfront non-refundable payments and related commis- 
sions are defer,-ed and amortized over the estimated customer life. Although the NAREIT definitinn of FFO 
does not adrlress the treatment of nonrefundable light-to-use payments, wc believe that it is appropriate to 
adjust fur the impact of the deferral ;activity in our calculation of FFO. \\!e Mieve that FFO is helpful to 
investors as one of several measures of (:he performance of an equity REIT. We further helieve that by excluding 
the effect of depreciation, amortization and gains or actual or estimated losses from sales of real estate, all of 
which are based on historical costs ani1 which may be of limited relcvance in evaluating current performance, 
FFO can facilitate compaiisons of operating performance between periods anrl ;imong other equity REIT% We 
helieve that the adjustnient to FFO for the net revenue deferral nf upfront non-refundable payments and 
expense deferral of right-to-use contract commissions also facilitates the compaiison to other equity REITs. 
Investors should review FFO, along wrth GAAP net income and cash flow from operating activities, investing 
activities and financing activities, when evaluating an equity HEITs operating performance. \Ve compute FFO 
in accordance with our interpretation of standards established by NAREIT, which may not be comparable to 
FFO reported by other RElTs that do not define the term in accordance with the current NAREIT definition or 
that inteipret the current NAREIT delinition differently than w'e do. FFO does not represent cash generated 
from operating activities in accordance with CAAP, nor does it represent cash available to pay distributions and 
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should not be considered as an alternative to net income, determined in accordance with GAAP, as an indication 
ofour financial performance, or to cash flow from operating activities, determined in accordance with GAAP, as a 
measure of our liquidity, nor is it indicative of funds available to fund our cash needs, including our ability to 
make cash distiihutions. 

The following table presents a cakulation of FFO for the years ended December 31,2009,2008 and 2007 
(aninlints in thousands): 

Computation of funds from operations: 
Net income availahlc fn i  common shares . . . . . . . . . . .  
Incnme allocated to commnn OF Units . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Kiglit-to-use contract sales, rlefcrred, net . . . . . . . . . . .  

Depreciation on real estate assets and other. . . . . . . . .  

(Gain) loss on real estate . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Bight-to-use contract cnmmissions, deferred, net . . . . .  

Depreciation o n  unconsolidated joint ventures. . . . . . .  

Funds from operations avaihhle for common shares 

Weighted average common shares nutstanding - fully 
dilutod . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

2009 

. . $ 34,005 

. .  6,113 

. . 18,882 

. . (5,729) 

. . 69,049 

. .  1,250 

. . (5,488) 

. . 5118,082 

32,944 

2008 
~ 

$18,303 
4,297 

10,611 
(3,644) 
66,193 

1,776 
79 

___ 997,615 
~ 

__ 

~ 30,498 
~ 

__ 8007 

5 32,102 
7.705 

~ 

63,554 
1.427 

(12,036) 

~ 5 92,752 
~ 

__ 30,414 
~ 

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qtialitatiue Disclosures About Market Risk 

Marklit iisk is the risk nflnss frolti adverse changes i n  market prices mtl interest rates. Our earnings, cash 
flows and fair d u e s  wlevant to  iinancial instriinients are d ~ p e n d c ~ r t  on prevailing market interest rates. Thp 
primary market risk we facc is long-term indebtedness, which hears interest at fixed and variable rates. The fair 
valur of our long-torm debt obligationri is affected by changcs in market intercst rates. At December 31, 2009, 
approximately 100% (11  ;ipproxiniately $1.5 hillion of our outstanding deht had fixed interest rates. whidi 
minimizes tlic ~ t u ~ r k c ~ t  risk until tlic dcht niaturrs. For ciicli incrcrise in interest rates of 1% (or 100 basis points), 
the fair value nf the total outstanding debt would decrease by approximately $83.2 million. Fnr each decrease in 
interest rates nf 1% (or 100 basis paints), the fair value nf tlie total outstanding debt would increase by 
approximately 588.0 million. 

At December 31, 2009, none of our outstanding debt was short-term and at variable rates 

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS 

This report includes certain “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of the Private Securities 
Litigation Reform Act of 1995. W l ~ n  used, words such as “anticipate,” “expect,” “believe,” ‘“project, 
“may be” and “will bc,” and similar words or plrr~ises, or the negative thereof, unless the context requires 
otherwise, are intended to identify foward-looking statements. These fonvard-loolung statements x e  subject to 
numerous assumptions, risks and uncsrtainties, including, but not limited to: 

* niir ability to cviitiol costs, real estlite market cnnditions, the actual rate of decline in custuincrs, the 
actual use of sites by customers and our success in acquiring new customers at our Properties (including 
those recently acquired); 

our ability to maintain historical rental rates and occupancy with respect to Properties currently owned or 
that we may acquire; 

* our assumptions about rental and home sales markets; 

in the age-qualified Properties, home sales results could he impacted by the ability of potential 
homehuyers to sell their existins residences as well as by financial, credit and capital markets volatility; 
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* results from home sales and occupancy will continue to he impacted by local economic conditions, lack of 
affordable manufactured home financing and competition from alternative housing options including 
site-built single-family housing; 

impact of government intervention to stabilize site-built single f'miily housing and iiot manufactured 
housing; 

thc completion of future acquir,itions, ifany, and timing with respect thereto and the efkctivc integraticin 
and successful realization of cIxt savings; 

ability to obtain financing or refinance existing debt on favoi-able terms o r  at all; 

the effect of interest 1-ates: 

* the dilutive effects of issuing z&lition;il coninmn stock; . the effect of accounting for the sale of agreements to customers representing a I-ight-to-use the l'loperties 
under the Codification Topic "Rmnue Recognition" (prior authoritative guidance: Staff Accounting 
Bulletin No. 104, Recenue Recognition in Consolidated Finnncinl Stateinentr, Con-ected); and 

other risks indicated fi-om time to time in OUT filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission 

These forwanl-looking statements are baed  on management3 present expectatious and beliefs about 
future events. As with any projection csr forecast, these statements are inherently susceptible to unceitainty and 
changes in circumstances. The Company is under no obligntion to, and expressly disclaims any ohligation to, 
update or alter its fonvard-looking stat'enients whether as a result ofsuch changes, new information, subsequent 
events or otheiwise. 

I tem 8. Financial Statements nncl! Supplementary Data 

Scc Index to Consolidated Financial Statcments 011 page F-l of this Form 10-K. 

Item 9. Changes In and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure 

NO,,?. 

I tem 9A. Controls and Procedtrrrs 

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures 

The Company's management, with the participation of the Company's Chief Executive Officer (principal 
executive officer) and Chief Financial Officer (principal accounting ufficer), maintains a system of disclosure 
controls and procedures, designed to provide reasonable assurance that information the Company is required to 
disclose in the reports that the Company files under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, is 
recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the Securities and Exchange 
Commission rules and forms. Notwithstanding the foregoing, a control system, no matter how well dmigned ;ind 
operated, can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that it will detect in uncover failures within the 
Company to disclose material information othemise required to be set forth in our periodic reports. 

The Company's management with the participation of the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial 
Officer has evaluated the effectiveness ofthe Company's disclosure controls and procedures as of December 31, 
2009. Rased on that evaluation iis of the end of thc peiiod ciivered hy this annual report, the Company's Chief 
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that the Company's disclosure controls and procedures 
were effective to give reasonable assurances to the timely collection, evaluation and disclosure of inforniation 
d a t i n g  to the Company that would p3tentially be subject to disclosure under the Securities Exchange Act of 
1934, as amended, and the rules and regulations promulgated there under as of December 31, 2009. 

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

quarter ended December 31,2009. 
There wei-e no mateiial changes in the Company:? internal control over financial reporting during the 
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Report of Management on Internal Control Over Financial Repoi-ting 

Management ofthe Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over 
financial reporting as defined in Bule!; 13a-lS(O and ISd-l5(O under the Seculities Exchange Act of 1934. The 
Company’s internal control over financial reporting is designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the 
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance 
with GAAP 

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not preveut or detect 
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that 
controls may beconre inadequ:ite because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the 
policies or procedures may deteiiorate. 

Rased on man;rgenient:s assessment, the Company maintained, i n  all ruatelial respects, effective internal 
control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2009, using the criteria set forth by the Committee of 
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) in “lntwnol Conti-ol-Integrated Frumeruork.” 

The effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2009 has 
been audited by the Company’s indopendent registered public accounting firm, as stated in their report on 
Page F-2 of the Consolidated Financial Statements. 

I tem 9B. Other Information 

Pursuaut to the authority granted in thc: Stock Option and Award Plan, in November 2009 the Compen- 
sation Committee approved the annual award of stock options to be granted to the Chairman of the Board, the 
Compensation Committec Chairperson and Lead Director, the Executive Committee Chairperson, and the 
Audit Committee Cliail-pelson and A d i t  Committee Financial Expert on February 1, 2010 for their services 
rendcrcd in 2000. On F(:brualy 1, 2010. Mr. Samlrcl Zall w a s  nwarclctl options t o  purchase 100,000 slralcs of 
common stock, which lie elected to receive a s  20.000 shares of restricted common stock, for services rendered as 
Chairman of the Board; Mrs. Shdi Rosenborg was awarded options to pul-chase 25,000 shares of common stock, 
which she rlected to receive as 5,000 shares of restricted common stock, for services rendered as Lead Director 
and C l r a i i p s o n  of tlic Compensation Coninrittee; Mr. H ~ ~ i r d  \Valker WBS awarded options to  pu~-chase 
15.000 shares of common stock, which he elected til receive as 3,000 slrares of restricted commnrm stock, for 
senices rendered as Chairperson o f t  lhe Executive Committee; and Mr. Philip Calian was awarded options to 
purchase 15,000 shares of conimm stock, which Ire elected to receive as 3,000 shares of restricted common 
stock, for services rendered as Audit Clnnmittee Financial Expert and Audit Committee Chairperson. One-third 
of the options to purchase common stock and the shares of restricted common stock covered by these awards 
vests on each of December 31, 2010, December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2012. 
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PART 111 

Item 10 and 11. Directors, Execwtiue 0ff;cer.s and Corporate Governance, and Executive 
Compensation 

The infnrmation rcquired by Item 10 and 11 will be contained in the 2009 Proxy Statcment and is thcrefore 
incorporated hy reference, and thus ltem 10 and 11 has been omitted in accordance with General Instruc- 
tion G(3)  to Form 10-K. 

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Otoners and Manugement and Related Stock- 
holder Matters 

The information regarding securities authorized f o x  issuance under equity compensation plans required by 
Item 12 f~illows: 

Plan Catcgoq 

Equity compensation plans approved by 
hccurity liolders(1) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Equity conrpcnsation plans not ;~pprt,ved by 
security liolders(2) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Number of 
Securities 

Number of Remaining Available 
for Future Issuance 

Issued Upon Weighted-Average Under Equity 
Exercise of Exercise Piice of Compensation Plans 

Outstanding Outrtanrling (Excludin Secu"ties 
Options, Warrants Options, Warrants ~ e f l e d L  ~ o l u m n  

Securities to be 

and Rights and Rights (4) 
(4 (b) (4 

841,85 1 .'3').86 970,442 

NIA 

841,851 
~ 

323,259 

1,293,701 

(1) Includes slrarcs ofcninmon stock nndrr the Coinpiny's Strick Option mid Award Pliiii xloptrd i n  I h x m h e r  
1992, and amended and restated lrom time to time, most recently amended effecti\#e Marcll 23, 2001. The 
Stock Option and Award Plan and certain amendments thereto were appi.ooved by the Company's 
stockholders. 

(2) Represents shares of common stmk under the Company's Employee Stock Purchase Plan, which was 
adopted by the Board of Directors in July 1997, as amended in May 2006. Under the Employee Stock 
Purchase Plan, eligible employees make monthly contlibutions which are used to purchase shares of 
common stock at a purcha~e price equal to 85% of the lesser of the closing price of a share ofcommon stock 
on the first or last trading day ofthe purchase period. Purchases ofcommon stock under the Employee Stock 
Purchase Plan are made on the first business day of tlie next month after tlie close of the purchase period. 
Under New York Stock Exchang,e rules then in effect, stocklialder approval was nut required for the 
Employee Stock Purchae Plan because it is a broad-based plan availablc generally to all employees. 

The information required hy Itsm 403 of Regulation S-K "Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial 
Owwrers and Management" required by Item 12 will he contained in the 2009 Proxy Statement and is therefore 
incorporated hy reference, and thus has been omitted in accordance with Cenrral Instntction G(3) to 
Form 10-K. 

Items 13 and 14. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence, 
and Principal Accountant Fees and Seroices 

The information required by Item 13 and Itenr 14 will be contained in the 2009 Proxy Statement and is 
thcrefore incorporated by reference, and thus Item 13 and 14 has been omitted in accordance with General 
Instruction G(3) to Form 10-K. 
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PART IV 

Item 15. Eshibits and Financial !Statements Schedules 

1. Financkl Statement 

See Index to Financial Statements and Scliedules on page F-l of this Form 10-K 

2. Financial Statement Schedules 

See Index to Financial Statcinents a d  Schedules on page F-l of this Form 10-K 

3. Exhibits: 

In reviewing the agreeincnts iiicliided as exhibits to this Annual Report on Form lO-K, please remember 
they are included to provide you with information regarding their terms and are not intended to provide any 
other factual or disclosure information about us or the other parties to the agreenients. The agreements contain 
representations and warranties by each of the parties to the applicable agreement. These representations and 
warranties have been made solely for the henefit of the other parties to the applicable agreement and: 

should not in a11 instances be trc:ated as categorical statements of fact, hut rather as away of allocating the 
risk to one of the parties if those statements prove to be inaccurate: 

hsve been qualified hy disclasoles that were made to the other party in connection with the negotiation of 
the applicable agreement, wliich disclosures are not necessaiily reflected in the agrement; 

may apply standards of materiality in a way that is different from what may be viewed as m a t e d  to you or 
other investors; and 

wew rri;ide rrdy its nftlw dxte oftlie ;ipplicalile agreenicnt or such othcr date or  dates as m a y  he specified 
in tlir agrcemcnt and iirr s u h j w t  t o  more recent developments. 

Accordingly, these repesentation!; and warranties may not describe the actual state of a f f h  as of the date 
tliey were made 111 at any other timr. Additional information about us may be found elsewhere in this Annual 
Report o n  Form 10-K a i d  our otliel- p b l i c  filings, which w e  available withont clxirge thrriugh the SECs wehsite 

%a) Admission Agreement hetwcen Equity Financial and Management Co., Mnnuhctnrcd Home 
Communities, Inc. and MHC Operating Partnership 

3 . 1 ~  Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of Equity Lifestyle Propcrties, Inc. effectivc May 
15,2007 

3.4(r) Second Amended and Restated Bylaws effective August 8, 2007 
3.5(k) Amended and Restated Articles Supplementay of Equity Lifestyle Properties, Inc. effective 

March 16, 2005 
3.6(k) Aiticles Supplementan, of Equity Lifestyle Properties, Inc. effective June 23, 200.5 
4 . l ( w )  Amen~led and Restatd fi.O625% Seiirs D Cnnnrlative Redeemahle Perpetual Preference Units 

Term Sheet and Joinder to Second Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership 
4.2(W) 7.95% Series F Cumulative Redeemable Perpetual Preference Units Term Sheet and Joinder to 

Second Amended and R,estated Agreement of Limited Partnership 
4.3(\") Form of Spec-imm Stack Ccrtificatc! Evidencing the Common Stock of Equity LifrStylc 

Properties, Inc., par vJue  $0.01 per share 
9 Not applicablc 

at llttp.ii,,~~,,.src.g(~~. 
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10.3(bj 
10.4(cj 

lO.S(l) 

lO.lO(d) 

lO.ll(g) 

10.12(0 

l0.l9(ll) 
10.20(11) 
10.21(hj 
10.27(n) 
10.28(n) 

l0.29( m j 
10.31 (“I j 
10.33(0) 
10.34(0) 
lO.OS(q) 
10.36($ 

10 .3 i ( s )  

10.3R(s) 

10.3%(tj 

10.41(t) 

10.42(11) 

10.43(”) 

10.44(x) 

Agreement of Limited Partnership of MHC-De Anza Financing Limited Partnership 
Second Amended and Restated MHC Operating Limited Partnership Agreement of Limited 
Partnership, dated March 15, 1996 
Amendment to Second Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited l’artnenhip for MHC 
Operating Limited Partnership, dated Februar). 27, 2004 
Form of ManufJctured I-Iome Communities, Inc. 1997 !don-Qualified Employee Stock l’ul-chase 
Plan 
Amended and Restated Manufactured Home Communities, Inc. 1992 Stock Option and Stock 
Award Plan effective March 23, 2001 
6110,000,000 Amended, Hestated and Consolidated Promissoiy Note (UeAnza Mortgage) dated 
June 28, 2000 
Agreement of Plan of Merger (Thousand Trails), dated August 2, 2004 
Amendment No. 1 to Agreement of Plan nf Merger (Thousand Trails), clatcd Septemher 30, 2004 
Amendment No. 2 to Agreement of Plan of Merger (Thousand Trails), dated November 9, 2004 
Credit Agreement ($225 million Revolving Facility) dated June 29, 2006 
Second Amended and Restated Loan Agreement ($50 million Hevolving Facility) dated July 14, 

Amended and Restated ‘Thousand Trails Leasc Agreement dated April 14, 2006 
Amendment No. 3 to Agreement and Plan of Mcrgel- (T1ious;lnd Ti-ails) dated April 14, 2006 
Amendment of Non-Qualified Employee Stock Purchase Plan dated May 3, 2006 
Form of Indemnification Agreement 
Eqllity Lifestyle l’roperties, Inc. Long-Tenn C;rsh Incentive 1%~ dated M,iy 15, 2007 
Equity Lifestyle Properties. lnc. Lnng-Term Cash Incentive l’Im~ -- Forin of 2007 Awald 
Agreement dated May llj, 2007 
First Amendment to Crcdit Agrccment ($400 milliori Hcvolvirrg Facility) datcd Scptembcr 21, 
2007 
First Amendmcnt to Sccond Aincrided and H<istated Lnan A g m e n v n t  (‘$20 million Hcwol\ing 
Facility) dated September 21, 2007 
Second Aniended and Restated Lease Agreemcnt dated as of Januaq I ,  2008 h y  and liehueen 
Thousand Trails Operations Holding Company, L.P. and MHC ’IT Leasing Company, Inc. 
Employment Agreement dated as of Janualy 1, 2008 by and between Jne McAdams and Eqnity 
Lifestyle Properties, Inc. 
First Amendment to Second Amended and Restated Lease Agreement dated ac of M a c h  1,2008 
between MHC TT Leasing Company, Inc. and Thousand Trails Operations Holding Company, 
L.P. 
Form of Trust Agreement Establishing Howard Walkcr Deferred Compensation Trust, dated 
December 8. 2000 
Underwriting Agreement, dated Junc 2.3, 2009 hy and among Equity LifeStyle Properties, Inc., 
MHC Operating Limited! Partnership, Meriill Lyncli, Pierce, Fennrr & Smith Incorporated and 
Wachovia Capital Markets, LLC 
Not applicable 
Computation of liatio of Earnings to Fixed Cliargcs 
Not applicable 
Equity Lifestyle Properties, Inc. Business Ethics and Conduct Policy, dated July 2006 
Nnt applicable 
Not applicable 
Subsidiaries of the registrant 
Not applicable 
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 

2onfi 
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24.l(y) 
24.2(y) 

24.4(y) 

24.6(y) 

24.304 

24.5(y) 

24.704 
31,l(y) 

Powrr of Attorney for Philip C. Calian dated Febmaly 16, 2010 
Power of Attorney for L)a\id J. Contis dated Fehriiaiy 17, 2010 
Power of Attorney for ?homas E .  Dobrowski dated Februaiy 17, 2010 
Power of Attorney for Sheli Z. Rosenberg dated Februaly 17, 2010 
Powcr of Attorney for Hornan1 \Valkcr dated Fehrnaiy 17, 2010 
Power of Attorney fnr G:aiy Waterman dated Februaly 18, 2010 
Power of Attorney for Samuel Zell dated February 17, 2010 
Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant To Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act Of 
2002 

31.2(y) 

32.l(y) 
32.20,) 

Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant To Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act Of 
2002 
Certifimition of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 
Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 

The following documents are inc~nrporated lrcrcin by reference. 

(a) 
(h) 
( c )  
(d) 

Included as an exhibit to the Company's Form S - l l  Registration Statement, File No. 33-55994 
Included as an exhibit to the Company's Report on Form 10-K dated December 31, 1994 
Included as tin rxliibit to the Company's Report UTI Form 10-Q for the quarter elided June 30, 1996 
Included as Exhibit A to the Company's definitive Proxy Statement dated March 28, 1997, relating to 
Annual Mretinz of Stockholderr; held on May 13, 1997 
Inchided as an exhibit t o  the Company's Form S-3 Registration Statement, filed November 12, 19'39 (SEC 
File Nu.  333-9081:33 
Incliided 11s an exhibit to  tlrc C:onipally's Relxxt n n  Form 10-K dated December 31, 2U00 
Included as Appandiy A to  thc Company's Dcfinitive Proxy Statement dated March 30, 2001 
Included as an exhibit to the Crnnpiny's Report on Forni 8-K dated November 16, 2004 
Incliidcd 2s an whihit to tlkc Company's Rcqm1-t on Form 8-K dated Novcmber 22, 2004 
Included as an exhihit tn the (:r,mpany's Report on Form 10-K dated December 31, 2004 
Included as an cxhihit to the Company's Report on Form IO-Q dated June 30, 2005 

n exhihit to the Cornpanys Report on  Form 10-K dated December 31, 200s 
Included as an exhibit to the Company's Report on Form 8-K dated April 14, 2006 
Included as an exhibit to the Company's Report on Form 10-Q dated June 30, 2006 
Included as an exhibit to the Company's Report on Form 10-K dated December 31, 2006 
Included as iin rxhibit to the Company's Report on Form 8-K dated May 18, 20Oi 
Included as an exhibit to the Ccsrnpany's Report on Form 8-K dated May 15, 2007 
Included as an enhihit to the Ccmmpany's Report nn Forin 8-K dated August 8, 2007 
Included as an exhibit to the Compziny's Report on Form 8-K dated September 21, 2007 
Included as an exhibit to tlru Chnpany's Report on Fornr 8-K dated January 4, 2008 
Included as an exhibit to the Ccmrnpany's Report on Form 10-Q dated March 31, 2008 
Includcd as an exhibit to tho Company's Repmi on Form 8-K dated Decenrhcr 8,2000, filed on Scptcniber 
25,2008 

(w) 

(x) 
(y) Filed herewith 

Included as an exhibit to  the Company's Report on Form S-3 ASH dated May 6, 2009 
Included as an exhibit to the Company's Report on Form 8-K dated June 23, 2009 
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SIGNATURES 

Pursuant tn the requirements of Section 13 or IS(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, 
the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly 
authorized. 

Date: Fehruaiy 25, 2010 

Uate: February 25,2010 

EQUI'IY L1FESTYL.E PROPERTIES, INC., 
a Maryland corporation 

By: Is/ Thomas I? IIeneghan 
Thomas P. Heneglian 
Chief Executive Officer 
(Principal Executive Officer) 

By: /s/ Michael B. Kernran 
Micliael R .  Berman 
Executive Vice President 

(Principal Financial Officer 
and Chief Financial Officer 

and Principal Accounting Officer) 
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Equity Lifestyle Properties, Inc. -- Signatures 

Pursuant to the requirements of i:he Secuiities Exchange Act of 1934, a.3 amended, this report has been 
signed below hy the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates 
indicated. 

/SI Thoinas P. Heneghan - 
Thomas 1'. Heneghan 

/ s i  Michael B. Rerman 
Michacl B. Rel-mnn 

"Samuel Zell 
Samuel Zell 

"Howard Walker 
Mowarrl \Valker 

"Philip C. Calian 
Philip C. Calian 

"DavirJ 1. Contis 
David J .  Contis 

"Thomas E. Diibl-owski 
Thomas E:. lM>i-uwsl<i 

'Sheli Z. Busenberg 
Sheli Z. Kosenberg 

"Gary Waterman 
Galy Waternran 

Date - 

Februaiy 2.5, 2010 Cliief Executive Officer (Principal 
Executive Officer), and Director 

' Attorney-in-Fact 

Executive Vice President and Chief 
Financial Officer (Principal Financial 

Officer and Pcncipal Accounting 
Officer) "Attorney-in-Fact 

Chairman of the Board 

February 25, 2010 

\ke-Chairman of the Board 

Director 

1Xi-octor 

Director 

Director 

Director 

February 25, 2010 

Februaiy 25, 2010 

Februaiy 25, 2010 

F<,bruaty 25,  2010 

Fcbl-uaiy 25, 2010 

Fcbru;iiy 25, 2010 

Fehnialy 25,2010 
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EQUITY LlFESTYLE PROPERTIES, INC. 

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm . . . . . . . 
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Schedule I11 - Real Estate and Accumulated Depreciation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

, . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
ended December 31, 

December 31, 2009, 2008 ant 

2008 

F-2 
F-3 
F-4 

F-5 ;~nd F-6 

F-7 

F-8 and F-9 
F-10 

5-1 
5-2 

Note that certain schedoles Imve lieen omitted, as they are not applicdblc t n  thc Conipny. 

F- 1 



Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 

The Board of Directors and Stockholders of Equity Lifestyle Properties, Inc. 

We have audited Equity Lifestyle Propeities, IncS (Equity Lifestyle Properties or the Company) internal 
control over financial reporting as of Ilecemher 31,2009, based on criteria established in Internal Contml - 
Integrated Framework issued by the Cmxniiiittee of Sponsoring Organizations of the T ~ e a d ~ i y  Commissiorr (the 
COSO criteiia). Equity Lifestyle Properties' management is responsible for maintaining effective internal 
control over financial reporting and i;x its assessment of the effcctiveness of internal control over financial 
reporting included in the accoinpnnying Itcm 9A. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's 
internal control over financial reportiiig based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight 
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting mas maintained in all material 
respects. Our audit included obtaining, an understmding of internal control over financial rcporting, assessing 
the risk that a material weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal 
control based on the assessed iisk, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary i n  the 
circumstances. We lieliwe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

A company's internal contrul over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assu~iince 
regarding the reliahility of financial rcporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes 
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal control over financial 
rcporting includes those policics and procedul-1,s that (1) pertain to thc: maintenancc of rccords that, in 
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; 
(2) provide reaonahle assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial 
stateriients in accnrdonc~~ wit11 g rn~~f i i l  cceptzd ;accounting principles, and that receipts ;mil expenditures nf 
thc cuinpiiy arr hring ni;adc (1111~ i i i  accurrlancc with authorizations of managcnient and directors of thc 
company; and (3) provide reasonable ;mul-ance regarding prevention 01- timely detection of unauthorized 
acquisition, use, o r  disposition of  t l r t  company's assets that could have a material effect on thc finmcial 
statements. 

Becalm of its inhrrrnt limitiitioiis, intomal cantrol i1vi'r financial rcporting may not pravent or drtcct 
misstateiii~nts. Also, pn~jections nf an) e-valuation nf uffectivoness to future periods iire suhject to  the risk that 
controls may become inadequate because of ch;oiges in conditions, ur that the degree of cumpliance with the 
policies or procedures may deteriorato. 

In our opinion, Equity Lifestyle Properties, Inc., maintained, in dl material respects, effective internal 
control over financial reporting a of llecember 31, 2009, hased on the COSO criteria. 

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards ofthe Public Company Accounting Oversight Board 
(United States), the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31,2009 and 2008, and the related consolidated 
statements of operations, equity, and cish flows for each ofthe three years in the pcriod ended December 31, 
2009, and the financial statement schedoles listed in the Index at Item 15, of Equity Lifestyle Properties, Inc., 
and 0111- rc'port clatrd Fohroaiy 25, 2010, expressd an unqualified opinion thereon. 

Is/ EREISI. & Y o n ~ c :  LLP 
ERNST & YOUNG LLP 

CHICACU, ILLINOIS 

FEHliIII\RY 25, 2010 
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 

The Board of Directors and Stockholders of Equity Lifestyle Properties, Inc. 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Equity Lifestyle Properties, Inc. (Equity 
Lifestyle Properties or the Company), as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, and the rclated consolidated 
statements of operations, changes in equity and cash flows fur e:di of the three years i n  the peliod erlded 
December 31, 2009. Our audits also included the financial statement schedules listed in the Index at Item 15. 
These financial statements and the richedules are tlie responsibility of the Company's management. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and the schedules based on our audits. 

We coriducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the I'uihc Company Accounting Oversight 
Board (United States). Those st;mdards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
iissurance about whether the financial statements ale free of m a t e d  misstatement. An audit includes exam- 
ining, on a test bzisis, cvidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also 
includes assessing tlie accounting principles used and significant estimates made by man;igement. as well as 
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for 
our opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fdy, in all material respects, the 
consnlid;iterl financial position of Equity Lifestyle Properties at Decemhcr 31, 2009 ;ind 2008, and the 
consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows fix cacli of the three years in the peiiod ended 
December 31, 2009, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Also, in o w  opinion, the 
related financial statement schedules, when considered in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a 
whole, present fairly in all material re:ipects the information set forth therein. 

As discussed i n  Note Z(o) to the <mlisolidatud fiiimicial stiiteiiielits. the C O I I ~ ~ I I I I ) I  changed its method of 
iiccounting for non-controlling interests npon thc adoption o f  i i rw  x c m i n t i q  pi-oni,iiii[:cni[~,its cffectivo 
Janua~y 1, 2009, and applied retrospectively. 

(United States), Equity 1,ifestylr Proprlties' intei-niil control over fiii;mcial wpovtiiig as o f  I>cce~llbc.l- 3 1 ,  2009, 
h a r d  on critol-ia establishcd in Intcrnal Contml - Intcgratrd FI-amc\vork issuod by the Committco of 
Sponsoring Orginizations of the Treallway Conrlnissirm and our report dxted Febi-uaiy 25, 2010 expressed 
an uncplified opinion thereon. 

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards ofthe Puhlic Company Accounting 0 

Is1 ERNST & YOUNG LLP 
ERNST & YOUNG LLP 

(;HITAGO, ILLlhOlS 

~ E B l i U A l l Y  25, 2010 
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Equity Lifestyle Properties, Inc. 

Consolidated Balance Sheets 
As of December  31,2009 and 2008 

ASSETS 
Investment in real rstlite: 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Land improvements . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Buildings and other depreciable property , . , , , . , . , . , , . , . , , . , . , 

Accumulated depreciation. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Net investment in real estate. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Cash and cash equivalents . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Notes receivable, net . . , . .  
Investment in joint ve . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Rents and other cmtomer receivables, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Deferred financing costs, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Escrow deposits and other assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Total Asscts . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 
Liabilities: 

Mortgage notes payable . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . .  
Unsecured linvs (if credit . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Accriicrl payroll ;and otli<,r (iperztinh; i : \ - p ~ s ~ s .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Deferred revcnuc - sal<, of right-to-use contracts . . . . . . . .  

Hents and other custome 

Distributions payable . . . . . . . . . . .  

Accrued intei-est payable . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

secuiity deposits . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Total Liabilities. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Commitments and contingencies 
Non-contrulling interests - Ferpetu;il Preferred OF Units. . . . . . .  
Equity: 

Stockholders' Equity: 
I'lefcrred stock, 901 par value 1(1,000,000 shares authorized: 

noneissried . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Common stock, $.01 par value 100,000,000 shares authorized for 

2009 and 2008; 30,350,745 and 25,051,322 shares issued and 
outstanding for 2009 and 2008. respectively . . . . . . . .  

Paid-in capital . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . .  
Disti-ihutions in cxccss of accumulated earnings . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Non-controlling interests - Common OP Units . . 

Total Liabilities and Equi ty .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Total Stockholders' Equity. . . . . . . .  

Tota lEqui  ty . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

December  31, December  31, 
2009 2008 

(Amounts in thousands, except 
for share data) 

$ 544,722 
1,744,443 

249,050 
2,538,215 
(629,768) 

1,908,447 
145,128 
29,952 
9,442 

421 
1 1,082 
2,964 
9,373 

49,210 
$2,166,319 

$1,547,901 

71,508 
29,493 
8,036 

44,368 
10,586 

1,711,892 

200,000 

~ 

~ 

30 1 
456,696 

(238,467) 
218,530 

35,897 
254,427 

$2,166,319 

'6 541.979 
1,725,752 

223,290 
2,491,021 
(561,104) 

1.929.917 
45,312 
31,799 

9,676 
1,040 

12,408 
12,934 
3,644 

44,917 
$2,091,647 

$1.569.40:3 
93,0110 
R6,6.56 
10,611 
8,335 

41.302 
G:IOG 

1,795,413 

200.000 

238 
'320,084 

(241,609) 
78,713 
17,521 
96,234 

$2,091,647 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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. . . . . . . . 180,870 152,363 127,342 

. . . . . . . . 31,674 29.457 27.429 

Elqnity Lifestyle  Properties, Inc. 

Consol idated S ta tements  of Operations 
For the Years Ended December 31,2009,2008 and 2007 

2009 2008 2007 
(Amounts in thousands, 
except per share  data)  

Property Operations: 
Community base rental income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Resoit base rcntal income. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Right-to-use annual payments . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

S 253,379 
124,822 
50,765 
21,526 

(18,882) 

S 245,833 S 236,933 
111,876 102,372 
19,667 
10,9il 

(10,611) 
41,633 36,849 

Property operatin revenues. , . . . . . . . 479,295 419.349 376.154 

- 

Right-to-use contracts current penoil, gross . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Right-to-use contracts, deferred. net ,of plior period iimortimtiiin . . . . . . 

- 
- 

Utility and other inconie . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Rcaf estate taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Sales and marketing, gross. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Property management . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Property operating expenses (exclusive of depreciation SIIOWII 
separately below) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . , , . . , . 

Income from property operstion,s . . . . . . . . , . . , . , . . , , , , , . . . , , 

. 

47,685 

I’m ~ r t y  operating an % mamtcnance . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Sales and marketing, deferred commissions, net . . . . . . . . . .  

Home Sales Operations: 
C;I.VSS i e~enues  firm lionie sales . . , , , , , . . , , , . , . . . . . , . , . . . . . . 
Cost of home sides . . . . . . . . . . . . , . . . . 

Brokered resale revenu . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

, . . . . . . . 

Cross (loss) profit . . . . . . . , . 

Home selling espenscs . . . . . . . . .  . .  
Ancillary sawices reven , . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . Incm~ie (11iss) from lionic salcs ;ind o t h r  . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Interest income, . , . , . . . . . , , , , . . . , . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . , . . . . . 
Income from other investments, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
General and administrative . . . . . . 
Rent control initiatives . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Interest and related amortization . . . . . , . . . , . . , . . . , . , , . , , . , , . . , , 

Depreciation on corporate assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . , . . , , 

Depreciation on real estate and other costs . . . . . . . . . . , . . . . . , , , . , , 

Equity in income of unciinsoli 

Other  Income a n d  Expenses: 

. . . . . .  

. .  

Total other expenses, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Consolidated income from continuing operaticins . . . . . . , , . . 

Discontinued operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Cain (loss1 from discontinued real estate . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . , . . , . . . , 

lricrime from discontinuel itions . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . , , . , 
Consolidated net income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Discontinued Operations: 

Income allocated to  non-contr interests: 
Common OP Units . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Perpetual Preferred OP Units . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Net income available for Common S h a r e s ,  . . . . . . . . . , . . , , 

13,536 
(5,729) 
33,383 

253,734 
225,561 

i , N i  
(7,471) 

(335) 
758 

(2,3831 
2,745 

7x5 

5,119 
8,168 

(22,279) 
(456) 

(98,311) 
(1.039) 

(69,049) 
(177,847) 

2,896 
51,395 

181 
4.685 
4.866 

56,261 

(6.113) 
(16,143) 

S 34,005 

7,116 
(3,644) 
25,451 

210,743 
208,606 

21,845 
(24,069) 
(2,224) 
1,094 

(5.ii6) 
1,197 

(5,709) 

3.095 
17,006 

(20,617) 
(1,555) 

(99,430) 
(390) 

(66,193) 
(168,084) 

3,753 
38,566 

257 
(79) 
I i 8  

38,744 

(4,297) 
(16,144) 

S 18,303 

15,385 

173.156 
202,998 

33.333 
1.30.713) 

(7,555) 
2,436 
(9711 

1.732 
221476 

(15,591) 
(2,657) 

(103,070) 

(63,554) 
(437) 

(161,101) 
2,696 

43,622 

2’99 
12,036 
12,325 
55,947 

(7,705) 
(16,140) 

$ 32,102 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements 

F-5 



Equity Lifestyle Properties, Inc. 

Consolidatcd Statements of Operations 
For the Years Ended December 31,2009,2008 and 2007 

2009 2008 2007 
(Amounts in thousands, 
except per share data) 

~ _ _ _ ~  

Earnings per Common Share - B,asic: 
Incomp from continuing qmations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 1.08 5 0.74 _ _ ~  

~~ 

Income from discontinued aperations . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . .  $ 0.15 $ 0.01 _ _ ~  _ _ _ ~  
Net incomc availahlc for Common Sharcs . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 1.23 $ 0.75 _ _ _ _  ~ _ _  

Earnings per Common Share - Fiully Diluted: 
Income from continuing operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 1.07 $ 0.74 

Income from discontinucd opcratinns . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 0.15 $ 0.01 

Net income available for Common Sliares . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 1.22 5 0.75 

Distributions d d a r c d  pcr Common Share outstanding . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 1.10 $ 0.80 

~~ ~- 
_ _ ~  _ _ _ ~  
~ _ _ _  - _ _ _  
_ _ _ ~  
~~ 

Tax status of Common Shares distributions deemed paid during the year: 
Ordinalyiricoine . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 0.72 $ 0.80 

1.ong-tcrrri c;tpitiil gain. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 0.24 $ ~ 

. . . . . . . . . .  . . $ 0.14 $ ~ Unrecaptured scctinn 1250 gain. 

Wciglited averagr (:ommon Shares outstanding - basic . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  27,582 24,466 

Weighted averagc Common Slixes outstaiding ~ firlly r l i lutd.  . . . . . . . . .  :30,498 

~~ ~ _ _ _  
~~ 

~~ 

~~ 

~~ 

_ _ _ ~  
~~ 

32,944 
~~ _ _ _ _ _  

The accompanying notes are an integrdl part of the financial statements 
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Equity Lifestyle Properties, Inc. 

Consolidated Statements of Changes In Equity 
For The Years Ended December 31,2009,2008 and 2007 

Distvibutions in 
Exeerr of N""-contr"lling 

Accumulntecl interests- 
CW"Z"0,l Cumprrbmsiw ccmmmun OP 

S r a k  Paid-in capital Earnings units 

(Amounts in Lhousimdn) 

Balance, December 31,2006 $229 $304,483 $(257,594) $12,794 
Conversion of OP Units to common stock 4 65.5 (ti591 
Issomce of connn~m stock tlirough exercise of 

issuance of common stock through employee 

Compensation expenses related to stock options 

. . . . . . . . . . . .  
. . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  options 3 2,577 

stock purchiise p l a ~  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Heporchare of ~ o m n m n  stock . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

1.1$3 

and restricted stock 4,268 
(883)  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Adjwtmant for Common OP Unitholders i n  the 
. . . . . . . . . . .  Operating Partnership i 1.4'10) 1,480 

32.102 7,705 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  (14.606) __ (3,544) - Distributions. 

Balnneo, December 31,2007 236 310,803 C240,098) 17,776 
Cciriveisiori of OP Units to common stock 1,463 (1,463) 
lsruance of c~imnon stock through exercise of 

Is5i imcc of romiiioii stock through employe;. 

Cainpcasation expenses related tu stuck uptionr 

~ 

. . . . . . . . . . .  
. . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  options 2 n,ms 

stock plll-r.hase plall . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  I . i l l i  

and restricted stock 5,162 
Repurchnsc of coiiiino~~ stock . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
r\<lj"'tm?"t for Cunimnn 01' Unitlroldrrs i n  thr 

Oprl-ating Pnrtner7hip ( 1.4501 I 4511 
Nct incmie l ~ , : 3 l n  4,ZW 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
lh(10) 

. . . . . . . . . . . . .  
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  Distrihutionr - ~ (19.814) ~ (4,539) 

Convrrsion of OF Units to common stock . . . . .  2,516 (2,516) 
. . . . . . . . . . . .  Balance, December 31,2008 238 320,084 (241,609) 17,521 

Issuance of common stock through exercise #of 

Iral;mcr of coinin~n stock through cmployec: 

lssriance of coiiimon stock through stock 

Cumpensxtion rxprnses related to m c k  optinm 

Reprimhare of common stock or  Common 01' 

Adjustment for Common OP Unitholderr in the 

N e t  in~oi i ie  :31,005 6,113 
I>istributionr. - ~ (30,863) __ (5,5H%) 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  options 2 .'1,.5.'3i 

stock prchase plan . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  1,344 

"irering 46 146.31 7 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

and restnrtad stock 15 1,640 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  units (1,183) (188) 

O,'c"lting r ? ~ l t n ~ ~ s h i p  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  (31).549) 20.544 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . .  Balance, December 31,2009 - - $301 $456,696 5(238,467) __ $35,897 ___ - 

$ 59,912 
- 

2,580 

1,183 

4,268 
(883) 

39,807 
- (lX.150) 

88,717 
- 

3,207 

1,501 

5,162 
(600) 

- 

22.600 
~ (24,353) 

96,234 
- 

3,539 

1,344 

146.363 

4,655 

(1,381 ) 

- 
40,118 
- (36,445) 

~ $254,427 - 

The accompanying >notes are an integral part of the financial statements 
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Eiquity Lifestyle Properties, Inc. 

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 
For the years ended December 31,2009,2008 and 2007 

Cash Flows From Operating Activities: 
Consolidated net income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by 
operating iictivitiPs: 
(Gain) Loss on sale of discontinued real estate and other , , . , , . 
Deprcciation erpr:nse . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Amortization expense . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Debt premium amortization . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Equity in income of unconsolidated joint ventures . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Ilistrihutions from unconsolidated joint ventures . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Amortization of stock-related compensation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Revenue recognized f i r m  riglit-to-use contract sales. . . . . . . . . .  
Commission expense recognized related to right-to-use contract 

Accrued long term, incrntive plan compensa ,on 
Increarc i n  pmvisinn f i x  oncallcctihle rents receivable . . . . . . . .  

Inclriasc in prnvisinn for inwntoiy n:scmc , , . , , . , . . , 

Rrnt and other ciistomcr rcceivahlr:s, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
I inventmy . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

U r f r r r d  cnniniissioii r ~ q x i i s ~ ’ : .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Accrued payroll and ntlier operating expenses. . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Deferred revenue a sales of light-to-use contracts . . . . . . . . . . .  
Rents received in advance and security deposits . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

sales . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Changes in itssets and liabilities: 

Esci-ow deposits mid otticr dh \L tS  . . , . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Net cash provided by operating activities 

Cash Flows From Investing Activities: 
Acquisition of real cstatc and othcr. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Procercls frnm disposition nf rental properties . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Net tax-clefelred ~xchnnpe (deposit:i withdrawal . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Joint Ventures: 

Investments in . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Distiihiitions from . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

$ .56,261 

(5,483) 
73,670 
3,090 

(1,232) 
(4,146) 
2,936 
4,655 

(2,644) 

821 
1.053 

654 
839 

(40) 
2,060 

(6,550) 
7,R25 

(3,5041 
21,526 
(1,402) 

150,389 

(8,219) 
3,278 
(786) 

- 
- 

Net repayments (boil-owings) of notes receivable . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Net cash used in investing acthities . . . .  . . .  (34,756) 

1,847 
Capital improvements, . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  (30.876) 

$ 38,672 

79 
68,700 
2,956 
(632) 

(5,528) 
3,717 
5,162 
(340) 

112 
1,098 

353 
63 

(236)  
(5.129) 
(3,756 j 
( 1,208) 
1,564 

10,951 
(2,708) 

113,890 

(2,217) 

2,124 
~ 

(5,545) 
524 

(1,274) 
(26,716) 

(33,104) 

2ooi 
nds) 

$ 55.946 

(12,006) 
65,419 

2,894 
(1,608) 
(4,123) 
5,052 
4,268 
- 

- 

685 
269 
250 

(152) 
,4,.516 

~ 

( I  ,244) 
62 

2,573 

122,791 

- 

(24,774) 
“3,261 
(2,294) 

(3,656) 
152 

11,091 
(29,384) 

(Z.5,604) 

F-E 



Cash Flows From Financing Activities: 
Net proceeds from stock options arid employee stock purchase 

Distributions to Common Sto 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  plan . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  4.883 

Stock repurchase and Unit redemption. . . . . .  . . . . . . . .  (1,381) 
Proceeds from issuance nf comnio~i stock . . . .  . . . . . . . . . .  146,363 

~Sers, Common 01’ Unitliolders, 
and 1’erpetu;ll l’referred OP Unitholders . . . . . . . .  (48,109) . . . . . .  

Lines of credit: 

Proceeds . . . . . . . . . .  .50,900 
Repayments . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . .  (143.900) 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Principal repaynients on disposition . . . . . . . . . . .  
Principal payments and mortgage debt payoff. . . .  . . . . . . . .  (130;235) 
New financing pmci~eds . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . .  107.264 
Early debt retirement - . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . .  

Deht issuance costs . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Nc.t cash nsed in financing activities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  (15,817) 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents . . . . . .  99,816 
Cash and cash equivalcnts, beginning of year . . . . . . . . . . . .  45,312 

Cash and cash eyuivalcnts, wid of year . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 145,12S 

Supplemental Information: 

Non-cash activities: 
Cash paid during the peiiod for interast. . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . .  $ $16,030 

- l’mceeds from lnan to pay insur;inc,c premiuins . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

property . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  6,727 
h1M;inufactured Ironies acquired with deder financing . . . . . . . . . . .  1,389 
Dcaler financing, 1,389 

Inventmy recl;issified to Buildings i,nd vther depreci;rhle 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Acquisitions 

Assumption of assets and liabilities: 
lnvento l); . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  185 

11,267 
Accrued payroll and other operating expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . .  5,19S 

security deposits . . .  3,933 

Escrow deposits and other assots. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Rents and other customer payments I-rceiwd in advance ;ind 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Notes receivable - 

Investment in real estate. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  18,116 
Debt assrimed and financed on atxpisition . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  I1,851 
Mezzanine and joint venture investments applied to real estate 

acquisition . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . .  

. . .  
- 

Dispositions 
. . . . . . . . . .  Disposition of assets and liab es, n e t . .  (14) 

Debt assumed by buyer on dispo:sition . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Investment in mal estate. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  13,831 

10,539 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial stater 
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4,708 

(38,849) 
(600) 
- 

mi,2no 
(21 1,200) 

- 

(224,442) 
231,047 

(3,123) 

(41,259) 

39,527 
5,785 

- 

$ 45,312 

$ 96,668 

- 

57.797 
.- 

- 

2.139 
12,361 
15,113 

19,821 
19,571 
10,417 
7,037 

- 

- 
- 
- 

nents 

3,734 

(32,013) 
(883) 
- 

126,200 
(154.400) 

(1,992) 
(16,169) 

(17,174) 
- 

(310) 
(93,007) 

4,180 
1,605 

6 5,785 

$ 101,206 

4,344 

- 
- 
- 

22 
560 
313 

1,158 

45,532 
8,528 

11,297 

28 
23,289 

- 

- 



E:quity Lifestyle Properties, Inc. 

Notes To Consolidated Financial Statements 

Note 1 -Organization of the Company a n d  Basis of Presentation 

Equity Lifestyle Properties, Inc., a Maryland corporation, together with MMRC Operating Limited l’art- 
nership (the “Operating Partnership”) ,:ind other consolidated subsidisirks (“Suhsidiaiies”), is referred to herein 
as the “Company,” “ELS,” “we,” “us,’ and “our.” The Company is a fully integrated owner and operator of 
lifestyle-oriented properties (“Propertiid’). The Company leases individual developed areas (“sites”) with access 
to utilities for placement of factory built homes, cottages, cabins or recreational vehicles (“RVs”). At certain 
Properties, the Company pro~ides access to its sites through right-to-use or membership contracts. We believe 
that we have qualified for taxation as a real estate investment trust ( “ R E I T )  for US. federal income tax pu~poses 
since nur taxable year ended Decemher 31 ,  1993. We plan to continue to meet the requirements f w  taxation as a 
REIT. Many of thcse reqoircmcnts, howvovcr, arc highly technical and complex. We cannnt, thereforc, guarantec 
that we have qualified or will qualify in the future iis a REIT. The determination that we are a REITrequires an 
analysis vfvarimis factual matters that may not bc totally within our control and we cannot provide any assurance 
that the IHS will agree with our  analysis. Fm example, to qualify as a REIT, at least 95% ofour gross income ,nust 
come from soiirces that are itemized in the REIT tax laws. We are also required to distribute to stockholders at 
least 90% ofonr REIT taxable income computed without regard to our deduction for dividends paid and our net 
cupital gain. As of Ilecemher 31, 200’9, the Company has net operating loss ~;irryfo”~ards of approninrately 
$88 millinn that can hP utilized tn offset future distribution requirements. The fact thtrt we hvld OUT assets 

through the Operating Partnership and its subsidiaries further complicates the application of the REIT 
requirements. Even a technical or inadvertent mistake could jeopardize our REIT qualification. Furthermore, 

i r d  t l ie  IRS niight n i i h  cliangec to  the tw  l i iws  ;ind regulations, ;mil the coui-ts niiglrt issue i iew I-dings 
it I T X J ~ C  difficult, or  iiiipnssihlc, I‘m us ti) reiriaiii qualified as a REIT. 1% do nnt beliew, 110 

m y  pending nr proprisecl tu law changc~ would jropirdize our HEIT qudification 

lfwr: fail to qualify as a REIT, wc would he sul7ject to U.S. federal income t u  at regular crrpnrate ratcs. 
Also, unless the I R S  granted its relief under certain statutoiy prnvisions, we would remain disqudified as a REIT 
for four )ears fnllowing tliC S w r  wc first failed to  qualify. E x n  if the Company rpdifies for taxation as :L REIT. 
the Company is suhjwt t v  certain fnrizign, state and local taxes on its income and propcrt) and U.S. federal 
income and excise tiixes on its undistributed income. 

The operations ofthe Company arc conducted primarily through the Operating Paitnership. The Company 
contiibuted the proceeds fi-om its initial public offering and subsequent offerings to the Operating Partnership 
for a general partnership interest. In 2004, the general partnership interest was contributed to MHC Trust, a 
private HEIT subsidiary owned by the Company. The financial results of the Operating Paitnership and the 
Suhsididries are consolidated in the Company’s consolidated financial statements. In addition, since certain 
activities, ifperformed by the Company, may cause us to earn income which is not qualifying for the REIT gross 
income tests, the Company I I B S  formed twahle REIT subsidiaiies, as defined in the Code, to engage in such 
activities. 

Sevcl-a1 l’l-operties are wholly rirvned by taxable HElT subsidiaries of the Company. In ;&lition, Realty 
Systems, Inc. (“RSI”) is a wholly owneCl taahle REITsubsidialy ofthe Company that is engaged in tho business 
of purchasing and selling or leasing Siite Set homes that are located in Properties owned and managed by the 
Company. RSI also provides hrokcragc scrvicos to residents at such Properties for tliosc residents who mow 
from a Property but do not relocate their homes. HSl may provide bmkerage sewices, in conipctition mitli other 
local hrokers, by seeking buyers for the Site Set homes. Subsidiaries of RSI also operate ancillary activities at 
certain Properties consisting of operation such as golf courses, pro shops, stores and restaurants. 

The limited partners ofthe Operating Partnership (the “Common OP Unitholders”) receive an allocation of 
net income that is based on their respective ownership percentage ofthe Operating Partnership that is shown on 
the Consolidated Financial Statements iis Non-controlling interests - Common OP Units. As of December 31, 
2009, the Non-Controlling Interests  common OP Units represented 4,914,040 units of limited partnership 
interest (“OP Units”) which are convertible into an equivalent number of shares of the Company’s common 
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E,quity Lifestyle Properties, Inc. 

Notes To Consolidated Financial Statements 

Note 1 -Organization of the  Company a n d  Basis of Presentation (continued) 

stock. The issuance of additional shares of conimon stock or Common OP Units changes the respective 
ownership of the Operating Partnership for both the I\;on-contmlling interests ~ Common OF Units. 

Note 2 -Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

(a)  Basis of Consolidation 

The Company consolidates its majority-owned subsidiaries in which it has tlie ability to control the 
operations of the suhsidiaries and all variable interest entities with respect to  wliich the Company is the pi-imaiy 
beneficiary. The Company also consolidates entities in which it has acontrolling direct nrindirect votinginterest. 
All inter-company transactions have bei-n eliminated in consolidation. The Company's acquisitions on or prior to 
December 31, 2008 were all accounted for as purchases in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting 
Standards No. 141, "Business Combinations" ("SFAS No. 141"). For business conihinations fnr which the 
acquisition date is on or after January 1, 2009, the purchase price of Properties will be accounted for in 
accordance with the Codification Tnpic "Business Combinations" ("FASB ASC 805) (prior anthoiitative 

tatement of Financial Accounting Standard N o .  141 H ,  "Business Corn~,inations"). 

The Company has applied the Codification Sob-Topic"Variable Interest Entities" ("FASB ASC 810-10-15") 
(prior authoritative guidance: Inteqxetation No. 46R, "Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities an inter- 
pretation ofARB 51"). The objective of FASB ASC 810-10-15 is to  provide guidance on how to identify avarinhle 
interest entity ("VIE") and dcterniinr: when tlie iissets, 1i;ihilities. rion-controlliiig interests. and results of 
opcrations nf a VIE need to lie inclurlcd in a company's consnlidated financial <tntvm<wts. A cotnpany that holds 
vaiiahle interests in an entity will need t:o consolidate such entity if the company absorbs a majority of the entity's 
expected losses or receives a majority of the cntity's expectcd rcsidual icturns if they CICCIIT, or both (i,e., the 
primaiy beneficiary). The Company hiis also applied the Codification Snh-Topic: "Control of l'artnerships and 
Similar Entities" ("FASR ASC 8 10-2'0") (prinr :antlioiit;itive goidsncr: Emerging Issrics T;di Force 04-5, 
"Determining \\%ether a General Partncr, or tlie General Partncrs as a Griiup, Cniitrrils a Limited Partnership 
or Similar Entity When the Limited Partners Have Certain Rights"), wliicli determines whether a general 
partner or the general paitners as a group controls a limited partnership or similar entity and therefore should 
consolidate the entity The Company will apply FASB ASC 810-10-15 and FASB ASC 810-20 to all t p e s  of entity 
ownership (general and limited partnerships and corporate interests). 

The Company applies the equity method of accounting to entities in which the Company does not have a 
controlling direct or indirect voting interest or is not considered the primaiy heneficiaiy, but Call exel-cise 
influence over the entity with respect to its operations and major decisions. The cost method is applied when 
(i) the investment is minimal (typically less than 5%)  and (ii) the Company's investment is passive. 

(b)  Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in confiirmity with accounting piinciples generally accepted in the 
United States requires management to make estimates and assuinptions that affect the reported amounts of 
ussets and liahilities ;and disclosure of contingent iissets and liahiliticm at tli,. date oftlie fintincia1 statvments iiiid 
the reported amounts of revenues and expenses duiing the repoiling p i n d .  Actual results could differ from 
those estimates. All property and site counts are unaudited. 

( c )  Markets 

We manage all our operations on a pi-operty-by-property basis. Since each Property has similar economic 
and operational characteristics, the Company ]:as one reportable segment, wliich is the operation of land lease 
Properties. The distribution of the Properties throughout the United States reflects our belief that geographic 
diversification helps insulate the portfolio from regional economic influences. We intend to target new 
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E:quity Lifestyle Properties, Inc. 

Notes To Consolidated Financial Statements 

Note 2 - Summaiy of Significant .4ccounting Policies (continued) 

acquisitions i n  or  near markets where the Propelties are located and will also consider acquisitions of Pmperties 
outside such markets. 

(d) Inventory 

As nf December 31, 2009, inventory prini;iiily consists of merchandise inventoly as almost all Site Set 
inveirtol)i has been reclassified to buildings and other depreciable property. (See Note 7 in the Notes to 
Consnlidated Financial Statements contained in this Form 10-K). Inventoly as of Drceinber 31,2008, primaiily 
consisted if new and user1 Site Sct Kosort Cottages and is stated at the lower of cost 01- nrarkct. Homr sales 
revenues and resale revenues are recognized when the home sale is closed. The expense for home inventov 
reserve is includcd in the cost of home sales in our Consolidated Statements of Operations. 

(e)  Real Estate 

In ;iccordancc> with FASR ASC 805, which is effective f o r  acquisitions on or after Janualy 1,  2009, we 
es assumed in a tran~actinn at the acquisition-date fair value recopize all the assets acquired and all the liab 

with liinited exccptiorrs. We dso expense transaction costs as they are incurred. 

Acquisitions prior to December 31, 2008 were accounted for in accordance with SFAS No. 141. We 
allocated the purchase price of Properties we acquii-e to net tangible and identified intangible assets acquircd 
b;ised on their f x i i - d u ~ s .  S i r  i d i n g  estimates offail- values for purposes of allocating purcliasc~ price, \ye utilize a 
number dsourc<.s.  including indrp~:ndont q~pi-ksals th.it m:iy bc wailable in connection wetlr tlru .icqnicition or  
financing of the respective Prnperty and other market data. We also consider infnmmation ohtained about cach 
Prnpcrty as a r~siilt of our due diligence, marketing and leasing activities in estimating the fair value of the 
tangible and intangihle assets acquired. 

Heal cstatp is I-rcorded at cost less accumulatcd depreciation. Depreciation is computed on the str:”glrt-linc 

and structural and land improvements (including site deve l i~~~ment ) .  a ten-year estimated life for building 
Upgrades and B five-year estimated lifi: tix furniture, fixtures and equipment. New rental units are generally 
depreciated using a 20-year estimated life from each model year down to a salvage value of 40% of the oiiginal 
costs. Used rental units are generally depreciated based on the estimated life of the unit with no estimated 
salvage valor. 

,im :. uvcr the estiiiiatd ,ireful lives (ifthe assets. \Ve generdly use a 30-yeio- estiinatd lift- f ix buildings ;icquired 

The values of above-and below-market leases are amortized and recorded as either an inci-ease (in the case 
nf below-market leases) nr a decrease ( in  the case of above-market leases) to rental income mer  the remaining 
term ofthe ;issociatcd leiise. The value associated with in-place leases is amortizrd over the expected term, which 
includes an estimated probability of lcase renewal. Expenditures fix ordinaiy inaintrmnce and rcpairs are 
expensed to nperations iis inc d anmd significant rcnovations and improvements thxt impnwe the iissct ;md 
extend the useful life nf the arc capitalized over their estimated useful life. 

We periodically evalwate our long-lived assets, including our investments in real estate, for inrpairment 
indicators. Our judgments regarding the existence nf impairment indicators are hlised (in facton s ~ d i  as 
operational perfvnn&e, markrt conditions and legal factors. Future events could occur which would cause us 
to conclude that impairment indicators exist and an impairment loss is warranted. 

For Propertics to he disposed of, an impairment loss is recognized when the fair value of the Property, less 
the estimated cost to sell, is less than the cartying amount of the Property measured at the time the Company has 
a commitment to sell the Property andhr  is actively marketing the Property for sale. A Property to be disposed of 
is reported at the lower ofits carrying amount or its estimated fair value, less costs to sell. Subsequent to the date 
that a Property is held for disposition, depreciation expense is not recorded. The Company accounts for its 
Properties held for disposition in accordance with the Codification Sub-Topic “Impairment or Disposal of Long 
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E,quity Lifestyle Properties, Inc. 

Notes ’Ib Consolidated Financial Statements 

Note 2 - Summaiy of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Lived Assets” (~‘FASB ASC 360- 10-3.5”) (piior autholitative guidance: Statement nf Financial Accounting 
Standards No. 144 “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived .4sscts”). Accordingly, the results 
of operations for all assets sold or held for sale have been classified as discontinued operatiuns in all periods 
presented. 

(f) Identified Intangibles and Goodwill 

We record acquired intangible assets and acquired intangihlc liab cs at their estimated fair value separate 
and apart from goocludl. 1% ortize identified intangible assets and liabilities that m e  determined to have 
finite lives over the period the ets and liabilities are expected to contribute directly iir indirectly to the future 
cash flows of the property or business acquired. Intangible acsets subject to amortization are reviewed for 
impairment whenever events or changes in circunistances indicate that theii- c;irrying aniount may not be 
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized ifthe carrying amount ofnn intangihle asset is not recoverable and 
its carlying amount exceeds its estimated fair value. 

The excess of the cost of an ;squired entity over the net nf tba amnnnts ;assigned to  assets acquired 
(including identified intangible assets) and liabilities assuined is recol-rlcd as goodwill. Goodwill is not amortized 
but is tested for impairment at a level of reporting referred to as a reporting unit on an annual basis, or more 
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the asset might he impaired. 

As of December 31, 2009 and 2008, thc carlying iinmints uf ick~ntificd int;mgihlc a. 
component of “Escrow deposits and sother assets’’ on oiir ciinsolidated balance sliccts, werc approximately 
019.6 million and 1612.0 millinn, I-espoctively. Accumirlatrd amortization of idciitificd intangiblcs assets w a s  
approximately $0.6 million and 50.1 xiillion as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively. 

fg) Cash and Cush Equivalents 

We consider all demand and monoy market accounts and certificates of deposit witli ii inatuiity datr, when 
purchased, of three months or less to he cash equivalents. The cash and cash equi\&nts as nf December 31, 
2009 and 2008 include appi-ooximately $0.4 million of restricted cash. 

(h) Notes Receioahle 

Notes receivable generally are stated at their outstanding unpaid principal balances net of any deferred fees 
or costs nn origmated loans, unamortizi5d discounts or premiums, and an allowance. Interest income is accrued 
on the unpaid principal balance. Discounts or premiums are amortized to incnmc using the interest inethod. In 
certain cases we finance the sales of homes to our customers (referred to  as “Chattel Loans”) which loans are 
securcd hy the homes. The allowance for the Chattel L m n s  is culculated based on  a review of h i n  agings and a 
cornpanson of the outstanding principal balance ofthe Chattel Loans compared t n  the current estimated market 
value of the underlying manuFactured home collateral. 

The Company also provides financing for nonrefundable upfront payments o n  sales of right-to-use 
coiitracts (“Contracts Heceiv;ihle”). Based upon liistoi-ical callection rates and current economic trends, when 
a salc is financed, B iesewe is established for a portion of the Contracts Heceivable balance estimated to be 
uncollectible. The allowance and the rate at which the Company provides for losses on its Contracts Receivable 
could be increased 01- decreased in the future based on the Company’s actual collection experience. (See Note 8 
in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements contained in this Form 10-K). 

On August 14, 2008, we purchased Contract Receivables that were recorded at fair value at the time of 
acquisition of approximately $19.6 million under the Codification Topic “Loans and Debt Securities Acquired 
with Deteiiorated Credit Quality” (“FASB ASC 310-30”) (prior authoritative guidance: Amciican Institute of 
Ceitified Public Accountants Statement of Position (SOP) 03-3, “Accounting for Certain Loans or Debt 
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Equity Lifestyle Properties, Inc. 

Notes To Consolidated Financial Statements 

Note 2 - Summaiy of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Securities Acquired in a TI-ansfer”). The fiur value of these Cmtracts Receivable inclndes an estin~ate of losses 
that are cxprcted to he incurred nvor the estin~atcd remaining lives of the receivahlcs, and therefore no 
allowance fnr losses was recorded for these receivables as of the transaction &le. Through December 31, 2009, 
tlie credit prrforiiiancc nf these receivables has generally been consisteut with the assumptions osetl in 
determining the initial fair value of ;these loans, and our original expectations regarding the amounts and 
timing of futuie cash flows has not changed. A probable decrease in management’s expectation of future cash 
collections related to these receivables could result in the need to record a11 allowance for credit losses related to 
these loans in thc fiiture. A significant :mil prohahle increase in expected cash flows would generally result in an 
increase in interest income recognized over the remaining lifr of the underlying pool of receivables. 

(i) Inoestments in Joint Ventures 

Invcstments in joint ventures i n  which the Company rloes not have a controlling direct or indircct voting 
intei-est, bot can exercise significant influence over the entity with respect to its operations and major decisions, 
are accounted for using the equity meiihod of zscounting whereby the cost of an investment is adjusted for the 
Cninlmny’s share of the equity in net income or loss from the date of acquisition and reduced by distributions 
receivcd. The i n c n ~ n ~  or loss of ewh entity is allocated in accordance with the p~-ovisinns of the applicahlr 
operating agreements. The allocation provisions in these agreements may differ from the ownership interests 
held by each investor. Differences between the carrying amount of the Company’s investment in the respective 
entities and the Company’s share r r f  thc tinderlying equity of such unconsrilidated entitics alp amortized nvci the 
resprctivc livw o f  the m~di~rl~,lng I s .  ;is ;ipplicable. Src  Note 6 i n  tlie Notes t n  Canst,lidatrd Pin;rnciirl 
Statements containctl in this Fnlm 10-K. 

(j) IncomeJrom Otl~er Investments, net 

O n  August 14, 2008, thc Cmrpany acquircd siibstantially all of the asscts and certain liahilitics of l’rivilcgcd 
Access, Ll’ (“Privileged Access”) f w  i in unsecured nnte payable of $2.0 inillion (the “PATrans;ictioii’.). Prirn to  
Angust 14, 2008, income fmm othiw investments, net, primarily included revenue relating to tliu Company’s 
formel- ground leases with Privileged A.ccess. The ground leases were terminated on August 14,2008 due to the 
PA Transaction. Thc ground leases with Privileged Access were for approximately 24,300 sitcs at 82 of thc 
Company’s Properties and were accounted for in accordance with Codification Topic “Leases” (“FASB ASC 
840”) (prior ;iutliorit;ttive guidance: Sitatement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 13, “Accounting for 
Leases”). The Company recognized income related to these ground leases of approximately $15.8 million and 
$20.6 million for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively. 

(k) Insurance Claims 

The Properties are covered ;igain!;t losses causcd by valious evaiits including fire, tlond, pniperty damage, 
earthquake, windstorm and hnsiness interruption hy insurance policies containing various deductihle require- 
ments and coverage limits. Recoverable costs are classified in other assets as incurred. Insurance proceeds are 
applied against thc assct whcn rcceiwd. Recoverable costs relating to capital itcnis arc treater1 in nccordnnce 
with the Cnmpany’s capitalizition pnlicy, The book value of the original capital item is written off once the viilue 
of the impaired asset has l ieen iletennined. Insurance proceeds relating to the capital costs arc rccordcd as 
income in the peiiod they are received. 

Approximately 70 Floiida Propeit.ies suffered damage from five hurricanes that struck the state dui-ing 2004 
and 2005. The Company estimates its total claim to be approximately $21.0 million and has made claims for full 
recovery of these amounts, subject to deductibles. 

The Company has received prcxeeds from insurance carriers of approximately $10.7 million through 
December 31, 2009. The proceeds, were accounted for in accordance with the codification Topic 
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Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

"Contingencies" ("FASR ASC 450") (prior authoiitative giiid;ince: Statement of Financial Accounting Standards 
No. 5, "Accounting for Contingencics"). During the ycar ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, approx- 
imately 51.6 million, $0.6 million and $0.6 million, respectively, lias been recognized as a gain on insurance 
recovery, which is net of approximately 50.3 million, $0.3 million and $0.2 nrillinn, ~-espectiwIy, of contingent 
legal fees and included in income from other investments, net. 

On June 22, 2007, the Company filed a lawsuit related to  some of the u n p d  claims against certain 
insurancc carriers and its insurance broker. Scc Notc 18 in thc Notcs to Const,lidatcd Financial Statements 
cnntained in this Form 10-K for further discussion of this lawsuit. 

( 1 )  Fair Value of Financial Instruments 

The Company's financial instruments include short-term investments, notes receivable, accounts receiv- 
able, accounts payable, other accrued expenses, and mortgage notes payable. The fair values of all financial 
instruments, including notes receivable, were not r n a t e d l y  different fi-om their cztrrying viilues at Decemher31, 
2 0 0 ~  2008. 

The valuation of financial instrunxiits under the Codification Topic "Financial Instruments" ("FASB ASC 
8 2 5 )  (prior authoritative guidance: Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 107, "Disclosures About 
Fair Valiie of Financial Instruments") and the Codification Topic "Dcrivativcs and Hctlging" ("FASB ASC 815") 
(pi-iix authoritative guidance: Statemeiit of Financial Acciiunting Stiinchds N o  13:3. "Accounting for Derivative 
Iristniments and Hcdging Artivitim") rt:q~iirrs 11s to niakc: i~ti i i i : i t i .s  and jiidgiiicnts that ;iffkt tlrr: fair vnhtc of 
the instruments. Where possible, we base tlre fair values of(Jur financial instruments on listed market piices and 
third party quotes. Whcre these arc not available, we base 0Ori:stimatcs 011 othcr fCictors rclevant to  the financial 
instrument. 

(m) Deferred Financing Costs, net 

Deferred financing costs, net include fees and costs incurred to obtain long-term financing. The costs are 
being anlortized Over the terms of the respcctive loans on a level yield hasis. Unamortized deferred financing 
fees are written-off when debt is retired before the maturity date. Upon amendment of the lines of credit, 
unamortized deferred financing fees are accounted for in accordance with, Codification Sub-Topic "Modifi- 
cations and Extinguishments" ("FASB ASC 470-50-40) (prior authoritative guidance: Emerging Issues Task 
Force No. 98-14, "Debtor's Accounting for Changes in Line-of-Credit 01 Revolving-Debt Arrangements"). 
Accumulated amortization for such costs was 512.5 million and $13.1 million at December 31, 2009 and 2008, 
respectively. 

(n) Revenue Recognition 

The Company accounts for leases with its customers as operating leases. Hental income is rccognized over 
the term of the rcspective lease or the length of a customer's stay, the majority of which are for B term of not 
gri~ater than one ycar. We will resewt~ for receivables when wc belicve tlic ultimate collection is less than 
probable. Our protkion for uncollectible rents receivable was appmximatcly $2.2 million and $1.5 million as of 
December 31, 2009 and ZOOS, respectively. 

The Company accounts for the salcs of right-to-use contracts in accordance with thc Codification Topic 
"Revenue Recognition" ("FASB ASC 6 0 5 )  (prior authoritative guidance: Staff Accounting Bulletin 104, 
"Revenue Recognition in Consolidated Financial Statements, Corrected"). A right-to-use contract gives the 
customer the right to a set schedule of usage at a specified group of Pmperties. Customel-s may choose to 
upgrade their contracts to increase their usage and the number of Properties they may access. A contract 
requires the customer to make an upfront nonrefundable payment and annual payments during the term of the 
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Note 2 - Summary of Significant .4ccounting Policies (continued) 

contract. The stated trnn of a right-to-use contract is generally three years and the customer may renew his 
contract by continuing to make the annual paymcnts. The Company will recognize the upfront non-rcfundtible 
payments over the estimated customer life which, based on histoiical attrition rates, the Company has estimated 
to he from one to 31 years. For example, we have currently estimated that 7.9% of customet-s who purchase B new 
right-to-use contract will terminate their contract after five years. Therefore, the upfront nonrefundable 
payments from 7.9% of the contracts sold in any paiiicolar period are amortized nn a straight-line basis over 
a period of five years as the estimated customer life for 7.9% of our customers who purchase a contract is five 
years. The histoiical attrition rates for upgrade contracts are lower than for new contacts, and thcrefore, th? 
nonrefundablc upfrmit payments fur upgrade cnntracts are amortized at a different rate than fin new contracts. 
The decision to recognize this revenii? in accordance with FASB ASC GO5 was made after corresponding with 
the Office of the Chief Accountant at the SEC duling September and Octohcr of 2008. 

and recognized ratably over the one-year period in which the services are provided. 

Siiurrme f h n  home s;iles is recognized when the earnings process is complete. The earnings process is 
complctv when the homr has bccn delivered, thc purchascr ha? acccptcil the honic and title has tmnsfcrrcd. 

Right-to-use annual payments paid by custnmers under the terms of the right-tu-use contracts are deferred 

(o) Non-Controllimg Interests 

Not iiicmw is dlacatiid to Co i i i , i i on  OF Unitholders bascd OII their raspcctivc nwncrship pcrcant,igr: of tlic 
Operating Paiinership. Siicli owiersliip pcrccntage is calculated by dividing tliu uumhel- of Common 01’ Units 
held hy the Common 01’ Unitholders (4,914,040 and 5,366,741 at December 31,2009 and 2008, rcspwtively) hy 
the tntal 01’ Units held the C~rr~ninon OF Unitholders and the Company. Issuance of additinnal sharrs of 
~ O I I I I I I ~ I ~  stnck n r  C:ommun OP Units changrs tlie percentage iiwnership nf hnth the Nort-coiitlolliiig interpsts ~ 

C m n ~ n m  01’ Units and the Cnnipany 

Due in part to the exchange right:; (which provide for the conversiori of Common OP Units into slliires of 
common stock on a one-for-one hasis:,, such transactions and the proceeds there from are treated a s  capital 
transactions and result in an allocation behueen stockholders’ equity and Nan-controlling Interests to account 
for the change in the respective percentage ownership of the underlying equity of the Operating Partnership. 

In accordance with the Codification Topic “Consolidation” (“FASR ASC 810) (prior authoritative goid- 
ance: Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. IGO, “Non-controlling Interests in Consolidated 
Financial Statements”), effective Ianualy 1, 2009, the Company, for all periods presented, has reclassified 
the non-controlling interest for Common 01’ Units, approximately $17.5 million as nf Dccemher 31,2008, from 
the mezanine sectinn uoder Total Lihilitics t n  the Equity section of the consnlidated balnnce sheets. The 
ciiptirm Comnion OP Units on the uinsolidated balance sheets also includes $0.5 million of privzite REIT 
Subsididlies preferred stock. Based on the Company? analysis, Perpetual Preferred 01’ Units remain in the 
mezzanine section. The presentation of income allocated to Common OP Units, approxim:itely $4.3 million and 
$7.7 inillion for the ycars ended December 31,2008 and 2007, respectively, and Perpetual Preferred OF Units, 
approximately $16.1 inillion f i ~  the yeal-s ended December :31, 2008 and 2007, o n  the consolidated staterrients uf. 
operations has been nioved to the bottom of the statement prior to  Net income availahle t n  Common Shares. 

(p) Income Tares 

Due to the structure of the Company as a REIT, the results of operations contain no provision for 
US. fdeI‘dl in,come taxes for the REIT, but the Company is still subject to certain foreign, state and local 
income, excise or franchise taxes. In addition, the Company has several tawable REIT subsidiaries which are 
subject to federal and state income tares at regular corporate tax rates. 
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The Company expensed federal. foreign, state and local tmes of approximately $0.6 million, $0.4 million 
and $0.4 million for the years ended !December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007. rcspectivcly, wliich includes taxes 
payable from activities managed through taxable REITsubsidiaiies ("THSs"). Overall, the TRSs have federal net 
operating loss carryfolwards. No net ttir henefits have been recorded by the TRSs since it is not considered more 
likely than not that the deferred tax asset related to the TRSs net operating loss cainyfoiwds will be utilized. 

The Company adopted the pmvisions of Codification Topic "Income Taws" ("FASB 710) (piior author- 
itative guidance: Interpretation No. 4R "Accounting for Uncertainty in Incomc Taws - an interpretation of 
FASB Statement No. 109 'Accounting for Income Taxes") on Januaiy 1, 200i. Tlie adoption of FASB 740 
resulted in no impact to the Company's consolidated financial stiite~nents. The Company or one of its 
subsidiaries files income tax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction, various U.S. state jurisdictions and Canada. 
With few exceptions, the Coinpany is !no longer subject to U.S. fCdWd1, state and local, o r  nuii-U.S. income tax 
examinations by tax authorities for years before 3006. 

approximately $1.4 liillion (unaudited'i and $24.5 million (unaudited). iwspectively. 
As of December 31, 2009, net investment in real estate and notes receiwhle had a U.S. federal tax hasis of 

(4) Derivative Instruments and  Hedging Actioities 

The Company recognizes all derivatives on the balance shcct at fair valiie. Drrivotives that are not hedges 
mist IF adjusted to fair value through income. If the derivative is a hrdge, ilqxiiding mi the niiture ofthe hedge, 
changr:~ in thr fair vdue of ilcrivativcs will rithar hc rrffset against tlir c l ~ ; l n g  i n  fiir v a l i r  of thr hrrlged assets, 
liabilities or firm commitments ttirougli earnings or recognized i n  other cnniprellcnsive income until the hedged 
itern is recognized in earnings. The Company corrrntly does not have any dcrivativc instruments. 

(rj Stock Compensation 

The Coinipany adopted the fair-v:ilue-hascd method of accounting for sh:ire-based payments pursuant to 
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards N o  145, "Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation-Transition 
and Disclosure" ("SFAS No. 1 4 8 )  and FASB ASC 718. The Company uses the Black-Scholes-Meiton formula to 
estimate the value of stock options granted to employees (see Note 14 in the Notes to Consolidated Financial 
Statements contained in this Form 10-K). 

(3) Recent Accounting Pronouncements 

I n  May 2009, the FASB issucd Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 165, "Subsequent 
Events," the current authoritative guidance ofwhich is the Codification Sull-Topic "Suhsequmt Exnts"  ("FASB 
ASC 855-10). FASR ASC 855-10 seeks to estahlish general standards of accounting for and disclosure of events 
that occur after the h;dance sheet date. hut before financial statenients are issued or ai-e available to be issued. 
The Statement sets forth the period ani1 circumstances after the balance sheet date duringwhich management of 
a reporting entity should evaluate events or transactions that may occur for potential 1-eecognition or disclosure in 
the financial statements. Tlie StdteTli?nt introduces the concept of financial statenients being available to he 
issued It requires the disclosure of the date through which an entity has evduated subsequent events and the 
hasis for that date, that is, whether th;3t date represents the date the financial statements were issued or were 
available to be issued. The Statement :ipplies to interim or annual financial peiiods ending after June 15, 2009. 
The adoption of FASB ASC 855.10 has had no material effect on the Company's financial statements. Our 
management evaluated for subsequent events through the time of our filing on Februaly 25, 2010. 

In June 2009, the FASB issued Sitatement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 167, "Amendments to 
FASB Interpretation No. 46(R)," the current authoiitative guidance of which is the Codification Topic 
"Consolidation" ("FASB ASC 810"). FASB ASC 810 seeks to improve financial reporting by enterprises involved 
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Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

with valiahle interest entities. The Statement addresses the effects on certain pmvisions of FASB ASC 810-10- 
15. Variabk! Intorcst Entities, as a rcsdt of the elimination of the qualifymg special-pnrpsc entity conccpt in 
FASB Statement No. 166, Accounting for Transfers of Financial Assets. It also discusses the application of 
certain key pro~s ions  of FASB ASC 810-10-15, including those in which the accounting and disclosures under 
FASB ASC 8 10-10-15 do not a1w;iys pr,wide timcly and useful information about an enterprise's involvement in a 
vaiiahle intcrest entity, This Statement is effectivc as of the beginning of each reporting entitfs first annual 
reporting period that begins after Naveinher 15, 2009, for interim peiiods within that first annual reporting 
period, and for interim and annual reporting periods thereafter. The Company docs not believe that the adoption 
nf FASB ASC 810 will have a rnateiiiil impact on its consolidated financial statements. 

I n  June 2008, the FASB issued FASR Staff Position on Emerging Issues Task Force Issue 03-6, "Deter- 
mining Whether Instruments Granted in Slyare-Based Payment Transactions Are Participating Securities" 
("FSP EITF 03-6-l"), the cuircnt authoritativc guidance of which is the Codification Sub-Topic "Earnings Per 
Share" ("FASB ASC 260-10"). FSP EITF 03-6-1 states that unvested share-based payment awards that contain 
nonforfeitahlc rights to clividends or dividend equivalents (whether paid 01- unpaid) are participating srciil-ities 
and shall be iiicluded in the computation of earnings per share ('~EPS") pursuant to the two-class method. FSI' 
EITF 03-6-1 was effective for financi,rl statements issued for fiscal yews beginning after December 15, 2008, 
and interim periods within those years. All prior-period EPS data presented shall be adjusted retrospectively 
(including intrrim fin:mcial s t a t e rn~n t~ ,  snmmaiies ofeamings, and selected finmcial data) to confninn with the 
provisions nf FSI' EITF 0;3-6-1. E:dy application was not pernritted. Adoption o n  Januaiy 1, 2009 did not 
inateriiilly iinpiict (iur cwiiiiys per shiire cdculation. 

I n  May 2008, the FASR issued Statement nf Financial Accounting Standards No.  162. "The Hierarchy of 
(knvriilly Accoptod Accounting Piinciplc-s" ("SFAS No. 162"). Tlrc Statcment irlontific;~ tllc soiircoc o f  
acc-oimting principles and frmnewol-l.: fnr selccting the piinciples to he used in tlrc prepratinn nf financial 
statenients of ~i~,rigiivel.nincnt;il ontitiiis that air pwsented in confiirinity with CAAP. The p u q x ~ s r  is to rrniovc 
the fiicus of setting the (;MI' hierarchy froin the auditor and giving the entity the responsibility of setting the 
CUI'  hierarchy. SFAS N a .  le2 is effective 60 days following the SEC? approval of the Public Conipmy 
Accounting Oversight Board Auditing amendments to AU Section 411, "The Meaning of Present Fairly in 
Conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles." The adoption of SFAS No. 162 did not have a 
material impact on the CompanyS ccmnsolidated financial statements. 

( t )  Reclassifications 

Certain 2007 ctnd 2008 ainounts have heen reclassified to conform to the 2009 prcsenbition. This 
reclassification had nn matoiial cffect on tlic consolidatcd balance sheets or statement of  perat at ions of thc 
Company. 

Note 3 -Earnings Per Common Share 

Earnings per common share are based on the weighted average number of comnion shares outstanding 
during each year. Codification Topic "Earnings Per Share" ("FASB ASC 260)  (piior authoiitative guidance: 
Statement of Financial Accounting Siiandards No. 128, "Earnings Per Share") defines the calculation of basic 
and fully diluted earnings per share. Basic and fully diluted earnings per share are based on the weighted average 
shares outstanding during each year and hasic earnings per share exclude any dilutive effects of options, warrants 
and convertible securities. The conversion of OP  Units has been excluded from the basic earnings per share 
calculation. The conversion of an OP Unit to a share of common stock hay no material effect on earnings per 
common share. 
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endcd Dccemher 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 (amounts in thousands): 
The folhring table sets forth the computation ofhasic i d  diluted e;irnings per etrmnion share for the years 

Years Ended December 31, 
2009 2008 2007 _ _ ~ ~  

Numerators: 
income from Continuing Operations: 

Income from continuing operations -hasic . . . . . . . . . . . . .  929,819 $18,157 $22,160 
Amounts allocated to dilutive secuiities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  5,433 4,265 5,322 

Income from continuing operations   fully diluted . . . . . . . .  $35,252 $22,422 $27,482 
~~~ 

income from Discontinued Operations: 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  680 32 2,383 Amounts allocated to dilutive securities 

Income flwm discuntinued oper;itions - fiilly diluted . . . . . .  rj 4,866 S 178 $12,325 

Income from discontinued operations - basic . . . . . . .  $ 4,186 $ 146 $ 9,942 

~ ~ _ _  
~ - _ _  

Net Income Available for Common Shares: 
Net income availahlc for Cc8nimon Sliarcs ~ hasic . . . . . . . .  $34,005 818,30:3 $32,102 
Amounts allocated to  dilutivc securities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  G,1 13 4,297 7,705 

Net income available for Common Sliarcs ~ fully diluted . . .  ~ - -  $40,118 $22,600 $39,807 ~ - _ _ _  
Denominator: 

\Veiglited average Common Shares outst;inding ~ hasic . . . . . .  2i.583 24.4Gti 24,089 
Effect of dilutive securities: 
Redemption of Common OP IJnits for Common 

Sliarcs Shares . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  5,075 5,674 5,870 
Employee stock options and rastlicted shares . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  286 358 455 

diluted.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  32,944 30,498 30,414 
Weighted average Common Shares outstanding - fully 

~ - -  ~ ~ _ _  

Note 4 -Common Stock and Other Equity Related Transactions 

100,0n0,000. 
On May 18, 2007 the stocklioldeis appriived the increase of autlioiized coiiimon stock from 50,000,000 to 
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The fdlowing table prcscnts tlir changes in the Company's nutstanding coiiiiiion stock for the years ended 
December 31,2009, 2008 and 2007 (errcloding 01' Units of 4,914,040, 5,366,741, and 5,836,043 outstanding at 
December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007, Iespectively): 

Shares niitstanding ;it Jaiioary I, . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Units . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Cnmnioo stock issued through conversion of OP 

Common stock issued through exercise of options . . . .  
Common stock issued through stock grants . . . . . . . . .  
Common stock issurd through ESl'P and DRIP . . . . .  
Common stock repurchased and retired . . . . . . . . . . .  

Shares nutstandiug at December 31, . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Comman stock issued through stock offering. . . . . . . .  

2009 

25,051,322 

448,501 
213,721 
27,000 
34,769 

(24,568) 
4,600,000 

30,350,745 

200s 

24,348,517 

469,302 
169,367 
50,000 
'32,184 

(18,048) 
- 

25,051,322 

2007 

23,928,652 

254,025 
143,841 
18,000 
22.820 

(18,821) 
- 

24,348,517 

As of December 31,2009 and 2008, the Company's percentage ownership of the Operating l'aitnership was 
;Ipproximately 86.1% and 82.4%, respectively. Thc remaining approximately 13.9% and 17.6%. respectivrly. w3s 

O \ Y I I P ~  by the ( ~ : r n ~ m n n  0 1 '  Unitholders. 

Thc following regular q u a ~ t ~ r l y  rlistribotions have hcen declared and paid to co~nmnn stockholdcrs and 
~~ 

non-cimtrolling inteicsts since J a n u q  1 

Distribution ,\rnuunt Per Share 

$0.1500 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

'$0.1500 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
$omon . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

2007: 

For the Quorter Stockholder 
E"'1i"g Record Date Pnyrnenl Dote 

blai-ch 31, 2007. . . . .  March 30, 2007 April 13, 2007 
June 30, 2007 . . . . . .  June 29, 2007 July 1:3, 2007 
September 30, 2007. . September 28, 2007 October 12. 2007 

. December 31,2007. . December 28,2007 Tanwary 11, 2008 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  March 31, 2008. . , . . March 28, 2008 April 11, 2008 
$0.2000 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  June 30,2008 . . . . . .  June 27,2008 July 11, 2008 
$0.2000 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  September 30, 2008. . September 26, 2008 October 10, 2008 

$0.2500 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  March 31, 2009 March 27, 2009 Apiil 10, 2009 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  July 10, 2009 

$0.3000 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  Septemher 30,2009. . September 25,2009 October 9,2009 
so.3non . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  ~ e c e r n b ~ ~ -  31. 2009. . December 24. 2009 jktnuary 8. znin  

December 31, 2008. . Dccernber 26, 2008 lanuary 9, 2009 

$0.2500 June 30, 2009 . . June 26, 2009 

The Campany adopted the 199i Non-Qualified Employee Stock Purchase Plan ("ESPP") in July 1997. 
Pursuant to the ESPP, as amended on May 3,2006, certain employees and directors of the Company may each 
annually acquire up to 5250,000 of common stock of the Company. The aggregate number of shares of comnion 
stock available under the ESPP shall not exceed 1,000,000, subject to adjustment by the Company's Board of 
Directors. The common stock may he purchased monthly at a price equal to 85% of the lesser of. (a) the closing 
piice for a share of common stock on the last day of the offering period; and (b) the closing piice for a share of 
common stock on the first day of the offering period. Shares of common stock issued through the ESPP for the 
years ended December 31,2009 and 2008 were 34,450 and 31,770, respectively. 
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On June 29, 2009, the Comp;my issued 4.6 million sliares of conimoii stock in an  equity offeiing for 
proceeds of approximatcly $146.4 million, net of offeiing costs. 

Note 5 -Investment in Real Estate 

Investment in Real Estate is comprised of (amounts in thousands): 

Properties Held for Long Term 

December 31, 
2W9 

Investment in real estate: 
Land . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 543,613 
Land improvements. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  1,741,142 
Buildings and other depreciable property . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  248,907 

2,533,662 
hccumulatcd depreciatim . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  (628,83Y) 

Net investnient in real cstatr . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $l,Y04,823 

December 31, 
2008 

$ 539,702 
1,715,627 

222,699 

2,478,028 
(5,555,0011 

$1,921,027 

Properties Heldfor Sale 

December 31, December 31, 
moo 2008 

Investment in real estate: 
Land . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $1,109 $ 2,277 
Land irnpnivcrrients . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  3,301 10,125 
Buildings and other depreciable property . . . . . . . . . . . .  __ 143 ~ 591 

4,553 12,993 
Accumul;ited depreciation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  (929) (4,103) 

Net inwstment in real estatr . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $3,624 S 8,890 
~ ~ 

~ - ~ 

Land improvements consist primarily of improvenwnts such as grading, Iandscying ;and infrastructure 
itrms such as streets, sidewalks or water mains. Buildings and other &qwxialde propefiy consist of permanent 
buildings in the Properties such as clubhouses, laundry facilities, maintenance storage facilities, rcutal units and 
fui-niture, fmtures and equipment. See Note 7 in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements contained 
in this Form 10-K for disclosure regarding the reclassification of resort cottage inventor?, to Buildings and other 
depreciable pruperty during the year isnded December 31, 2009. 

All acquisitions have been accounted for utilizing the purcbase method of accounting and, accordingly, the 
results ofopei-ations of acquired assets iare included in the statements ofoperations from the dates of acquisition. 
Certain purchase price adjustments may he made within one year following tlie acquisitions. We acquired all of 
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these Properties from uniiffiliated third parties. Duiiiig the years ended Decc.mber 31,2009,2008 and 2007, the 
Company acquircd tlic following Prnpixtics ( d o l l a ~  in millions): 

1 )  During the year ended I>ecember 31, 2009, we acquired the remaining 75% interests in tl ir  filllowing 
three Diversified Portfolio jnint ventllres k n o w  as: 

Real Debt N e t  
Closing Date ~ Lucation Total Sites Estate Assumed E* 

Felirnary 13, 2009 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Plynonth Rock Elkliart Lake, \VI 609 $10.7 $6.4 (3)  $4.3 
Februq  13,2009 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Robin Hill Lenhartsville. PA 270 5.0 3.5 I .5 
February 13, 2009 , , , , , . . . . . . . . . . . Sun Valley Brownsville, PA 265 3.5 1.9 1.6 

(a) Net nf approximately $1.1 million of mark-to-market discount. 

2 )  During the year endnd December 31, 2008, we zicquired the following Properties: 

Real Net 
Closing Date ~ Location Total Sites Estate Debt 

January 14, 2008 . . . . . Grandy Creek Concrete, WA 179 $1.8 $- $1.8 
_ _  

January 23, 200X . . . . . . . . . . . Lake Ckorge Schroan Vdley \&'amnsburg, NY 151 2.1 - 2.1 

3) Diiririg tlic \;car e n d d  I~cci.~nhel- :31, 2007, we iicquil-ed the fnllnwing Propc,rtics: 

Closing Date 

J:inuan, 29, 200i 

Real Net 
Total Sites Estate Deht __ _ _ _  Location 

Mi lrn  Verde ( a )  ' iuora,  AZ ,245 s 5,') 63.5 $2.4 
June 27, 2007. . . . . . . . . . . . . \Vtnter Garden (a) Winter Garden, FL r350 10.9 4.0 6.9 
August 3,  2007 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . , Pine lslmd St. James City, FI. '3K3 6.5 ~ 6.5 
September 26, LOO7 . . . . . . . . . . . . Snnta Cruz HV Ranch Scotts Valley. CA 106 i.5 - 5.5 
October 11; 2007 . . . . . . . . . . . . . Tuxbury Resort Ameshry, MA 30.5 7.3 l . l(h) G . l  

(ti) Purchased remaining 75% interest in the hvo Diversified Investments joint venture Properties above, in  
which we liad an existing 25% joint venture ownership interest of $0.7 million. Thc gross purchase pricc for 
Mesa Verde includes 90.3 milliori in prepaid rent. 

Net of approximately $0.1 million of mark-to-market adjustment 

Investment in roal <:state also increased d u e  to the consolidation of the Bar Harlxx joint venturc as of 
lleceinbcr31, 2007. Seta Note G i n  the Notes to Consolidated Fiiimcial Statelrirnts contained in tliis Fnrni 10-K. 

We actively seek to acquire additisma1 Propelties and currently are engaged in negotiations d a t i n g  to the 
possible acquisition of a number of Properties. At any time these negotiations are at varying stages, which may 
includc contracts outstanding, to  acquire certain Properties, which are subject to satisfactory completion d o u r  
due cliligrnce review. 

(h)  

As of December 31, 2009, the Company has one Property designated as held for disposition pursuant to 
FASB ASC 360-10-35. The Company determined that this Propeity no longer met its invrstment ciiteria. As 
such, the results from operations of this Property is classified as income from discontinued operations. The 
Property classified a? held for disposition is listed in the table below. 

Property 

Creekside . . . , . . , . , . , 
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Note 5 -Investment in Real Estate (continued) 

On Deceniher 29, 2009, a deed-in-lieu of foreclosure agreement, signed by tlie Company was sent to the 
loan servicer regarding ow nonrecour!ie mortgage loan of appmximatcly $3.6 million secured by Crcekside. See 
Note 18 in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements contained in this Form 10-K. 

During the three years ended December 31,2009, the Company sold the frillowing Properties. Except for 

I) On July 20,2009, we sold Cas21 Village, a 490-site manufactured home Property in Billings, Montana for 
a stated purchase price of appximatrly $12.4 million, The buyer ;issunled $ 1  0.6 million of mortgage 
debt that had a stated interest rate of 6.02% and was scliedule to mature in 2013. The Company 
recognized a gain on the sale of appi-oximately $5.1 million. Cash proceeds from the sale, net of closing 
costs, were approximately $1 . I  million. 

2) On April 17, 2009, we sold Caledonia, a 247-site resort Propeity in Caledonia, \Visconsin, for pmueeds 
of approximately $2.2 million, The Company recognized a gain on sale of approximately $0.8 million 
which is included in Incomr from other investments, net. In addition, we seceived approximately 
$0.3 million of deferred rent duc from the previous tenant. 

3) On November 30, 2007, we sold Holiday Village, a 519-site all-age manufactured home Property in 

4) On July 6, 2007, the Conipany sold Ilel Hey, i i  IOi-sitc% ,n;inufactrir.cd hmnr Prop- ty  in Albuquerque, 
New Mexico, for proccx~cls iiTapprnximatel\- $13.0 d l m n  and rvcrignizd a gain 011 sale ofapproximately 
$6.9 million. The proceeds wtre depositcd in a tzwdrferred exchange account and tlie proceeds were 
subsequently iised for the acquisition of Pine Island and Tuxhn7; Kesoi-t discussed above. 

5 )  On Januaiy 1 0 ,  2007, the Compaiiy sold, Lazy Lakes: a 100-site rcwit Prop?rty in  the Florida Keys kx 
proceeds of approximately 57.7 millim and rccognixrl a p i n  mi salc of apploxiinatr:ly $1.6 million Tho 
proceeds were deposited in i i  t;i\-defewc,d enchangr iiccwnt iind were suhsequently used for tlin 
acquisitions of Winter Garden and Mrsa Verde discusscd ahove. 

The following table summarizes the combined results of operations of Properties held for sale or sold during 

Caledonia, the operating results have been reflected in discontinued operations. 

Sioux City, Iowa for approximately $2.6 million and a gain of approximately $0.6 million. 

the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 200‘7 (amounts io thousands): 

2009 2008 2007 ~ - -  
Hental income..  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  S1,424 $2,121 $ 3,020 
Utility and other income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  96 155 243 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  (7%) (1,lOl) (1,972) 

Income from property operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  762 1,175 1,291 
Income (loss) from home sales operations . . .  22 8 (65) 

Gain (loss) on real estate. --- 4,686 (79) 12,036 

Property operating revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  1,520 2,2iF 3,263 

_ _ _ _ _ _  Property operating expenses 

Interest a i d  amortization . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  (604) (926) (9.3’7) 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Income from discontinued operalions . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $4,866 $ 178 $12,325 ~ - -  _ _ _ _ _ _  

Note 6 -Investment in Joint Ventures 

The Company recorded approximately $2.9 million and $3.8 million of equity in income from unconsol- 
idated joint venturcs, net of approximately $1.3 million and $1.8 million of depreciation expense for the years 
ended December 31, 2009 and 2008:, respectively. The Company received approximately $2.9 million and 
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$4.2 million in distributions from such joint ventores fvr the years ended December 31, 2009 zind 2008, 
respoctivcly. Appmrimatcly $2.9 million and $3.7 million of such distributions were sificd as a return on 
capital and were included in operating activities on the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for tlic years 
ended Decemher 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively. The remaining distributions were classified as a return of 
capital and classified as investing actib5ties on the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows. Approximately 
$1.3 million and $2.7 million of the distributions received in the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, 
respectively, excc:eded the Company's basis in its joint venture and as such were recordcd in income from 
unconsolidated joint ventures. Distrihutions include amounts received from the sale or liquidation of equity in 
joint venture investments. 

On Fehi-oaiy 1.3, 2009, the Compny  purcliased the remaining 7.5% interest in the Diversified Portfolio 
joint venture Properties i n  which we liad an existing 25% joint venture intei-est. The l'rvperties are knnwn as 
Robin Ilill in 1,enliaitsville. Pennsylvania, Sun Valley in Rowniansville, Pennsylvmia and Plymouth Hock in 
Elkhart Lake, Wisconsin. Also on Fclirnary 13, 2009, the Company sold its 25% interest in the Divcrsified 
Portfolio joint ventures known as Hnund Top, in Gettyshurg, Pennsylvania and Pine Haven in Ocean View, New 
Jersey. A gain on sale nf approximately $1.1 million was recognized and is included in equity iii inconie from 
nnconsolidated joint ventures. 

i h i i ~ i g  tli,, yr iw e n d ~ l  1 3 ~ ~ ~ n 1 h i ~ r  31, 2008, thc Comp;iny invested ;tpprvriniately $S.i iiiillivii to  .icqtiil-e :LII 

xlditionnl 2.5% intcrcst irr \'optgc:i- H;V Rmort, incre;ising the Compny's owiiwsliip intcrcst to 50%. Tlii. 
additional invcstment was detr-lniincd mi a tatal puichase price ot $50.5 million and mvrtgage debt vf 
$22.5 million. The Company exercised its option to acquire the remaining percentage of Bar Harbor joint 
venture froin its joint vr i i t~m p;u-tner. Under t1iP fnrmnla provided for in the call nption section of tlie joint 
venture agr-ec-inlent, no additivnal cnnsideratinn was required to be paid to  exercise the nptimi and tlie CoIIqxiny 
n u w  o w i s  100% of thc tlircc Hal- H:whol- Pnipcrties. Thc Company sold its 25%, intercst in thc four M0rg;ln 
Poitfdio jnint \rcntures known 8 s  New Point in  New Point, Virginia, Virginia Park in Old Orchard He;mh, M;ine, 
Club Naples in Naples, Florida and Gwynn's Island in Cwynn, Virginia, for a sales price of approximately 
$2.1 rnil l ian The sales price fur the four  Morgan Poitfolio joint ventures was based on a total sales price of 
approximately $25.7 million net of mortgage debt of approximately $17.2 million. A gain on the sale of 
approximately $1.6 million was recognized, The Company also received approximately 50.4 million held for 
the initial investment in one of the Morgan Propelties. 

During the year ended December 31, 2008, the Company received approximately $4.2 million in distr- 
butions fi-om our joint ventnres. $3.7 million of these distributions were classified as return on capital and were 
included i n  oper:iting activities. The wniaining distiihutions of approximately $O.J Itnillion wCre cl 
return of capital and wcre included i l l  investing activities and were related to the sale of the Company's 25% 
interest in four nfourjoint venture Properties. Approximately 52.7 million ofthe distributions received exceeded 
the Company's basis in its joint venture and as such were recorded in income from unconsolidatcd joint vent",-cs. 
Ofthese distrihutinns, K.fimillion relates to the p i n  on thcpayoffofooI-shan.ofsrllerfjnancing in excess ofour 
jvint uciit,il-e hasis nn  n n c  Lakeshorc invcstment. 

Duiing the year ended December 31, 2007, the Company invested approximately $2.7 million in devel- 
oping one nf the Bar Harbor joint venture Properties, which resulted in an increase ofthe Company's ownership 
interest per the joint venture agreement. As of December 31, 2007, the Bar Harbor joint venture had been 
consolidated with the operations of the Company as the Company bad determined that as of December 31,2007 
we are the primaiy beneficialy by applying the standards of FASB ASC 810-10-15. This consolidation had 
decreased the Company? investment in joint venture by approximately $11.1 million, with an offsetting increase 
in investment in real estate. 
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Duiing thr ypar ended December 31, 2007, the Compony received appi-oximately $5.2 million in clistri- 
butinns from our joint ventures. $5.1 million of these distiihotions classified as return on capital and were 
included in operating activities. The remaining distributions of approximately $0.1 million were classified as a 
return of capital and were included in investing activities and wese related to refinancings at three of our joint 
venture Properties. Approximately $2.5 million of the distributions received exceeded the Company's basis in its 
joint venture and as such were recorded in income from unconsolidated joint vcntiires. 

The following table summarizes the Conipany's investment in unconsolidated joint ventures (with the 
number of Properties shown parenthetically fnr thr years c d c d  Decembcr 3 1 ,  2009 and 2008, respectively): 

Meadows Investments . . . . .  Valiaus ($?,e) 1,027 50% $ 245 $ 406 $ 877 $ 838 $ 698 
Likeshore Investments . . . .  Floda  (2.2) '342 65% 133 110 277 590 276 

Othrl- Investments . . . . . . .  \'>annus (O,5)lu) - - 25% ~ 332 ~ 20i  ~ 1,192 1,555 
Voyager. . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  Arizona (1 , l )  1,70fi SO%(b) 8,732 8,953 550 470 313 

~ 

$9,442 $9,676 $2,896 $3,753 $2,696 - ~ ~ ~ ~ _ _  - _ _ ~  '3,075 

(a)  The percentages slrnwn apprnxiiiiate t lhe  Coiripiiny's cvx>mInic interest a i  of Decembc~ 31, 2009. Tlie 
Campany's legal owncrship intvrut may difier. 

(h) Voyager joint venture primarily consists of a 50% interest in Vnyagcr RV Hesnrt. A 2% interest in the utility 
plant sewicing the Property is int:Iuded i n  Otlier Investments. 

In Februaly- 2009, the Corripaiiy sold its 25% intmwt i r i  hvc Divc.rifkd l'nrtfdin joint ventures. ( c )  

Note 7 - Inventory 

The following table sets foith Inventory as of the yea,-s ended Dcconibor 31, 700'3 and 2008 (amounts in 
thousands): 

December  31,2009 December  31,2008 

New honres(1). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 174 $ 8,436 
Used homes(2) - 

Other ( 3 ) .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  2,790 4,651 

Total inventm 2 (4) . . . .  . . . . . . .  2,964 13,399 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  (465) 

Inventory, net of resene  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $2,964 $12,934 

312 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
~ ~ 

- rve 
~ 

~ __. - ~ 

(1) 

(2 )  

(3 )  
(4) Includes zero and $0.3 million in discontinued operations as of December 31,2009 and 2008, respectively. 

During the year ended December 31, 2009, 56.7 million of new and used resort cottage inventory and 
related 1-esewes were reclassified tn fu;ed assets. During the year ended Dccemher 31, 2008, $57.8 million of 
manufactured home inventory, including reserves of approximately $0.8 million, was reclassified to Buildings 
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and other depreciable property. Tlie inventoiy reclassified is primaiily rented to ciistoniers 0 1 1  im aniiual hasis. 
ssificatim wis made t n  refle,ct the current use of the resoui-ces as rental units. 

Note 8 -Notes Receivable 

As of December 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008, the Company had approximately $30.0 million and 
$31.8 million in notes receivable, respcctively. As of December 31, 2009 and 2008, the Company has approx- 
imately $10.4 million and $12.0 million, respectively, in Chattel Loans receivable, which yield interest at  it per 
annilin merase rate of appronimatrly 8.8%. liave an average term and arnortizatioii of :3 to 20 years, rc<pirc 
monthly principd and interest payments and are collateralized by homes at certain of the Properties. These 
notes are recorded net ofallowances of approximately $0.3 million and $0.2 million us of Decemhcr.31,2009 and 
December 31. 2008, respectively. During the year ended December 31. 2009 and 2008, approximately 
$1.0 million and $1.5 million, respectively, was repaid and an additional $0.5 million and $4.3 million, 
respectively, was loaned to customers. 

As of Dec~rnber 31. 2009 and Decemlrer 31, 2008, tlie Company had approximately $ l i . 4  million and 
$19.5 million, respectively, of Contracts Receivzihles, including allowances of apprnainxitely 81.2 million and 
$0.3 million, 1-espcctively. These Contracts Receivables represent loans to customers who have purchased 
right-to-use contracts. The Contracts Receivable yield interest at a per annum average rate of 16.5%, liave a 
wrightcd avt:r;igc tonn wiiaining of aPl”i~”irn:itr:ly foul- years and q u i r e  mrmthly paymcnts of principal and 
intwest. Iluiiirg tlic pcl-id ended I1et:eniher :31, 2009 and 2008, appmximately $:I.G nillirrn and $40 indlion, 
rcspoctiw:ly, \viis rcp id  and a i r  additio~ral $8.0 million a id  $4.0 million, rrtspcctivcly. \vas I o a i i c ~ d  t o  custoinors. 

As of Drcembel- 31, 2009 ;and 2008, the Company had approximately $0.2 million imd $0.4 Inillion 
rcspccti\~:ly. i n  notcs, w l d i  ba;ir inti:n:st at a pcr aniiuni rntc of primc plus 0.5% md matorc 011 D 
201 I. Tlie notrs :11p cd:rtel-;ilizetl wit13 pwtnerslrip interests in certain joint ventorc’s. 

As of Slecernher 31,2009 and 200,Y, the Company had appi-wimately $2.0 million and zero, respectively, in 
notes, whicli bear interest at a per annum rate of 11.0% and matures on July 6, 2010. The note is collateraliz.ed by 
first priority mortgages on four resort properties. 

Note 9 - Long-Term Borrowings 

Secured Debt  

As of December 31, 2009 and Desxmber 31, 2008, the Company had outstanding miitgage indebtedness 
on P i -o l~~ t i e s  lielil for long term of approximately $1,542.5 million and $1, million, rcspcctively, and 
appimximately $4 inillion and $14 milliun of n1ortg;igeindebtedness a s  ofDecember 31,2009 and Deccmber31, 
2008, rospoctivcly, on Propcrties held for salo. The weighted average intcrcst rate on this mortgage indchtcdncss 
for the years ended December 31.2003 and December 31.2008 was approximately 6.1% per annum and 5.9% 
per annum, respectively. The debt bears interest at rates of5.0% to 10.0% per annum and matures on various 
dates ranging from 2010 to 2019. Included in our December 31, 2008 debt balance are threc capital leases with 
balances of apprnximately $6.7 million with imputed interest rates of 13.1% per annum. Tlre outstandiiig 
balances on these capital leases were paid offon July 1,2008. The debt encumbered a total of 140 and 1.51 of the 
Company’s Properties as of December 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008, and the carrying value of such 
Properties was approximately $1,680 million and $1,694 million, respectively, as of such dates. 

As of December 31,2009 and 2008, the Company has outstanding debt secured by certain manufactured 
homes of $1.5 million and $0 million, respectively. This financing provided by the manufactured home dealer 
requires monthly payments, bears interest at 8.5% and matures on the earlier of: 1) the date the home is sold, 111 

2) November 20, 2016. 

F-26 



Equity Lifestyle Properties, Inc. 

Notes To Consolidated Financial Statements 

Note 9 - Long-Term Borrowings (continued) 

Financing, Refinancing a n d  Early Debt  Retirement 

2009 acticity 

During the year ended December 31, 2009, the Company closed on approximatcly $107.5 million of new 
financing, on six manofactured home properties, with a weighted average interest rate of 6.32%. We used the 
procecds from tlie financing to pay-off approximately $106.i million on 20 l'roperties, Mith a weighted avcrage 
interest rate of 7.36%. Duiing Decernber 2009, we horrowed approximately 51.5 illillion which is secured by 
individual manufactnred homes. 

On February 13,2009, in connection with the acquisition of the remaining 75% interests in the Diversified 
Portfolio joint venture, we assumed mortgages of approwimately 512.9 million with a value of apprnximately 
$11.9 million. 

On December 17,2009, the Cornpiny paid off the $2 million iinsecured note payable to Privileged Access. 

2008 ncticity 

During the year ended December 31,2008, the Company closed on approximately $231.0 million of new 
financing. on 15 manufactured home properties, with a weighted average interest rate of 6.01%. We used the 
proceeds from the financins to  pay-off ipproxirnatels $245.8 m i l l i u n  o f  nrortgagc deht on 28 ini;miif~ictilrerl home 
prnpi:~tics, with a wc~iglitcd ~ v o I - R ~ ( ~  intcrcst la t i '  o f  5 54%,. TI,<, p rnccds  W ~ ~ I C  also u s r d  to pay doun amoiints 
nutstanding o n  our lines nf credit. 

Unsecured Loans 

we have two umccured h i e s  of Crpdit ("L,OC") nS$350 m i l h n  ; i d  $20 millimi tliat liiiar interest at a rate 
of LIBOR plus a maximum of 1.20% per. annum, have a O.l,j% kicility fcc,, mature on June 30,2010, and have a 
one-year extension option. The weigh,ted average interest rat? f r x  tlie ye;ir ended December 31, 2009 fur our 
unsecured deht was approximately 1.7% per annum. During the year ended December 31,2009, we borrowed 
$50.9 million and paid down $143.9 million on the lines of credit for a net pay-down of $93.0 million. As of 
December 31, 2009, there were no amounts nutstanding on the line of credit. 

Other  Loans 

Aggregate payments ofprincipal c ~ n  long-term bnrrowings fnr each ofthe next six years and thereafter are as 
follows (amaunts in thousands): 

e Amount 

2010 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . .  $ 203,663 
2011 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  75,719 
2012 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . .  21,806 
2013 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  121,685 
2014 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  200,828 
201.5 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  533,392 
Thereafter. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  391,598 

Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $1,547,901 

Net unamortized premiums . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  (791) 
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The salcs of iiglit-to-use contracts are recognized ill accordance with FASR ASC 605. The Company will 
recognize the upfront non-refundable payments over the estimated customer life which, based on lristorical 
attiition rates, the Company has estimated to be behveen one to 31 years. The commissions paid on the sale of 
light-to-use contracts will be deferred and amortized over the same period as the related sales revenue. 

Coinponents of the change in dderred revenue-sale of right-to-use contracts and deferred commission 
e r p ~ n s e  are as follows (amounts in thousands): 

2009 2008 
~~ 

Deferred revenue - sale of right-to-use contracts, as of Janualy 1, . . . . . . . .  $10,611 $ ~ 

Deferral of new light-to-use contracts . . .  . . . . . .  21,526 10,951 
Deferrcd revwmr reconnizerl . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  (2,644) (340) 

Net increase in deferred revenue..  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  18,882 10,611 

Deferred revenue - sale of light-to-use contracts, as of 13ecemhei- 31, . . . . .  ~~ $10,611 $29.493 

Defcrrerl commission expensc, as of january I, . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  S 3,644 6 ~ 

Amortization of deferred costs . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  (821 ) (112) 

0 ~~ 

~~ 

~~ 

Costs deferred.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  6,550 X ~ S F  

N r t  incIpiisv i i i  iI<~f&ed coniniis>:ion c~xpeiisr . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  5,729 3,644 
~ 

~~ 

lleferl-cd ctririinission expense, December 31,  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 9,373 $ .i,F41 
~~ 

~~ 

Notc 11 - Leasc Agreements 

The 1c;ises entered in to  hetwcen the custriiner and the Company f ix  the rental of :L sitc iirc genemlly 
rnontl,-ti,-montli CII for B period of o w  to ten years, renewable up011 the consent of the partics ai-. in some 
instances. as provided by statute. Nan-cancelable long-term leases are in effect at certain sites within approx- 
imately 31 ofthr Properties. Rental rate increases at these Properties are primarily a function of increases in the 
Consumer Price Index, taking into consideration certain conditions. Additionally, periodic market rate adjost- 
ments are made as deemed appropriate. Future minimum rents are scheduled to be received under lion- 
cancclablc tenant lcases at December 31, 2009 as follows (amounts in thousands): 

Year Amount 

2010 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

2011 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

2012 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

2014 . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  16,3G3 

T<,td . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

- 

Note 12 - Ground Leases 

The Company leases land under .non-cancelahle operating leases at certain of the Properties expiring in 
various years fi-om 201.3 to 2054, with terms which require twelve equal payments per year plus additional rents 
calculated as a percentage of gross rewnues. For the year ended December 31, 2009, ground lease rent was 
approximately $1.9 million and for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007, ground lease rent was 
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approxim;itely $1.8 million and $1.6 million, respwtively. Miniimirn future rental payments under the ground 
leases as of December 31, 2009 as follows (amounts in thousands): 

Amount 
~ 

2010 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . .  . . .  S 1,917 
2011 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  1,910 
3012 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  1,917 
2013 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

2014 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Thereafter . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . .  . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  18,660 

Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . .  $28,233 
~ 

~ - 

Note 13 -Transactions with Related Parties 

Privileged Access 

On August 14, 2008, the Company closed on thc PA Tr;insactim by acquiring substantially all of the assets 
and assoinctl wl-tain liabilities of Privilsged Acc-rss fcx an  nnwctireil noti. p,!\.ahle of $2.0 ndlion wliicli was paid 
nff during tlie year ended ~ecernbcl- :>I; 2000. Prior t u  the purcIias<~. l'rivileged ~ c c e s s  Iiad a I 2-year lease with 
the Compnny for 82 Propelties that terminated upmi closing. At closing, appoximately $4.8 million of Privileged 
Access cash was deposited into an escrow account for liabilities that Privileged Access bas retained. The halance 
in the <'screw account as nf Decemhsr 31, 2009 was apprrximatclg $1.9 inillion 

hlr. McAdams, the Coirrp;iny's I'rcsidriit effcctivc r i t n u q  1, 2008. o\vris 100% of Privilrged Access. The 
Company has entered into an employment agrcement effective as nf Janualy 1, 2008 (the "Eniployment 
Agreement") with Mr. McAdams which provides for an  initial term nf three years, hut such Employment 
Agreement can be tcrrninated at any t:ime. The Employment Agreement provides for a minimum annual base 
salary of $0.3 million, with the option to receive an annual bonus in an amount up to three times his base salary. 
Mr. McAdarns is also subject to a non-compete clause and to mitigate potential conflicts of interest shall have no 
authority, on behalf of the Company and its affiliates, to enter into any agreement with any entity controlling, 
controlled by or affiliated with Privileged Access. Prior to forming Piivileged Access, Mr. McAdams was a 
member of our Board of Directors frwm January 2004 to October 2005. Siinult;meous with his appointment as 
president of Equity Lifestyle Properties, Inc., Mr. McAdams resigned as Privileged Access's Chairman, 
President and CEO. However, lie was on the b w d  nf P A T  Holding Company, 1.I.C ("PATT'), until thc 
entity w i l s  dissolved in 2008. 

Mr. Heneghan, the Company's CE:O, was a member ofthe hoard of PATT. pursuant to the Company's rights 
undcr its resort Property leases with Privileged Access to represent the Company's interests from A p d  14,2006 
to August 13, 2008. Mr. Heneglhan did not receive compensation i n  his capacity as a meinher of such 11o;ird. 

In connection with the PA Transaction, the Company hired most of the property employees and certain 
propeity management and corporate ,employees of Privileged Access. Subsequent to the PA Transaction, the 
Company reinibursed Privileged Acceas for services provided in 2008 hy Privileged Access employees retained 
by Privileged Access, which were necessary for the transition of the former Privileged Access operations to the 
Company. 

Privileged Access had the following substantial business relationships with the Company, which were all 
terminated with the closing of the PA. Transaction on August 14, 2008. As of both December 31, 2009 and 
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December :31, 2008, there were no p;iyments owed to the Company or by  the Company witli respcct to tlie 
relationships describcd below 

Piior to August 14, 2008, the C;ompany was leasing approximately 24,300 sites at 82 resort Properties 
(wliich includes 60 Properties operated by a subsidialy of Privileged Access known as the ''IT Poitfolio") 
to Privileged A c c ~ s s  c i r  its subsidiaries. For the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007 we 
recognized zero, $15.8 million, ,and $20.5 million, respectively, in rent from thesc leasing arrangement.;. 
The lease income is included in Income from other investments, net in the Company's Consolidated 
Statcments of Opcxations. During the years ended Decemhcr 31, 2009 and D mhcr 31. 2008. tllc 
Company reimbursed zero and approximately $2.7 million, respectively, to Privileged Access for capital 
improvements. - Effective Januar). 1, 2008, the leases for these Properties provided for the following significant terms: 
a) annual fixed rent of approwinlately $25.5 million, b) annual rent increases at the highor of Consnmer 
Price Index ("CPI") vr a reneptiated amount based upon the fair market value of tlie Properties, 
c) expiration date nf Januar). 15, 2020, and d) two 5-year extension terms :it the option of Privileged 
Access. The Jann;uy 1, 2008 lea,ie for the %I' Portfolio also included provisions where the Ccinipany paid 
Prideged Access $1 million for enteiing into the amended lease. The $1 million payment was being 
amortized on a pro-rata basis over the remaining term of the lease as an offset tO the annual lease 
pziyments iind thr rernziining lyalance at August 14, 200s of S0.9 million W:LS expcnscd ;mil is includcd in 
Incnme firm ntlxr investments, net during tlie ycar ended Decemher 31, 2008. 

The Coinpany had suhordirrate,d its lease payment for the 'IT Portfolio to a bank that loaned Piivilrged 
Access $5 millinn. The Company acquired this loan as part of the FA Transaction and paid off the lonn 
chi-iiig t h e  year cndc~d Decrinbar 31, 2008. - From J u n c  12, 2006 thmugli Ji.dy 14, 2008, Privileged Access had Icasrd 130 cottage sitr.s a t  Ti-opical 
I'alm~, ii resort Property 1oc;iterl near Orlando, Florida. For the years ended 1Iec.emheI- :I I ,  2009 ;ind 
2008, we earned no rent and approximately $0.8 million, respectively, in rcnt fiom this leasing 
arrangement. The lease income is included in the Resort base rental income in the Company's 
Consolidated Statements of Operations. The Tropical Pahns lease expired on July 15, 2008, and the 
entire property was leased to a new independent operator for 12 years. 

On April 14, 2006, the Company loaned Privileged Access approximately $12.3 million at a pcr annuni 
interest rate of prime plus 1.5%, maturing in one year and secured by Thousand Trails membership sales 
contract rrceivables. The loan was fully paid off during the quatter ended September 30, 2007. 

* The Comp;iny previously leascd 40 to 160 sites at three resort Pmpeiiies i n  Flmldii, to a subsidial); nf 
Privilegcd Access from Octohel- 1, 2007 until Angust 14, 2008. The sites vaiied during wch nionth of thr 
lease term due to the seasonatty of the resort business in Florida. For the year ended December 31, 
2008, we rccognizcd less than $0.2 million in rent from this leasing arrangement. Thc lcasc iiicome is 
included in the Resort hase rental income in the Company's Consolidated Statements of Operations. 

* The Company previously leased 40 to 160 sites at Lake Magic, a resort Property in Clermnnt, Florida, to a 
subsidialy of Pi-ivileged Access from December 15, 2006 until September 30, 2007. The sites varied 
during each month of the leaye term due to the seasonality of the resort business in Florida. For the years 
ended December 31,2009 and December 31,2008, we recognized zero and approximately $0.2 million, 
respectively, in rent from this leaing arrangement. The lease incomc is included in the Resort hase rental 
income in the Company's Con,solidated Statements of Operations. - The Company had an option to purchase the suhsidiarics of Privileged Access, including 'IT, beginning 
on April 14, 2009, at the then fair market value, subject to the satisfaction of a number of significant 

F-30 



E:quity Lifestyle Properties, Inc. 

Notes To Consolidated Financial Statements 

Note 13 -Transactions with Related Parties (continued) 

contingencies ("ELS Option"). The ELS Option terminated with the closing of the PA Tr;msaction on 
August 14,2008. The Company had consented to a fixed piicc option wliere the Chairman ofPATTcould 
acquire the subsidiaries of Privileged Access an).time before December31,2011. The fxed price option 
iilso terminated on August 14, 2008. 

Privileged Access and the Company previously agreed to c:ertiiin arrangements in whicli we utilized each 
other's services. Privileged Accrss assisted the Company with functions such as: call centcr management, 
propeiiy management, information technoloby, legal, sales and marketing. Duiing the years ended 
December 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008, thc Company incurred no expense and approximately 
$0.6 million, respectively, for the use of Piivileged Access employees. The Company received approx- 
imately $0.1 million from Privileged Acccss for Privileged Access use of certain Company information 
technology resources during the year ended December '31, 2008. The Company and Privileged Access 
cngagcd a third party to cvaluatc thc f;<r market value of such cmploycc services. 

In addition to the arrangements ilescribed ;ibove, the Company had the fnllouing smaller arrangements 
with Prideged Access. In each arrangmnent, the ;mount of income or enpen :is zipplicable, recognized by the 
Company for the year ended Decemtier 31,  2009 is zmc  and weic less t1i;in $0.2 million for the year ended 
December 31, 2008. There are no amounts due under these arrangements ils of December 31, 2009 or 
December 31,2008. 

Since Nnvember I, 2006, tlic Co~np;irry l e x s c i l  41 to  41 site\ at  22 resort I'nipwtir.~ to l'rivilegcd Access 
(the "Park Pass lLe:isc"]. The I'ark Pass Lease tw>tiiiiated with the closing of the PA Transactirin [in 
August 14, 2008. 

The Company and Privileged P,ccess cntered into a Site Exchange Agreement Leginning Septeniher 1, 
2007 and ending M;y 31, 2008 Under t h  Site Excliange t\greement. tlic Conipany allowed Privileged 
Acccss to use 20 sites ut an Arizona remit Property knnwn ti\ Count~ysidc~. In return, Privileged Access 
allowed the Company to use 20 sites at an Arizniia resort Property ki~owi~  ~LS Verde Vdley Resurt (a 
property in the TT Portfolio). - The Company and Privileged Access entered into a Site Exchange Agreement for a one-year period 
beginning June 1,2008 and ensding May 31, 2009. Under the Site Exchange Agreement, the Company 
allowed Privileged Access to use 90 sites at six resort Properties. In return, Privileged Access allowed the 
Company to use 90 sites at ::ix resort Properties leased to Privileged Access. The Site Exchange 
Agreement was terminated with the closing of the PA Transaction on August 14, 2008. 

* On September 15,2006, the Company and Piivilegetl Access mtercd into a Park Model Sales Agreement 
relxted to aTexas rastirt Prnperty in the 7 7  Portfiilio known as 1.ake Connie. Under the P;irk Mudel Sales 
Agreement, Privileged Access was allowed to sell up  to 26 park inodels at Lake Cimroe. Prideged Access 
was obligated to pay the Company 90% ofthe site rent collected fi-om the park model buyer. All 26 homes 
have been sold as of Dcccmher,31,2007. The Park Model Salcs Agl-ccmcnt terminated with the closing of 
the PA Transaction o n  August 14, 2008. 

The Company advertises in Trailblazer inagizinc that was puhlished hy a subsidiary of Piivileged Access 
prior to August 14, 2008. Trailblazer is an award-winning recreational lifestyle magazine for active 
campers, which i s  read hy more than 65,000 paid suhsciihers. Begnning on August 14, 2008, the 
Company began publishing Tr:illblazer in accordance with the terms of the PA Transaction. 

On July 1,2008, the Company and Privileged Access entered into an agreement, where Piivileged Access 
sold the Company's used resoit cottages at certain Properties leased to Piivileged Access. The Company 
paid Privileged Access a commission for selling the inventory and the agreement was terminated on 
August 14, 2008. 
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On April 1,2008, tlre Company entered into a lease for a corporate apartment located i n  Chicago, Illinois 
fix usc by Mr. McAdams and other employees of the Company and Piivilegcd Access. Thc Company paid 
monthly rent payments, plus utilities and housekeeping expenses and Mr. McAdams reimbursed the 
Conipany for a portion of thc rent. Prior to August 14,2008, Privileged Access reimbursed the Company 
for a portion ofthe rent and utilities and housekeeping expenses. Such kase  terminated on December 31, 
2008. 

Corporate headquarters 

The Cn~npany leases office space from Two North Hiverside Plaza Joint Venture Limited Paiinersbip, in1 

entity affiliated with blr. Zell, the Company's Chairman of the Board. Payments made in accordance with the 
lease agieement to this entity amounted to approximately $1.0 million, $0.6 million, and $0.7 million for the 
years ended December 31,2009,2008 and 2007, respectively. As of Decernher:31,2009 and 2008, approximately 
$60,000 and $62,000, respectively, were accrued with respect to this offiicr lease. 

Other  

In Janualy 2009, the Company entered into a consulting agreement with the son of MI. Howard Walker, to 
provide assistance with the Company's internet web marketing strategy. MI. Walker is Vicc;-Chairman of the 
(:ompany's 13mrd of Il irwtors.  Tlic consulting agl-ccmient was for term of  sir months ;It i~ t k i l  cmt rifno InlllrP 

t l h i  $48.000 i i i i c l  cxpirctl m t  j u n c  30, 2009. 

Notc 14 -Stock Option Plan a n d  Stock Grants 

The Company's Stock Option and  Stock Award Plan (the 'Plari") wits adopted i l l  Decemliel- 1992 and 
ammtled ;mrl rcstatcd finin t i n v  t n  timc, most reucntly effective Mal-clr 2'3, 2001. 1'ursu;int to the 1'l:t1~ oftkcrs, 
directors, rrnployees and cnnsultants nf the Company are offered the opporturlity ( i )  t u  acquire slrilres nf 
unmmon stock through the grant nf stock options ("Options"), including non-qualified stock options and, for kr:y 
employees, incentive stock options witl-in the meaning of Section 422 of the Internal Revenne Code: and (ii) to 
he awarcled shares of common stock: ("Restricted Stock Grants"), sul'ject to conditions and restrictions 
deteimined by the Compensation. Nominating, and Corporate Governance Coinmittre of the Company's 
Board of Directors (tlie "Compensation Committre"). The Compensation Committee will detcrminc the vcsting 
schedule, ifany. of each Option and the term, which term shall not exceed ten years from the date of grant. As to 
tlie Options that have been granted through Dccemher 31, 2009 to officers, employees and consnltants, 
generally, one-third are exercisable one year after the initial grant, one-third are exercisable b o  years following 
the date such Options w e ~ e  grmtud ;ind the remaining onr-third are exercisable three years fdlowing tlw date 
such Optirms were granted. Stock Options are awarded at the New York Stock Exchange closing price of the 
Company's connnon stock on tlie grant date. A niavimnni of 6,000,000 shares of common stock are available fix 
grant under the Plan and no more than 250,000 shares may be subject to grants to any one individual in any 
calend:rr yrar. 

Grants undcr the Plan are made by the Compensation Committee, which determines the individuals 
eligible to receive awards, the types of awards. and the terms, conditions and restrictions applicable to any award. 
In addition, the terms of two specific types of awards are contemplated under the Plan: 

The first type of award is a grant of Options or Restricted Stock Grants of common stock made to each 
member of the Board at the meeting held immediately after each annual meeting of the Company's 
stockholders. Generally, if the (director elects to receive Options, the grant will cover 10,000 shares of 
common stock at an exercise prisx equal to the fair market value on the date ofgrant. Ifthe director elects 
to receive a Restlicted Stock Grant of common stock, he or she will receive an award of 2,000 shares of 
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common stock. Exercisability o r  vesting with iespect to either type of;iward will he one-third ofthe award 
after six months, hvn-think nf the award after one year. and the fill1 award after hvo years. 

The second type of award is ;c grant of  common stock in liru of 50% of their bonus othenvise payable to 
individuals with a title of Vice President or above. A recipient can request that the Compensation 
Committee pay a greater UI- lesser poition of the bonus in shares of common stock. 

The Company adopted FASB ASC 718 on July 1,2005, which replaced SFAS 120. Since the Company had 
clioscn t n  use the modifiPd-pmspectivt. mcthod fnr I-ecngnizing stock-hasrtl compcnsation and IISCIS thc Rlack- 
Schnles-Merton Model for valuing the options, the result of the adoption had no material impact of the 
Company’s results of operations or financial position. 

fie,stricted Stock Grunti 

On Fehruav I, 2010, the Company awtrrded Restlicted Stock Grants for 74,fifiS shares of conimon stock to 
certain members of senior managcmen t nf the Coinpany. Thesc Restiictad Stock Grants vcst on Deccmber 31, 
2010. The fiir market valur <if these Restricted Stock Grants wis appxinrately $:Xi million as of the date of 
grant and is recorded as a compensation expensr and paid in capital over the vesting period. 

I n  2008, the Company awardcd Restricted Stock Grants for 30,000 sharcs of common stock to Joe 
McAdams in accord;incc, with tlic term:: ofhis Eiilployment Agrwnxnt. These Restricted Stock Grants vest ovm 
twn years with orwtlrird vesting o n  J a i i ~ u ?  4, 2008, nn+thircI vesting n n  J;iir~;~iy I ,  2009 a i d  nnc>-thii-d vesting 
on Janoaiy 1, 2010. The fair market value of these Hestiictod Stnck Grants w a s  approriinately $1.3 million as nf 
the date ofgnint and is recorded us conipensation enpcnsc and paid in capital over the twi-year vesting period. 

In 2006, the Company awardcd Hcmtricted Stock Grants for 14i,500 slrares of common stock to certain 
inwnhws of senior inariagemcrit of the Company. Tliesc Restrictcd Stor:li Grilnts ws t  m e r  three y~a l - s .  The h i r  
niarket value of these Restricted Stock Grants was approximately $8.1 million os of the date of grant and is 
I-ecnrded as compensation expense an,d paid in capital WPI- the three-year vesting peiind. 

In 2009, 2008 and 2007, the Company awarded Restricted Stock C;rants for 27,000, 20,000, and 
18,000 shares of common stock, respectively, to directors with a fair market value of approximately 
$1,025,000, $929,000, and 5984,000 in, 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively. 

The Company recognized compensation expmse of approximately $4.1 million, $4.6 million and $3.7 mil- 
lion related to Restiicted Stock Grants in 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively. Compensation expense to be 
recognized suhsrqocnt to Doccmber :31, 2009 for Restricted Stock Grants lint yet vested was approxirnately 
60.8 millinn, which is expected to  he I-ecngnized nver ii weighted averagc term of 0.7 years. 

Stock Options 

The fair valuc of each grant is estimated on the grant date using the Blad~Schnles-Meiton model. The 
following table includes the ;issumptia,ns that were made and the estimated fGr values: 

2009 2008 2007 Assumption --- 
Dividend yicld . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  2.5% 5.5% 5.8% 
Risk-free interest rate . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  2.8% 3.7% 4.7% 
Expected life. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  7 years 4 years 4 years 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  21.0% 16.9% 15.6% Expected volatility. 

Estimated Fair Value of Options Granted . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $410,972 $516,904 $705,554 
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A s u n i m q  of tlie Comp;my's s t c d  option activity, and related information for tlir years ended llecem- 
ber 31. 2009, 2008 2007 foilows: 

Balance at  December 31, 2006. . , , , 

Options granted . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Options exercised . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Options canceled . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Balance at December 31, 2007. . . . .  
Options granted . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Options exercised . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Options canceled . , , . 

Bnlancr at Decernhcr 31, 2008. . . . .  

Options g l an td  . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Options rriercisr:d . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Options canceled . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

l3;il;ince at Dcccmber 31, 2009. . . . .  

Shares Subject 
to Options 

968,593 
165,000 

(143,854) 
(1,200) 

988,539 
135,000 

(lG9,367) 

- 

(400) 

102,800 
(213,721) 
(1,ooo) 

953,772 

841,851 

728,315 

~ 

~ 

~ 

~ 

Weighted 
Weighted Average 
Average Outstanding 

Exercise Price Contractual 
Pe r  Share Life (in years) 

$24.85 
54.86 
57.86 
17.60 

30.88 
44.3G 
45.24 
16.38 

34.92 
'37.70 
43.34 
15.69 

39.94 

39.XH 

5.1 

5.4 

6.0 

5.6 

As of December 31, 2009,2008 and 2007,970,442 shares, 1,099,242 shares and 1,283,842 shares remained 
available for grant, respectively; of these 573,525 shares, 600,525 shares and 650,525 shares, respectively, 
remained available for Restricted Stock Grants. 

Note 15 -Preferred Stock 

The Company's Board of Director:; is authorized under the Company's charter, without further stockholder 
approval, to issue, from time to time, in one or more series, 10,000,000 shues of $.01 p;n. value pref r r rd  stock 
(the "Preferred Stock),  with specific lights, preferences and other attiibutes as the Board may determine, which 
may include preferences, powers and rights that are senior to tlie rights of holders of tlic Cumpany's conimon 
stock. IIowever, under certain circumst.ances, the issuance of preferred stock may require stockholder approval 
pursuant to  the rules and regulations of The New York Stock Exchange. As of December 31,2009 and 2008, the 
Company issued )no Preferred Stock. 

Note 16 - Long-Term Cash Incentive Plan 

O n  May 15, 2007, the Company:; Board of Directors approved a Lnng-Term Cash Inmxtive Plan (the 
"LTIP) to provide a long-term cash bonus opportunity to certain members of the Company's management and 
executive officers. Such Board approval was upon recommendation by the Company's Compensation, Nom- 
inating and Corporate Governance Committee (the "Committee"). On January 18, 2010, the Committee 
approved payments under the LTIP of approximately $2.8 million. 
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The Compmy's Chief Executive Officer and President were lint participants in the LTIP The approved 
payments arc capccted to he paid in cash upon coinplction of the Company's annual audit for the 2009 fiscal ycar, 
which is expected to be completed on or before hilarch 1, 2010. 

The Company accounted for the LTIP in accordance with FASB ASC 718. As of December 31,2009 and 
2008, the Company bad accrued compensation experise of iippronimately $2.8 million ;mil $1.8 million, 
respectively, related to the LTIl', inc1:uding approximately $1.1 niillion and $1.0 million in the year ended 
December 3 1 ,  2009 and 2008, respectively. 

Note 17- Savings Plan 

The Company has a qualified retirement plan, witli a salaiy defrrral fc:atore designed to qualify under 
Section 401 of tlie Code (the "401(k) Plan"), to cover its employees and those of its Subsidiaries, if any. The 
401(k) Plan permits eligible employee:: of the Company and those of any Subsidiary to defer up to 60% of their 
eligible compensation on a pre-tax basis subject to  certain maximum amounts. In addition, the Company will 
match 100% of the participant's contribution up to  the first 3% and theri SO% of the ncmt 2% for a maximum 
potential match of 4%. 

In addition, amounts contributed by the Company will vest, on a prorated hais,  according to the 
participant's vesting schedule. After live ye;ws of cwiployment wctl) the Ciimpany. thc participants will he 
100% vcstcd f ix  all amounts contributcd by the Comp;iny. Addition;ill?, a cliscrctiimii-y profit sharing component 
of the 401(k) Plan provides fo, ti contribution to hc inadc annually for each participant in iin amount, if any, as 
determined by the Company. All employee contributions are 100%> vested. The Company's contnbution to tlie 
401(k) Plan was $840.000, $465,000, m r l  $399,000, for thc ycal-s ended December 3 1 ,  2009, 2008, and 2007, 
respectively. 

Note 18 - Commitments and Contingencies 

California Rent  Control Litigation 

As part ofthe Company's effort to realize the value ofits Propertics subject to rent control, the Company h a  
initiated lawsuits against several municipalities in California. The Company's goal is to achieve a level of 
regulatory fairness in Califnmia's rent control juiisdictinns, and in particular those juiisdictinns that prohibit 
increasing rents to market upon turnover. Regulations in California allow tenants to sell their homes for a 
premium representing the value of the future discounted rent-controlled rents. In the Company's view, such 
regulation results in a transfer of the value of the Company's strxkhrrlders' land, which wnuld otherwise he 
reflected in market rents, to tenants upon the siiles nf their homes in the form of in, inflated purchase price that 
cannot he attributed to the value of the home being sold. As a result, in the Company's view, the Company loses 
the value of its asset and the selling tenant leaves the Property with B windf'dl premium. The Company has 
cliscovered through thc litigation process that certain municipalities considered condemning the Company's 
Properties at values well below the value of the underly<ng land. I n  the C ~ ~ m l ~ d ~ l y ' s  view, ii failure to articulate 
market rents for sites governed by rest.rictive rent control would put the Company at risk for condemnation or 
eminent domain proceedings based on artificially reduced rents. Such a physical tdking, should it occur, could 
represent substantial lost value to stockholders. The Company is cognizant of the need for affordable housing in 
the jurisdictions, but asserts that restn,ctive rent regulation does not promote this pulpose because the benefits 
ofsuch regulation are fully capitalized :into the prices ofthe homes sold. The Company estimates that the annual 
rent subsidy to tenants in these jurisdictions may be in excess of $15 million. In a more well balanced regulatory 
environment, the Company would recaive market rents that would eliminate the subsidy and homes would trade 
at or near their intrinsic value. 
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In connection with such efforts, the Company entered into a settlement agreement with the City of Smta 
Cruz, C.ilifomia a id  that, pursuant to the settlement agreement, the City amended its rent control ordinance to 
rxempt the Company's Propeity fi-om rent control as long as the Company offers a long term lease which gives 
tlie Company tlie ability to increase reiits to market upon turnover and bases annual rent iiicrea 
The settlenient agreement benefits the Company's stockholders by allowing them to receive tlie value of their 
investment in this Property through vacancy decontrol while preserving annual CPI based rent increases in this 
tige-restiictetl Property. 

The (hmpaiiy has filed hvo lawsuits in federal court asainst tha City of San Rahel, challenging its rent 
control ordinancc on constitutional grounds. The Company believes that one ofthose lawsuits was settled by the 
City agreeing to amend the ordinance to permit adjustments to market rent upon turnover. The City subse- 
quently rejccted the settlement agreement. The Court initially found the settlement agreement was  binding on 
the  City, but tlieri reconsidered and determined to submit tlir claim of breach ofthe settlement agre~ment  to a 
jury. In October 2002, a jury found no breach of the settlement agreement. 

Rased ,in the United States Supreme Court's 2005 property rights rnlings, i n  200G the Court hearing the 
San Hahe1 cases allowed tlie Company to assert alternative takings theories challenging the City's ordinance as 
violating the takirys clause and substaiitive due process. The Company's constitutional claims against tlie City 
were tried in a bench trial during April 2007. On January 29, 2008, tlie Couit issued its Findings of Facts, 
Conclusion\ of I a v  and Ordrr Thercori (the  order"). Tlie Coinpiny filed tlic Order oi, Foinii 8-K u 1 1  

J ; i n u : q  31,  2008. 

On A p d  17, 2009, the United States District Court for the Northern District of California issued its Order 
for En tv  of JmIg~icnt ("April 2009 Oider"), and its "Order" relating to  the parties' rcrpests for attonirys' fces 
( t h r  "Fer Ordcr"), The Company filed the April 2009 Order and the Fee Ordei- o n  Form 8-h: o n  April 10, 2009. 
I n  t l v  A p i l  2009 O ~ l r i ~ . ,  tlic Conrt stat,!:d that thc judgnient to  hi: cntorcd will gradually pliasc out the; (Xty's sitc 
rent regulation schernc that tlie Court !has found unconstitotii,nal. Existing residents of the Comp;my's Property 
in San Rafael will he able tn continue to pay site rent as if the Ordinance were to remain in cffect for a period of 
ten years. Enforcement of the Ordinance will be immediately enjoined with respect to new residents of the 
Propeity and expire entirely ten years from the date of judgment. When a current site lessee at tlie Property 
transfers his leasehold to a new resident upon tlie sale ofthe accompanying mohilehome, the Ordinance shall be 
mnjoinrd ils to the iirrt resident and any future resident. The Ordinance shall be enjoined iis to d l  residents ten 
yea-s from the entiy of judgment. 

The Fee Ordrr awarded certain amounts ofattorneys' fees to the Company with respect to its constitutional 
claims, certain amounts to the City with respect to the Company's contract claims, the net effrct of which was 
t1i:it the City must pay tlie Cornpany approximately 61.8 inillion for attomcy' fers. On June 10, 2009, tlie Court 
entered an order on fees and costs which, in addition to the net attorneys' fees ofapproximately $1.5 million the 
Court previously ordered the City to pay the Company, orders the City to pay to the Company net costs of 
approximately $0.3 million. On June 30,2009, the Couit entered final judgment as anticipated by the Apiil2009 
Orilei-. The City filed a noticc ofappeal, and posted a h o d  of approximately $2.1 million sccwing a st;,! pciding 
appeal of the enforcement of the order awarding attorneys' fees and costs to the Company. Tlie rosidonts' 
association. which intervened in the case, filed a motion in the Court of Appeals, which the City joined, seeking ii 
stay of the injunctions, which the Court of Appeals denied. The Company filed a notice of cross-appeal. On 
Februaiy 2, 2010, the City and the Association filed their opening brief on appeal. 

The Company's efforts to achieve a balanced regulatory environment incentivize tenant groups to file 
lawsuits against the Company seeking large damage awards. The homeowners association at Contempo Marin 
("CMHOA), a 39G-site Property in S;m Rafael, California, sued the Company in December 2000 over a prior 
settlement agreement on a capital expenditure pass-through after the Company sued the City of San Rafael in 

F-36 



Equity Lifestyle Properties, Inc. 

Notes To Consolidated Financial Statements 

Note 18 - Commitments a n d  Contingencies (continued) 

October 2000 allegingits rent control ordinmce is ~r,~ollstit~,tio,l~il.  In the Contempo Mali" case, the CMHOA 
prevailed on a motion for rummar); judgment on an  issue that pcrmits the Company to collect nnly $3.72 out of a 
monthly pass-through amount of $7.50 that the Company believed had becn agreed to by the Ch.ltIOA in a 
settlement agreement. The CMHOA continued to seek damages fi-on, the Company in this matter. The 
Company reached a settlcmerrt with the CMHOA in this matter which iillows the Company to recover $3.72 of 
the requested monthly pass-through and does not provide for the payment of any damages to the CMI-IOA. On 
Janualy 12, 2007, the Court granted CMI-10.4's motion for attorneys' fees in the amount of approximately 
$0.3 million and denied the Company's matinn for attonirys' fees. The Company appealed both decisions, which 
were affirmed. Accordingly, the Comp;my paid the CbIHOXs iittorneys' fres as previnusly ordered by the trial 
court and, pursuant to an agreement of the pnrties, incurred on appeal. The Company believes that such lawsuits 
will he a consequence of tlie Company's efforts to change rent control since tenant groups actively desire to 
preserve the premium value of their homes in addition to the discounted rents provided by rent contl-01. The 
Company has determined that its efforts to rebalance the regulatwy environinent despite the iisk of litigation 
fi-om tenant gronps are neceSsdly not only because of the $15 million annual suhsidy to tenants, hut also because 
of the condemnation risk. 

In June 2003, the Company won i i  judgment against the City of Santee in California Supeiior Court (case 
no. 777094). The effect ofthe judgment was to invalidate, on state law grounds, two (2) rent control ordinances 
the City of Santee had enforced ;igaiiist tlie Cwiipany m d  otlhrr pmpwty I ~ L I ~ ~ ~ W S .  H n w ~ , ~ r ,  thca Court allowed 
the City to continoc to enforce a rcnt control nrrlinnnci: that p d n t c d  the two invalid ordinances (thP "prior 
ordinance"). As a result of the judgment the Company \vas cntitlcd to collect a one-time rent increase based 
upon the difference in annual adjustments between the invalid ordinance(s1 and the prior ordinance and to 
adjust its hasc 1-ents to reflect what tlie Company could 1i;ive clial-gcd 1i;icl tlie prior iinlinance been continually in 
rffcct. Thc City of Sant ppc&d thejudgmont. Thc Court of A p p c d  and Califnmia Supreinr: Court rcfused to 
stay enforcement of these lent adjustments punding appeal. A f t c i  t l v  City \VAS unable t n  obtain a stay, the City 
and the tenant association eacli sued tlic Company in separate actions alleging the rent adjustments piirsuant to 
the judgment violate the prior ortlinance (C;ise Nos. GIE 020887 and CIE 020524). They seek to rescind the 
rent adjustments, refunds of amounts paid, and penalties and damages in these separate actions. On j a n u q  25, 
2005, the California Court of Appeal reversed the judgment in part and affirmed it in part with a remand. The 
Court of Appeal affirmed that one ordinance was unlawfully adopted and therefore void and that the second 
ordinance contained unconstitutional provisions. However, the Court ruled the City had the authority to cure 
the issues with the first ordinance retroactively and that the City could sever the unconstitutional provisions in 
the second ordinance. On remand, the trial court was directed to decide the issue of damages to the Company 
from these ordinances, which the Company helieves is consistent not only with tlie Company receiving tlre 
cconomic henefit of invalidating onc of the orclinances, hnt alsn consistent with tlre Conrpany's position that it is 
entitled to market rent and not merely a higlier amount of regulated rent. In the remand action, the tiial court 
granted a motion for restitution filed by the City in Case No. GIE 020.524. The Company filed a notice of appeal 
on July 2, 2008. In order to avoid further tlial and tlic related expenses, the Company agreed to a stipulated 
judgmcnt, which requircs the Company to put into tiscrnw d t r r  cntiy of thc judgment, pending appcal, funds 
sufficient to pay the judgment with pi-ejudgmcnt intcrest while picscrving the Company's appellate lights. 
Subsequently, the trial court also awanled the City some hut not all of the prejudgment interest it sought. The 
stipulated judgment was entered on November 5, 2008, and the Company deposited into the escrow tlie 
amounts required by the judgment and continues to deposit monthly disputed amounts until the disputes are 
resolved on appeal. The appeal has been fully briefed and is set for oral argument on March 11,2010. The tenant 
association continued to seek damages, penalties and fees in theii- separate action based on the same claims made 
on the tenants' behalf by the City in the City\ case. The Company moved for judgment on the pleadings in the 
tenant association's case on the ground that the tenant association's case is moot in light of the stipulated 
judgment in the City? case. On November G, 2008, the Court granted the Company's motion forjudgment on the 
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plcadings withoot leave to amend. The tenant association sought reconsideration of that ruling, wliicli was 
dcnied. The tenant association filed a notice of appeal, lids filed its Opening Brief, and the Company has filed its 
Response Brief. 

In  addition, the Company has sued the City of Santee in federal conrt alleging :dl three of thr  nrdinances are 
unconstitutional under the Fifth and Fourteenth Amendments to the United States Constitution. Thus, it is the 
Company's position that the ordinance!i are subject to invalidation as a matter of law in the federal court action. 
Separately, thc Federal District Couri: granted the City's Motion for Summary Judgment i n  the Company's 
federal court lawsuit. This decision waii based not on the merits, but on procedural grounds, including that the 
Company's claims were moot given its !success in the state court case. The Company appealed the decision, and 
on M:iy3,2007 the United States Court ofAppeals for the Ninth Cii-cuit affirmed the Distiict Court's decision on 
procedural grounds. Thr Company intends to continue to pursue an adjudication of its 1-iglits m i  the inelits in 
Federal Court through claims that are not subject to such procedural defenses. 

The Company believes that the severity ofthe economic impact on its Properties c;msed by rent control will 
e n a l i l ~  it to continue to  chollcnge the rent regulations untlrr the Fifth Amendment ;mil the due pl-occss claose. 

Colony Park 

O n  Ucci~imbci~ 1. 20Oc1, a group of tcnarrts at the Company's Colony Park Propmt) i n  Ccros. Cillifwnia filcd 
a crmplaint i n  the Calif~irma Superiii.r Court for Stanislaus County alleging that tlie Cnmpany has failed to 
prnperly maintain the Property and has improperly reduced the services prrrvided to the tenants, among nther 
allegatinns. The Cnmpmy has answered the complaint by denying ell mateiial allegations and filrd a COUII- 

torclainr fix clccl;mitriry I-clicf and daniagcs. The CBSU will pmcced in Superior Court hccausc tlw Cmipmiy's 
niotion to  cmnprl arliitratim was d e n i d  ;md the denial was upheld on :ippcal. I l iscnvcn liiis cniriiiicncctl. Tlrc 
Contpniy filed a motion f ix  sornrnary :i.djjudicatio~i of various of the plaintiffs' claims ani1 ;illegatioiis, wliicli was 
denied. The Court has set a trial date .for July 20. 2010. The Company believes that the allegations in the first 
amended complaint are without merit, and intends to vigorously defend the I;iwsuit. 

Cnlifornia's Department of Housing and Community Development ("HCD") issued B Notice of Violation 
dated August 21,2006 regarding the sewer system at Colony Park. The notice ordered the Company to replace 
the Prnpeiiy's sewer system or show justification from a third party explaining why the sewer system does not 
need to be replaced. The Company 1ia.s provided such third party report to HCD and believes that the sewer 
system does not nred to be replaced. Rased upon information provided by the Company to  HCI) to date, HCD 
has indicated that it agrees that the entire system does not need to be replaced. 

California Hawaiian 

On April 30, 2009, a gronp of tenants at the Company's California lhwaiian Property in  San Jose, Califnmia 
filed ii complaint in the California Superior Court fur Santa Clara County alleging that the Campany has failed to 
properly maintain the Property and has improperly reduced the sewices provided to the tenants, among other 
allegations. The Company moved to compel arbitration and stay the proceedings, to dismiss the c s e ,  and to 
strike poitions of the complaint. By o d e r  dated October 8, 2009, the Court granted the Company's motion to 
compel arbitration and stayed the count proceedings pending the outcome of the arbitration. The plaintiffs filed 
with the Court of Appeal a petition for writ seeking to overturn the trial court's arbitration and stay orders. The 
CoNIpdliy submitted a preliminaly op:position and the Couit of Appeal has issued an order allowing further 
written submissions and requests for oral argument. The Company believes that the allegations in the complaint 
are without meiit, and intends to vigorously defend the litigation. 
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Hurricane Claim Litigation 

On June 22,2007 the Company filed suit, in the Circiiit Comt of Cook Cou119, Illinois (Case No. 07CH165481, 
against its insurance carriers, Hartford Fire Insurance Company, Essex Insurance Company, Lexington Insurance 
Company, and bvestchester Surplus Lilies Insurmce Company, r egd ing  a coverage dispute arising from losses 
suffered by the Company a a result of hunicanes that occul~ed in Florida in 2004 and 2005. The Company also 
brought claims against Ann Risk Senices, Inc. of Illinois, the Company5 fnrnrer insurance broker, regarding the 
procurement of appropriate insurance cnveragr for the Company The Company is sceking declaratoiy relief 
establishing the cnverage obligations of its cariiers, as well a s  a judgment for breach of contract, breach of the 
cnvenant ofgood faith and fair dealing, unfair settlemcnt practices and, m to Aon, for failure to provide ordinaiy care 
in the selling and procoring of insunmcss. The claims involved in this action exwed $11 million. 

I n  respnnse tu motions to dismiss. the tri;il court dismissed: ( I )  the req~iests for declaratory relief as being 
duplicative ofthe claims for breach of contract and (2) celtain of the breach of contract claims as being not 1-ipe 
until the limits of underlying insurance policies have been exhausted. On or abaut Janumy 28,2008, the Company 
filed its Second Amended Complaint. Aon filerl a motion to dismiss the Second Ainended Complaint in its rntirety 

@nst Aon, and the insurers moved ti ,  dismiss portions ofthe Srcmd Amended Complaint as against them. The 
insurers' motion was denied and they have now answered the Second Amended Complaint. Aon's motion was 
granted, with leave granted tu the Company to file an amended pleading containing greater factual specificity. The 
Company did so hy adding to thi- Secnrd Airrcdrd Cnmplaint a ,K:M Count VII aplinst Ann, which thi~ Cnmpny 
filed on August 15, 2008. A m  then aiiswered t l v  new Cnunt \'I1 i n  part and mwed tn strike certain rrf its 
allegations. The Court laft Count VI1 undistiirhcd, mcept f i x  ruling tlr.it thc Cnmpany's altcrilative claim that Ann 
was negligent in canying out its duty tcs give notice to certain ofthe insurance car,-iers on the Company5 behalf 
should h~ re-pleaded in t l r c  form ofa breach nfcontract thonly. O n  Felrnmy 2, 2009, the Coinpany filed such a 
claim in tlre fnrm o f  a new Count VI11  against h n ,  Ann lias answeied Count VIII. Iliscovev is proceeding. 

Since filing tlre lawsuit, the Company IMS receivcd additinnal piiyiiicnts from Essen Insorancu Comp:iny, 
Lexington Insurance Company, and \Vr:stchester Surplus Lines Insurance Company, of approximately $2.6 mil- 
lion. In January 2008 the Company entered a settlement with Haitford Fire Insurance Company pursuant to 
which Hartford paid the Company thc remaining disputed limits of Hartford's insurance policy, in the amount of 
approximately $0.5 million, and the Company dismissed and released Ilartford from additional claims for 
interest and had faith claims handling 

California a n d  Washington Wage Claim Class Actions 

On October 16,2008, the Company was sewed with a class action lawsuit in Gilifornia state court filed by a 
single named plaintiff. The suit alleges that, at the time of tlrc P4 Transaction, the Company and other named 
defcndants willfully f;iiletl to pay fnj-mer Gi1iforni;i emplnyees of Privileged Access and its affiliates ("PA") who 
became employees of the Company all of the wages they earned during their employment with PA, including 
accrued vacation time. The suit also alleges that tlre Company improperly "stripped" those employees of their 
seniority. The suit asserts claims for alleged violation of the California Labor Code; alleged violation of the 
C;ilifnriiia Business & Professions Code and for ;dleged unfair husiness practices; alleged breach a f  contract: 
alleged breach of the duty ofgood faith and fair dealing; and for alleged unjust enrichment. The complaint seeks, 
among other relief, compensatoiy and r;tatutory damages; restitution: pre-judgment and post-judgment interest; 
attorney's fees, expenses and costs; penalties; and exemplary and punitive damages. The complaint does not 
specify a dollar amuunt sought. On December 18,2008. the Company filed a demurrer seeking dismissal of the 
complaint in its entiretywithout leave I O  amend. On May 14,2009, the Court granted the Company's demurrer 
and dismissed the complaint, in part without leave to amend and in part with leave to amend. On June 2,2009, 
the plaintiff filed an amended complaint. On July 6,2009, the Company filed a demurrer seeking dismissal of the 
amended complaint in its entirety without leave to amend. On October 20, 2009, the Court granted the 
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Company's demurrer and dismissed the amended complaint, in part without leave to aniend and in pait with 
leiive to amrnd. On Novernher 9, 2009, tlie plaintiff filed a third amended compliiint. On Decrmber I I ,  2009, 
the Company filed a demurrer seeking dismissal of the third amended complaint in its entirety without leave to 
amend. On February 23, 2010, the court disnrissed without leave to ;mend the claim for breach ofthe duty of 
good faith ;ind fair dealings, and otlwwise denied the Company's demurrer. The Cump;iny will vigorously 
defend the lawsuit. 

On December 16,2008, the Company was seived with a class action lawsuit in \Vashington state court filed 
hy a single named plaintiff, represented by the same counsel as the plaintiff in the Califoornia cla 
coinplaint asserts on behalf of a putative class of Washington employees o who became employees of the 
Compzmy substantially similar allegations as are alleged in the California cl ction. The Company moved t u  
dismiss the complaint. On April 3 ,  2009, the court dismissed: (1) the first cause of action, which alleged a claim 
under the Washington Labor Code for failwe to pay accrued vacation time; (2) the second cause ofaction, which 
alleged a claim under the Washington Labor Code for unpaid wages on termination; (3 )  the third cause of action, 
which ;dleged a claim under the \Vaslashington Labor Code for payment ofwages less than entitled; and (4) the 
fouith cause of action, which alleged a claim under the Washington Consumer Protection Act. The court did not 
dismiss the fifth cause of action for breach of contract, the sixth cause ofaction ofthe breach of the duty ofgood 
h i t l i  and fair dealing; and tlie seventh cause of action for unjust enrichment. On May 22, 2009, thi> Company 
film1 a motinn for s ~ i m m a i ~  judgment nn the c ~ u s e s  of action not previously dismissed, wliich \viis dcnicd. \\'it11 
Imve nfcnnrt, the plaintifffilcd XI  amended complaint, the material allegatinris ofwlrich t h ~  Cnmpany denied i n  
an answer filed on September 11, 2009. The Company will vigorously defend the lawsuit. 

Cascade 

On Ilecemher 10,2008, the King County Hospital District No. 4 (the "Hospital Distiict") filed suit against 
the Company seeking a declaratory jiudgment that it had properly rescinded an agreement to acqnire the 
Company's Thousand Trails - Cascddl: Property ("Cascade") located 20 miles east of Seattle, Washington. The 
agreement was entered into after the H:ospital District had passed B resolution authorizing the condemnation of 
Cascade. Under the agreement, in lieu of a forinal condemnation proceeding, the Company agreed to  accept 
from the Hospital District $12.5 million for the Property with an earnest money deposit of approximately 
$0.4 million. The Company has not included in income the earnest money deposit received. The closing of the 
t r  ansaction ., 

answer to the Hospital District's suit and a oountercl;um seeking recoveiy of the ;mriunts ou~cd under the 
aglrement. On February 27, 2009, the Hospital District filed a summaiy judgmeut motion arguing that it was 
entitled to rescind the agreement because the Property is zoned residential and the Company did not provide the 
Hospital District a residential real estate disclosure form. On April 2, 2009, the Court denied the Hospital 
Uibtrict's suninxuy judgment motion, ruling that ii reid property owner who is c~ompelled to transfer land under 
the powcr of eminent domain is not le:gally required to provide a disclosure form. The Hospital District filed 51 

motion for reconsideration of the summary judgment ruling. On April 22, 2009, the Court reaffirmed its ruling 
that a real property owner that is compelled to transfer land under eminent domain is not legally required to 
provide adisclosure form. On May22,?009, the Court denied the Hospital District's motion for reconsideration 
in its entirety, reaffirmed its ruling that condemnation was the reason for the transaction hehveen the Company 
and the Hospital District, and ruled that the Hospital District is not entitled to take discovery in an effort to 
establish othenvise. Discovery is proceeding. The Company will vigorously pursue its rights under the 
agreement. Due to the anticipated transfer of the Property, the Company closed Cascade in October 2007. 
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Rrennan Reach 

The Law Enforcement Division of the New York Department of Enviroiimentnl Compliance (“UEC”) has 
investigated certain allegations relating; to the operation of the onsite wastewater treatnient plant and the use of 
adjacent wetlands at Brennan Beach, which is located in Pulaski, Ncw York. The allegations included asseitions 
of unlawful point source discharges, perinit discharge exceedances, and placing material in awetland buffer Bred 
without a permit. Representatives of the Company attended nii>etings with the DEC in November 2007, April 
2008, May2008 and June 2008, at which the alleged violzitions were discussed, and the Company bas cooperated 
with the DEC investigation. No fnrmal notict:s have been issued to the Company rting specific violations, 
but the DEC has indicated that it believes the Company is responsible for certain of the alleged violations. As a 
result of discussions with the DEC, the Company lias agreed to enter into a civil consent order pursuant to which 
the Company will pay a penalty and undertake an environmental benefit prnject at a tntal cost of approximately 
$0.2 million in conncction with tlie ,illeged violations. Bawd on that agreement the DEC has prepared a 
proposed consent order on which the Company has submitted comments. The amounts expected to be paid 
under the consent order wera accrued as property oprfiiting expenses doling the quarter ended June 30, 2008. 

Gulf View i n  Punta Gorda 

In 2004, the Company acquired ownership ofvarious property owning entities, including an entity owning a 
pl-rrpcrty called CulfViw., in Punt;i Gorda, Florida. CdfView continues trr be lirld i n  a special purpose entity At 
the timc nf accpisitim of thri  cntity owning Ciilf Vicw. i t  was financed with n scciircd loan that was  ci-oss- 
collateralizcd and crnss-dehlted witli a lnan on annther property whose owncrship entity was not acquired. At 
the time of acquisition, the Operating Partnership goamteed  ccrtain obligations relating to exceptions from the 
“on-recourse nature of the loans. Becausc of certain pmalties associated u i t h  repayment of these loans, the 
loans have not hpen restructured and the terms and cnnditions remain the s a i w  today. Tlw zipproximate 
outstanding aniount of the lorn secor-cd by Gulf View is $1.4 million and of the crmsed loan recured hy the other 
property is $5.5 million. The Compa.ny is nn t  aware of any notice uf def:iult regarding either of tlir lnms: 
however, should the owner of the cro:;s-collateralized property defjult, the special purpose entity owning Gulf 
View and the Operating Partnership may be impacted to the extent of their obligations. 

Creekside 

We currently have one all-age property, called Creekside, in Wyoming, Michigan, held for disposition. On 
December 29,2009, the Company sent to the loan sewicer a deed-in-lieu of foreclosure agreement executed by 
the Company (the “Proposed DIL Agreement”) rega:arding our nnnrecourse mortgage loin of approximately 
$3.6 million secured hy the Property. On January 25.2010, the lendergax notice ofdefnult nnd declared payment 
of the entire loan halwce to be immediately dne arid pay:rhle, and has demanded payment from the Company to 
the extent ofany liability under persoid recourse exccptions to  the non-recourse pro\iisions of the loan agreement 
without specifymg whether or to what extent it claims any amounts are owed under such exceptions. The Company 
denies that any such amounts we owt:d or that there is any personal liability to which the lender lias recourse. 

On Fehl‘uaiy 2, 2010, the lench  filed i t  complaint in tlie Kent County, Michigan, Circuit Court (the 
“Complaint”) seeking appointment of a receiver for the Property A ieceiver was appointed by agreed order on 
Februaly 5,2010. The Complaint also ;alleged, among other things, on information and beliefthat the borrower has 
misappropriated rents from the Property subsequent to its defaults under the loan agreement. The lender has also 
subsequently stated that payment ofaccrued and unpaid management fees to the Companyk af6liate that managed 
the Property may constihte an unauthorized transfer in violation of Michigan’s Uniform Fraudulent Transfer Act. 
The Company disputes and will vigora’usly defend against any allegation that there has been any misappropriation 
of rents, any iinduthorized or improper transfers, or that there is any personal liability for any amounts claimed to 
be due and owing. By letter dated February 9, 2010, the lender acknowledged receipt of our Proposed DIL 
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Note 18 - Commitments and Contingencies (continued) 

Agreement hut l i u  not accepted it at this time, and instead indicated that a “Prencgntiation Agreelnent” in a form 
;iccc:ptahlc tn tlie lender must first he entered by thc parties, aftcr which discussions m:ty begin on possiblc 
alteniatives to foreclosure. 

Other 

The Campany is iiivdved in various other legdl proceedings wising in the cirdinary course of husiness. Soch 
proccedings include, but are not limited to, notices, consent decrees, additional permit requirements and other 
similar elifnl-cement actions hy governmental agencies relating tu thr: <:ompiny’s water and wastewater 
treatment plants and other waste treatment facilities. Additionally, in the ol-dina~y course nf business, the 
Company’s operations are subject to audit by various taxing authorities. Management helieves that all pro- 
ceedings herein desciihed 01 referred to, taken together, are not expected to have a material aclverse impact on 
the Ch ipmy.  In ddition, to tlie extent any such proceedings or audits relate to newly ;squired Prnperties, the 
Company considers any potential indt:mnificatinn obligations of sellers in favor of the Company. 

Note 19 - Quarterly Financial Data (unaudited) 

Tiic following is uniiudited quill-torly data for 2009 and 2008 (amounts in thnusarrds, cscept for pel- s1lilj-e 
amounts): 

First Second Third Fourth 
Quarter Quarter Quartet- Quarter 

2009 

TCJtd revenues (a] . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $133,043 $122,317 S;131,519 8120,488 
Incnmo from cont ations(a) . . . . . . . . .  $ 13,556 S 2,830 $ 7,093 $ 6,341 
Incoiiic, (Inss) from discontinucd operations (a) , . $ 88 S 74 S 4.0:38 $ (14) 
N r t  iiicoriie :tvaiIdile fnr Co~nmun Sh;LTeS . . . . . .  $ 13,644 $ 2,904 B 1 L,l:3l 9 6327 
\Veighted average Common Sharmes 

Weighted average Common Sharmes 

Net income per Common Share #outstanding - 

- 313 1 6/30 9/30 12/31 ~ ~ ~ _ _  

outstanding - Rasic . . .  . . . . . .  24,945 25,163 29,993 :m,14s 

ontstanding - Diluted . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  30,523 30,693 35,242 35,248 

Basic . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 0.55 $ 0.12 $ 0.37 $ 0.21 

. . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 0.54 $ 0.11 $ 0.37 $ 0.21 
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Note 19 - Quarterly Financial Data (unauditcd) - (Continued) 

First Second Third Fourth 
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter 

6/30 9/30 12/31 - --- 2008 313 1 

Total revenlies (a). . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . .  $123.205 $110,909 $118,578 $116,449 
Income (loss) from continuing ope s(a). . . . .  $ 12,i12 '6 4,069 $ 1,456 $ (80) 
Income from discontinued operations (a) . . . . . . .  $ 13 $ 40 $ 26 $ 67 
Net income (loss) available for Common Shares. . $ 12,725 $ 4,109 $ 1,482 6 (13) 
Weighted average Common Shares 

Weighted average Common Shares 

Net income per Common Sliare ~ontstanding - 

Net income per Common Share ,:iutst;mding - 

outstanding - Basic . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . .  24,200 24,:?70 24,527 24,765 

outstanding - Diluted . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  30.386 30,540 30,572 30,505 

Basic . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 0.53 $ 0.17 $ 0.06 $ 0.00 

Diluted.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 0.52 $ 0.17 $ 0.06 $ 0.00 

(a) Amounts niay differ from previously disclosed amounts due to reclassification of discontinued operations, 
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Equity Lifestyle Properties, Inc. 
Valuation and Qualifying Accounts 

December 31,2009 

._.. 
Balance at Charged to Char ed 
Bepinninp Costs and to Otter 

Additions 
Balance at Charged to Char ed Bnl;mee at 
Be innin Costs and to otter End of 
of%erio$ Expenses Accounls Deductionr(1) Period 

Bnl;mee at 
End of 

- 
Fur the year ended December 31, 200T: 

For the year ended December 31, 2008, 

I'ar the year ended December 31, 2009 

Allowance for douhtful accounts . . . . . . . S 885,000 S1,865,000 

Alhwance fnr doubtful accounts . . . . . . . S1,154,000 S1,951.000 

Allowance for doubtful accoiints . . . . . . . $1,128,000 52,513,400 

(1) Deductions represont tellant receivables deerncd uncollectihlo. 
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CdtusLah: . . . .  
Cdik,., in Ilii..,ni,:, I >  . . . . . . . .  

C<lrlc"nl Cascadc . . . .  
Contempo Marin . . . . . . .  , . . . .  
C"ralw"o"d . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Date Palm Country Club . . . . .  
Dnt r. Palm R V  . . . . . . . . . . .  
DcAnz~ Smta Cmz . . . . . . . . .  
Four Seasons . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Idylludd . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
bpm Lake . .  , . . . . . . . . . . .  
I&e Minden . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
b k e  oi the Spiings . . . . . . .  

hTs R h a s  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Meadowbrook . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Monte del Lago . . . . .  , . . . .  
Morgan llill . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Nicliolson Plmt . . . . . . . . .  
Onkmnita Springs . . . . . . . . . .  
Pacific Dunes Ranch . . . . . . . . .  

Psique LA> Quint., . . . . . . .  , . 
Pi0 Pica . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
I'olvh~mm . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
QwiI Mcodows . . . . . . . . .  
Kariclio Mcsn . , . . . . . .  
Rancho 0 x 0  . . . . . . . . . .  
Rancho V&y . . . . . . . . .  

RuyA Oak . . . . . . . . . . . .  
nusiinll ~i~~~ . . . . . . .  
San Hrnito . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Sail Francisco RV . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. 

Colony Park . . . . . . . .  . .  

bmpl,gl, ter . . . . . . . .  

Roy.11 Holidqv . . . . . . . . . . .  
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- 
Bulow Village IW . , , . .  

Carnage Cow . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Coquina Crossin$. . . . . . . . . . .  
Coral Cay.  . . . . . . . .  
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. . . . . .  
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L-kes at Cnuntqwnnd . . . . . .  
Lakewood Village . . . . . . . . . . .  
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Initill TO\. ... 
C"mpany 
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1 . 5 ~ 9  

501 
1. 331 
3.811 
4.343 

1.312 
360 

5.312 
524 
3Oi 

5350 
3.157 
4.41.; 

862 
5 I b 

1.2'31 
2. i l lb 

1.5. 160 
3.1175 

460 
4.600 

..... 
io.305 
9. 731 
8.736 
9. 393 
5.261 
9. 361) 
6. 810 

11. 07s 
7. I l l 5  

285 
32. 371 
2.045 

65s 
1.7% 
4.380 
5 .  742 

2,1 142 
451 

7.0i2 
634 
490 

7. 892 
1.194 
5.876 
1. 129 

6Y2 
1.741 
3 .  705 

20.522 
4.112 

590 
6 . m  

m1tp ,>r 
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2006 
2006 
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Schedule 111 

Equity Lifestyle Properties, Inc. 
Real Estate a n d  Accumulated Depreciation 

December  31,2009 
(Irnolmtr in thuusands) 

The changes in total real estate for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, a i d  2007 were as follows: 
2009 2008 2007 

Balance, beginning of year . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $2,491,021 $2,396,115 $2,337,460 
Acquisitions. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  18,116 10,393 45,646 
Improvements . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  30,876 26.716 29.384 
Dispositioris and othcr. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  (8,525) - (16,375) 

57,797 - Inventory reclassification . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  6 , iW 

Balance, end of year. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  52,538,215 $2,491,021 $2,396,115 

The changes in accumolated dr:pn:ciation for thc years ended Dccemher 31,2009,2008, and 2007 mere as 
follows: 

2009(a) 2008(b) 2007 -~ 
Balance, beginning of year . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $561,104 $494,21 I $435,809 

Depreciation expense . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  72,419 66,893 63,991 

Dispositions and other. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  (3,755) - (5,589) 

Balance; end o f  year . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $629,768 $561,104 $494,211 

(a) Includes appmximately 52.4 million of depreciation froin rrntal operations included in Ancillary sewices 

(11) Ilepreckrtion expense excludes ;ipprosiin-utcly $0.8 million of n~iar11ortiz:cd leilse costs evpenses r~ la ted  tu 
od includes :ippmsirnately $1.2 million of dcpreciatiriii from 

~~~ _ _ _ ~ ~  

Ievenocs, net 

the terininatiuii r i f t l i c  Piivilc~ged Accrss lea. 
rental operations included in Ancill:uy sewicrs revenues, net. 

s-12 



Exhibit 31.1 

By: l s l  Michael B. Berman 
Michael B. Berman 
Executive Vice President and 
Chief Financial Officer 

Date: Februaly 25,2010 



Exhibit 31.2 

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE 
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002 

I, Thomas P. Heneghan, ccrtify that: 

1. I have reviewed this annual repojt on Form 10-K of Equity Lifestyle Propcrties, Inc.; 

2. Baed  on my knowledge, this repnrt docs not contain any untrue statement of a m a t e d  fact or omit to 
state a material fact necessaiy to make the statements made, in light of the circun~stances under which such 
statements were made, not misleading nith respect to the peiiorl covered by this report: 

3. Bascd on 'my knowledge, thc financial statcmcnts, and other financial information includcd in this 
report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the 
registrant as of, and for, the periods prescntcd in this rcpnrt; 

4. The rcgistrant's other ccrtifying officcr(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining 
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-l5(e) and ISd-lS(e)) and internal 
control over financial reporting (as cleiincd in Exchange Act Rules 13;~-15(f) ;ind 15d-IS(f)) f r x  the registrant ;mil 
have: 

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, 01- caused such disclosure controls and pro- 
cedures to he designed under our supewisioo, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, 
including its cnnsn1irl;itril suIisidi;n-ic>-s. is madr k n n w ~  to us by others within thosc entities. p;irticularly 
during the pwiocl in wllidi this repnl-t is l ~ r ~ i l g  p i q w e c l :  

b)  Designed such intern;il contwl nver financial reporting, or caosrd suclr internal control over 
financial reporting to  be designed under our supewision, to  provide reasonable assurance regarding the 
reliability of financial rqxirting ;~nd the pi-epuatinn nf fiiutncial statemrnts fnr entermil puiposes in 
accordancc with generally accepted accounting principles; 

c) Evaluated the rffectiveness nf the registrant's disclrrsure controls and procedures and presented in 
this report our  conclusions about t:he effectiveness ofthe disclosure contmls and pi-ocedures, as of the end 
of the period covered by this repirt based on such evaluation: and 

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that 
occurred during the registrant's mcsst recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of 
an annual report) that has mateiially affected, or is reaconahly likely to materially affect, the registrant's 
internal control over financial reporting: ;ind 

5. The registrant's other certifying, officer(s) and I h;we disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of 
internal control nvcr financial rcpinting, to the registl-tint's auditors and the audit committeo of the registrant's 
board of directors ( o r  persuns performing the equivalent functions): 

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the dcsign or operation of internal control 
cly affect the rcgistrant's ahility to rccord, ovcr financial rcporting which iwc, rcasonahly likrls t o  nd 

prncess, summarize and repoit financial infnl-mation: and 

h) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a 
significant role in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting. 

By: Is /  Thomas P. Heneghan 
Thomas P. Heneghan 
Chief Executive Officer 

Date: Fehrualy 25,2010 



Exhibit 32.1 

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER 
PURSIJANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350 

In coniiection with the acconrpanying Aniiual Report on Forin IO-K of Equity LifeStyle Properties, Inc. for 
the year ended December 31,2009 (the  annual Report”), I,  Michael R.  Berman, Executive Vice President and 
Chief Financial Officer of Equity Lifestyle Properties, Inc., heseby certify pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, 
as adopted by Section YO6 of the Sasb,anes-Oxley Act of 2002, that to the best of my knowledge: 

Exchange Act of 1934; and 
1. the Annual Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of thr Securities 

2. thc information cnntained in the Annual Report Fairly presents, i n  all inaterial respects, the financial 
condition and results of operatiox of Equity Lifestyle Properties, Inc. 

Ry: is1 Michael B. Bcsman 
Michael B. Berman 
Executive Vice President and 

Chief Financial Officei 

Date: February 25,2010 

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided lo 
Equity Lifestyle Propcrtics, Inc. and will be  retained by Eqnity Lifestyle Properties, Inc. and 

furnished to the  Securities and  Exchange Commission or its staff upon request. 



Exhibit 32.2 

CERTIFICATION OF C H I E F  EXECUTIVE OFFICER 
PURSDANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350 

In connection with the ;rccompany~ng A n n u d  Report on Form 10-K of Equity LifeStylr Properties, Inc. for 
the year ended December 31, 3009 (the "Annual Report"), I, Thomas P. IIencglinn, Chief Executive Officer of 
Equity Lifestyle Propeities, Inc., hereby ceiiifypursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted hy Section 906 
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that to the best of my knowledge: 

1. the Annual Report fully coinplies with the rcquirements of section 13(a) 01 15(d) of the Secniitics 
Exchange Act of 1934; and 

2. the informatinn containcd in the Annual Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial 
condition aiid results of operations of Equity Lifestyle Properties, Inc. 

By: I s /  Thomas P. Heneglian 
Thamas P Heneghan 
Chief Executive Officer 

Uatc: Fehruaiy 25, 2010 

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been  provided to 
Equity Lifestyle Properties, Inc. and will be retained by Equity Lifestyle Propcrtics, Inc. and  

furnished to thc  Sccuritiea a n d  Exchange Commission or its staff 
upon request. 
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NARIIIT equity index includes all tax qualified REITS listed on the NYSE, the American Stock Exchange or the 
NASDAQ Stock Market. Common Stock price performance presented lor the period from December 31, 2004 
throtigh December 31, 2009 is not necessarily indicative of tuture resuits. 
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Original Certificate Application 

December 14,2010 



Schedule 
N o . & @ & )  

A-I 1 

A-2 2 

0-1 3 

6-2 4 

5 3  5 

B 4  6 

E 5  7 

B6 8 

5 7  9 

5 8  10 

B-9 11 
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Hacienda Village 
Original Certificate Application 

Special Report 

- Index 

Description 

Accountant's Letter 

Proposed Rates 

Capital Structure and Statement Regarding Financing of Utility Operations 

Existing Water System R.sle Base. Rate of Return and Operating lnwrne 

Summary of Existing Water System Utility Plant Cost, Accumulated Depreciation and Expense 

Original Cost of Existing Water System Utility Plant in Service 

Calculation of Allowance for Funds Used During Construction (AFUDC) 

Projected Accwnulated Depreciation 8 Depredation Expense 

Statement Regarding Proposed Service Availability Policy 

Water System Constructfd Statement of Operations 

Water System O&M Expense 

Water System Taxes Oth'er Than Incone 

Water System Calculatiori of Proposed Rates 



c. 

Hacienda Village 
Original Certificate Application 

Prouosed Rates 

Line 
No. __ 
1 Residential 
2 Base Facility Charges- 
3 5/8" x 314 

4 

5 General Service 
6 Base Facility Charges. 
7 518" x 3 /4  
8 1" 
9 15" 
10 2 
11 3" 
12 4" 
13 6 

14 

Gallonage charge per 1,000 gallons 

Gallonage charge per 1,000 gallons 

Monthly Rates 

Water 

10.42 

2.37 

10.42 
26.05 
52.10 
83.36 

156.30 
260.50 
521.00 

2.37 

3 Schedule No. A-I 



Line 
- No. 
1 Equity (2) 
2 Debt (2) 

3 Total 

Hacienda Village 
Original Certificate Application 

Capital Structure, Cost of Capital and 
Statement Regarding Financing of Utility Operations 

Estimated 
cost of 

Percent Each Weiahted 
AmDunt ~a t io  Percent(31 &t 

$ 82.477 40% 10.85% 4.34% 
4.25% 2.55% 1231716 60% 

100% - $ 206,193 

4 
5 

Notes: (1) Equity contributions or advances from Related Entities will be made as 
required by the Utility ownership to finance Utility operations. 

6 
7 
a 

9 
10 

(2) A Proforma capital :;tructure consisting of 40% equity and 60% debt is 
proposed in order that the iriitial rates established in this proceeding will provide 
adequate financial resources to the Company. 

(3) The cost of equity i!j based on the current PSC leverage graph The cost of 
debt is based on the current Prime Rate (3.25%) plus 1.00% 

6.89% 
~ 

4 Schedule No. A-2 



h 

Hacienda Village 
Original Certificate Application 

Existing Water System 
Rate Ease, Rate of Return and Operating Income 

Line 
- No. 

1 Utility Plant in Service 
2 Accumulated Depreciation 
3 
4 

5 Rate Base 

Allowance For Working Capital, (1) 

6 Rate of Return 

7 Operating Income 

8 Note (1). Based on 12.5% of O&M expense per Schedule No. 6-8 

Schedule 
Reference Balance 

6-2 $ 553,351 
6-2 (357,286) 

196,065 
10,128 

A-2 

5 Schedule No. B-1 



Hacienda Village 
Original Certificate Appiication 

Existing Water System 
Summary of Utility Plant Cost, Capacities, Accumulated Depreciation and Expense 

Estimated PSC 
Capacities(2) Line NARUC Original Depreciation Depreciation Accumulated 

No Acct No Description cost Rate Oh Expense Depreciation ERC's Gallons 

1 Oriainal Svstem costs 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 
10 
I 1  
12 
13 

14 

15 
16 

17 

301 
304 
307 
310 
31 1 
320 
330 
331 
333 
334 
335 
347 

Organization (1) 
Stiiiciiiies and impivvenienis 
Wells 
Power Generation Equipment 
Pumping Ecluipment 
Water Treatment Equipment 
Distribution Reservoirs & Standpipes 
Transmission & Distribution Mains 
Services 
Meters 
Hydrants 
Miscellaneous Equipment 

Total 

$ 10,000 
25.775 

120,004 
16.291 
15,590 
4,095 

24.132 
140,466 
81,349 

11 1.100 
1.884 
2.664 

$ 553.351 

2.50 
3. i3  
3.33 
5.00 
5.00 
4.55 
2.70 
2.33 
2.50 
5.00 
2.22 
5.67 

$ 250 $ 250 
807 20.573 

3.996 101,901 
16.291 
15,590 

186 3.110 
652 16.615 

3,273 107,559 
2.034 67,484 
5,555 5,555 

42 1,246 
178 1,112 

1,071 
i , O i i  
1.071 
1,071 
1.071 
1.071 
1,071 
1.371 
1.071 
1,071 
1,071 
1.071 

375,000 
375,000 
375,000 
375,000 
375,000 
375,000 
375.000 
375,000 
375.000 
375,000 
375,000 
375,000 

$ 16.973 $ 357,286 1.071 

Notes:(l) Organization costs are based on total estimated legal, accounting and engineering costs incurred to 
obtain an original PSC certificate. 

(2) Capacities are based on 375,000 gallons per day per permit and 350 gpd per ERC. 

6 Schedule No. E-2 



Line 
No. Plant -- 

I 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 
10 
11 
12 

13 

14 

15 
16 
17 

Oriainal Water System costs 
Structures and Improvements 
Wells 
Power Generation Equipment 
Pumping Equipment 
Water Treatment Equipment 
Distribution ReSeNOirS 
Transmission & Distribution Mains 
Services 
Meters & Installations 
Hydrants 
Miscellaneous Equipment 

Hacienda Village 
Original Certificate Application 

Existing Water System 
Original Cost of Water Utility Plant in Service 

By Primary Accounts 

Estimated Total Before Total 
Original Proforma Engineering & Engineering & Plant 

Plant Costs Adjustments Permitting Percent Permitting (10%) Costs 

$ 23.433 
109.094 
14.810 
14,173 
3,723 

21.938 
127.696 
73,954 

1.713 
2,421 

$ 101.000 

$ 23,433 
109,094 
14.810 
14.173 
3.723 

21.938 
127.696 
73.954 

(A) 101,000 
1.71 3 
2,421 

Total Original Potable Water System Plant Costs $ 392.955 $ 101.000 $ 493,955 

Proforma Adiustments 

(A) Meter installation per NES proposal 
Cost per Meter $ 200 
No. of Connections 505 

4.74% $ 
22.09% 
3.00% 
2.87% 
0.75% 
4.44% 

25.85% 
14.97% 
20.45% 
0.35% 
0.49% - 

2,343 
10,910 
1481 
1,417 

372 
2,194 

12,770 
7.395 

10,100 
171 
243 

$ 25,776 
120,004 
16.291 
15.590 
4.095 

24.132 
140,466 
81,349 

11 1,100 
1.884 
2,664 

--- 100.00% $ 49,396 $ 543,351 

18 Total Cost $ 101,000 - -  

7 Schedule No. 8-3 



Hacienda Village 
Original Certificate Application 

Existing Water System 
Calculation of AFUDC 

Estimated Accuniulated Accumulated 
Monthly CWlP CWlP Average 

Line CWlP Beginning End Of CWlP Monthly Total 
No. Month Increase Of Month Month Balance - AFUDC Capital ized _ _ _ _  

1 
2 distribution systems. 

No AFUDC or interest during construction was charged in the construction of the original plant or 

a Schedule No. B-4 



Hacienda Village 
Original Certificate Application 

Existing Water System 
Projected Accumulated Depreciation and Expense 

PSC 
NARUC Estimated Years in Depreciation Acurmulated Depreciation 

Cost Service Rate Depreciation (1) Expense __ -_ Description 
Line 
No 

I 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 
10 
11 
12 
13 

30 1 
304 

Organization 
Structures and Improvemerite- 1985 
Weils-1985 
Power Generation Equipment- 1985 
Pumping Equipment- 1985 
Water Treatment EquipmeW 1985 
Water Treatment Equipment- 2010 
Distribution Reservoirs .% Slandpipes- 1985 
Transmission .% Distribution Mains- 1973 
Transmisslan 8 Distribution Mains- 1980 
Transmisslon & Distribution Mains- 1981 
Services- 1973 
Services- 1980 
Servioes- 1981 
Meters 
Hydrants- 1980 
Hydrants- 1981 
Miscellaneous Equipment- '1985 
Miscellaneous Equipment- 2010 

Total 

$ 10.000 
25.776 

1 0  
2% 

2 50 
3 13 

$ 250 
20,573 

16.291 
15,590 
3,087 

23 
16,615 
43.901 

10i.gni 

$ 250 
807 

307 
310 
311 

120;004 
16.291 
15.590 

25 5 
25 5 
25 5 

3 33 
5 00 
5 00 

3,996 

320 3.087 25.5 4 55 140 
320 
330 
331 

1:008 
24.132 

0 5  
25.5 

4 55 
2 70 
2 33 

46 
652 

1.171 50,244 
70,531 
19.691 
32,476 
39.740 

37 5 
33 1 
331 
333 

30 5 
29 5 
37 5 

2 33 
2 33 
2 50 

50;123 
13,535 
30,446 

1,343 
459 
812 
994 
228 

5,555 
12 

71 
107 

$ 16.973 

30 

333 30 5 2 50 30,302 
6,736 
5,555 

366 
880 

1,058 
=A 

14 
15 
16 

333 
334 
335 

9:133 
11 1,100 

541 

29 5 
1 0  

305 

2 50 
5 00 
2.22 
2 22 17 

18 
19 

20 

21 
22 

f i  

335 
347 
347 

1.343 29 5 
1,058 
1,606 

25 5 
0 5  

6 67 
6 67 

$553.351 9, 357,286 

Note (I) Accumulated depreciabon through December 31. 2010 was calculated using PSC guideline rates, estimated onginal 
costs per  MBV Enginewing, and W age of each plant faolity per Appendix B of the Engineenng Report 

9 Schedule No. 6-5 



Hacienda Village 
Original Certificate Application 

Existing Water System 
Statement Regarding Proposed Service Availability Policy 

Line 
No. 

1 
2 to the homeowners 

- 

There is no proposed Service AvailabiMy Policy. The system is built-out and mobile home lots are r e n t 4  

10 Schedule No. B-6 



c 

Line 
No. 

1 Operating Revenue 
2 Operating Expenses: 
3 OgMexpense 
4 Depreciation 
5 Taxes other than income 
6 

7 Operating Income (loss) 

8 RateBase 

9 Rate of Return 

Hacienda Village 
Original Certificate Application 

Existing Water System 
Constructed Statement of Operations 

Estimated Proforma Proforma Schedule 
-~ Amount Adjustments Amount Reference 

$ 120,672 (A) $ 120,672 

$ 81,020 
16.973 

81,020 6-8 
16.973 B-5 
8,472 B-9 5.430 (6) 3,042 

101.035 5.430 __ 106,465 

$ (101.035)$ 115,242 $ 14207 B-1 

$ 206,193 $ 206,193 B-1 

ZtUQY! A-2 

-.__- =====A 

__ 

10 Proforma Adjustments: 
11 (A) Total revenue requested to realize a 6 89% rate of return. Kb!2O372 

12 (6)  Regulatory assessment fees (RAFs): 
13 Total revenue requested 
14 RAF rate 

$ 120,672 
4- 

15 Regulatory Assessment Fees $ 5,430 

Schedule No. 6-7 



c 

Line 
No. 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 

9 
10 
11 
12 

13 

14 
15 
16 

17 

- 

a 

i a  

Hacienda Village 
Original Certificate Application 

Existing Water System 
Detail of O&M Expenses 

NARUC 
Acct. No. _- Description -. 

615 
618 

631 
632 
633 
634 
634 
635 
636 
655 
675 

Purchased Power 
Chemicals (1) 
Contractual Services: 

Engineering 
Outside Accounting ~ Annual Report. RAF Return, Index Adjustments 
Contract Legal 
Management Fees (Administrative, Accounting, Tax, Customer Service) (1) 
Management Fees (Operator and Billing Fee) (1) (2) 
Testing (1) 
Plant Maintenance (1) 

Insurance -Property, Casualty & Liability (1) 
Miscellaneous 

Total estimated O&M expense 

Estimated 
Amount 

$ 12.213 
3,146 

1,200 
1,500 
1,000 

25,000 
8,191 

io,oga 
1,000 

15,672 
2,000 

$81,020 - 

(1) Per estimates of company operator USA Water. Other costs were estimated by 
Carlstedt, Jackson, Nixon, and Wilson, CPAs, based on their experience with costs for 
similar sized utilities. 

(2) Includes 50% of monthly billing fee per NES proposal of $2.00 per meter. Hacienda Village 
has 505 sites. 

12 Schedule No. B-8 



Hacienda Village 
Original Certificate Application 

Existing Water System 
Projecied Taxes Other Than Income Taxes 

Line 
- No. Description 

1 
2 Total projected cost 
3 Accumulated depreciation 

4 Estimated taxable value 

Tanqible Personal Prow* ( Excludes Organization) 

13 

Millage Projected 
- Cost - Rate - Tax 

$ 543,351 
(357,036) 

$ 186,315 00163249 $ ~~ 3,042 ~ 

Schedule No. B-9 



Hacienda Village 
Original Cetiicate Application 

Existing Water System 
Rate Computation 

Line Percent Allocation . Rate C o m p o E n c  
-  NO^ _____ Total BFC G a e  -.B=-~ Gallonage 

1 Oceration 8 Maintenance t o 8 M L  
2 Purchased Power $ 12,213 000% 10000% $ . $ 12,213 
3 Chemicals 3,146 0 00% 100 00% 3,146 
4 Contradual Services: 
5 Engineering 1,200 5000% 50~00% 600 600 
6 Outside Accounting -Annual Report, RAF Return, and Index 1.500 5000% 5000% 750 750 
7 
8 
9 
10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 

16 

17 

18 
19 
20 

P 

Adjustments) 
Contract Legal 
Management Fees (Administrative, Accounting. Tax. and 
Customer Sewice) 

Management Fees (Operator and Billing Fee) 
Testing 
Plant Maintenance 

Insurance - Property. Casualty & Liability 
Miscellaneous 

Total estimated 0 8 M  ewense 

Depreciation Expense -Net 

Taxes Other than Income. 
Real estate 8 property taxes 
Regulatory Assessment Fees 

21 

22 Operating lnmme 

23 Total revenue requested 

24 
25 No of months 

26 Annual No of monthly ERC's 

27 Estimated annual gallons sold - (000) 

28 Rates - Base Facility Charge I Gallonage Charge per 1.000 Gallons 

N O  of ERC's at buildout level of operation 

1,000 
25,000 

8,191 
10.098 
1,000 

15,672 
2.000 

a i  ,020 

16.973 

3.042 
5,430 
8.472 ___ 

14,207 

$ 120.672 

50.00% 5000% 500 500 
75.0046 25 OOY~ 18,750 6.250 

75.00% 25.00% 6.143 2,048 
5000% 5000% 5.049 5,049 

10000% 000% 1,000 
50 00% 5000% 7,836 7.836 
5000% 5000% 1,000 1 ,ow 

10000% 000% 16.973 

5000% 5000% 1.521 1,521 
5000% 50 00% 2.715 2,715 

2500% 7500% 3,552 10,655 

$ 66.389 $83 

531 
12 

6,372 

22.945 

$ 1042 3 --z 

14 Schedule NO. B-10 



Hacienda Village 

EXHIBIT I 

Legal Description 



HACIENDA VILLAGE 

, .  . 
Traklr38,39.40.59. and M)ofPORT,RICHEY LAND COMPANY SUBDIVISION ofScction 3, 
Township 26 South. Range 16 ESL as shown on the Plat recorded in Plat Bwk 1. Page 61. of the 
Public Records of P w o  County. Florida, less and cxcept a part ofTraclS9 being more particularly 
described as follows: 

Commcnce a1 the Northwest comer of the Southeast 114 of Section 3. Township 26 South, Range 
I6 East.andgoSo.uth00'3I'IO" West. 165O.YO feclalongtlie Wcstboundaryofsaid Southeast 114: 
thence South 89'38'54" East. 664.77 fwt to a point on thc North boundary of wid Tract 59; thence 
Sou& 00'26'03" West 30.00 feet. to the Point of Bcginning; thence South 89 38'5CEasl. 190 feet. 
along a line 30.Wfcel South of and parallel Io the North boundary of said Tract SY : Ihcncc South 
00'26'03" West 320 feet along a line 30.00 feet West and parallel to the East boundary ofTract 59; 
thence Noah 8938'54" West. Ipb f i .  thence North 00 26'03" East. 320 fcet to the Point of 
Beginning. 

PARCEL2: 
The North.5YQ.W feet of Tmcts 43 end 4. lying East of Rowan Ruad. PORT RICHEY LAND 
COMPANY SUBDIVISION of Section 3.,Township 26 South. Range 16 East. Pasco County, 
Florida,saidPortRichcy LandCompany Subdi\.isionbeing~ordcd in Plat Book I ,  Page6l. Public 
Records of Pasco County. Florida. less and cxcept that pmpcny dcscribcd in that cenain Order of 
Taking as recorded in Ofliciul Records Book 1204. Paw 747. Public Rccords oTPasco Countv. 
Floridi. 

Less Ihc Westerly 20.00 feet of the North SY4.00 feet of Tracts 43 and 44. lying East of Roivan 
Road. PORTRICHEY LANDCOMPANY SUBDIVISION ofSation 3, Township 26 South. Range 
16 East. as shorn on Plat recorded in Plat Book. 1. Page 61. Public Rwords of Paso  County. 
Florida, bcing more particularly dcscribcd as follows: 

Commence a1 the Northeast comer of said Tract43 for a Point of Rcfcrence; thcnce run North 
8932'37" West. 564.13 fcct along the North boundaj line ofmid Tracts43 and 44.10 thr Point of 
Beginning; lhence South 27 16'30" East 356.20 feet; thence 126.52 fect along the arc of a curvc 
concave to the right having a radius of 850.00 feet. a chord of 126.10 feet bearing South 23 00'39" 
Enst thence South 1844'48" East 172.36 feet; thcncc North XY 32'37" West. 21.18 feet io a point 
on the Easterly right-of-way line ofRowan Road as now cslabiishd: thence North I8 44'48" West. 
165.39 feet along said Easterly right-of-way Imc; thcnce 123.54 feet along the arc of a curve 
coneavcso the left along said Easterly right-of-way line. having B radius of X30.W feci. a chord of 
123.43 feet bearing North 23'00'39'.' Wat:  thence Nonh 2716'30" West. 366.71 feet along raid 
Easterly right-of-way line; thence South 8932'37" Enst. 22.60 fect along said North boundary line 
lo the Point of Beginning. 



Hncienda Village 

EXHIBIT J 

County Assessment Map 



Page 1 of 1 
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Pasco County Parcel: 03-26-16-0070-03800-0000 001 Page 1 of 1 

Classification I 
Mailing Address 

MHC HACIENDA VILLAGE LLC 
C/O MELLANDER & ASSOCIATES INC 
800 E NORTHWEST HIGHWAY X204 

MT PROSPKT IL 60056-3457 
Phvsical Address - See All 483 addresses (Flm Shown) 

6005 ALHAMBRA CT 
NEW PORT RICHEY FL 34653-4101 . 
Leaal DeSCriDtiOn (~1st 4 Lines) 
PORT RICHEY LAND COMPANY SUB 

PB 1 PG 61 TRS 38 39 40 59 & 
60 EXC FOLL DESC POR OF TR 59 

COM NW COR OF SE1/4 SEC TH ALG 

Additional Land I n  

Buildina Information - Use 77 - Clubs 

- Rental MH/RV Park - 
Property Value 

Ag Land 5( 
Land $16,417,161 

Building $206,98: 
Extra Features 535,561 

Market Value 
Assessed (Non-School Amendment 1) 

Taxable Value 

$16,659,707 
516,659,707 

$16,659,707 

mation 

ear Built 1974 Stories 1.0 
xterior Wall 1 Concrete Block Stucco Exterior Wall 2 None 
oof Structure Gable or Hip Roof Cover Clay or Bermuda Tile 
nterior Wall 1 Drywall Interior Wall 2 None 
looring 1 Cork or Vinyl Tile Flooring 2 Carpet 
uel Electric Heat Forced Air - Ducted 
JC Central Baths 2.0 

Sales History 
Previous Owner 

http://appraiser.pascogov .co~searc~p~cel.aspx?sec=O3&twn=26&m~l6&sbb=0070&blk=0380... 8/3/2010 



Pasco County Parcel: 03-26-16-0070-03800-0000 002 Page 1 of 1 

Data Current 
> 

Weekly Archive - Saturday, luly 31, 2010 
03-26-16-0070-03800-0000 (Card: 002 of 003) 

- - - . . . . . . .- . . - . 
Parcel I D  

-. . _. . . 

Mailing Address 
MHC HACIENDA VILLAGE LLC 

C/O MELLANDER &ASSOCIATES INC 
800 E NORTHWEST HIGHWAY #204 

MT PROSPECT IL  60056-3457 
Phvsical Address - See All 483 addresses (First Shown) 

6005 ALHAMBRA CT 
NEW PORT RICHEY FL 34653-4101 

. .  Leaal Descri- (Fifst 4 Lines) 
PORT RICHEY LAND COMPANY SUB 

PB 1 PG 6 1  TRS 38 39 40 59 & 
60 EXC FOLL DESC POR OF TR 59 

COM NW COR OF SE1/4 SEC TH ALG 

Line I use I Description1 

- Rental MH/RV Park 
P 

Property Value 
Ag Land $C 

Land $16,417,161 
Building $206,985 

Extra Features $35,561 

Market Value $16,659,707 
assessed (Non-School Amendment 1) $16,659,707 

Taxable Value $16,659,707 

- I 
Land Detail (Card: 002 of 003) 

_e= 

Price I Condition 11 Value 
-a>._. . . . - - .. Aaairionai Lana inrormarion 

11s (Card: 002 of 003) 
rear Built 2008 Stories 1.0 
Exterior Wall 1 Above Average Exterior Wall 2 None 
Roof Structure Gable or Hip Roof Cover Asphalt or Composition Shingle 
Interior Wall 1 Drywall Interior Wall 2 None 
'looring 1 Ceramic Clay Tile Flooring 2 None 
Wei Electric Heat Forced Air  - Ducted 

1 II 1.479 II 993.724 

(cal - Extra F :eatu res 
Yi Line II Description ear 

II 1 - SWB 2008 II 500 I $900 
- 

Salar Clirtnrv - . , 
Previous - Owner u HACIENDA VILLAGE MANUFACTURED 

L 
L 

62,800 - 
nn nnn 

http://appraiser.pascogov.com/search/parcel=1626030070038000000&showcards=002 8/3/2010 



Pasco County Parcel: 03-26-1 6-0070-03800-0000 003 Page 1 of 1 

- 
i r  = 
)i 

Classification 7 
- - 

Mailing Address 
MHC HACIENDA VILLAGE LLC 

C/O MELLANDER &ASSOCIATES INC 
EO0 E NORTHWEST HIGHWAY #204 

MT PROSPECT I L  60056-3457 
Phvsical Address - See All 483 addresses (First Shown) 

6005 ALHAMERA CT 
NEW PORT RICHEY FL 34653-4101 

-1 Descriotiotl (First 4 Lines) 
PORT RICHEY LAND COMPANY SUE 

PE 1 PG 61 TRS 36 39 4CI 59 & 
60 EXC FDLL DESC POR OF TR 59 

COM NW COR OF SE1/4 SEC TH ALG .. 
Line I Use IIDescrintlonl 

live - Saturday, July 31, 2010 
.03800-0000 (Card: 003 of 003) 
- Rental MH/RV Park - 

Property Value 
Ag Land $C 

Land $16,417,161 
Building $206,985 

Extra Features $35,561 

Market Value $16,659,707 
kssessed (Non-School Amendment 1) $16,659,707 

Taxable Value $16,659,707 

Land Detail (Card: 003 of 003) 
Zoning Units fl wpe II Price 11 Condition Value - - . ... . . . . - - .. 

~ 

Aaairionai u n a  inrorrnarion 

tial Code! RMHPCL5 ~COmmeriCal Codel RMHPCL5 

- 
Extra Features (Card: 003 of 003) 

Units II Value II 

HACIENDA VILLAGE MANUFACTURED - 

http:Nappraiser.pascogov.com/search/parce~=1626030070038000000&showcards=003 8/3/2010 



Hacienda Village 

EXHIBIT K 

System Map 



HACIENDA VILLAGE 

UTILITY MAPS 


SECTION 3, TOWNSHIP 26-S, RANGE 16-E 

PASCO COUNTY, FLORIDA 


VICINITY MAP 

OWNER 
MHC HACIENDA VILLAGE LLC 

POBOX06115 
CHICAGO. IL 60606 

ENGINEER 
,.35 - 20TH STREET 

VERO BEACH , FL 32960 
PH . (772 ) Ci69· 003611MBVENGINEERING, INC. FX . (772 ) 778 _3"7 

~~SU~~~~ ~ ~~~ ~ ~ : =: ~~! ~~ 

INDEX OF DRAWINGS 
00V8'! steTC1 

C2 MASTER UTUTY I.W' 

C3 UTUTY I.W' 

C4 UTUTY I.W' 

as UTUTY I.W' 

as UTUTY I.W' 

ENGINEER'S PROJECT No. 10-234 



WATER LEGEND WASTEWATER LEGEND 

--- "M WATERMAIN 
PVC SANITARY SEWER LINE tFIRE HYDRANT_"M 

$$ 

SANITARY MANHOLEss 

FH 
GRAPHIC SCALEBLOW OFF 4- FORCEMAIN-"M 

..... F IRE HOSE STAND 200 0 100 200 

..... ! 

IN FEET) 
1 inch = 200 It. 

1835 - 20TH STREET 

VERO BEACH. FL 32960 


PH. (772) 569-0035 

FX. (772) 778_3617 
 HACIENDA VILLAGE C2MASTER UTILITY MAP 

UTILITY MAPS 
PASCO COUNTY FLORJDA~~:=~~!it~ 



--­ ~M 

+-- ~M 

WATERMAIN 

FIRE HYDR.A.'IT 

ss PvC SANITARY SEWER LINE 

GRAPHIC SCALE 
100 0 50 100 

ss SANITARY MANHOLE ..... I : 

8LOWOFF-~M FlO 4~ FORCEMAIN IN FEET) 
... FIRE HOSE STAND inch ~ 100 rt. 

1835 - 20TH STREET 

VERO BEACH, FL 32,960 


PH (772) 1569-0035 

FX (772) 778 _3817 
 HACIENDA VILLAGE C3UTILITY MAP 

UTILITY MAPS ;,,;,.~u 

~~::~! !!t= 



GRAPHIC SCALE 
WATER LEGEND WASTEWATER LEGEND 

--10" WATERMAIN 100 a 50 100 
SS pvc SANITARY SEWER LINE I•• 1 1III 

FIRE HYORAf'IlT 
SANITARY MANHOLE

-10" 
SS ( IN FEET) 

BLOWQFF 
---- 10M F>4 4~ FORGEMAIN inch ~ 100 fL 

'e3~ · 20TH STREET 

VERO BEACH. FL 32960 


PH , (712) 669-00315 
 HACIENDA VILLAGE .MBV FX . (712) 778-3817 UTIUTYMAP 
UTILITY MAPS ~~~~~ 

PASCO COUHTY FLORIDA~ I CGlSU.TlIIG O«:INEERlIC U. '.l72.8 ~R:=:W~l~~ 



WATER LEGeND WASTEWATER LEGEND 

GRAPHIC SCALE 
--- "M WATERMAIN 

PVC SANITAR'Y SEWER LINEss 
100 a 50 100 

FIRE HYDRANT+--- "" ss SANITARY MANHOLE II _ III : : 
8LOWOFF 

FM "" - FQRC EMAIN ---- "" ( IN FEET) 
... FIRE HOSE STAND inch ~ 100 fL 

1835 ­ 20TH STREET 
V ERO BEACH , FL 32980 

PH. (772) 569-0035 
F X. (772) 778-3e17 

1ID.8JIJ!IMc.n.-PH 
n. fQC(. n. - I't\ 

~\5\O ...-­ PASCO COU NTY 

HACIENDA VILLAGE 
UTILITY MAPS 

flORI OA 

UTILITY MAP 
~.,.., 

C5 



WATER LEGE N D 

-­ ~M WATERMAIN 

+--- ~M FIRE HYDRANT 

-~M BLOW OFF 

~')'O...- PASCO COUNTY 

WASTEWATER LEGEND 

ss 

ss 

FM 

pvc SANITARY SEWER LINE 

SANITARY MANHOLE 

.- FORCEMAIN 

GRAPHIC SCALE 
100 0 50 100..... : : 

( IN FEET) 
inch = 100 fl. 

HACIENDA VILLAGE C6UTILITY MAP 
UTILITY MAPS ""'Ll!lD13 

FlORI"" 



Hacienda Village 

EXHIBIT L 

Tariffs 



WATER TARIFF 

HACIENDA VILLAGE UTILITY 
NAME OF COMPANY 

FILED WITH 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 



ORIGINAL SHEET NO. 1 .O 

WATER TARIFF 

HACIENDA VILLAGE UTILITY 
NAME OF COMPANY 

7107 GIBRALTARAVENUE 
NEW PORT RICHEY, FLORIDA 

(ADDRESS OF COMPANY) 

(727) 847-1409 
(Business & Emergency Telephone Numbers) 

FILED WITH 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

Roqer Mavnard 
ISSUING OFFICER 

Executive vice President 
TITLE 



ORIGINAL SHEET NO. 2.0 

NAME OF COMPANY HACIENDA VILLAGE UTILITY 

WATER TARIFF 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Sheet Number 

Communities Served Listing .......................................................... 

Description of Territory Served .... ........................... 

Index of 

Rates and Charges Schedules ..................................................................... 11 .O 

Rules and Regulations .................................................................................. 6.0 

Service Availability Policy ............................................................................. 23.0 

Standard Forms .......................................... ........ 18.0 

Technical Terms and Abbreviations ...................................................................... 5.0 

Territory Authority .................................................................................................. 3.0 

Rouer Mavnard 
ISSUING OFFiCER 

Executive Wcs President 
TITLE 



ORIGINAL SHEET NO. 3.0 

NAME OF COMPANY 

WATER TARIFF 

HACIENDA VILLAGE UTILITY 

TERRITORY AUTHORITY 

CERTIFICATE NUMBER­

COUNTY-PASCO 

COMMISSION ORDER,s) APPROVING TERRITORY SERVED ­

Order Number Date Issued Docket Number FilingTvoe 

Original Certificate 

(Continued to Sheet No. 3.1) 

Roger Maynard 
ISSUING OFFICER ' 

Executive Vice President 
TITLE 



ORIGINAL SHEET NO. 3.1 

NAME OF COMPANY 

WATER TARIFF 

(Continued from Sheet No. 3.0) 

HACIENDA VILLAGE UTILITY 

DESCRIPTION OF TERRITORY SERVED 

PORT RICHEY LAND COMPANY SUB PB 1 PG 61 TRS 38 39 40 59 & 60 EXC FOLL DESC POR 
OF TR 59 COM NW COR OF SE1/4 SEC TH ALG W LN OF SE1/4 SOODG 31' 1OW 1650.90 FT 
TH S89DG 38' 54"E 664.77 FT TO N LN TR 59 TH SOODG 26' 03"W 30 FT TO POB TH S89DG 
3 8  54"E 190 FT TH ALG LN 30 FT W OF & PARALLEL TO E LN TR 59 SOODG 26' 03"W 320 FT 
TH N89DG 38 54"W 190 FT TH NOODG 26' 03"E 320 FT TO POB & TRACT 42 EXC SOUTH 25 
FT THEREOF & POR OF TRS 43 & 44 DESC AS COM AT NE COR OF TR 43 FOR POB TH 
SOODG 2 8  5 9 W  594.00 FT TH N89DG 32' 37"W 265.9 FT TO ELY RMI OF ROWAN RD TH ALG 
RMI N18DG 44' 4 8 W  175.84 FT TH 128.01 FT ALG ARC OF CV LEFT RAD 860 FT CHD BRG 
N23DG 00' 3 9 W  127.89 FT TH N27DG 16' 30"W 350.94 FT TH S89DG 32' 37"E 537.33 FT TO 
POB;& INCL VAC RNV PER OR 31 18 PG 48;SUBJECT TO PERPETUAL RNV ESMT OVER WLY 
10 FT THEREOF 

Roaer Mamard 
ISSUING OFFICER 

Executive Vice President 
TITLE 



ORIGINAL SHEET NO. 4.0 

NAME OF COMPANY 

WATER TARIFF 

HACIENDA VILLAGE UTILITY 

COMMUNITIES SERVED LISTING 

County 
Name 

PASCO 

Rate 
Development Schedule(s) 
-- Name Available 

HACIENDA VILLAGE GS, RS 

Sheet No. 

12.0. 13.0 

Roqer Mamard 
iSSUlNG OFFiCER 

Executive vice President 
TITLE 



ORIGINAL SHEET NO. 5.0 

NAME OF COMPANY 

WATER TARIFF 

HACIENDA VILLAGE UTILITY 

TECHNICAL TERMS AND ABBREVIATIONS 

1 .o 

2.0 

3.0 

4.0 

5.0 

6.0 

7.0 

8.0 

9.0 

10.0 

11.0 

E - The abbreviation for "Base Facility Charge" which is the minimum amount the Company may 
charge its Customers and is separate from the amount the Company bills its Customers for water 
consumption. 

"CERTIFICATE - A  document issued by the Commission authorizing the Company to provide water 
service in a specific territory. 

"COMMISSION -The shortened name for the Florida Public Service Commission. 

"COMMUNITIES SERVED -The group of Customers who receive water service from the Company 
and whose service location is within a specific area or locality that is uniquely separate from another. 

"COMPANY" - The shortened name for the full name of the utility which is Hacienda Village. 

"CUSTOMER -Any person, firm or corporation who has entered into an agreement to receive water 
service from the Company and who is liable for the payment of that water service. 

"CUSTOMERS INSTALLATION - All pipes, shut-offs, valves, fixtures and appliances or apparatus of 
every kind and nature used in connection with or forming a part of the installation for rendering water 
service to the Customer's side of the Service Connection whether such installation is owned by the 
Customer or used by the Customer under lease or other agreement. 

"MAIN" - A pipe, conduit, or other facility used to convey water service to individual service lines or 
through other mains. 

"RATE" - Amount which the Company may charge for water service which is applied to the Customer's 
actual consumption. 

"RATE SCHEDULE - The rate(s) or charge(s) for a particular classification of service plus the several 
provisions necessary for billing, including all special terms and conditions under which service shall be 
furnished at such rate or charge. 

"SERVICE - As mentioned in this tariff and in agreement with Customers, "Service" shall be construed 
to include, in addition to all water service required by the Customer, the readiness and ability on the part 
of the Company to furnish water service to the Customer. Service shall conform to the standards set 
forth in Section 367.1 11 of the Florida Statutes. 

(Continued to Sheet No. 5.1) 

Roaer Mavnard 
ISSUING OFFICER 

Executive vice President 
TITLE 



ORIGINAL SHEET NO. 5.1 

NAME OF COMPANY 

WATER TARIFF 

(Continued from Sheet No. 5.0) 

HACIENDA VILLAGE UTILITY 

12.0 "SERVICE CONNECTION" -The point where the Company's pipes or meters are connected with the 
pipes of the Customer. 

13.0 "SERVICE LINES - The pipes between the Company's Mains and the Service Connection and which 
includes all of the pipes, fittings and valves necessary to make the connection to the Customer's 
premises, excluding the meter. 

'TERRITORY- The geographical area described, if necessary, by metes and bounds but, in all cases, 
with township, range and section in a Certificate, which may be within or without the boundaries of an 
incorporated municipality and may include areas in more than one county. 

14.0 

Roaer Maward 
ISSUING OFFICER 

Executive vice President 
TITLE 



ORIGINAL SHEET NO. 6.0 

NAME OF COMPANY HACIENDA VILLAGE UTILITY 

WATER TARIFF 
INDEX OF RULES AND REGULATIONS 

Access to Premises .......................... 

Adjustment of Bills for Meter Error .... 

All Water Through Meter ........................... 

...................................................... 

Change of Customer's Installation ............................... 

Continuity of Service ...... 

Customer Billing ..... ......... 

Delinquent Bills ....................................................................................... 

Extensions ............................................................................................... 

Filing of Contracts ... ................................................. .............. 

General Information .................. 

Inspection of Customer's Installation ........................... 

Limitation of Use ... 

............... 

Meter Accuracy Requirements ........... 
Meters .......... ............. 

Payment of Water and Wastewater Service 
Bills Concurrently .................................................................................. 

Sheet 
Number: 

9.0 

10.0 

10.0 

10.0 

7.0 

7.0 

8.0 

8.0 

9.0 

7.0 

7.0 

10.0 

7.0 

9.0 

8.0 

10.0 

10.0 

10.0 

Rule 
Number: 

14.0 

22.0 

23.0 

21 .o 

3.0 

4.0 

11 .o 
9.0 

16.0 

8.0 

6.0 

25.0 

1 .o 

13.0 

10.0 

24.0 

20.0 

18.0 

(Continued to Sheet No. 6.1) 

Roaer Mavnard 
ISSUING OFFICER 

Executive vice President 
TITLE 



ORIGINAL SHEET NO. 6.1 

NAME OF COMPANY 

WATER TARIFF 

(Continued from Sheet No. 6.0) 

HACIENDA VILLAGE UTILITY 

Policy Dispute ........... ........................................................................ 

Protection of Company's Property .......................................................... 

Refusal or Discontinuance of Service ..................................................... 

Right-of-way or Easements ..................................................................... 

Termination of Service .__._ ... 
Type and Maintenance ........................ 

Unauthorized Connections - Water ......................................................... 

Sheet 
Number: 

7.0 

8.0 

7.0 

9.0 

9.0 

7.0 

10.0 

Rule 
Number: 

2.0 

12.0 

5.0 

15.0 

17.0 

7.0 

19.0 

Roqer Mavnard 
ISSUING OFFICER 

Executive Vice President 
TITLE 



ORIGINAL SHEET NO. 7.0 

NAME OF COMPANY 

WATER TARIFF 

HACIENDA VILLAGE UTILITY 

1 .o 

2.0 

3.0 

4.0 

5.0 

6.0 

7.0 

8.0 

RULES AND REGULATIONS 

GENERAL INFORMATION - These Rules and Regulations are a part of the rate schedules and 
applications and contracts of the Company and, in the absence of specific written agreement to the 
contrary, apply without modifications or change to each and every Customer to whom the Company 
renders water service. 

The Company shall provide water service to all Customers requiring such service within its Certificated 
territory pursuant to Chapter 25-30, Florida Administrative Code and Chapter 367, Florida Statutes. 

POLICY DISPUTE - Any dispute between the Company and the Customer or prospective Customer 
regarding the meaning or application of any provision of this tariff shall upon written request by either 
party be resolved by the Florida Public Service Commission. 

APPLICATION - In accordance with Rule 25-30.310, Florida Administrative Code, a signed application 
is required prior to the initiation of service. The Company shall provide each Applicant with a copy of 
the brochure entitled "Your Water and Wastewater Service," prepared by the Florida Public Service 
Commission. 

APPLICATIONS BY AGENTS - Applications for water service requested by firms, partnerships, 
associations, corporations, and others shall be rendered only by duly authorized parties or agents. 

REFUSAL OR DISCONTINUANCE OF SERVICE -The Company may refuse or discontinue water 
service rendered under application made by any member or agent of a household, organization, or 
business in accordance with Rule 25-30.320, Florida Administrative Code. 

EXTENSIONS - Extensions will be made to the Company's facilities in compliance with Commission 
Rules and Orders and the Company's tariff. 

TYPE AND MAINTENANCE - In accordance with Rule 25-30.545, Florida Administrative Code, the 
Customer's pipes, apparatus and equipment shall be selected, installed, used and maintained in 
accordance with standard practice and shall conform with the Rules and Regulations of the Company 
and shall comply with all laws and governmental regulations applicable to same. The Company shall 
not be responsible for the maintenance and operation of the Customer's pipes and facilities. The 
Customer expressly agrees not to utilize any appliance or device which is not properly constructed, 
controlled and protected or which may adversely affect the water service. The Company reserves the 
right to discontinue or withhold water service to such apparatus or device. 

DELINQUENT BILLS - When it has been determined that a Customer is delinquent in paying any bill, 
water service may be discontinued after the Company has mailed or presented a written notice to the 
Customer in accordance with Rule 25-30.320, Florida Administrative Code. 

(Continued on Sheet No. 8.0) 
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(Continued from Sheet No. 7.0) 

9.0 CONTINUITY OF SERVICE - In accordance with Rule 25-30.250, Florida Administrative Code, the 
Company will at all times use reasonable diligence to provide continuous water service and, having 
used reasonable diligence, shall not be liable to the Customer for failure or interruption of continuous 
water service. 

If at any time the Company shall interrupt or discontinue its service, all Customers affected by said 
interruption or discontinuance shall be given not less than 24 hours written notice. 

10.0 LIMITATION OF USE - Water service purchased from the Company shall be used by the Customer 
onlyfor the purposes specified in the application for water service. Water service shall be rendered to 
the Customer for the Customer's own use and the Customer shall not sell or otherwise dispose of such 
water service supplied by the Company. 

In no case shall a Customer, except with the written consent of the Company, extend his lines across a 
street, alley, lane, court, property line, avenue, or other way in order to furnish water service to the 
adjacent property through one meter even though such adjacent property may be owned by him. In 
case of such unauthorized extension, sale, or disposition of service, the Customer's water service will 
be subject to discontinuance until such unauthorized extension, remetering, sale or disposition of 
service is discontinued and full payment is made to the Company for water service rendered by the 
Company (calculated on proper classification and rate schedules) and until reimbursement is made in 
full to the Company for all extra expenses incurred for clerical work, testing, and inspections. (This 
shall not be construed as prohibiting a Customer from remetering.) 

CHANGE OF CUSTOMERS INSTALLATION -No changes or increases in the Customer's installation, 
which will materially affect the proper operation of the pipes, mains, or stations of the Company, shall be 
made without written consent of the Company. The Customer shall be liable for any charge resulting 
from a violation of this Rule. 

PROTECTION OF COMPANY'S PROPERTY -The Customer shall exercise reasonable diligence to 
protect the Company's property. If the Customer is found to have tampered with any Company property 
or refuses to correct any problems reported by the Company, service may be discontinued in 
accordance with Rule 25-30.320, Florida Administrative Code. 

In the event of any loss or damage to property of the Company caused by or arising out of 
carelessness, neglect, or misuse by the Customer, the cost of making good such loss or repairing such 
damage shall be paid by the Customer. 

11 .O 

12.0 

(Continued on Sheet No. 9.0) 
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HACIENDA VILLAGE UTILITY 

13.0 

14.0 

15.0 

16.0 

17.0 

INSPECTION OF CUSTOMERS INSTALLATION - All Customer's water service installations or 
changes shall be inspected upon completion by a competent authority to ensure that the Customer's 
piping, equipment, and devices have been installed in accordance with accepted standard practice and 
local laws and governmental regulations. Where municipal or other governmental inspection is required 
by local rules and ordinances, the Company cannot render water service until such inspection has been 
made and a formal nottce of approval from the inspecting authority has been received by the Company. 

Not withstanding the above, the Company reserves the right to inspect the Customer's installation prior 
to rendering water service, and from time to time thereafter, but assumes no responsibility whatsoever 
for any portion thereof 

ACCESS TO PREMISES - in accordance with Rule 25-30.320(2)(f), Florida Administrative Code, the 
Customer shall Drovide the dulv authorized aaents of the Comoanv access at all reasonable hours to its 
property. If reasonable accek is not providGd, service may be biscontinued pursuant to the above 
rule. 

RIGHT-OF-WAY OR EASEMENTS - The Customer shall grant or cause to be granted to the Company, 
and without cost to the Company, all rights, easements, permits, and privileges which are necessaryfor 
the rendering of water service. 

CUSTOMER BILLING - Bills for water service will be rendered - Monthly, Bimonthly, or Quarterly - as 
stated in the rate schedule. 

In accordance with Rule 25-30.335, Florida Administrative Code, the Company may not consider a 
Customer delinquent in paying his or her bill until the lwenty-first day after the Company has mailed or 
presented the bill for payment. 

A municipal or county franchise tax levied upon a water or wastewater public Company shall not be 
incorporated into the rate for water or wastewater service but shall be shown as a separate item on the 
Company's bills to its Customers in such municipality or county. 

If a Company utilizes the base facility and usage charge rate structure and does not have a 
Commission authorized vacation rate, the Company shall bill the Customer the base facility charge 
regardless of whether there is any usage. 

TERMINATION OF SERVICE - When a Customer wishes to terminate service on any premises where 
water service is supplied by the Company, the Company may require reasonable notice to the Company 
in accordance with Rule 25-30.325, Florida Administrative Code. 

(Continued on Sheet No. 10.0) 
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18.0 

19.0 

20.0 

21 .o 

22.0 

23.0 

24.0 

25.0 

PAYMENT OF WATER AND WASTEWATER SERVICE BILLS CONCURRENTLY - In accordance with 
Rule 25-30.320(2)(g), Florida Administrative Code, when both water and wastewater service are 
provided by the Company, payment of any water service bill rendered by the Company to a Customer 
shall not be accepted by the Company without the simultaneous or concurrent payment of any 
wastewater service bill rendered by the Company. 

UNAUTHORIZED CONNECTIONS -WATER -Any unauthorized connections to the Customer's water 
service shall be subject to immediate discontinuance without notice, in accordance with Rule 2530.320, 
Florida Administrative Code. 

METERS -All water meters shall be furnished by and remain the property of the Company and shall be 
accessible and subject to its control, in accordance with Rule 25-30.230, Florida Administrative Code. 

ALL WATER THROUGH METER - That portion of the Customer's installation for water service shall be 
so arranged to ensure that all water service shall pass through the meter. No temporary pipes, nipples 
or spaces are permitted and under no circumstances are connections allowed which may permit water 
to by-pass the meter or metering equipment. 

ADJUSTMENT OF BILLS - When a Customer has been undercharged as a result of incorrect 
application of the rate schedule, incorrect reading of the meter, incorrect connection of the meter, or 
other similar reasons, the amount may be refunded or billed to the Customer as the case may be 
pursuant to Rules 25-30.340 and 25-30.350. Florida Administrative Code. 

ADJUSTMENT OF BILLS FOR METER ERROR - When meter tests are made by the Commission or 
by the Company, the accuracy of registration of the meter and its performance shall conform with Rule 
25-30.262, Florida Administrative Code and any adjustment of a bill due to a meter found to be in error 
as a result of any meter test performed whether for unauthorized use or for a meter found to be fast, 
slow, non-registering, or partially registering, shall conform with Rule 25-30.340, Florida Administrative 
Code. 

METER ACCURACY REQUIREMENTS - All meters used by the Company should conform to the 
provisions of Rule 25-30.262, Florida Administrative Code. 

FILING OF CONTRACTS - Whenever a Developer Agreement or Contract, Guaranteed Revenue 
Contract. or Special Contract or Agreement is entered into by the Company for the sale of its product or 
services in a manner not specifically covered by its Rules and Regulations or approved Rate 
Schedules, a copy of such contracts or agreements shall be flled with the Commission prior to its 
execution in accordance with Rule 25-9.034 and Rule 25-30.550, Florida Administrative Code. If such 
contracts or agreements are approved by the Commission, a conformed copy shall be placed on file 
with the Commission within 30 days of execution. 
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Customer Deposits ..................................... .......... 14.0 

General Service, GS ........................................... 
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Miscellaneous Service Charges ................................................ 16.0 
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GENERAL SERVICE 

RATE SCHEDULE GS 

AVAILABILITY - Available throughout the area served by the Company 

APPLICABILITY - For water service to all Customers for which no other schedule applies. 

LIMITATIONS - Subject to all of the Rules and Regulations of this tariff and General Rules and 
Regulations of the Commission. 

Month I y BILLING PERIOD - 

u- Meter Size 

518" x 314" 
1 
1.5" 
2" 
3" 
4" 
6" 

Base Facilitv Charoe 

10.42 
26.05 
52.10 
83.36 
156.30 
260.50 
521 .OO 

Gallonage Charge 
per 1,000 gallons 2.37 

MINIMUM CHARGE - Base Facility Charge 

TERMS OF PAYMENT - Bills are due and payable when rendered. In accordance with Rule 25-30.320, Florida 
Administrative Code, if a Customer is delinquent in paying the bill for water service, 
service may then be discontinued. 

EFFECTIVE DATE - 

TYPE OF FILING - Original Certificate 
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RESIDENTIAL SERVICE 

RATE SCHEDULE RS 

AVAILABILITY - 

APPLICABILITY - 

Available throughout the area served by the Company 

For water service for all purposes in private residences and individually metered 
apartment units. 

Subject to all of the Rules and Regulations of this Tariff and General Rules and 
Regulations of the Commission. 

LIMITATIONS - 

BILLING PERIOD - Mnthly 

w-  Base Facility Charge 
518" x 314" 10.42 

MINIMUM CHARGE - 

TERMS OF PAYMENT - Bills are due and payable when rendered. In accordance with Rule 25-30.320, Florida 
Administrative Code, if a Customer is delinquent in paying the bill for water service, 
service may then be discontinued. 

Base Facility Charge 

EFFECTIVE DATE - 

TYPE OF FILING - Original Certificate 
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CUSTOMER DEPOSITS 

ESTABLISHMENT OF CREDIT - Before rendering water service, the Company may require an Applicant for 
service to satisfactorily establish credit, but such establishment of credit shall not relieve the Customer from 
complying with the Company's rules for prompt payment. Credit will be deemed so established if the Customer 
complies with the requirements of Rule 25-30.31 1, Florida Administrative Code. 

AMOUNT OF DEPOSIT -The amount of initial deposit shall be the following according to meter size: 

General Service Residential 

518 x 314" NIA 
1 . NIA 

1112" NIA 
Over 2" NIA 

ADDITIONAL DEPOSIT - Under Rule 25-30.31 1(7), Florida Administrative Code, the Company may require a 
new deposit, where previously waived or returned, or an additional deposit in order to secure payment of current 
bills provided. 

INTEREST ON DEPOSIT - The Company shall pay interest on Customer deposits pursuant to Rules 
25-30.31 l(4) and (4a). The Company will pay or credit accrued interest to the Customer's account during the 
month of NIA each year. 

REFUND OF DEPOSIT -After a residential Customer has established a satisfactory payment record and has had 
continuous service for a period of 23 months, the Company shall refund the Customer's deposit provided the 
Customer has met the requirements of Rule 25-30.311(5), Florida AdministrativeCcde. TheCompanymay hold 
the deposit of a non-residential Customer after a continuous service period of 23 months and shall pay interest on 
the non-residential Customer's deposit pursuant to Rules 25-30.31 l(4) and (9, Florida Administrative Code. 

Nothing in this rule shall prohibit the Company from refunding a Customer's deposit in less than 23 months. 

EFFECTIVE DATE - 

TYPE OF FILING - Original Certificate 
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METER TEST DEPOSIT 

METER BENCH TEST REQUEST - If any Customer requests a bench test of his or her water meter, in 
accordance with Rule 25-30.266, Florida Administrative Code, the Company may require a deposit to defray the 
cost of testing; such deposit shall not exceed the schedule of fees found in Rule 25-30.266, Florida Administrative 
Code. 

METER SIZE FEE 

5/8" x 3/4" $20.00 
1" and 1 1/2" $25.00 
2" and over Actual Cost 

REFUND OF METER BENCH TEST DEPOSIT - The Company may refund the meter bench test deposit in 
accordance with Rule 25-30.266, Florida Administrative Code. 

METER FIELD TEST REQUEST - A Customer may request a nO-Charge field test of the accuracy of a meter in 
accordance with Rule 25-30.266, Florida Administrative Code. 

EFFECTIVE DATE ­

TYPE OF FILING - Original Certificate 
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MISCELLANEOUS SERVICE CHARGES 

The Company may charge the following miscellaneous service charges in accordance with the terms stated 
herein. If both water and wastewater services are provided, only a single charge is appropriate unless 
circumstances beyond the control of the Company require multiple actions. 

INITIAL CONNECTION - This charge may be levied for service initiation at a location where 
service did not exist previously. 

NORMAL RECONNECTION - This charge may be leVied for transfer of service to a new 
Customer account at a previously served location or reconnection of service subsequent to a 
Customer requested disconnection. 

VIOLATION RECONNECTION - This charge may be levied prior to reconnection of an existing 
Customer after disconnection of service for cause according to Rule 25-30.320(2), Florida 
Administrative Code, including a delinquency in bill payment. 

PREMISES VISIT CHARGE (IN LIEU OF DISCONNECTION) - This charge may be levied 
when a service representative visits a premises for the purpose of discontinuing service for 
nonpayment of a due and collectible bill and does not discontinue service because the 
Customer pays the service representative or otherwise makes satisfactory arrangements to 
pay the bill. 

Schedule of Miscellaneous Service Charges 

Initial Connection Fee $ 15.00 

Normal Reconnection Fee $ 15.00 

Violation Reconnection Fee $ 15.00 

Premises Visit Fee $ 10.00 
(in lieu of disconnection) 

EFFECTIVE DATE ­

TYPE OF FILING - Original Certificate 
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SERVICE AVAILABILITY FEES AND CHARGES 

DescriDtion 
Back-Flow Preventor Installation Fee 

518" x 314 .................................................................................. 

.......................................... 

...................... 

...................... 
Over 2 metered service ......................................... 

Guaranteed Revenue Charae 
With Prepayment of Service Availability Charges: 

Without Prepayment of Service Availability Charges: 
Residential-per ERClmonth (-GPD) ...... 
All others-Der aallonlmonth ................................. 

Residential-per ERClmonth (-GPD) .... ....................... 
All others-per gallonlmonth ........................................... 

. -  
InsDection Fee ..................................................................................... 
Main Extension Charae 

Residential-per ERC (-GPD) .................................................. 
......................... 

or 

1112" ................................ 

.......................................... 
Plant CaDacitv Charae 

Residential-per ERC (-GPD) ............................ 
All others-Der aallon .... ................................ 

System Caoacitv'ChGae 
Residential-per ERC (-GPD) .................................................. 
All others-per gallon .................................................................. 

Actual Cost is equal to the total cost incurred for services rendered. 

EFFECTIVE DATE - 

TYPE OF FILING - Original Certificate 

1 

Refer to Service Availability Policy 
Amount Sheet No.lRule No. 

$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$' 

$ 
$ 
5 
$ 
$' 

5 
$ 
$' 
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APPLICATION FOR METER INSTALLATION ..................... 

APPLICATION FOR WATER SERVICE .............................. 

COPY OF CUSTOMERS BILL ............................................. 

CUSTOMERS GUARANTEE DEPOSIT RECEIPT ............. 

21.0 

20.0 

22.0 
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CUSTOMER'S GUARANTEE DEPOSIT RECEIPT 

N/A 
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APPLICATION FOR WATER SERVICE 

N/A 
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APPLICATION FOR METER INSTALLATION 

NIA 
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COPY OF CUSTOMER'S BILL 

N/A 
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INDEX OF SERVICE AVAILABILITY 

DescriDtion Sheet Number 

Schedule of Fees and Charges ..................................... 
Service Availability Policy ............................................... 24.0 

Go to Sheet No. 17.0 
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SERVICE AVAllABlLlTY POLICY 

The utility is at build-out and has no approved service availability policy 
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ORIGINAL SHEET NO. 1.0 

WATER TARIFF 

HACIENDA VILLAGE UTILITY 
NAME OF COMPANY 

7107 GIBRALTAR AVENUE 
NEW PORT RICHEY, FLORIDA 

(ADDRESS OF COMPANY) 

(727) 847-1409 
(Business 8. Emergency Telephone Numbers) 

FILED WITH 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Sheet Number 

Communities Served Listing .............................................................. 4.0 

Description of Territory Served ........................................................ 3.1 

Index of 

Rates and Charges Schedules ..................................................................... 11 .O 

Rules and Regulations .................................................................... 6.0 

Service Availability Policy. 23.0 

Standard Forms ............ 18.0 

Technical Terms and Abbreviations 

Territory Authority 3.0 
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TERRITORY AUTHORITY 

CERTIFICATE NUMBER - 
COUNTY - PASCO 

COMMISSION ORDERls) APPROVING TERRITORY SERVED - 

Order Number - Date Issued Docket Number Filina TvDe 

Original Certificate 

(Continued to Sheet No. 3.1) 
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(Continued from Sheet No. 3.0) 

DESCRIPTION OF TERRITORY SERVED 

PORT RICHEY LAND COMPANY SUB PB 1 PG 61 TRS 38 39 40 59 & 60 EXC FOLL DESC POR 
OF TR 59 COM NW COR OF SE1/4 SEC TH ALG W LN OF SEI14 SOODG 31' 1O"W 1650.90 FT 
TH S89DG 38' 54"E 664.77 FT TO N LN TR 59 TH SOODG 2 6  03"W 30 FT TO POB TH S89DG 
3 8  54"E 190 FT TH ALG LN 30 FT W OF & PARALLEL TO E LN TR 59 SOODG 26' 03"W 320 FT 
TH N89DG 3 8  54"W 190 FT TH NOODG 26' 03"E 320 FT TO POB & TRACT 42 EXC SOUTH 25 
FT THEREOF & POR OF TRS 43 & 44 DESC AS COM AT NE COR OF TR 43 FOR POB TH 
SOODG 28' 59W 594.00 FT TH N89DG 32' 37"W 265.9 FT TO ELY RMI OF ROWAN RD TH ALG 
W N18DG 44' 48"W 175.84 FT TH 128.01 FT ALG ARC OF CV LEFT RAD 860 FT CHD BRG 
N23DG 00' 39W 127.89 FT TH N27DG 16' 30"W 350.94 FT TH S89DG 32' 37"E 537.33 FT TO 
POW3 INCL VAC RMI PER OR 31 18 PG 48;SUBJECT TO PERPETUAL WW ESMT OVER WLY 
10 FT THEREOF 
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COMMUNITIES SERVED LISTING 

County 
Name 

PASCO 

Rate 
Development Schedule(s) 

Name Available 

HACIENDA VILLAGE GS, RS 

Sheet No. 

12.0, 13.0 
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TECHNICAL TERMS AND ABBREVIATIONS 

1 .o 

2.0 

3.0 

4.0 

5.0 

6.0 

7.0 

8.0 

9.0 

10.0 

11.0 

"BFC -The abbreviation for "Base Facility Charge" which is the minimum amount the Company may 
charge its Customers and is separate from the amount the Company bills its Customers for Water 
consumption. 

"CERTIFICATE - A  document issued by the Commission authorizing the Company to provide water 
service in a specific territory. 

"COMMISSION" -The shortened name for the Florida Public Service Commission. 

"COMMUNITIES SERVED -The group of Customers who receive water service from the Company 
and whose service location is within a specific area or locality that is uniquely separate from another. 

"COMPANY -The shortened name for the full name of the utility which is Hacienda Villaae 

"CUSTOMER -Any person, firm or corporation who has entered into an agreement to receive Water 
service from the Company and who is liable for the payment of that water service. 

"CUSTOMERS INSTALLATION"- All pipes, shut-offs, valves, fixtures and appliances or apparatusof 
every kind and nature used in connection with or forming a part of the installation for rendering water 
service to the Customer's side of the Service Connection whether such installation is owned by the 
Customer or used by the Customer under lease or other agreement. 

"MAIN" - A pipe, conduit, or other facility used to convey water service to individual service lines or 
through other mains. 

"RATE" - Amount which the Company may charge for water service which is applied to the Customer's 
actual consumption. 

"RATE SCHEDULE - The rate(s) or charge(s) for a particular classification of service plus the several 
provisions necessary for billing, including all special terms and conditions under which service shall be 
furnished at such rate or charge. 

"SERVICE -As mentioned in this tariff and in agreement with Customers, "Service" shall be construed 
to include, in addition to all water service required by the Customer, the readiness and abilityon the part 
of the Company to furnish water service to the Customer. Service shall conform to the standards set 
forth in Section 367.1 11 of the Florida Statutes. 

(Continued to Sheet No. 5.1) 
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(Continued from Sheet No. 5.0) 

12.0 "SERVICE CONNECTION" - The point where the Company's pipes or meters are connected with the 
pipes of the Customer. 

"SERVICE LINES -The pipes between the Company's Mains and the Service Connection and which 
includes all of the pipes, fittings and valves necessary to make the connection to the Customer's 
premises, excluding the meter. 

"TERRITORY" -The geographical area described, if necessary, by metes and bounds but, in all cases, 
with township, range and section in a Certificate, which may be within or without the boundaries of an 
incorporated municipality and may include areas in more than one county. 

HACIENDA VILLAGE UTILITY 

13.0 

14.0 
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WATERTARIFF 
INDEX OF RULES AND REGULATIONS 

Sheet 
Number: 

Access to Premises .............................. ..................... 

Adjustment of Bills .............................. .................... 10.0 

Adjustment of Bills for Meter Error ....... ............. 10.0 

All Water Through Meter 

.................................................................... 

Applications by Agents ..... 

Change of Customer's Installation. 8.0 

Continuity of Service .............................................................. 8.0 

Customer Billing ...................................................................................... 9.0 

Delinquent Bills ....................................................................................... 7.0 

Extensions ................................................................................... 7.0 

Filing of Contracts 10.0 

................. 7.0 
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WATER TARIFF 
RULES AND REGULATIONS 

1 .o 

2.0 

3.0 

4.0 

5.0 

6.0 

7.0 

8.0 

GENERAL INFORMATION - These Rules and Regulations are a part of the rate schedules and 
applications and contracts of the Company and, in the absence of specific written agreement to the 
contrary, apply without modifications or change to each and every Customer to whom the Company 
renders water service. 

The Company shall provide water service to all Customers requiring such service within its Certificated 
territory pursuant to Chapter 25-30, Florida Administrative Code and Chapter 367, Florida Statutes. 

POLICY DISPUTE - Any dispute between the Company and the Customer or prospective Customer 
regarding the meaning or application of any provision of this tariff shall upon written request by either 
party be resolved by the Florida Public Service Commission. 

APPLICATION - In accordance with Rule 25-30.310, Florida Administrative Code, a signed application 
is required prior to the initiation of service. The Company shall provide each Applicant with a copy of 
the brochure entitled "Your Water and Wastewater Service," prepared by the Florida Public Service 
Commission, 

APPLICATIONS BY AGENTS - Applications for water service requested by firms, partnerships, 
associations, corporations, and others shall be rendered only by duly authorized parties or agents. 

REFUSAL OR DISCONTINUANCE OF SERVICE -The Company may refuse or discontinue water 
service rendered under application made by any member or agent of a household, organization, or 
business in accordance with Rule 25-30.320, Florida Administrative Code. 

EXTENSIONS - Extensions will be made to the Company's facilities in compliance with Commission 
Rules and Orders and the Company's tariff. 

TYPE AND MAINTENANCE - In accordance with Rule 25-30.545, Florida Administrative Code, the 
Customer's pipes, apparatus and equipment shall be selected, installed, used and maintained in 
accordance with standard practice and shall conform with the Rules and Regulations of the Company 
and shall comply with all laws and governmental regulations applicable to same. The Company shall 
not be responsible for the maintenance and operation of the Customer's pipes and facilities. The 
Customer expressly agrees not to utilize any appliance or device which is not properly constructed, 
controlled and protected or which may adversely affect the water service. The Company reserves the 
right to discontinue or withhold water service to such apparatus or device. 

DELINQUENT BILLS - When it has been determined that a Customer is delinquent in paying any bill, 
water service may be discontinued after the Company has mailed or presented a written notice to the 
Customer in accordance with Rule 25-30.320, Florida Administrative Code. 

(Continued on Sheet No. 8.0) 
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(Continued from Sheet No. 7.0) 

9.0 CONTINUITY OF SERVICE - In accordance with Rule 25-30.250, Florida Administrative Code, the 
Company will at all times use reasonable diligence to provide continuous water service and, having 
used reasonable diligence, shall not be liable to the Customer for failure or interruption of continuous 
water service. 

If at any time the Company shall interrupt or discontinue its service, all Customers affected by said 
interruption or discontinuance shall be given not less than 24 hours written notice. 

LIMITATION OF USE - Water service purchased from the Company shall be used by the Customer 
onlyfor the purposes specified in the application for water service. Water service shall be rendered to 
the Customer for the Customer's own use and the Customer shall not sell or otherwise dispose of such 
water service supplied by the Company. 

In no case shall a Customer, except with the written consent of the Company, extend his lines across a 
street, alley, lane, court, property line, avenue, or other way in order to furnish water service to the 
adjacent property through one meter even though such adjacent property may be owned by him. In 
case of such unauthorized extension, sale, or disposition of service, the Customer's water service will 
be subject to discontinuance until such unauthorized extension, remetering, sale or disposition of 
service is discontinued and full payment is made to the Company for water service rendered by the 
Company (calculated on proper classification and rate schedules) and until reimbursement is made in 
full to the Company for all extra expenses incurred for clerical work, testing, and inspections. (This 
shall not be construed as prohibiting a Customer from remetering.) 

10.0 

11 .O CHANGE OF CUSTOMERS INSTALLATION - No changes or increases in the Customer's installation, 
which will materially affect the proper operation of the pipes, mains, or stations of the Company, shall be 
made without written consent of the Company. The Customer shall be liable for any charge resulting 
from a violation of this Rule. 

PROTECTION OF COMPANY'S PROPERTY - The Customer shall exercise reasonable diligence to 
protect the Company's property. If the Customer is found to have tampered with any Company property 
or refuses to correct any problems reported by the Company, service may be discontinued in 
accordance with Rule 25-30.320, Florida Administrative Code. 

In the event of any loss or damage to property of the Company caused by or arising out of 
carelessness, neglect, or misuse by the Customer, the cost of making good such loss or repairing such 
damage shall be paid by the Customer. 

12.0 

(Continued on Sheet No. 9.0) 
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WATER TARIFF 

(Continued from Sheet No. 8.0) 

13.0 

HACIENDA VILLAGE UTILITY 

INSPECTION OF CUSTOMERS INSTALLATION - All Customer's water service installations or 
changes shall be inspected upon completion by a competent authority to ensure that the Customer's 
piping, equipment, and devices have been installed in accordance with accepted standard practice and 
local laws and governmental regulations. Where municipal or other governmental inspection is required 
by local rules and ordinances, the Company cannot render water service until such inspection has been 
made and a formal notice of approval from the inspecting authority has been received by the Company. 

Not withstanding the above, the Company reserves the right to inspect the Customer's installation prior 
to rendering water service, and from time to time thereafter, but assumes no responsibility whatsoever 
for any portion thereof. 

ACCESS TO PREMISES .. In accordance with Rule 25-30.320(2)(f), Florida Administrative Code, the 
Customer shall provide the duly authorized agents of the Company access at all reasonable hours to its 
property. If reasonable access is not provided, service may be discontinued pursuant to the above 
rule. 

RIGHT-OF-WAY OR EASEMENTS -The Customer shall grant or cause to be granted to the Company, 
and without cost to the Company, all rights, easements, permits, and privileges which are necessaryfor 
the rendering of water service 

CUSTOMER BILLING - Bills for water service will be rendered - Monthly, Bimonthly, or Quarterly - as 
stated in the rate schedule. 

In accordance with Rule 25-30.335, Florida Administrative Code, the Company may not consider a 
Customer delinquent in paying his or her bill until the twenty-first day after the Company has mailed or 
presented the bill for payment. 

A municipal or county franchise tax levied upon a water or wastewater public Company shall not be 
incorporated into the rate for water or wastewater service but shall be shown as a separate item on the 
Companfs bills to its Customers in such municipality or county. 

If a Company utilizes the base facility and usage charge rate structure and does not have a 
Commission authorized vacation rate, the Company shall bill the Customer the base facility charge 
regardless of whether there is any usage. 

TERMINATION OF SERVICE -When a Customer wishes to terminate service on any premises where 
water service is supplied by the Company, the Company may require reasonable notice to the Company 
in accordance with Rule 25-30.325, Florida Administrative Code. 

14.0 

15.0 

16.0 

17.0 
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HACIENDA VILLAGE UTILITY 

18.0 

19.0 

20.0 

21 .o 

22.0 

23.0 

24.0 

25.0 

PAYMENT OF WATER AND WASTEWATER SERVICE BILLS CONCURRENTLY - In accordance with 
Rule 25-30.320(2)(g), Florida Administrative Code, when both water and wastewater Service are 
provided by the Company, payment of any water sewice bill rendered by the Company to a Customer 
shaii not be accepted by the Company without the simultaneous or concurrent payment Of any 
wastewater service bill rendered by the Company. 

UNAUTHORIZED CONNECTIONS -WATER - Any unauthorized connections to the Customer's water 
service shall be subject to immediate discontinuance without notice, in accordance with Rule 25-30.320, 
Florida Administrative Code. 

METERS - All water meters shall be furnished by and remain the property of the Company and shall be 
accessible and subject to its control, in accordance with Rule 25-30.230, Florida Administrative Code. 

ALL WATER THROUGH METER - That portion of the Customer's installation for water service shall be 
so arranged to ensure that ail water service shall pass through the meter. No temporary pipes, nipples 
or spaces are permitted and under no circumstances are connections allowed which may permit water 
to by-pass the meter or metering equipment. 

ADJUSTMENT OF BILLS - When a Customer has been undercharged as a result of incorrect 
application of the rate schedule, incorrect reading of the meter, incorrect connection of the meter, or 
other similar reasons, the amount may be refunded or billed to the Customer as the case may be 
pursuant to Rules 25-30.340 and 25-30.350, Florida Administrative Code. 

ADJUSTMENT OF BILLS FOR METER ERROR - When meter tests are made by the Commission or 
by the Company, the accuracy of registration of the meter and its performance shall conform with Rule 
25-30.262, Florida Administrative Code and any adjustment of a bill due to a meter found to be in error 
as a result of any meter test performed whether for unauthorized use or for a meter found to be fast, 
slow, non-registering, or partially registering, shall conform with Rule 25-30.340, Florida Administrative 
Code. 

METER ACCURACY REQUIREMENTS - All meters used by the Company should conform to the 
provisions of Rule 25-30.262, Florida Administrative Code. 

FILING OF CONTRACTS - Whenever a Developer Agreement or Contract, Guaranteed Revenue 
Contract, or Special Contract or Agreement is entered into by the Company for the sale of its product or 
services in a manner not specifically covered by its Rules and Regulations or approved Rate 
Schedules, a copy of such contracts or agreements shall be filed with the Commission prior to its 
execution in accordance with Rule 25-9.034 and Rule 25-30.550, Florida Administrative Code. If such 
contracts or agreements are approved by the Commission, a conformed copy shall be placed on file 
with the Commission within 30 days of execution. 
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INDEX OF RATES AND CHARGES SCHEDULES 

Sheet Number 

Customer Deposits ......... 14.0 

General Service, GS ...................................................................... 12.0 

Meter Test Deposit ........................................................................ 15.0 

Miscellaneous Service Charges .................................................... 16.0 

Residential Service, RS ...................................................... 13.0 

Service Availability Fees and Charges 17.0 
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GENERAL SERVICE 

RATE SCHEDULE GS 

AVAILABILITY - 

APPLICABILITY - 

LIMITATIONS - 

BILLING PERIOD - 
m -  

Available throughout the area served by the Company 

For water service to all Customers for which no other schedule applies 

Subject to all of the Rules and Regulations of this tariff and General Rules and 
Regulations of the Commission. 

Monthly 

Meter Size Base Facilitv Charae 

518" x 314" 
1 'I 
1.5" 
2 
3 
4" 
6" 

10.42 
26.05 
52.10 
83.36 
156.30 
260.50 
521 .OO 

Gallonage Charge 
per 1,000 gallons 2.37 

MINIMUM CHARGE - 

TERMS OF PAYMENT - Bills are due and payable when rendered. In accordance with Rule 25-30.320, Florida 
Administrative Code, if a Customer is delinquent in paying the bill for water service, 
service may then be discontinued. 

Base Facility Charge 

EFFECTIVE DATE - 

TYPE OF FILING - Original Certificate 

Roaer Maward 
ISSUING OFFICER 

Executive vlce President 
TITLE 



ORIGINAL SHEET NO. 13.0 

NAME OF COMPANY 

WATER TARIFF 

HACIENDA VILLAGE UTILITY 

RESIDENTIAL SERVICE 

RATE SCHEDULE RS 

AVAILABILITY - 

APPLICABILITY - 

Available throughout the area served by the Company 

For water service for all purposes in private residences and individually metered 
apartment units. 

Subject to all of the Rules and Regulations of this Tariff and General Rules and 
Regulations of the Commission. 

LIMITATIONS - 

BILLING PERIOD - Mnthly 

Base Facility Charge 
5/8 x 314" 10.42 

MINIMUM CHARGE - 
TERMS OF PAYMENT - Bills are due and payable when rendered. In accordance with Rule 25-30.320, Florida 

Administrative Code, if a Customer is delinquent in paying the bill for water service, 
service may then be discontinued. 

Base Facility Charge 

EFFECTIVE DATE - 

TYPE OF FILING - Original Certificate 
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NAME OF COMPANY 
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CUSTOMER DEPOSITS 

ESTABLISHMENT OF CREDIT - Before rendering water service, the Company may require an Applicant for 
service to satisfactorily establish credit, but such establishment of credit shall not relieve the Customer from 
complying with the Company's rules for prompt payment. Credit will be deemed so established if the Customer 
complies with the requirements of Rule 25-30.31 1, Florida Administrative Code. 

AMOUNT OF DEPOSIT -The amount of initial deposit shall be the following according to meter size: 

Residential General Service 

518 x 3/4" NIA 
1" NIA 

1 112 NIA 
Over 2" N/A 

ADDITIONAL DEPOSIT - Under Rule 25-30.31 1(7), Florida Administrative Code, the Company may require a 
new deposit, where previously waived or returned, or an additional deposit in order to secure payment of current 
bills provided. 

INTEREST ON DEPOSIT - The Company shall pay interest on Customer deposits pursuant to Rules 
25-30.31 l(4) and (4a). The Company will pay or credit accrued interest to the Customer's account during the 
month of NIA each year. 

REFUND OF DEPOSIT -After a residential Customer has established a satisfactory payment record and has had 
continuous service for a period of 23 months, the Company shall refund the Customer's deposit provided the 
Customer has met the requirements of Rule 25-30.31 1 (5), Florida Administrative Code. The Company may hold 
the deposit of a non-residential Customer after a continuous service period of 23 months and shall pay interest on 
the non-residential Customer's deposit pursuant to Rules 25-30.31 l(4) and (5), Florida Administrative Code. 

Nothing in this rule shall prohibit the Company from refunding a Customer's deposit in less than 23 months. 

EFFECTIVE DATE - 

TYPE OF FILING - Original Certificate 
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WATER TARIFF 
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METER TEST DEPOSIT 

METER BENCH TEST REQUEST - If any Customer requests a bench test of his or her water meter, in 
accordance with Rule 25-30.266, Florida Administrative Code, the Company may require a deposit to defray the 
cost of testing; such deposit shall not exceed the schedule of fees found in Rule 25-30.266, Florida Administrative 
Code. 

METER SIZE - FEE 

5/8 x 3/4" $20.00 
1"and 1 1/2" $25.00 
2" and over Actual Cost 

REFUND OF METER BENCH TEST DEPOSIT - The Company may refund the meter bench test deposit in 
accordance with Rule 25-30.266, Florida Administrative Code. 

METER FIELD TEST REQUEST - A  Customer may request a nocharge field test of the accuracy of a meter in 
accordance with Rule 25-30.266, Florida Administrative Code. 

EFFECTIVE DATE - 

TYPE OF FILING - Original Certificate 

Roaer Mavnard 
ISSUING OFFICER 

Executive Vice President 
TITLE 



ORIGINAL SHEET NO. 16.0 

NAME OF COMPANY 

WATER TARIFF 

HACIENDA VILLAGE UTILITY 

MISCELLANEOUS SERVICE CHARGES 

The Company may charge the following miscellaneous service charges in accordance with the terms stated 
herein. If both water and wastewater services are provided, only a single charge is appropriate unless 
circumstances beyond the control of the Company require multiple actions. 

INITIAL CONNECTION -This charge may be levied for service initiation at a location where 
service did not exist previously. 

NORMAL RECONNECTION - This charge may be levied for transfer of service to a new 
Customer account at a previously served location or reconnection of service subseauent to a 
Customer requested disconnection. 

VIOLATION RECONNECTION -This charge may be levied prior to reconnection of an existing 
Customer after disconnection of service for cause according to Rule 25-30.320(2), Florida 
Administrative Code, including a delinquency in bill payment. 

PREMISES VISIT CHARGE (IN LIEU OF DISCONNECTION) -This charge may be levied 
when a service representative visits a premises for the purpose of discontinuing service for 
nonpayment of a due and collectible bill and does not discontinue service because the 
Customer pays the service representative or otherwise makes satisfactory arrangements to 
pay the bill. 

Schedule of Miscellaneous Service Charaes 

Initial Connection Fee $15.00 
Normal Reconnection Fee $15.00 
Violation Reconnection Fee 

Premises Visit Fee 
(in lieu of disconnection) 

EFFECTIVE DATE - 
TYPE OF FILING - Original Certificate 

$15.00 
$lo.oo 
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SERVICE AVAILABILITY FEES AND CHARGES 

DescriDtion 
Back-Flow Preventor Installation Fee 

1" .......................................................................................... 

Over 2 ...................................................................................... 

5 / 8  x 3/4" 
Customer Connection (TaD-in) Charae 

metered service ... 
1 I* metered service ... 
1 1 / 2  metered service ... 
2" metered service ... 

Over 2 metered service ... 
Guaranteed Revenue Charae 
With Preoavment of Service AvailabMv Charaes: . _  - 

Residential-per ERClmonth (-GPD) ....................................... 
All others-per gallonlmonth ..... 

Without Prepayment of Service 
Residential-per ERClmonth (-GPD) ....................................... 
All others-per gallonlmonth 

Inspection Fee .............................. 
Main Extension Charae 

Residential-Der ERC f GPD) .- 
All others-per gallon ....................................................... 

or 

All others-per front foot 
Meter Installation Fee 

1112 ......................................................................... 

........................ 
Plan Review Charae ............................................................................ 
Plant CaDacitv Charae 

Residential-per ERC (-GPD) .................................................. 
~ 

All others-per gallon .................................................................. 

Residential-per ERC (-GPD) .................................................. 
All others-per gallon .................................................................. 

Svstem CaDacitv Charae 

'Actual Cost is equal to the total cost incurred for services rendered. 

EFFECTIVE DATE. 

TYPE OF FILING - Original Certificate 

Refer to Service Availability Policy 
Amount Sheet No./Rule No. 
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INDEX OF STANDARD FORMS 

DescriDtion Sheet No. 

APPLICATION FOR METER INSTALLATION ..................... 

APPLICATION FOR WATER SERVICE .............................. 

COPY OF CUSTOMER'S BILL ............................................. 

CUSTOMERS GUARANTEE DEPOSIT RECEIPT ............. 

21.0 

20.0 

22.0 

19.0 
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CUSTOMERS GUARANTEE DEPOSIT RECEIPT 

NIA 
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NAME OF COMPANY 

WATER TARIFF 
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APPLICATION FOR WATER SERVICE 

NIA 
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APPLICATION FOR METER INSTALLATION 

NIA 
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NAME OF COMPANY 
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COPY OF CUSTOMERS BILL 

NIA 
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INDEX OF SERVICE AVAILABILITY 

DescriDtion Sheet Number 

Schedule of Fees and Charges ..................................... Go to Sheet No. 17.0 
Service Availability Policy ............................................... 24.0 
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SERVICE AVAILABILITY POLICY 

The utility is at build-out and has no approved service availability policy. 
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